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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
 

This annual report on Form 10-K (this “Report”) contains forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements are
contained principally in the “Business” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” sections of this Report. These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors
which may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results,
performances or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. In some cases, you can identify
forward-looking statements by terms such as “anticipates”, “believes”, “seeks”, “could”, “estimates”, “expects”, “intends”,
“may”, “plans”, “potential”, “predicts”, “projects”, “should”, “would” and similar expressions intended to identify forward-
looking statements. Forward-looking statements reflect our current views with respect to future events and are based on
assumptions and subject to risks and uncertainties. Given these uncertainties, you should not place undue reliance on
these forward-looking statements. Such statements may include, but are not limited to, information related to: anticipated
operating results; relationships with our customers; consumer demand; financial resources and condition; changes in
revenues; changes in profitability; changes in accounting treatment; cost of sales; selling, general and administrative
expenses; interest expense; the ability to produce the liquidity or enter into agreements to acquire the capital necessary to
continue our operations and take advantage of opportunities; legal proceedings and claims. Also, forward-looking
statements represent our estimates and assumptions only as of the date of this Report. You should read this Report and
the documents that we reference and file or furnish as exhibits to this Report completely and with the understanding that
our actual future results may be materially different from what we expect. Except as required by law, we assume no
obligation to update any forward-looking statements publicly, or to update the reasons actual results could differ materially
from those anticipated in any forward-looking statements, even if new information becomes available in the future.
 

PRESENTATION OF INFORMATION
 

Except as otherwise indicated by the context, references in this Report to “ABMC”, “we”, “us”, “our” and the “Company”
are to the combined business of American Battery Metals Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries.
 
This Report includes our audited consolidated financial statements as at and for the nine months ended June 30, 2020
and as at and for the twelve months ended September 30, 2019. These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (“US GAAP”). All financial information in
this Report is presented in US dollars, unless otherwise indicated, and should be read in conjunction with our audited
consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included in this Report.
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PART I
 

Item 1. Business
 
Background
 
The lithium-ion battery manufacturing supply chain is organized into four industries that operate in series: battery
feedstock providers, material refiners, cell manufacturers, and end-use product (electric vehicle, stationary storage,
consumer electronics, etc.) manufacturers. While the scale of manufacturing of lithium-ion battery cells and of electric
vehicles and other end-use products have grown substantially within the US in recent years, there has been little
domestic growth in the battery feedstock and material refining portions of the manufacturing supply chain. This has led to
an imbalance within the domestic US supply chain and has caused the majority of cell manufacturing and end-use product
manufacturers to rely on foreign supplies of their raw and refined feedstock materials. The situation is so dire that in its
“Mineral Commodity Summaries 2020” report, the US Geological Survey calculated that less than 1% of each of the
critical and strategic battery metals (lithium, nickel, cobalt, and manganese) produced globally in 2019 were produced
within the US.
 
American Battery Metals Corporation (“ABMC”) is a startup company in the lithium-ion battery industry that is working to
increase the domestic US production of these four battery metals through its engagement in the exploration of new
primary resources of battery metals, in the development and commercialization of new technologies for the extraction of
these battery metals from primary resources, and in the commercialization of an internally developed integrated process
for the recycling of lithium-ion batteries for the recovery of battery metals. Through this three-pronged approach ABMC is
working to both increase the domestic production of these battery metals, and also to ensure that as these materials reach
their end of lives that the constituent elemental battery metals are returned to the manufacturing supply chain in a closed-
loop fashion.
 
Battery Metals Exploration
 
The Company’s exploration efforts are currently focused on the sampling and characterization of lithium-bearing of brine
and claystone sedimentary resources in the Western Nevada Basin (WNB) located in Nye County, Nevada. Through
sampling and evaluation of its previous holdings over the past year, the Company has recently down selected from 1,300
claims to the most promising resources and currently holds 647 placer mining claims on over 12,940 acres of land. The
Company is performing bench scale characterization and extraction trials to evaluate the technical and economic feasibility
of extracting elemental lithium from these resources in order to produce battery grade lithium hydroxide, and other high
value lithium products, for sale to the battery metals market.
 
ABMC has been evaluating the expansion of exploration efforts to nickel, cobalt, and manganese rich resources
throughout the US and Canada, however, has not yet entered into any formal agreements or contracts.
 
Battery Metals Extractions
 
In addition, ABMC has been working in collaboration with several lithium-rich resource owners within the Clayton Valley
area of Central Nevada. These resources largely consist of lithium-rich claystone sedimentary deposits, and ABMC has
been working with these resource owners in order to receive sample quantities of materials from various drilling locations.
Through characterizations and experimentation, ABMC has found that the mechanisms by which lithium is held within
these deposits is quite unique, and ABMC has been performing bench scale trials on an internally developed first-of-kind
selective leaching process for the low-cost extraction of lithium from these claystone resources. This novel method of
enabling a selective leaching of lithium from these claystone sedimentary resources has allowed for significantly lower
consumption of acid, lower levels of contaminants in the generated leach liquor, and lower overall costs of production.
After reviewing the performance of this novel process and confirming its uniqueness through discussions with third party
industry analysts, ABMC is considering preparing and submitting an initial provisional patent application for this
technology.
 
With the material generated during these selective extraction trials, ABMC has performed bench scale separations,
purification, and concentration processes to produce a high purity aqueous lithium hydroxide solution followed by
crystallization and filtration processes to produce a battery cathode grade lithium hydroxide powder product. ABMC is
currently evaluating the composition and morphology of these product materials relative to the required material
specifications from high energy density cathode manufacturers in order to determine the technical and economic feasibility
of manufacturing lithium hydroxide monohydrate products through this set of technologies with Clayton Valley claystone
sedimentary resources as the feedstock.
 
The remainder of the Company’s extraction efforts have been through using recycled materials as feedstock.
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Lithium-Ion Battery Recycling
 
ABMC has developed a universal lithium-ion battery recycling system that is able to recycle batteries of a wide range of
form factors (packs, modules, cylindrical cells, prismatic cells, pouch cells, defect and intermediate waste cells, metal
scraps, slurries, and powders) and of a wide range of cathode chemistries (lithiated cobalt oxide, lithiated nickel-cobalt-
aluminum oxide, lithiated nickel-cobalt-manganese oxide, lithiated nickel-cobalt-manganese-aluminum oxide, lithiated
nickel-oxide, and lithiated manganese-oxide) of various relative weighting of transition metals. While there currently has
not been a large proliferation of lithium-ion battery recycling facilities in operation globally, the few that are operating
generally implement “brute force” methods of processing batteries, by performing bulk high temperature calcinations or
bulk acid dissolutions. These upfront processes can be simpler to implement; however, they also make it very difficult to
enable high material recovery efficiencies of high value metal products downstream.
 
ABMC has developed a highly strategic recycling processing train that does not employ any high temperature operations
or any bulk chemical treatments of the full battery. Several of the leaders of the ABMC team have previously worked in
the design, construction, commissioning, and optimization of one of the largest lithium-ion battery manufacturing factories
in the world. Through these experiences they gained a first principles physics-based understanding of every stage of
lithium-ion battery cell manufacturing, and more importantly a fundamental understanding of the failure mechanisms that
can cause battery components, cells, and modules to fail. Through these fundamental understandings the ABMC team
has developed an automated high-speed mechanical separation process, which works to exploit the weaknesses in
battery design to essentially “de-manufacture” the modules and cells in a rapid and automated fashion in order to dissect
and separate the constituent components. This system is able to feed battery materials, without bulk discharging
operations, and separate module materials, cell casings, electrode foils, low density materials, material powders, and
wastewater in a matter of minutes without any direct hands-on operator interactions.
 
After the battery feedstock material is separated and sorted, what remains is a stream that contains rinse water, organic
carbonates, dissolved fluorine and phosphorous species, dissolved metals, and is of very high pH due to the leaching of
loosely held lithium from the electrodes. While many current facilities lightly treat this water stream in order to meet
discharge requirements, the ABMC team has instead developed a 6-part system that is able to treat this water in a
targeted fashion, extract contaminants in non-hazardous forms, and purify the water to a higher quality than even the
onsite well water. This treated water is then re-used back in the separations process in a closed loop fashion. The
avoidance of the discharge of this water, and of the purchasing of makeup water, results in significant levelized cost
savings and a dramatically lowered environmental footprint.
 
While the scrap metal products are sold directly after being separated from the automated disassembly system, the
cathode and anode powders are sent for further processing in an internally developed chemical extraction system. This
consists of a series of dilute acid dissolution, impurity removal, selective extraction, and purification systems that are able
to individually extract lithium, nickel, cobalt, and manganese elemental metals and upgrade them to the battery cathode
grade specifications demanded by high energy density cathode manufacturers.
 
Through the high speed and automated de-manufacturing of a wide variety of battery feedstock materials, and the low cost
and high material recovery efficiency chemical extraction train, ABMC is able to successfully extract battery metals from
end of life products and manufacturing waste and return them to the lithium-ion battery manufacturing supply chain in an
economically sustainable fashion. As a result of their lower environmental footprint, lower total cost of production, and high
stability of supply these recycled battery cathode metal feedstocks are highly valuable and sought after by domestic US
high energy density cathode manufacturers.
 
The largest high energy density cathode manufacturing within the US is BASF, and in order to accelerate the
commercialization of closed loop lithium-ion battery recycling, they initiated the Circularity Challenge in early 2019. This
was a global competition where they challenged companies throughout the world to develop new innovative technologies
for the recycling of large format lithium-ion batteries to establish a circular economy in the battery supply chain industries.
To winners of the Circularity Challenge, BASF offered seed funding, access to development laboratories, and the
exploration of partnership agreements. Over 100 companies throughout the world applied to this challenge throughout
2019, and after several down select and review presentations, in September 2019 BASF selected ABMC as the sole
winner of the battery recycling portion of this Circularity Challenge. BASF is one of the largest purchasers of lithium-ion
battery metal feedstocks in the US, and through the relationship established through this Circularity Challenge ABMC and
BASF have been exploring several avenues of working together to accelerate the commercialization of this lithium-ion
battery recycling technology.
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Company History
 
The Company was incorporated under the laws of the State of Nevada on October 6, 2011 for the purpose of acquiring
rights to mineral properties with the eventual objective of being a producing mineral company, if and when it ever occurs.
We have limited operating history and have not yet generated or realized any revenues from our activities. Our principal
executive offices are located at 930 Tahoe Blvd., Suite 802-16, Incline Village, NV 89451.
 
On August 8, 2016, the Company formed Lithortech Resources Inc. as a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company to
serve as its operating subsidiary for lithium resource exploration and development. On June 29, 2018, the Company
changed the name of Lithortech Resources to LithiumOre Corp. (“LithiumOre”). On May 3, 2019, the Company changed
its name to American Battery Metals Corporation.
 
The growth in demand for lithium-ion batteries is predicted by industry researchers to grow by over ten-fold over the next
ten years, while over the same period there are limited announcements for new production sources of domestic US based
lithium, nickel, cobalt, or manganese. As a result, there will be increased pressure on the prices of domestically sourced
battery metals, and increased reliance on foreign sourced battery metals. These industry trends support and validate the
Company’s multifaceted three-pronged business model to increase the production of domestic US sourced battery metals.
The Company is currently a pre-revenue organization and we do not anticipate earning revenues until such time as we
have initial operations of our lithium-ion battery recycling facility underway, or until we have undertaken sufficient
exploration work to identify lithium and or other battery metals reserves and have validated and commercialized a cost
effective extraction system.
 
Market and Industry
 
Lithium is extracted from primarily two sources: hard rock spodumene and pegmatite crystals, and dissolved lithium salts
from brine pools. Currently, the world’s top producers of Lithium are located in Australia, Chile, Argentina, and China.
 
In 2019, worldwide Lithium production totaled approximately 77,000 metric tons, with the top 4 countries (Australia, Chile,
China, Argentina) contributing roughly 95% of the global production. Most of the world’s lithium supply is produced by five
companies: Albemarle Corporation, FMC Corporation/Livent, Chile’s Sociedad Quimica Y Minera de Chile (SQM),
Ganfeng Lithium, and Tianqi Lithium. Albemarle, FMC, and SQM have traditionally been considered the “Big 3” of global
lithium producers. FMC Corporation spun off its lithium production to Livent in 2018.
 
In 2019, the market share of the “Big 3” companies decreased from 85% to 53%, with the Chinese companies attaining
40% market share.
 
Much of the current production of Lithium in Australia is derived from conventional mining techniques of ancient
Precambrian rocks containing Lithium ore which is crushed and fed into capital intensive processing plants which upgrade
the lithium mineral using gravity, flotation, magnetic and roasting purification processes.
 
Alternatively, Lithium production from Chile and Argentina uses a much less capital intense extraction method. Lithium is
located beneath various salt flats. The Lithium is leached from nearby source rocks and becomes concentrated in salty
brines just under the surface. The Lithium enriched brines are then pumped up to settle in multiple shallow surface
evaporation pools which produces a thicker Lithium rich liquid. That liquid is treated with sodium carbonate, which creates
lithium carbonate.
 
The Lithium market has typically been dominated by the ceramic and medical sectors, however recently the demand for
Lithium for the battery markets- to fuel electric vehicles and energy storage applications- outstripped any other sector.
 
The primary lithium-ion battery manufacturers by capacity are: CATL, BYD, Tesla, Panasonic of Japan, and LG Chem of
South Korea.
 
Lithium is not currently traded on any commodity exchanges, but rather is usually distributed in a chemical form such as
lithium carbonate (Li2CO3) and sold directly to end users for a negotiated price per ton of lithium carbonate.
 
General Market Analysis
 
Lithium-ion batteries have become the rechargeable battery of choice in cell phones, computers, electric cars and now
larger scale electric storage. The growth in demand for lithium batteries is predicted to far outpace lithium production in
the coming decade; in particular, Lithium-ion batteries for the automotive industry is expected to continue to drive demand
beyond supply.
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Recently, Japan and South Korea have both recorded high levels of Lithium-ion battery exports as auto companies’ ramp
up battery consumption to power all-electric vehicle sales. China has the most electric vehicles on the road, but both
European and North American auto manufacturers are committed to significantly increasing EV sales by 2025. In
November 2019, Ford unveiled its long awaited fully electric Mustang-styled SUV.
 
According to Goldman Sachs, 25% of cars sold will have electric engines by 2025, up from 5% today. Just a 1% increase
of Electric Vehicles hitting the market could increase lithium demand by roughly half of the current production of lithium
today.
 
Tesla’s mile long Gigafactory started producing powerful Lithium-ion batteries in January 2017 with its partner Panasonic.
The Gigafactory will supply batteries for the 500,000 cars Tesla hopes to produce by the end of the decade, as well as to
power homes. Also, Chrysler, Dodge, Ford, GM, BMW, Volkswagen, Mercedes-Benz, Mitsubishi, Nissan, Saturn, Tesla
and Toyota have all announced plans to build lithium-ion battery powered cars. After Tesla released the Model 3 in July
2017, there have been over 500,000 reservations for the vehicle and production is starting 2 years ahead of schedule.
Elon Musk has stated that Tesla will have to acquire the entire lithium market to meet the current demands. Thus, the
global lithium market is approaching shortages, which has made it a useful commodity and mineral explorers have
launched efforts to locate and bring new suppliers to the marketplace.
 
Lithium brine exploration and development has proven to be much more cost effective and faster to be put into production
than the hard rock mine counterparts. Lithium brine deposits are considered placer deposits and are easier to gain mining
permits for. Brine is also a liquid which means that drilling to find it is more akin to drilling for water or oil. It’s also typically
located relatively close to surface, which limits the depth of required drilling. Once lithium brine is found, the reserve data
is more straightforward to understand and quantify.
 
As the brines are found in large flat areas, the construction of numerous flat evaporation pools or direct solvent extraction
can be achieved at relatively low cost. Environmental impact is minimized as the excess residual brines can be pumped
back into the salt flats.
 
In Summary:
 
Historically, lithium demand came from industrial sectors manufacturing greases, glass, and ceramics. The processing of
lithium for industrial applications requires lower specification products.
 
The introduction of the lithium-ion battery for consumer electronics, EV, and energy storage applications changed the
demand dynamic; the batteries for e-mobility and energy storage now dominate current and future demand for lithium.
Electric vehicles will continue to require vast amounts of lithium with higher grade and purities.
 
Electric Vehicle OEM are increasingly quality-conscious and develop close relationships to the modern “megafactories”
that supply them with battery cells. In order to consistently supply the desired high nickel cathodes, megafactories need
high purity raw materials - particularly lithium - to create low impurity lithium hydroxide.
 
In the United States, there are not currently enough chemical producers in operation to meet existing or future standards;
battery grade hydroxide production is quite small as compared to the whole lithium supply chain. To meet market demand,
this segment must quickly grow in the short term, at an estimated rate of 35-40% between now and 2025.
 
In 2019, explanations for the drop in the price of lithium were erroneously attributed to the “oversupply myth.” The reality is
that there is not “too much lithium” in production but rather that there is not enough battery grade lithium hydroxide to
meet market demand to fuel the explosive projections for Electric Vehicles.
 
Existing producers know that aside from handling and limited shelf life, consistently producing battery grade hydroxide
within "spec,” while meeting the qualification challenges going forward will require significantly more high-grade lithium
products. This will require new resources of raw materials, which demands investment in new exploration and mining
projects.
 
Competition
 
We compete with other mining/exploration and battery recycling companies, many of which possess greater financial
resources and technical facilities than we do, in connection with the acquisition of suitable exploration properties, building
and operating process plants and in connection with the engagement of qualified personnel. The lithium
exploration/mining and battery recycling industries are fragmented, and we are a very small participant in these sectors.
Many of our competitors have been in business longer than we have and have established more strategic partnerships and
relationships and have greater financial accessibility than we have.
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While we compete with other exploration companies in acquiring suitable properties, we believe that there would be
readily available purchasers of lithium and other precious metals if they were to be produced from any of our leased
properties. The price of precious metals can be affected by a number of factors beyond our control, including:
 

fluctuations in the market prices for lithium;  
fluctuating supplies of lithium;  
fluctuating demand for lithium; and  
mining activities of others.  
 

If lithium mineralization that is determined to be of economic grade and in sufficient quantity to justify production were
located, additional capital would be required to develop, mine and sell our production.
 
Covid-19 Impact
 
In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 a pandemic. As COVID-19 continues to spread
throughout the world, the ongoing global pandemic continues to prompt governments and businesses to maintain and, in
some cases, extend unprecedented measures in response. Such measures have included federal, state, county and local
governments, and public health organizations and authorities around the world implementing a variety of measures
intended to control the spread of the virus, including quarantines, “stay-at-home” orders, travel restrictions, school
closures, business limitations and closures, social distancing and hygiene requirements. The COVID-19 pandemic has
also disrupted global supply chains and workforce participation and created significant volatility and disruption of financial
markets. A prolonged economic downturn and adverse impact to global economies or a sustained slowdown in growth or
demand could have an adverse effect on commodity prices and/or our ability to raise financing to meet our ongoing
obligations. The full extent to which COVID-19 impacts the Company will depend on future developments, which are
highly uncertain and cannot be predicted, including new information which may emerge concerning COVID-19 and the
actions required to contain or treat its impact, among others.
 
Item 1A. Risk Factors
 
Not required.
 
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
 
Not applicable.
 
Item 2. Properties
 
We operate within the U.S.A, with our principal executive offices located in Incline Village, Nevada, our corporate offices
located in Moraga, California, our battery metal extraction and lithium-ion battery recycling technologies laboratories
located in Virginia City, Nevada and Greentown, Massachusetts, our mining claims located in the Western Nevada Basin,
our farm and water rights located in Currant, Nevada and our undeveloped industrial land in Fernley, Nevada.
 
We believe that all our property and facilities are generally well maintained, effectively used and are adequate to operate
our business.
 
Set forth below is information regarding significant properties operated by us:
 
Undeveloped Industrial Land – Fernley, NV
 
On July 29, 2020, the Company entered into escrow to purchase approximately 12 ½ acres of industrial land in Fernley,
Nevada in a Qualified Opportunity Zone (QOZ). The Company intends to construct a commercial pilot plant of its first-of-
its-kind lithium-ion battery recycling facility on this land. The Company intends to invest approximately $15 million between
Q3 2020 and Q1 2021 in order to construct and commission the first portion of this facility. This first portion will consist of
approximately 30,000 sq. ft. of industrial processing space, as well as laboratory and office space. Once this first portion is
operational, the Company estimates that this battery recycling facility will be operating in a financially self-sufficient
manner as it sells scrap metal and high value metal filter cake products.
 
Subsequently, between Q2 2021 and the end of Q4 2021 the Company intends to invest an additional approximately $20
million in order to install value-add operations to this recycling facility in order to further increase operating margins. These
value-add operations will allow for the manufacturing of battery cathode grade metal products (lithium hydroxide, nickel
sulfate, cobalt sulfate, manganese sulfate) in addition to the sale of scrap metals.
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Laboratory Facilities
 
The Company operates out of two laboratory facilities for the research and development of its battery metal extraction and
lithium-ion battery recycling technologies.
 
Greentown Labs, Somerville, MA
 
The Company occupies wet chemistry laboratory space, free of charge, from Greentown Labs, which is the largest clean
technology incubator in North America. Besides desk and lab space, the Company also has access to more than $1
million worth of resources, equipment, programming, and staff support. The Company was afforded this opportunity by
winning the Greentown Labs Circularity Challenge, an accelerator program for start-ups developed in partnership with
BASF, one of the world's leading chemical companies. The program intends to advance innovative ideas to disrupt the
plastics, energy storage and recycling value chains to enable a circular economy. The Company is utilizing Greentown
Labs to advance their metal extraction techniques and lithium-ion battery recycling technologies.
 
Virginia City, NV Laboratory
 
The Company leases a laboratory from Comstock Mining, Inc. The laboratory is utilized for metal extraction experiments
and for the testing of soil samples. The cost of the month-to-month lease is $2,500 a month.
 
Mining Claims
 
LithiumOre, the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, currently has 647 placer mining claims on over 12,940 acres in the
area known as the Western Nevada Basin, situated in Railroad Valley in Nye County, Nevada. We do not currently have
any partnership agreements or royalty agreements in connection with such claims.
 
We also own a 120-acre parcel of private property with water rights, in the town of Currant, NV near Railroad Valley,
which we acquired for exploratory purposes and was fully impaired in prior years. It will act as a base for such operations
of the Company.
 
We lease from the Bureau of Land Management our Western Nevada Basin Claims where we are exploring and drilling for
possible lithium-rich brine.
 
The Western Nevada Basin (WNB) Claims are located in east central Nye County, Nevada (Figure 1) approximately 93
miles northeast of the county seat of Tonopah, NV, the major commercial center for the region; 56 miles southwest of the
town of Ely, NV and 120 miles northeast of Silver Peak NV, the only currently operating lithium producer in the State.
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Figure 1. Location Map. The Western Nevada Basin Claim is located within the central portion of the Railroad Valley,
approximately 169 miles north-northwest of Las Vegas, NV and 234 miles east-southeast of Reno, NV.
 

 
 
Figure 2. The Western Nevada Basin Mining Property covers 12,940 acres. It consists of a total six hundred and forty-
seven (647) placer claims. Each claim covers approximately 20 acres and was laid out by aliquot parts as required by the
Bureau of Land Management.
 
Lithium is a locatable mineral according to the Code of Federal Regulations. Rights to lithium are to be held by lode claims
where it occurs in bedrock and by placer claims where it occurs in sediments and brines. A body of legal precedents set
during the original development of lithium brines in the area provides that lithium in valley sediments by nature of the
unconsolidated host rock are staked by and produced from placer claims.
 
In Nevada the claim staking procedure requires recording documents with both the county Recorder’s Office and the state
BLM office. Claims must be held by posts at the claims four corners and a Notice of Location which describe the claims
legal description of location and owner. The claims are required to be recorded at the county courthouse within the proper
jurisdiction within 90 days from the staking date.
 
Placer claims on Federal lands are held to a September 1 to August 31 assessment year when Intent to Hold or Proof of
labor documents need to be filed with the county for the annual assessment work. The pertinent documents are filed with
the Nye County Recorder’s Office.
 
The current annual maintenance fee is $165 per 20-acre (or a portion thereof) placer claim
(http://www.blm.gov/ca/st/en/info/iac/miningfacts.html). Payment of those fees allows the claim to stay on the BLM active
database. Non-payment results in the claims moving to ‘closed’ status.
 
Before August 31st of each year, a payment of $165 per claim is made to the BLM to hold the claims in good standing for
the following assessment year. The total BLM cost for the 2020 assessment year for the 647 WNB Claims was $106,755.
These fees were also paid in 2018 and 2019 in order to maintain the current mining claims.
 
In 2020 the total number of placer mining claims were reduced from 1,300 to 647. The decision to reduce the current
mining claim holdings was based on detailed geologic and geophysical interpretations of field studies conducted on the
WNB Claims over several months in 2019 and 2020. In order to increase shareholder value “on a claim by claim basis”;
only the most prospective claims were maintained while interpreted potential unproductive claims were effectively dropped
in order to save exploration funds.
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When fees are paid a claim is deemed ‘active’. Active and approved claim fees are also due to the County before
November 1st of each year. A payment to Nye County, NV, of $12 per claim to file an affidavit of assessment fees paid and
notice of intent to hold the claims into the next assessment year. The total Nye County holding cost for the current 647
WNB claims is $7,774 and will be paid before November 1, 2020. Payments to the County are current as of October 31,
2019.
 
As public lands, there is right of free access and both surface and mineral rights are held by the Federal government.
Public records (Bureau of Land Management) show no military withdrawals or Areas of Critical Environmental Concern.
The Railroad Valley Wildlife Management Area is located to the west of the WNB claim boundary and has no effect on any
planned work on the WNB claim area.
 
To the Company’s knowledge, there are no known environmental liabilities to which the property is subject or other
significant factors and risks that may access, title, or the right or ability to perform work on the property. The NOI permit for
the drilling site was approved on July 13, 2018.
 
Accessibility
 
The main route of access to the WNB project is Nevada State U.S. Route 6 which provides all year access to Railroad
Valley and the project area. U.S. Route 6 provides direct access to the two nearby commercial centers; Tonopah, located
southwest of the project at the junction of Routes 6 and 95, approximately 90 minutes away, and Ely, a slightly larger
commercial center with a population of over 4,200 approximately, located northeast of the project approximately 60
minutes away. US Highway 95 is the main highway linking Las Vegas and Reno, the two largest metropolitan areas in
Nevada.
 
Climate
 
Railroad Valley is in the rain shadow of the Sierra Nevada Mountains. The region is arid to almost semiarid. Winters are
cold while summers are hot. Average annual precipitation is approximately 5 inches; however, variations occur at differing
altitudes. Exploration can be conducted in the spring, summer, and fall seasons.
 
Local Resources
 
Railroad Valley contains several small communities which include Currant, Crow’s Nest, Green Springs, Locke’s, and
Nyala. Electrical power is available within the valley area.
 
The larger population centers of Ely and Tonopah are connected via U.S. Route 6 to the project area. Tonopah has a
population of approximately 2,500 and is the governmental center for the region. Ely has a population of approximately
4,200 and is the closest commercial center. Groceries, hardware, a bank and a choice of motels and restaurants are
available in both Ely and Tonopah.
 
The area has a long history of mining. Mining personnel can be sourced mostly from the larger towns of Tonopah or Ely.
 
Infrastructure
 
A reasonable network of 4x4, graded and paved roads connects the claim area to the rest of Nevada. Electrical power is
available at several sites throughout the valley and could easily provide power to any operation at the project area. The
nearest rail and large commercial airline service are in Las Vegas, NV approximately 169 miles to the south.
 
Physiography
 
Railroad Valley is one of the longest topographically closed drainage basins in Nevada, extending more than 110 miles in
a north-south direction and up to 20 miles wide. This valley is one of the Central Nevada Desert Basins in the Tonopah
Basin. The southern end of the valley begins near Gray Top Mountain (7,036 feet) and stretches north all the way to
Mount Hamilton (10,745 feet). The mountain masses are dominated by the White Pine, Grant and Quinn Canyon ranges
east of the valley.
 
Railroad Valley comprises an area of approximately 2,750 square miles. Two large flat areas occur within the valley. The
claims are located on the large Northern flat area of the valley floor at elevations generally of 4400 – 4700 feet. The valley
floor is characterized by subdued topography with washes eroding into slightly older valley-fill sediments.
 
The claims are located on flat areas where vegetation is scarce. There is sufficient surface area for recovery and
processing facilities within the Claims.
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Geologic Setting
 
The claims are located in the Basin and Range physiographic province which stretches from southern Oregon and Idaho
to Mexico. It is characterized by extreme elevation changes between mountains and flat intermountain valleys or basins.
 
Plate tectonics powered by crustal spreading broadly generates two types of forces: compression as plates are moved
together and extension as those forces relax. Compression was the dominant geologic force affecting the western United
States beginning about 200 million years ago as the Pacific Ocean plate moved eastward under the North American
continental plate. Those forces compressed the overlying pile of sedimentary rocks accumulated over hundreds of millions
of years into a thick stack reaching up to elevations of 14,000 feet, similar to the altiplano of Mexico and South America
which formed at the same time from similar forces. That highland plateau stretched west – east from the Sierra Nevada
Mountains in California to the Wasatch Range in Utah.
 
Extension became the dominant force beginning in the Eocene - Oligocene epochs approximately 55 to 25 million years
ago. Also, the relative movement of the tectonic plates changed about 30 million years ago with the movement becoming
more oblique to the continent. This relaxed the compressional forces and also tended to ‘tear’ the crust apart, creating
diagonal extensions.
 
The resulting compressional and extensional tectonics have created throughout Nevada a classical Basin and Range
province consisting of narrow, N- to NE-trending, fault block mountain chains separated by flat linear valleys. This
geological pattern is repeated across the State and has created a number of currently arid, ‘trapped’ or closed basins with
respect to drainage that have the potential of containing lithium brine deposits.
 
Geology of Lithium Brines
 
Lithium brine deposits are accumulations of saline groundwater that are enriched in dissolved lithium. All producing lithium
brine deposits share a number of first-order characteristics:
 

arid climate; 
closed basin containing a salt flat (also known as a Playa or Salar); 
tectonically driven subsidence; 
associated igneous or geothermal activity; 
suitable lithium source-rocks; 
one or more adequate aquifers; and 
sufficient time to concentrate a brine. 
 

The single most important factor determining if a nonmarine basin can accumulate lithium brine is whether or not the
basin is closed.
 
Lithium enriched brines are formed by complex processes that include evaporation, re-mobilization, salt and lithium clay
dissolution and precipitation. In essence, lithium is liberated through weathering or derived from hydrothermal fluids from a
variety of rock sources within a closed basin where lithium, a lightweight element, cannot escape.
 
Lithium is highly soluble and, unlike sodium (Na), potassium (K), or calcium (Ca), does not readily produce evaporite
minerals when concentrated by evaporation. Instead it ends up in residual brines in the shallow subsurface. Economic
brines have Li concentrations in the range of 200 to 4,000 milligrams per liter (mg/l). 1 mg/l = 1 ppm.
 
Clayton Valley contains the only currently producing lithium brine project in Nevada. Production has been on-going since
1967. The production at Clayton Valley is located approximately 120 miles west of Railroad Valley. Evidence from Clayton
Valley suggests that felsic vitric tuffs are a particularly favorable primary source of lithium as well, uplifted Neogene lake
beds from earlier in the basin’s history, which have been altered to hectorite, may provide a source of lithium.
 
Geology of Railroad Valley
 
Railroad Valley has produced about 44 million barrels of oil (MMBO) from nine petroleum fields and has been extensively
studied to determine relations between structure and oil production. Several interpretations of basin configuration have
evolved, based on improved seismic acquisition and processing and better understanding of deformation styles and
kinetics.
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Oil was first discovered at Railroad Valley by Shell Oil in 1954. Their first discovery well reached a depth of 10,360 feet
and it was determined that there were commercial oil reserves at intervals between 6,450 and 6,730 feet. The valley area
is essentially wedge shaped with the wedge increasing in thickness from west to east. A low-angle attenuation fault has
been reported to underlie Railroad Valley which has been interpreted to be a result of asymmetric arching rather than a
series of down-to-the-west high-angle normal faults.
 
The stratigraphy of the valley is known to contain Paleozoic platform carbonate rocks, Tertiary volcanic rocks, and Tertiary
lacustrine sediments. In comparison to Clayton Valley, Railroad Valley has a large endowment of Neogene volcanic flows
and tophaceous rocks.
 
Oil exploration has reported several laterally continuous thick lithium brine horizons throughout Railroad Valley. Testing for
lithium from the brines was not conducted by the oil industry. Good reservoir rocks for oil may not represent good
reservoir hosts for lithium. The underlying brine-waters of the Railroad Valley were at one time examined as a potential
reservoir for Las Vegas.
 
Volcanic rocks form a large part of the Neogene rock sequence: ash-flow tuffs and basalt flows from major calderas in
eastern and central Nevada. Thickness of the volcanic section can vary greatly because of Neogene erosion and faulting.
The thickness of ash flow tuffs in Railroad Valley can range from less than 1,000 ft to more than 3,000 ft. These rocks
have shown good porosity and may represent an enormous source for lithium.
 
Tertiary lacustrine formations consist of varying proportions of fresh-water carbonate, shale, sandstone, and volcanic
debris. To date, oil production from Tertiary lacustrine reservoirs is limited, but there is production from the Sheep Pass
Formation in the Eagle Springs field, and formerly there was production from Currant field; both in Railroad Valley.
 
The northern Playa area of Railroad Valley contained a large lake during the Pleistocene Epoch, more than 7,000 years
ago. The lake has subsequently evaporated within the valley; however, at one point it reportedly covered an area of over
525 square miles and attained a maximum depth of 315 feet. The large Railroad Valley north playa today is partly covered
by young erosional alluvium.
 
Mineral Resources and Mineral Reserves
 
The Railroad Valley has demonstrated enrichment in lithium in the nearby dry sediments as evidenced from the NURE
sample database from the U.S. Geological Survey. However, the project is at an exploration stage. There are no lithium
brine mineral resources or reserves for the property.
 
Exploration and Development
 
Exploration and Development would consist of direct sampling and analysis of lithium both laterally and vertically across
the project area from both volcanic horizons and underground brines contained within the Playa. Drilling and mobilization
represent the largest costs of the program. Every effort would be made to minimize costs and maximize the sampling of
brine from either re-entry and perforation of ‘shut-in’ oil wells or testing of current water wells in the project area.
 
Future Exploration and Development
 
The Company believes there is value in their WNB claims and will continue to evaluate those claims. However, resources
are limited, and the Company’s primary focus is on the development of its battery recycling facility in Fernley, NV.
 
Item 3. Legal Proceedings
 
In January 2018, the Company filed a complaint in Nevada seeking the return or cancellation of 16 million common shares
which the Company believes were fraudulently issued as well as claims against the former CEO of the Company, Craig
Alford. As a result, the Company entered into agreements to cancel eleven million shares (of which ten million shares
have already been cancelled). The remaining five million shares were cancelled and reissued after the Company
determined that the recipients provided proper consideration for such shares. Alford has filed a counterclaim against the
Company for amounts allegedly owed to him that the Company believes is entirely without merit. The litigation continues
against Alford and certain other relief defendants but has been delayed due to Covid -19 restrictions.
 
Other than the preceding, to the best of our knowledge, we are not currently a party to any legal proceedings that,
individually or in the aggregate, are deemed to be material to our financial condition or results of operations.
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We are required by Section 78.090 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (the "NRS") to maintain a registered agent in the State
of Nevada. Our registered agent for this purpose is United Corporate Services, Inc., 2520 St Rose Pkwy Suite 319,
Henderson, NV 89074. All legal process and any demand or notice authorized by law to be served upon us may be
served upon our registered agent in the State of Nevada in the manner provided in NRS 14.020(2).
 
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
 
Not applicable.

 
PART II

 
Item 5. Market for Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
 
Market Information
 
Our shares of common stock are eligible for quotation on “OTCQB” operated by the OTC Markets Group under the
symbol “ABML.” Quotations for our securities represent inter-dealer prices, without retail markups, markdowns or
commissions and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.
 
On September 22, 2020, the closing price of our Common Stock as reported by the OTC Markets Group was $0.10089
per share.
 
Holders
 
As of September 21, 2020, we have approximately 114 shareholders including our directors and officers. One such holder
is Cede & Co., a nominee for Depository Trust Company, or DTC. Shares of common stock that are held by financial
institutions as nominees for beneficial owners are deposited into participant accounts at DTC and are considered to be
held of record by Cede & Co. as one stockholder.
 
Dividends
 
We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our capital stock. We currently intend to retain all available funds
and any future earnings to support our operations and finance the growth and development of our business. We do not
intend to pay cash dividends on our common stock for the foreseeable future. Any future determination related to dividend
policy will be made at the discretion of our Board of Directors. The Nevada Revised Statutes, however, prohibits us from
declaring dividends where, after giving effect to the distribution of the dividend:
 

we would not be able to pay our debts as they become due in the usual course of business; or 
 
our total assets would be less than the sum of our total liabilities plus the amount that would be needed to
satisfy the rights of stockholders who have preferential rights superior to those receiving the distribution,
unless otherwise permitted under our Articles of Incorporation. 

 
Stock Options, Warrants and Rights
 
As at June 30, 2020, ABMC has potentially issuable shares of common stock as follows:
 

8,603,112 potentially issuable shares of common stock from share purchase warrants issued with an
exercise price that ranges from $0.10 to $0.50 per share; and 
 
In addition, the Company had an indeterminable number of shares issuable based on $2,251,200 in
principal amount of outstanding in convertible notes which have a conversion price based on a discount to
the market price of the Company’s stock prior to conversion.  
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Penny Stock
 
Our common stock is subject to the provisions of Section 15(g) of the Exchange Act and Rule 15g-9 thereunder,
commonly referred to as the “penny stock rule”. Section 15(g) sets forth certain requirements for transactions in penny
stock, and Rule 15g-9(d) incorporates the definition of “penny stock” that is found in Rule 3a51-1 of the Exchange Act. The
SEC generally defines a penny stock to be any equity security that has a market price less than US$5.00 per share,
subject to certain exceptions. We are subject to the SEC’s penny stock rules. Since our common stock is deemed to be
penny stock, trading in the shares of our common stock is subject to additional sales practice requirements on broker
dealers who sell penny stock to persons other than established customers and accredited investors. “Accredited investors”
are generally persons with assets in excess of US$1,000,000 or annual income exceeding US$200,000 or US$300,000
together with their spouse. For transactions covered by these rules, broker dealers must make a special suitability
determination for the purchase of securities and must have the purchaser’s written consent to the transaction prior to the
purchase. Additionally, for any transaction involving penny stock, unless exempt, the rules require the delivery, prior to the
first transaction, of a risk disclosure document prepared by the SEC relating to the penny stock market. A broker-dealer
also must disclose the commissions payable to both the broker-dealer and the registered representative and current
quotations for the securities. Finally, monthly statements must be sent disclosing recent price information for penny stocks
held in an account and information to the limited market in penny stocks. Consequently, these rules may restrict the ability
of broker-dealer to trade and/or maintain a market in our common stock and may affect the ability of our stockholders to
sell their shares.
 
Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans
 
As of the date of this Report, we do not have any compensation plans under which our equity securities are authorized for
issuance. We intend to adopt an equity compensation plan in which our directors, officers, employees and consultants will
be eligible to participate. However, no formal steps have yet been taken to adopt such a plan.
 
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
 
On April 6, 2020, the Company issued a 12% Convertible Promissory Note in the principal amount of $78,000 with a
purchase price of $78,000 to Power Up Lending Group Ltd. The note is due February 15, 2021. The holder shall have the
right from time to time, and at any time during the period beginning one hundred eighty (180) days from the issue date and
ending on the later of (i) the maturity date and (ii) the date of payment the date of payment of the default amount, each in
respect of the remaining outstanding principal amount of this note to convert all or any amount of the outstanding and
unpaid principal amount of the note into fully paid and non-assessable shares of common stock. The conversion price is
equal to 61% of the lowest closing bid price of common stock during the ten (10) trading day period ending on the latest
complete trading day prior to the conversion date. The note may be prepaid until 180 days from the issuance date at a
price of 115% - 140% of the face amount plus any accrued interest as of the date of prepayment. The default rate on the
note is 22% per annum.
 
On April 7, 2020, the Company issued a 10% Convertible Promissory Note in the principal amount of $110,000 with a
purchase price of $100,000 to Adar Alef, LLC. The note is due April 7, 2021. The holder shall have the right from time to
time, and at any time to convert all or any amount of the outstanding and unpaid principal amount of the note into fully
paid and non-assessable shares of common stock. The conversion price is equal to 60% of the lowest closing bid price of
the Company’s common stock during the prior fifteen (15) trading day period including the conversion date. The note may
be prepaid until 180 days from the issuance date at a price of 120% - 140% of the face amount plus any accrued interest
as of the date of prepayment. The default rate on the note is 24% per annum.
 
On April 10, 2020, the Company issued a 10% Convertible Promissory Note in the principal amount of $150,000 with a
purchase price of $150,000 to Auctus Fund, LLC. The note is due April 10, 2021. The holder shall have the right from time
to time, and at any time during the period beginning on the issue date and ending on the later of (i) the maturity date and
(ii) the date of payment the date of payment of the default amount, each in respect of the remaining outstanding principal
amount of this note to convert all or any amount of the outstanding and unpaid principal amount of the note into fully paid
and non-assessable shares of common stock. The conversion price is equal to 68% of the lowest trading price of common
stock during the twenty (20) trading day period ending on the latest complete trading day prior to the conversion date. The
note may be prepaid until 180 days from the issuance date at a price of 115% - 135% of the face amount plus any accrued
interest as of the date of prepayment. The default rate on the note is 24% per annum.
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On April 21, 2020, the Company issued a 10% Convertible Promissory Note in the principal amount $43,000 with a
purchase price of $43,000 to Power Up Lending Group Ltd. The note is due April 21, 2021. The holder shall have the right
from time to time, and at any time during the period beginning one hundred eighty (180) days from the issue date and
ending on the later of (i) the maturity date and (ii) the date of payment the date of payment of the default amount, each in
respect of the remaining outstanding principal amount of this note to convert all or any amount of the outstanding and
unpaid principal amount of the note into fully paid and non-assessable shares of common stock. The conversion price is
equal to 61% of the lowest closing bid price of common stock during the ten (10) trading day period ending on the latest
complete trading day prior to the conversion date. The note may be prepaid until 180 days from the issuance date at a
price of 115% - 140% of the face amount plus any accrued interest as of the date of prepayment. The default rate on the
note is 22% per annum.
 
On April 22, 2020, the Company issued a 10% Convertible Promissory Note in the principal amount of $115,500 with a
purchase price of $105,000 to Black Ice Advisors, LLC. The note is due April 22, 2021. The holder shall have the right
from time to time, and at any time to convert all or any amount of the outstanding and unpaid principal amount of the note
into fully paid and non-assessable shares of common stock. The conversion price is equal to 60% of the lowest closing bid
price of the Company’s common stock during the prior fifteen (15) trading day period including the conversion date. The
note may be prepaid until 180 days from the issuance date at a price of 115% - 140% of the face amount plus any accrued
interest as of the date of prepayment. The default rate on the note is 24% per annum.
 
On April 23, 2020, the Company issued a 10% Convertible Promissory Note in the principal amount of $125,000 with a
purchase price of $112,500 to Efrat Investments, LLC. The note is due April 23, 2021. The holder shall have the right from
time to time, and at any time to convert all or any amount of the outstanding and unpaid principal amount of the note into
fully paid and non-assessable shares of common stock. The conversion price is equal to 60% of the lowest closing bid
price of the Company’s common stock during the prior fifteen (15) trading day period including the conversion date. The
note may be prepaid until 180 days from the issuance date at a price of 120% - 140% of the face amount plus any accrued
interest as of the date of prepayment. The default rate on the note is 24% per annum.
 
On April 29, 2020, the Company issued 2,093,860 common shares for the exercise of cashless warrants.
 
On May 20, 2020, the Company issued 5,657,363 common shares for the exercise of cashless warrants.
 
On May 22, 2020, the Company issued 6,874,831 common shares with a fair value of $382,928 for consulting services
and management fee.
 
On June 19, 2020, the Company issued 859,259 common shares for the exercise of cashless warrants.
 
On June 29, 2020, the Company issued 3,750,000 common shares and warrants to purchase 3,000,000 common shares
for proceeds of $150,000.
 
On June 30, 2020, the Company issued 1,712,824 common shares as part of the settlement for the exercise of cashless
warrants.
 
From April 1, 2020 through June 30, 2020, the Company issued 15,824,196 common shares for the conversions of
$290,300 in principal of convertible notes and $21,201 of accrued interest.
 
The foregoing securities were issued under Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and/or Rule 506 of
Regulation D under the Securities Act. In the case of the promissory notes, each investor represented that it was an
accredited investor, as defined in Rule 501 of Regulation D, and that it was acquiring the securities for its own account, not
as nominee or agent, and not with a view to the resale or distribution of any part thereof in violation of the Securities Act.
Any proceeds issued from the above issuances were used for working capital purposes of the Company.
 
Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and “Affiliated Purchasers”
 
We did not purchase any shares of our common stock or other securities during the period ended June 30, 2020.
 
ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data
 
Not required.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITIONS AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS. 

 
You should read the following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations in conjunction with the
financial statements and the notes thereto included elsewhere in the Form 10-KT. The following discussion contains
forward-looking statements that reflect our plans, estimates and beliefs. Our actual results could differ materially from
those discussed in the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to these differences include
those discussed below and elsewhere in this Form 10-KT.
 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
 
Working Capital
 

 June 30, 2020
$

September 30, 2019
$

Current Assets 1,067,258 57,444
Current Liabilities 5,795,170 4,879,614
Working Capital (Deficit) (4,727,912) (4,822,170)

 
Cash Flows
 

 Nine Months Ended
June 30, 2020

$

Twelve Month Ended
September 30, 2019

$
Cash Flows used in Operating Activities (3,018,519) (3,233,467)
Cash Flows used in Investing Activities (3,896) -
Cash Flows provided by Financing Activities 3,844,968 3,118,069
Net increase (decrease) in Cash During Period 822,553 (115,398)

 
Operating Revenues
 
During the nine months ended June 30, 2020 and the twelve months ended September 30, 2019, the Company did not
record any revenues from operations.
 
Operating Expenses and Net Loss
 
During the nine months ended June 30, 2020, the Company incurred operating expenses of $4,387,169 compared to
$10,486,623 during the twelve months ended September 30, 2019. The decrease in operating expenses is due to a
decrease in exploration costs of $744,379 relating to the Company lessening work on the Nye County property, a
decrease of $5,780,093 of management and consulting fees which includes stock-based compensation costs from prior
year, a decrease of $524,980 for general and administrative expenses as the Company had less operating activity in the
current year compared to the prior year, and $245,820 decrease in legal fees due to lower stock-based compensation
relating to legal fees that were paid in the prior year. The decreases were offset by an increase of $1,195,818 of payroll
costs for employees of the Company as the Company had more day-to-day operations.
 
The Company incurred a net loss of $13,318,408 for the nine months ended June 30, 2020 compared to a net loss of
$12,625,204 for the twelve months ended September 30, 2019. In addition to operating expenses, the Company incurred
interest and accretion expense of $4,391,184 during the nine months ended June 30, 2020 compared to $2,491,621 for
the twelve months ended September 30, 2019. The increase is due to the fact that the Company entered into more
convertible notes during the current year which resulted in more interest expense and a larger accretion amount given that
the majority of the convertible notes had variable conversion rates at a discount to the market price that resulted in the
recognition of derivative liabilities. The Company also recorded a loss of $5,863,127 for the change in the fair value of
derivative liabilities compared to $218,922 for the twelve months ended September 30, 2019 due in part to more volatility
in the Company’s share price during the year which resulted in a larger spread between conversion prices and market
prices which created higher derivative liabilities.
 
Finally, the Company recorded a gain on the settlement of debt of $1,319,326 and $571,962 during the nine months
ended June 30, 2020 and twelve months ended September 30, 2019, respectively, due to increased conversion and
settlement of outstanding convertible notes payable during 2020, due in part to a large derivative liability balance which
would reverse upon full conversion of the notes.
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The Company incurred a net loss of $13,318,408, or $0.05 loss per share, during the nine months ended June 30, 2020
compared to a net loss of $12,625,204, or $0.11 loss per share, during the twelve months ended September 30, 2019.
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources
 
As of June 30, 2020, the Company had cash of $829,924 and total assets of $1,161,314 compared to cash of $7,371 and
total assets of $92,694 as at September 30, 2019. The increase in cash and total assets was mainly due to the fact that
the Company received additional financing from issuance of convertible debts, private placements and bank loans.
 
As of June 30, 2020, the Company had total liabilities of $6,101,818 compared to total liabilities of $4,880,156 as at
September 30, 2019. The increase in total liabilities is due to an increase in the derivative liabilities of $1,082,454 due to
an increase in the number of convertible notes outstanding during the current year and the fact that the majority of the
convertible notes in fiscal 2020 had variable conversion rates. The increase was offset by a decrease in the carrying value
of convertible notes payable of $272,283 due in part to a greater number of convertible notes being entered into near the
end of the fiscal year which resulted in a full discount of the carrying value due to the fair value of the derivative liability at
the onset of the convertible note. As at June 30, 2020, the Company had total face value of convertible debentures of
$2,211,200 compared to total face value of convertible notes of $3,643,259 at September 30, 2019. In addition, the
Company had a decrease of $70,959 in accounts payable and accrued liabilities offset by an increase of $166,680 in
amounts due to related parties which are related to management fees incurred to the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Moreover, the Company had an increase of $315,228 in loans payable due from a finance loan agreement
relating to the acquisition of a company vehicle and another $255,992 from the U.S. Small Business Administration as part
of the Paycheck Protection Program.
 
As of June 30, 2020, the Company had a working capital deficit of $4,727,912 compared to a working capital deficit of
$4,822,170 as at September 30, 2019. The decrease in the working capital deficit is mainly due to the additional financing
received from convertible debentures, private placement, bank loan and increase in prepaid expenses.
 
During the nine months ended June 30, 2020, the Company issued 24,111,031 common shares with a fair value of
$1,072,378 for services and 193,014,921 common shares with a fair value of $9,313,911 for the conversion of outstanding
convertible notes payable. In addition, the Company issued 3,750,000 common shares for proceeds of $150,000 as part of
a private placement of units, 9,924,304 common shares for the exercise of cashless warrants, and 1,712,824 common
shares due to cancellation of share purchase warrants.
 
As at June 30, 2020, the Company received $2,450,000 relating to share subscriptions received relating to private
placement units at $0.04 per unit. The units were issued subsequent to June 30, 2020.
 
Cashflows from Operating Activities
 
During the nine months ended June 30, 2020, the Company used $3,018,519 of cash for operating activities compared to
$3,233,467 of cash for operating activities during the twelve months ended September 30, 2019. The decrease in the use
of cash for operating activities was due to significantly less costs incurred during the nine-month period from day-to-day
operation and the change in year-end, which results in a shorter period than the comparative period.
 
Cashflows from Investing Activities
 
During the nine months ended June 30, 2020, the Company used cash of $3,896 for acquisition of equipment compared
to use of $nil for investing activities during the twelve months ended September 30, 2019.
 
Cashflows from Financing Activities
 
During the nine months ended June 30, 2020, the Company received $3,844,968 of proceeds from financing activities
which included $2,522,250 of cash from issuance of notes payable less repayment of $1,533,274, $2,600,000 of proceeds
from private placements during the period, and $255,992 of proceeds from bank loan. Comparatively, during the twelve
months ended September 30, 2019, the Company received proceeds of $3,118,069 from financing activities from notes
payable including $4,601,900 from issuance of convertible notes payable less repayment of $1,483,831.
 
Going Concern
 
We have not attained profitable operations and are dependent upon obtaining financing to pursue any extensive
acquisitions and activities. For these reasons, our auditors stated in their report on our audited financial statements that
they have substantial doubt that we will be able to continue as a going concern without further financing.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
 
We have no significant off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect
on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital
expenditures or capital resources that are material to stockholders.
 
Future Financings
 
We will continue to rely on equity sales of our common shares in order to continue to fund our business operations.
Issuances of additional shares will result in dilution to existing stockholders. There is no assurance that we will achieve
any additional sales of the equity securities or arrange for debt or other financing to fund planned acquisitions and
exploration activities.
 
Critical Accounting Policies
 
Our financial statements and accompanying notes have been prepared in accordance with United States generally
accepted accounting principles applied on a consistent basis. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods.
 
We regularly evaluate the accounting policies and estimates that we use to prepare our financial statements. A complete
summary of these policies is included in the notes to our financial statements. In general, management's estimates are
based on historical experience, on information from third party professionals, and on various other assumptions that are
believed to be reasonable under the facts and circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates made by
management.
 
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
 
The Company has implemented all new accounting pronouncements that are in effect. These pronouncements did not
have any material impact on the financial statements unless otherwise disclosed, and the Company does not believe that
there are any other new accounting pronouncements that have been issued that might have a material impact on its
financial position or results of operations.
 
Item 7a. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
 
Not Applicable.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
 
To The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
American Battery Metals Corporation
 
Opinion on the Financial Statements
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of American Battery Metals Corporation (the “Company”)
as of June 30, 2020 and September 30, 2019, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ deficit,
and cash flows for the nine months ended June 30, 2020 and the twelve months ended September 30, 2019 (collectively
referred to as the consolidated financial statements). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of June 30, 2020 and September 30, 2019, and the results
of its operations and its cash flows for the periods then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.
 
Consideration of the Company’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern
 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going
concern. As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has not generated sufficient cash
flows from operations to fund its business operations. This factor, among others, raises substantial doubt about the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s plans in regard to this matter are also described in Note
1. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this
uncertainty.
 
Basis for Opinion
 
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Company’s consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting
firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be
independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of
material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to
perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits, we are required to obtain an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
 
Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures
included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
 
 
/s/Pinnacle Accountancy Group of Utah
 
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2016.
 
Farmington, Utah
September 28, 2020
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AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
Consolidated Balance Sheets

 
 June 30,

2020
$

 September 30,
2019

$
ASSETS    
    
Current assets    
    
Cash 829,924  7,371
Prepaid expenses 237,334  50,073
Total current assets 1,067,258  57,444
    
Investment in joint venture 35,250  35,250
Property and equipment 58,806  –
    

Total assets 1,161,314  92,694

    
LIABILITIES    
    
Current liabilities    
    
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 514,838  585,797
Due to related parties 624,949  458,269
Derivative liability 4,519,654  3,437,200
Notes payable, net of unamortized discount of $2,084,051 and $3,094,911,

respectively 127,149
 

398,348
Current portion of loans payable 8,580  –
Total current liabilities 5,795,170  4,879,614
    
Loans payable 306,648  –
Notes payable, non-current portion, net of unamortized discount of $nil and

$149,458, respectively –
 

542
    
Total liabilities 6,101,818  4,880,156
    
STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT    
    
Series A Preferred Stock
  Authorized: 500,000 preferred shares, par value of $0.001 per share
  Issued and outstanding: 300,000 and nil preferred shares, respectively 300

 

–
Common Stock
  Authorized: 1,200,000,000 common shares, par value of $0.001 per share  

 
 

  Issued and outstanding: 365,191,213 and 132,678,133 common shares,
respectively 365,191

 
132,678

Additional paid-in capital 55,452,951  44,970,398
Share subscription received 2,450,000  –
Deficit (63,208,946)  (49,890,538)

Total stockholders’ deficit (4,940,504)  (4,787,462)

    

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity (deficit) 1,161,314  92,694

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements)
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AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Operations

 

 

For the nine
months
ended

June 30,
2020

$

 For the twelve
months
ended

September 30,
2019

$
Expenses    
    

Exploration costs 292,656  1,037,035
General and administrative 4,094,513  9,449,588

    
Net loss from operations (4,387,169)  (10,486,623)
    
Other income (expense)    

    
Accretion and interest expense (4,391,184)  (2,491,621)
Change in fair value of derivative liability (5,863,127)  (218,922)
Gain on settlement of debt 1,319,326  571,962
Other income 3,746  –
    

Total other income (expense) (8,931,239)  (2,138,581)
    

Net loss (13,318,408)  (12,625,204)

 
Net loss per share, basic and diluted (0.05)

 
(0.11)

 
Weighted average shares outstanding, basic and diluted 254,938,086

 
112,948,676

 
 

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements)
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AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Deficit

 
 

 

Series A
Preferred Shares Common Shares

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

$

Share
Subscriptions

$
Deficit

$
Total

$
Number

#
Amount

$
Number

#
Amount

$
Balance, September
30, 2018 – – 93,331,449 93,331 34,739,491 – (37,265,334) (2,432,512)

         

Shares issued for
services – – 26,700,000 26,700 7,066,410 – – 7,093,110

         

Shares issued pursuant
to note conversion – – 22,396,684 22,397 3,119,497 – – 3,141,894

         

Shares issued for joint
venture – – 250,000 250 35,000 – – 35,250

         

Share cancellation – – (10,000,000) (10,000) 10,000 – – –

         

Net loss for the year – – – – – – (12,625,204) (12,625,204)

         

Balance, September
30, 2019 – – 132,678,133 132,678 44,970,398 – (49,890,538) (4,787,462)

 
 

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Deficit

 

 

Series A
Preferred Shares Common Shares

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

$

Share
Subscriptions

Received
$

Deficit
$

Total
$

Number
#

Amount
$

Number
#

Amount
$

Balance, September
30, 2019 – – 132,678,133 132,678 44,970,398 – (49,890,538) (4,787,462)

         

Shares issued for
services – – 24,111,031 24,111 1,048,267 – – 1,072,378

         

Shares issued for
exercise of
warrants – – 9,924,304 9,924 (9,924) – – –

         

Shares issued from
private placement – – 3,750,000 3,750 146,250 – – 150,000

         

Shares issued
pursuant to note
conversion – – 193,014,921 193,015 9,120,896 – – 9,313,911

         

Share subscriptions
received – – – – – 2,450,000 – 2,450,000

         

Warrant cancellation – – 1,712,824 1,713 (1,713) – – –

         

Fair value of share
purchase warrants – – – – 179,077 – – 179,077

         

Issuance of
preferred shares 300,000 300 – – (300) – – –

 – –       

Net loss for the
period – – – – – – (13,318,408) (13,318,408)

         

Balance, June 30,
2020 300,000 300 365,191,213 365,191 55,452,951 2,450,000 (63,208,946) (4,940,504)

 
 

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements)
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AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

 

 

For the nine
months
ended

June 30,
2020
$

 For the twelve
months
ended

September 30,
2019

$
Operating Activities    
Net loss (13,318,408)  (12,625,204)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating
activities:  

 
 

Accretion expense 3,971,342  2,241,933
Change in fair value of derivative liability 5,863,127  218,922
Discount on convertible notes payable 396,893  198,602
Fair value of share purchase warrants issued 179,077  –
Gain on settlement of debt (1,319,326)  (571,962)
Shares issued for services 1,072,378  7,093,110

    
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:    

Prepaid expenses (182,935)  135,927
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 152,653  199,813
Due to related parties 166,680  (124,608)

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (3,018,519)  (3,233,467)
    
Investing Activities    

Acquisition of equipment (3,896)  –
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (3,896)  –
    
Financing Activities    

Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes payable 2,522,250  4,601,900
Proceeds from bank loan 255,992  –
Repayment of convertible note payable (1,533,274)  (1,483,831)
Proceeds from share subscriptions received 2,600,000  –

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 3,844,968  3,118,069
    
Change in Cash 822,553  (115,398)
    
Cash – Beginning 7,371  122,769

    

Cash – End 829,924  7,371

    
Supplemental disclosures:    

Interest paid 64,973  –
Income taxes paid –  –

    
Non-cash investing and financing activities:    

Discount on convertible debenture 396,893  198,602
Original issuance discount on convertible debentures 149,300  99,750
Preferred shares issued to officers and directors 300  –
Common shares issued to settle accrued interest –  123,795
Common shares issued for joint venture –  35,250
Common shares issued for conversion of debt 9,313,911  3,018,099

    
 

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements)
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AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the nine months ended June 30, 2020 and twelve months ended September 30, 2019
 

Organization and Nature of Operations  
 

American Battery Metals Corporation (formerly Oroplata Resources Inc.) (“the Company”) was incorporated under the
laws of the state of Nevada on October 6, 2011 for the purpose of acquiring and developing mineral properties. The
Company has a wholly owned subsidiary called Oroplata Exploraciones E Ingenieria SRL, which was incorporated in
the Dominican Republic on January 10, 2012. On July 26, 2016, the Company incorporated LithiumOre Corporation
(formerly Lithortech Resources Inc.), a Nevada company, as a wholly owned subsidiary. On July 5, 2019, the
Company incorporated ABMC AG, LLC, a Nevada company, as a wholly owned subsidiary. The Company currently
holds mineral rights in the Western Nevada Basin of Nye County in the state of Nevada. In July 2020, management
changed its year end date from September 30th to June 30 th, and these consolidated financial statements reflect the
nine-month period ended June 30, 2020 and the twelve-month period ended September 30, 2019.

 
On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 a global pandemic. This contagious disease
outbreak and any related adverse public health developments, has adversely affected workforces, economies, and
financial markets globally, leading to an economic downturn. The impact on the Company is not currently
determinable, but management continues to monitor the situation.
 
Going Concern

 
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which implies that the
Company will continue to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. As at June 30,
2020, the Company has not earned revenue, has a working capital deficit of $4,727,912, and an accumulated deficit
of $63,208,946. The continuation of the Company as a going concern is dependent upon the continued financial
support from its management, and its ability to identify future investment opportunities and obtain the necessary debt
or equity financing and generating profitable operations from the Company’s future operations. If the Company is able
to obtain financing, there is no certainty that terms will be favorable to the Company. These factors raise substantial
doubt regarding the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. These consolidated financial statements do not
include any adjustments to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts and classification of
liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

 
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 
(a) Basis of Presentation

 
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (“US GAAP”) and are expressed in U.S. dollars. The Company’s fiscal year end is
June 30, which has been amended from September 30.
 
These consolidated financial statements and related notes are presented in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States and are expressed in U.S. dollars. These consolidated financial
statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Oroplata Exploraciones E
Ingenieria SRL and LithiumOre Corporation (formerly Lithortech Resources Inc) and ABMC AG, LLC. All inter-
company accounts and transactions have been eliminated on consolidation.
 

(b) Use of Estimates
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. The Company regularly evaluates estimates and assumptions related to the fair value of stock-
based compensation, recoverability of long-lived assets, valuation of derivative liability, and deferred income tax
asset valuation allowances.
 
The Company bases its estimates and assumptions on current facts, historical experience and various other
factors that it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making
judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities and the accrual of costs and expenses that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The actual results experienced by the Company may differ materially and
adversely from the Company’s estimates. To the extent there are material differences between the estimates and
the actual results, future results of operations will be affected.
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AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the nine months ended June 30, 2020 and twelve months ended September 30, 2019
 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents
 
The Company considers all highly liquid instruments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of
issuance to be cash equivalents. As of June 30, 2020, and September 30, 2019, there were no cash equivalents.
 

(d) Long-Lived Assets
 
Long-lived assets, such as property and equipment, mineral properties, and purchased intangibles with finite lives
(subject to amortization), are evaluated for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable in accordance with ASC 360, Property, Plant, and
Equipment and ASC 350, Intangibles – Goodwill and Other. Circumstances which could trigger a review include,
but are not limited to: significant decreases in the market price of the asset; significant adverse changes in the
business climate or legal factors; accumulation of costs significantly in excess of the amount originally expected
for the acquisition or construction of the asset; current period cash flow or operating losses combined with a
history of losses or a forecast of continuing losses associated with the use of the asset; and current expectation
that the asset will more likely than not be sold or disposed significantly before the end of its estimated useful life.
The Company’s long-lived assets consist of vehicles, which is amortized on a straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of 6 years.
 
Recoverability of assets is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated
undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by an asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized as the amount by which the carrying amount
exceeds the estimated fair value of the asset. The estimated fair value is determined using a discounted cash
flow analysis. Any impairment in value is recognized as an expense in the period when the impairment occurs.
 

(e) Asset Retirement Obligations
 
The Company follows the provisions of ASC 410, Asset Retirement and Environmental Obligations, which
establishes standards for the initial measurement and subsequent accounting for obligations associated with the
sale, abandonment or other disposal of long-lived tangible assets arising from the acquisition, construction or
development and for normal operations of such assets.
 

(f) Loss per Share
 
The Company computes net income (loss) per share in accordance with ASC 260, Earnings per Share. ASC 260
requires presentation of both basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) on the face of the income statement.
Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income (loss) available to common shareholders (numerator) by the
weighted average number of shares outstanding (denominator) during the period. Diluted EPS gives effect to all
dilutive potential common shares outstanding during the period using the treasury stock method and convertible
preferred stock using the if-converted method. In computing diluted EPS, the average stock price for the period is
used in determining the number of shares assumed to be purchased from the exercise of stock options or
warrants. Diluted EPS excludes all dilutive potential shares if their effect is anti-dilutive. At June 30, 2020, the
Company has 8,603,112 (September 30, 2019 – 20,094,150) potentially dilutive shares.
 

(g) Foreign Currency Translation
 
The Company’s functional and reporting currency is the United States dollar. Foreign currency transactions are
primarily undertaken in Canadian dollars. Foreign currency transactions are translated to United States dollars in
accordance with ASC 830, Foreign Currency Translation Matters, using the exchange rate prevailing at the
balance sheet date.
 
Gains and losses arising on translation or settlement of foreign currency denominated transactions or balances
are included in the determination of income.
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AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the nine months ended June 30, 2020 and twelve months ended September 30, 2019
 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

(h) Comprehensive Loss
 

ASC 220, Comprehensive Income, establishes standards for the reporting and display of comprehensive loss and
its components in the financial statements. As at June 30, 2020 and September 30, 2019, the Company has no
items representing comprehensive income or loss.
 

(i) Revenue Recognition
 

Revenue from the sale of minerals will be recognized in accordance with ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, when a contract is in place and minerals are delivered to the customer.
 

(j) Financial Instruments
 

Pursuant to ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, an entity is required to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. ASC 820 establishes a
fair value hierarchy based on the level of independent, objective evidence surrounding the inputs used to measure
fair value. A financial instrument’s categorization within the fair value hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of
input that is significant to the fair value measurement. ASC 820 prioritizes the inputs into three levels that may be
used to measure fair value:
 
Level 1
 
Level 1 applies to assets or liabilities for which there are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

 
Level 2
 
Level 2 applies to assets or liabilities for which there are inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the
asset or liability such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical
assets or liabilities in markets with insufficient volume or infrequent transactions (less active markets); or model-
derived valuations in which significant inputs are observable or can be derived principally from, or corroborated
by, observable market data.
 
Level 3
 
Level 3 applies to assets or liabilities for which there are unobservable inputs to the valuation methodology that
are significant to the measurement of the fair value of the assets or liabilities.
 
The Company’s financial instruments consist principally of cash, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, amounts
due to related parties, derivative liabilities, and notes payable. Pursuant to ASC 820, the fair value of cash is
determined based on “Level 1” inputs, which consist of quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and
derivative liabilities is determined based on “Level 3” inputs, which consists of unobservable inputs to the
valuation methodology that are significant to the measurement of the fair value of the liabilities. Refer to Note 7.
The recorded values of all other financial instruments approximate their current fair values because of their nature
and respective maturity dates or durations.
 

(k) Income Taxes
 

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method in accordance with ASC 740,
Accounting for Income Taxes. The asset and liability method provides that deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the financial reporting and
tax bases of assets and liabilities, and for operating loss and tax credit carryforwards.
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the currently enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect
when the differences are expected to reverse. The Company records a valuation allowance to reduce deferred tax
assets to the amount that is believed more likely than not to be realized.
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AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the nine months ended June 30, 2020 and twelve months ended September 30, 2019
 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

(k) Income Taxes (continued)
 
Due to the Company’s net loss position from inception on October 6, 2011 to June 30, 2020, there was no
provision for income taxes recorded. As a result of the Company’s losses to date, there exists doubt as to the
ultimate realization of the deferred tax assets. Accordingly, a valuation allowance equal to the total deferred tax
assets has been recorded at June 30, 2020.
 

(l) Stock-based Compensation
 

The Company records stock-based compensation in accordance with ASC 718, Compensation – Stock
Compensation using the fair value method. All transactions in which goods or services are the consideration
received for the issuance of equity instruments are accounted for based on the fair value of the consideration
received or the fair value of the equity instrument issued, whichever is more reliably measurable. Equity
instruments issued to employees and the cost of the services received as consideration are measured and
recognized based on the fair value of the equity instruments issued. As at June 30, 2020 and September 30,
2019, the Company did not grant any stock options.
 

(m) Mineral Property Costs
 

Mineral property acquisition costs are capitalized as incurred. Exploration and evaluation costs are expensed as
incurred until proven and probable reserves are established. The Company assesses the carrying costs for
impairment under ASC 360, Property, Plant, and Equipment at each fiscal quarter end. When it has been
determined that a mineral property can be economically developed as a result of establishing proven and probable
reserves, the costs then incurred to develop such property, are capitalized. Such costs will be amortized using the
units-of-production method over the estimated life of the probable reserve. If mineral properties are subsequently
abandoned or impaired, any capitalized costs will be charged to operations.
 

(n) Advertising and Marketing Costs
 

The Company expenses advertising and marketing development costs as incurred.
 

(o) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
 
In February 2016, Topic 842, Leases, was issued to replace the leases requirements in Topic 840, Leases. The
main difference between previous GAAP and Topic 842 is the recognition of lease assets and lease liabilities by
lessees for those leases classified as operating leases under previous GAAP. A lessee should recognize in the
balance sheet a liability to make lease payments (the lease liability) and a right-of-use asset representing its right
to use the underlying asset for the lease term. For leases with a term of 12 months or less, a lessee is permitted
to make an accounting policy election by class of underlying asset not to recognize lease assets and lease
liabilities. If a lessee makes this election, it should recognize lease expense for such leases generally on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
 
The accounting applied by a lessor is largely unchanged from that applied under previous GAAP. Topic 842 was
effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those
annual periods and is to be retrospectively applied. Earlier application is permitted. The Company adopted the
standard on October 1, 2019. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company´s
consolidated financial statements.
 
The Company has implemented all new accounting pronouncements that are in effect. These pronouncements
did not have any material impact on the financial statements unless otherwise disclosed, and the Company does
not believe that there are any other new accounting pronouncements that have been issued that might have a
material impact on its financial position or results of operations.
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AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the nine months ended June 30, 2020 and twelve months ended September 30, 2019
 

Convertible Notes Payable  
 

 June 30,
2020

$

 September 30,
2019

$
    
Crown Bridge Partners, LLC, $55,000 on January 2, 2019, unsecured,
bears interest at 10% per annum, due on January 2, 2020, convertible
into common stock 65% of the lowest trading price for the twenty
trading days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of $nil (2019 -
$32,538) –

 

5,087
    
GS Capital Partners, LLC, $54,000 on January 3, 2019, unsecured,
bears interest at 10% per annum, due on January 3, 2020, convertible
into common stock at 66% of the lowest trading price in the twenty
trading days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of $nil (2019 -
$173) –

 

6,061
    
GS Capital Partners, LLC, $220,000 on January 9, 2019, unsecured,
bears interest at 10% per annum, due on January 9, 2020, convertible
into common stock at 66% of the lowest trading price in the twenty
trading days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of $nil (2019 -
$21,451) –

 

33,549
    
Eagle Equities, LLC, $220,000 on January 9, 2019, unsecured, bears
interest at 10% per annum, due on January 9, 2020, convertible into
common stock at 66% of the lowest trading price in the twenty trading
days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of $nil (2019 - $44,946) –

 

55,054
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AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the nine months ended June 30, 2020 and twelve months ended September 30, 2019
 

Convertible Notes Payable (continued)  
 

 June 30,
2020

$

 September 30,
2019

$
    
GS Capital Partners, LLC, $270,000 on March 18, 2019, unsecured,
bears interest at 10% per annum, due on March 18, 2020, convertible
into common stock at 68% of the lowest trading price in the twenty
trading days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of $nil (2019 -
$236,736) –

 

33,264
    
Eagle Equities, LLC, $270,000 on March 18, 2019, unsecured, bears
interest at 10% per annum, due on March 18, 2020, convertible into
common stock at 68% of the lowest trading price in the twenty trading
days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of $nil (2019 - $236,736) –

 

33,264
    
BHP Capital NY Inc, $38,500 on April 8, 2019, unsecured, bears
interest at 10% per annum which increases to 24% per annum on
default, due on January 8, 2020, convertible into common stock at 68%
of the lowest trading price in the twenty trading days prior to conversion,
unamortized discount of $nil (2019 - $33,292) –

 

5,208
    
Jefferson Street Capital, LLC, $38,500 on April 8, 2019, unsecured,
bears interest at 10% per annum which increases to 24% per annum on
default, due on January 8, 2020, convertible into common stock at 68%
of the lowest trading price in the twenty trading days prior to conversion,
unamortized discount of $nil (2019 - $33,292) –

 

5,208
    
Eagle Equities, LLC, $325,000 on May 1, 2019, unsecured, bears
interest at 10% per annum, due on May 1, 2020, convertible into
common stock at 68% of the lowest trading price in the twenty trading
days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of $nil (2019 - $302,195) –

 

22,805
    
GS Capital Partners, LLC, $325,000 on May 1, 2019, unsecured, bears
interest at 10% per annum, due on May 1, 2020, convertible into
common stock at 68% of the lowest trading price in the twenty trading
days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of $nil (2019 - $302,195) –

 

22,805
    
GS Capital Partners, LLC, $325,000 on May 29, 2019, unsecured,
bears interest at 10% per annum, due on May 29, 2020, convertible into
common stock at 68% of the lowest trading price in the twenty trading
days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of $nil (2019 - $308,274) –

 

16,726
    
Power Up Lending Group Ltd, $55,000 on June 3, 2019, unsecured,
bears interest at 10% per annum which increases to 22% per annum on
default, due on March 30, 2020, convertible into common stock at 61%
of the lowest trading price in the ten trading days prior to conversion,
unamortized discount of $nil (2019 - $51,512) –

 

3,488
    
Crossover Capital Fund I, LLC, $105,000 on June 11, 2019, unsecured,
bears interest at 10% per annum, due on June 11, 2020, convertible
into common stock at 68% of the lowest trading price in the twenty
trading days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of $nil (2019 -
$69,142) –

 

35,858
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AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the nine months ended June 30, 2020 and twelve months ended September 30, 2019
 

Convertible Notes Payable (continued) 
 

 June 30,
2020

$

 September 30,
2019

$
    
BHP Capital NY Inc, $55,000 on June 12, 2019, unsecured, bears
interest at 12% per annum which increases to 22% per annum on
default, due on March 12, 2020, convertible into common stock at 68%
of the lowest trading price in the twenty trading days prior to conversion,
unamortized discount of $nil (2019 - $51,925) –

 

3,075
    
Jefferson Street Capital, LLC, $55,000 on June 12, 2019, unsecured,
bears interest at 12% per annum which increases to 22% per annum on
default, due on March 12, 2020, convertible into common stock at 68%
of the lowest trading price in the twenty trading days prior to conversion,
unamortized discount of $nil (2019 - $51,925) –

 

3,075
    
Crown Bridge Partners, LLC, $75,000 on June 13, 2019, unsecured,
bears interest at 10% per annum, due on June 13, 2020, convertible
into common stock at 65% of the lowest trading price in the twenty
trading days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of $nil (2019 -
$72,138) –

 

2,862
   –
GS Capital Partners, LLC, $270,000 on June 21, 2019, unsecured,
bears interest at 10% per annum, due on June 21, 2020, convertible
into common stock at 68% of the lowest trading price in the twenty
trading days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of $nil (2019 -
$213,989) –

 

56,011
    
GS Capital Partners, LLC, $98,000 on June 27, 2019, unsecured, bears
interest at 10% per annum, due on June 27, 2020, convertible into
common stock at 66% of the lowest trading price in the twenty trading
days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of $nil (2019 - $95,308) –

 

2,692
    
Power Up Lending Group Ltd, $58,000 on June 27, 2019, unsecured,
bears interest at 12% per annum, due on June 27, 2020, convertible
into common stock at 61% of the lowest trading price in the ten trading
days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of $nil (2019 - $56,202) –

 

1,798
    
Odyssey Capital, LLC, $160,000 on July 9, 2019, unsecured, bears
interest at 10% per annum, due on July 9, 2020, convertible into
common stock at 60% of the lowest trading price in the fifteen trading
days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of $nil (2019 - $156,400) –

 

3,600
    
Sunshine Equity Partners., $50,000 on July 11, 2019, unsecured, bears
interest at 12% per annum, due on July 11, 2020, convertible into
common stock at 60% of the lowest trading price in the twenty trading
days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of $nil (2019 - $48,683) –

 

1,317
    
Power Up Lending Group Ltd., $53,000 on July 29, 2019, unsecured,
bears interest at 12% per annum, due on June 15, 2020, convertible
into common stock at 61% of the lowest trading price in the ten trading
days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of $nil (2019 - $51,922) –

 

1,078
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AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the nine months ended June 30, 2020 and twelve months ended September 30, 2019
 

Convertible Notes Payable (continued) 
 

 June 30,
2020

$

 September 30,
2019

$
    
Actus Fund, LLC, $175,000 on August 1, 2019, unsecured, bears
interest at 10% per annum, due on August 1, 2020, convertible into
common stock at 68% of the lowest closing bid in the twenty trading
days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of $nil (2019 - $140,864) –

 

34,136
    
Adar Alef, LLC, $105,000 on August 8, 2019, unsecured, bears interest
at 10% per annum, due on August 8, 2020, convertible into common
stock at 60% of the lowest trading price in the fifteen trading days prior
to conversion, unamortized discount of $nil (2019 - $103,483) –

 

1,517
    
Black Ice Advisors, LLC, $105,000 on August 12, 2019, unsecured,
bears interest at 10% per annum, due on August 12, 2020, convertible
into common stock at 60% of the lowest trading price in the fifteen
trading days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of $nil (2019 -
$103,600) –

 

1,400
    
BHP Capital NY Inc., $35,200 on August 28, 2019, unsecured, bears
interest at 12% per annum, due on May 28, 2020, convertible into
common stock at 62% of the lower of the lowest trading price of the
Company’s common stock in the twenty trading days prior to the date of
conversion and the lowest trading price of the Company’s common
stock in the twenty days prior to the date of issuance, unamortized
discount of $nil (2019 - $34,825) –

 

375
    
Jefferson Street, LLC, $35,200 on August 28, 2019, unsecured, bears
interest at 12% per annum, due on May 28, 2020, convertible into
common stock at 68% of the lower of the lowest trading price of the
Company’s common stock in the twenty trading days prior to the date of
conversion and the lowest trading price of the Company’s common
stock in the twenty days prior to the date of issuance, unamortized
discount of $nil (2019 - $29,331) –

 

5,869
    
LG Capital Funding, LLC, $110,000 on August 28, 2019, unsecured,
bears interest at 10% per annum, due on May 28, 2020, convertible into
common stock at 60% of the lowest trading price of the Company’s
common stock in the twenty trading days prior to the date of
conversion, unamortized discount of $nil (2019 - $109,022) –

 

978
    
EMA Financial, LLC, $150,000 on September 17, 2019, unsecured,
bears interest at 10% per annum, due on January 17, 2021, convertible
into common at the lower of the closing common stock price and 68% of
the lowest trading price in the prior twenty trading days on which at
least 100 common shares of the Company were traded including the
date of conversion, unamortized discount of $nil (2019 - $149,458) –

 

542
    
Crown Bridge Partners, LLC, $150,000 on September 22, 2019,
unsecured, bears interest at 10% per annum, due on September 24,
2020, convertible into common shares at the lower of the closing
common stock price and 65% of the lowest trading price in the prior
twenty trading days prior to the date of conversion, unamortized
discount of $nil (2019 - $54,908) –

 

92
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AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the nine months ended June 30, 2020 and twelve months ended September 30, 2019
 

Convertible Notes Payable (continued) 
 

 June 30,
2020

$

 September 30,
2019

$
    
Power Up Lending Group Ltd., $48,000 on September 24, 2019,
unsecured, bears interest at 12% per annum, due on September 24,
2020, convertible into common stock at the lower of the closing
common stock price and 61% of the lowest trading price in the prior
twenty trading days prior to the date of conversion, unamortized
discount of $nil (2019 - $47,904) –

 

96
    
Eagle Equities, LLC, $147,250 on January 31, 2020, unsecured, bears
interest at 10% per annum, due on January 31, 2021, convertible into
common stock at 60% of the lowest trading price in the ten trading
days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of $137,038 (2019 -
$nil) 10,212

 

–
    
GS Capital Partners, LLC, $147,250 on January 31, 2020, unsecured,
bears interest at 10% per annum, due on January 31, 2021,
convertible into common stock at 40% of the lowest trading price in the
twenty trading days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of
$134,584 (2019 - $nil) 12,666

 

–
    
GS Capital Partners, LLC, $177,200 on February 7, 2020, unsecured,
bears interest at 10% per annum which increases to 22% per annum
on default, due on February 7, 2021, convertible into common stock at
60% of the lowest trading price in the twenty trading days prior to
conversion, unamortized discount of $165,770 (2019 - $nil) 11,430

 

–
    
Power Up Lending Group Ltd., $83,000 on February 14, 2020,
unsecured, bears interest at 10% per annum, due on December 1,
2021, convertible into common stock at 61% of the lowest trading price
in the ten trading days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of
$76,662 (2019 - $nil) 6,338

 

–
    
Crown Bridge Partners, LLC, $75,000 on February 14, 2020,
unsecured, bears interest at 10% per annum, due on February 14,
2021, convertible into common stock at 65% of the lower of the lowest
closing bid or the lowest trading price in the twenty trading days prior
to conversion, unamortized discount of $70,577 (2019 - $nil) 4,423

 

–
    
BHP Capital NY Inc., $110,000 on February 18, 2020, unsecured,
bears interest at 10% per annum, due on February 18, 2021,
convertible into common stock at 61% of the lesser of: (i) lowest
trading price during the previous twenty trading days before the issue
date; or (ii) the lowest trading price during the twenty trading days
prior to conversion, unamortized discount of $103,282 6,718

 

–
    
Jefferson Street Capital, LLC, $110,000 on February 18, 2020,
unsecured, bears interest at 10% per annum, due on February 18,
2021, convertible into common stock at 61% of the lesser of: (i) the
lowest trading price during the previous twenty trading days before the
issue date; or (ii) the lowest trading price during the twenty trading
days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of $103,818 (2019 -
$nil) 6,182

 

–
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AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the nine months ended June 30, 2020 and twelve months ended September 30, 2019
 

Convertible Notes Payable (continued) 
 

 June 30,
2020

$

 September 30,
2019

$
    
Odyssey Capital, LLC, $220,000 on February 19, 2020, unsecured,
bears interest at 10% per annum, due on February 19, 2021 convertible
into common stock at 60% of the lowest closing bid price for the fifteen
trading days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of $205,226 14,774

 

–
    
GS Capital Partners, LLC, $520,000 on March 17, 2020, unsecured,
bears interest at 10% per annum, due on March 17, 2021, convertible
into common stock at 63% of the lowest trading price in the twenty
trading days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of $478,979
(2019 - $nil) 41,021

 

–
    
Power Up Lending Group Ltd., $78,000 on April 6, 2020, unsecured,
bears interest at 12% per annum which increases to 22% per annum on
default, due on April 6, 2021, convertible into common stock at 61% of
the lowest trading price in the ten trading days prior to conversion,
unamortized discount of $75,816 (2019 - $nil) 2,184

 

–
    
Adar Alef, LLC, $110,000 on April 7, 2020, unsecured, bears interest at
10% per annum, due April 7, 2021, convertible into common stock at
60% of the lowest closing bid price for the fifteen trading days prior to
conversion, unamortized discount of $107,464 (2019 - $nil) 2,536

 

–
    
Auctus Fund, LLC, $150,000 on April 10, 2020, unsecured, bears
interest at 10% per annum which increases to 24% per annum on
default, due on April 10, 2021, convertible into common stock at 68% of
the lowest trading in the twenty trading days prior to conversion,
unamortized discount of $146,667 (2019 - $nil) 3,333

 

–
    
Power Up Lending Group Ltd., $43,000 on April 21, 2020, unsecured,
bears interest at 10% per annum which increases to 22% per annum on
default, due on April 21, 2021, convertible into common stock at 61% of
the lowest trading price during the ten trading days prior to conversion,
unamortized discount of $42,176 (2019 - $nil) 824

 

–
    
Black Ice Advisors, LLC, $115,500 on April 22, 2020, unsecured, bears
interest at 10% per annum, due on April 22, 2021, convertible into
common stock at 60% of the lowest closing bid price for the fifteen
trading days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of $113,318
(2019 - $nil) 2,182

 

–
    
Efrat Investments, LLC, $125,000 on April 23, 2020, unsecured, bears
interest at 10% per annum, due on April 23, 2021, convertible into
common stock at 60% of the lowest closing bid price for the fifteen
trading days prior to conversion, unamortized discount of $122,674
(2019 - $nil) 2,326

 

–
    
 127,149  398,890
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AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the nine months ended June 30, 2020 and twelve months ended September 30, 2019
 

Equipment 
 

 
Vehicle

$
  
Cost:  
  
Balance, September 30, 2018 and 2019 –
Additions 61,916
  

Balance, June 30, 2020 61,916

  
Accumulated Depreciation:  

  
Balance, September 30, 2018 and 2019 –
Additions 3,110
  

Balance, June 30, 2020 3,110

 
Carrying Amounts:  

  

Balance, September 30, 2019 –

  

Balance, June 30, 2020 58,806

 
Related Party Transactions 

 
As of June 30, 2020, the Company owes $120,146 (September 30, 2019 - $120,146) to the former Chief
Executive Officer and Director of the Company for advances to the Company to fund day-to-day operations. The
amounts owing are unsecured, non-interest bearing, and due on demand.  

 
As of June 30, 2020, the Company owes $85,500 (September 30, 2019 - $85,500) to the former Chief Executive
Officer and Director of the Company for advances to the Company to fund day-to-day operations and accrued
management fees. The amounts owing are unsecured, non-interest bearing, and due on demand.  

 
As of June 30, 2020, the Company owes $388,577 (September 30, 2019 - $221,897) to the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company for accrued management fees. The amounts owing are unsecured, non-interest bearing,
and due on demand.  

 
As of June 30, 2020, the Company owes $30,726 (September 30, 2019– $30,726) to directors of the Company
for accrued management fees. The amounts owing are unsecured, non-interest bearing, and due on demand.  

 
Investment in Joint Venture  

 
On October 8, 2018, the Company entered into a joint venture agreement with CINC Industries Inc. (“CINC”), a non-
related Nevada company, for a period of five years whereby the joint venture will propagate the sale of a new process
for extraction of lithium salt from salt brine solutions using CINC’s existing and future processing equipment. As part of
the joint venture, each of CINC and the Company holds a 50% interest in the joint venture.
 
CINC is responsible for completing testing on the pilot project, providing training to the Company for use of its
processing equipment, manufacturing up to 20 test units, and support and product development, as well as shared
costs on other personnel utilized in the joint venture company. The Company is responsible for the initial funding for
all equipment and associated expenses, the cost of the lease space, and marketing and sales of the joint venture
agreement.
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AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the nine months ended June 30, 2020 and twelve months ended September 30, 2019
 

Investment in Joint Venture (continued)  
 
The joint venture is committed to acquiring a minimum amount of processing equipment, goods, accessories, and/or
materials totaling: (i) $1,000,000 by October 8, 2020; (ii) $3,000,000 by October 8, 2021; (iii) $6,000,000 by October 8,
2022; and (v) $10,000,000 by October 8, 2023. In the event that the joint venture fails to meet the minimum amounts
above, the Company will lose the exclusive right to market, promote and sell the processing equipment provided by
CINC. As part of the joint venture agreement, the Company issued 250,000 common shares to CINC. Refer to Note 9.
 
Derivative Liabilities 

 
The Company records the fair value of the conversion price of the convertible debentures as disclosed in Note 3 in
accordance with ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging. The fair value of the derivatives was calculated using a multi-
nominal lattice model. The fair value of the derivative liabilities is revalued on each balance sheet date with
corresponding gains and losses recorded in the consolidated statement of operations. For the nine months ended
June 30, 2020, the Company recorded a loss on the change in the fair value of derivative liability of $5,863,127 (year
ended September 30, 2019 - $218,922). As at June 30, 2020, the Company recorded a derivative liability of
$4,519,654 (September 30, 2019 - $3,437,200). The following inputs and assumptions were used to value the
derivative liabilities outstanding during the periods ended June 30, 2020 and September 30, 2019:
 

 June 30, 2020  September 30, 2019
Expected volatility 158-240%  75-151%
Risk free rate 0.16%  1.75%
Expected life (in years) 0.5-1.0  0.2-1.0

 
A summary of the activity of the derivative liability is shown below:
 

  $
Balance, September 30, 2018  800,973
Derivative additions associated with convertible notes  3,772,666
Adjustment for conversion/prepayment  (1,355,361)
Mark-to-market adjustment  218,922
   
Balance, September 30, 2019  3,437,200
Derivative additions associated with convertible notes  2,591,119
Adjustment for conversion/prepayment  (7,371,792)
Mark to market adjustment  5,863,127
   

Balance, June 30, 2020  4,519,654

 
Loans Payable  

 
On January 27, 2020, the Company entered into a finance loan agreement relating to the acquisition of a
company vehicle. Under the terms of the finance loan, the Company will make monthly installment payments of
$1,089 at a finance loan interest rate of 7.99% per annum, which is due in February 2026. As of June 30, 2020,
the Company owed $59,236 (September 30, 2019 - $nil) on the finance loan, including $8,580 (September 30,
2019 - $nil) which is due in the next twelve months.  

 
On May 7, 2020, the Company received $255,992 from the U.S. Small Business Administration as part of the
Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (“CARES”) Act Paycheck Protection Program. The amount is
unsecured, bears interest at 1% per annum, is payable monthly commencing on November 7, 2020, and is due on
May 7, 2022. The terms of the loan provide that certain amounts may be forgiven if the funds are used for
qualifying expenses as described in the CARES Act.  
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AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the nine months ended June 30, 2020 and twelve months ended September 30, 2019
 

Common Shares 
 

The Company’s authorized common stock consists of 1,200,000,000 shares of common stock, with par value of
$0.001, and authorized Series A preferred stock of 500,000 shares of preferred stock, with par value of $0.001.
 
Period ended June 30, 2020
 
On October 1, 2019, the Company issued 300,000 Series A preferred stock to officers and directors of the Company
for no consideration. The preferred stock has no conversion rights, not entitled to receive dividends, carries voting
rights of 1,000 votes per share of preferred stock, and is redeemable at the option of the Company at par value of
$0.001 per share.
 
On October 3, 2019, the Company issued 917,777 common shares with a fair value of $49,560 for the conversion of
$30,000 of notes payable, $2,225 of accrued interest, and $23,675 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on
settlement of debt of $6,340.
 
On October 8, 2019, the Company issued 577,496 common shares with a fair value of $31,185 for the conversion of
$15,000 of notes payable, $500 of fees, and $17,800 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement of debt of
$2,115.
 
On October 10, 2019, the Company issued 2,036,114 common shares with a fair value of $97,733 for the conversion
of $55,000 of notes payable, $4,129 of accrued interest, and $47,710 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on
settlement of debt of $9,106.
 
On October 15, 2019, the Company issued 465,723 common shares with a fair value of $29,341 for the conversion of
$12,000 of notes payable, $500 of fees, and $18,440 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement of debt of
$1,599.
 
On October 17, 2019, the Company issued 502,980 common shares with a fair value of $25,149 for the conversion of
$13,000 of notes payable, $500 of fees, and $13,747 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement of debt of
$2,098.
 
On October 18, 2019, the Company issued 1,113,981 common shares with a fair value of $54,028 for the conversion
of $30,000 of notes payable, $2,350 of accrued interest, and $27,088 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on
settlement of debt of $5,410.
 
On October 21, 2019, the Company issued 542,526 common shares with a fair value of $29,242 for the conversion of
$12,000 of notes payable, $500 of fees, $2,061 of accrued interest, and $16,874 of derivative liability resulting in a gain
on settlement of debt of $2,193.
 
On October 25, 2019, the Company issued 559,768 common shares with a fair value of $27,429 for the conversion of
$14,500 of notes payable, $500 of fees, $24 of accrued interest, and $15,781 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on
settlement of debt of $3,376.
 
On October 25, 2019, the Company issued 481,557 common shares with a fair value of $23,596 for the conversion of
$10,500 of notes payable, $500 of fees, $1,925 of accrued interest and $13,570 of derivative liability resulting in a gain
on settlement of debt of $2,899.
 
On October 28, 2019, the Company issued 2,996,985 common shares for the exercise of cashless warrants.
 
On October 30, 2019, the Company issued 744,949 common shares with a fair value of $36,503 for the conversion of
$20,000 of notes payable, $1,633 of accrued interest, and $19,841 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on
settlement of debt of $4,972.
 
On October 31, 2019, the Company issued 500,000 common shares with a fair value of $24,500 for the conversion of
$9,500 of notes payable, $500 of fees, and $16,152 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement of debt of
$1,652.
 
On November 4, 2019, the Company issued 820,497 common shares with a fair value of $33,640 for the conversion
of $20,000 of notes payable, $1,661 of accrued interest and derivative liability of $17,362 resulting in a gain on
settlement of debt of $5,383.
 
On November 8, 2019, the Company issued 815,396 common shares with a fair value of $35.877 for the conversion
of $6,234 of notes payable, $1,645 of accrued interest, $13,647 of finance penalties, and $19,231 of derivative liability
resulting in a gain on settlement of debt of $4,880.
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AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the nine months ended June 30, 2020 and twelve months ended September 30, 2019
 

Common Shares (continued) 
 

On November 8, 2019, the Company issued 5,560,000 common shares with a fair value of $233,520 for consulting
services including 1,000,000 common shares with a fair value of $42,000 to a director of the Company.
 
On November 12, 2019, the Company issued 972,587 common shares with a fair value of $39,876 for the conversion
of $25,000 of notes payable, $1,653 of accrued interest, and $20,360 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on
settlement of debt of $7,137.
 
On November 20, 2019, the Company issued 994,354 common shares with a fair value of $35,797 for the conversion
of $20,000 of notes payable, $1,367 of accrued interest, and $19,506 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on
settlement of debt of $5,076.
 
On November 20, 2019, the Company issued 1,986,954 common shares with a fair value of $71,531 for the
conversion of $40,000 of notes payable, $2,696 of accrued interest, and $37,954 of derivative liability resulting in a
gain on settlement of debt of $9,119.
 
On November 21, 2019, the Company issued 850,000 common shares with a fair value of $34,000 for the conversion
of $11,825 of notes payable, $500 of fees, and $23,375 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement of debt of
$1,700.
 
On November 29, 2019, the Company issued 996,680 common shares with a fair value of $37,874 for the conversion
of $20,000 of notes payable, $1,417 of accrued interest, and $21,476 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on
settlement of debt of $5,018.
 
On December 6, 2019, the Company issued 607,477 common shares with a fair value of $20,958 for the conversion
of $13,000 of notes payable and $11,339 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement of debt of $3,381.
 
On December 9, 2019, the Company issued 746,269 common shares with a fair value of $25,224 for the conversion
of $15,000 of notes payable and $14,028 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement of debt of $3,804.
 
On December 10, 2019, the Company issued 999,524 common shares with a fair value of $32,984 for the conversion
of $20,000 of notes payable, $1,478 of accrued interest, and $16,607 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on
settlement of debt of $5,101.
 
On December 11, 2019, the Company issued 845,771 common shares with a fair value of $25,458 for the conversion
of $17,000 of notes payable and $13,874 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement of debt of $5,416.
 
On December 12, 2019, the Company issued 700,000 common shares with a fair value of $22,820 for the conversion
of $9,650 of notes payable, $500 of fees, and $14,396 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement of debt of
$1,726.
 
On December 13, 2019, the Company issued 703,704 common shares with a fair value of $22,167 for the conversion
of $10,000 of notes payable, $3,300 of accrued interest, and $12,107 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on
settlement of debt of $3,240.
 
On December 13, 2019, the Company issued 822,281 common shares with a fair value of $25,902 for the conversion
of $15,000 of notes payable, $500 of fees, and $12,103 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement of debt of
$1,701.
 
On December 16, 2019, the Company issued 2,079,180 common shares with a fair value of $62,375 for the
conversion of $40,000 of notes payable, $2,981 of accrued interest, and $33,668 of derivative liability resulting in a
gain on settlement of debt of $14,274.
 
On December 16, 2019, the Company issued 567,874 common shares with a fair value of $17,036 for the conversion
of $7,000 of notes payable, $500 of fees, $2,872 of accrued interest, and $7,416 of derivative liability resulting in a gain
on settlement of debt of $752.
 
On December 17, 2019, the Company issued 1,047,754 common shares with a fair value of $35,624 for the
conversion of $20,000 of notes payable, $1,517 of accrued interest, and $16,552 of derivative liability resulting in a
gain on settlement of debt of $2,444.
 
On December 24, 2019, the Company issued 932,920 common shares with a fair value of $38,670 for the conversion
of $6,650 of notes payable, $500 of fees, and $29,558 of derivative liability resulting in a loss of settlement of debt of
$1,962.
 
On December 24, 2019, the Company issued 1,561,157 common shares with a fair value of $64,710 for the
conversion of $25,000 of notes payable, $1,646 of accrued interest, and $43,120 of derivative liability resulting in a
gain on settlement of debt of $5,056.

F-20

9.

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the nine months ended June 30, 2020 and twelve months ended September 30, 2019
 

Common Shares (continued) 
 
On December 27, 2019, the Company issued 896,925 common shares with a fair value of $30,047 for the conversion
of $14,000 of notes payable, $500 of fees, $133 of accrued interest, and $16,948 of derivative liability resulting in a
gain on settlement of debt of $1,535.
 
On December 30, 2019, the Company issued 1,164,572 common shares with a fair value of $32,608 for the
conversion of $18,500 of notes payable, $500 of fees, and $14,929 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on
settlement of debt of $1,321.
 
On January 2, 2020, the Company issued 2,316,826 common shares with a fair value of $81,090 for the conversion of
$40,000 of note payable, $3,167 of accrued interest, and $49,831 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement
of debt of $11,908.
 
On January 2, 2020, the Company issued 1,567,942 common shares with a fair value of $54,878 for the conversion of
$25,000 of note payable, $1,708 of accrued interest, and $36,380 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement
of $8,210.
 
On January 2, 2020, the Company issued 892,857 common shares with a fair value of $31,250 for the conversion of
$15,000 of note payable and $19,062 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement of $2,812.
 
On January 3, 2020, the Company issued 1,553,815 common shares with a fair value of $49,722 for the conversion of
$21,500 of note payable, $3,530 of accrued interest, $500 of fees, and $48,168 of derivative liability resulting in a gain
on settlement of $2,500.
 
On January 3, 2020, the Company issued 2,000,000 common shares with a fair value of $64,000 for the conversion of
$25,933 of note payable, $6,697 of accrued interest and $36,589 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement
of $5,219.
 
On January 3, 2020, the Company issued 892,857 common shares with a fair value of $28,572 for the conversion of
$15,000 of note payable and $16,833 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement of $3,261.
 
On January 6, 2020, the Company issued 860,000 common shares with a fair value of $25,800 for the conversion of
$11,311 of note payable, $750 fees and $15,573 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement of $1,834.
 
On January 6, 2020, the Company issued 1,264,782 common shares with a fair value of $37,944 for the conversion of
$20,000 of note payable, $94 of accrued interest, $500 of fees and $19,661 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on
settlement of $2,311.
 
On January 6, 2020, the Company issued 1,071,429 common shares with a fair value of $32,143 for the conversion of
$18,000 of note payable and $17,815 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement of $3,672.
 
On January 7, 2020, the Company issued 802,381 common shares with a fair value of $24,874 for the conversion of
$10,000 of note payable, $3,622 of accrued interest and $14,098 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement
of $2,846.
 
On January 7, 2020, the Company issued 1,569,981 common shares with a fair value of $48,669 for the conversion of
$25,000 of note payable, $1,743 of accrued interest and $27,445 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement
of $5,519.
 
On January 10, 2020, the Company issued 1,395,332 common shares for a fair value of $35,581 for the conversion of
$20,000 of note payable, $1,014 of accrued interest and $21,671 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement
of $7,104.
 
On January 13, 2020, the Company issued 1,938,768 common shares for a fair value $52,347 for the conversion of
$30,000 of note payable, $2,142 of accrued interest and $26,911 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement
of $6,706.
 
On January 14, 2020, the Company issued 1,340,000 common shares for a fair value of $45,560 for the conversion of
$17,306 of note payable, $750 of fees and $31,041 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement of $3,537.
 
On January 14, 2020, the Company issued 916,963 common shares for a fair value of $31,177 for the conversion of
$14,000 of note payable, $600 of accrued interest, $500 of fees and $19,647 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on
settlement of $3,570.
 
On January 14, 2020, the Company issued 5,021,366 common shares for a fair value of $170,726 for the conversion
of $79,067 of note payable, $572 accrued interest and $114,349 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement
of $23,262.
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Common Shares (continued) 
 
On January 15, 2020, the Company issued 1,500,000 common shares for a fair value of $100,470 for the conversion
of $19,462 of note payable, $750 of fees and $100,470 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement of 21,212.
 
On January 15, 2020, the Company issued 4,649,492 common shares for a fair value of $311,422 for the conversion
of $75,000 of note payable, $5,938 of accrued interest and $247,423 derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement
of $16,939.
 
On January 15, 2020, the Company issued 2,805,479 common shares for a fair value of $187,911 for the conversion
of $40,000 of note payable, $2,082 of accrued interest and $154,571 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on
settlement of $8,742.
 
On January 15, 2020, the Company issued 3,232,955 common shares for a fair value of $216,543 for the conversion
of $50,000 of note payable, $3,597 of accrued interest and $168,041 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on
settlement of $5,095.
 
On January 16, 2020, the Company issued 3,233,793 common shares for a fair value of $181,093 for the conversion
of $50,000, accrued interest of $3,611 and derivative liability of $132,763 resulting in a gain on settlement of $5,281.
 
On January 17, 2020, the Company issued 5,263,014 common shares for a fair value of $302,623 for the conversion
of $75,000 of note payable, $3,945 of accrued interest and $242,111 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on
settlement of $18,433.
 
On January 22, 2020, the Company issued 2,591,056 common shares for a fair value of $82,914 for the conversion of
$40,000 of note payable, $2,956 accrued interest and $53,413 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement of
$13,455.
 
On January 23, 2020, the Company issued 1,757,077 common shares for a fair value of $70,248 for the conversion of
$25,000 of note payable, $1,295 accrued interest and $52,557 of derivative liability resulting in a gain of settlement of
$8,604.
 
On January 23, 2020, the Company issued 3,761,200 common shares with a fair value of $150,448 for consulting
services.
 
On January 23, 2020, the Company issued 3,475,000 common shares with a fair value of $139,000 for consulting
services including 1,000,000 common shares with a fair value of $40,000 to a director of the Company.
 
On January 27, 2020, the Company issued 4,679,001 common shares with a fair value of $170,784 for the conversion
of $75,000 of note payable, $6,793 of accrued interest and $150,648 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on
settlement of $61,657.
 
On January 27, 2020, the Company issued 2,594,407 common shares with a fair value of $94,695 for the conversion
of $40,000 of note payable, $3,011 of accrued liability and $59,353 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on
settlement of $7,669.
 
On January 30, 2020, the Company issued 2,596,417 common shares with a fair value of $84,383 for the conversion
of $40,000, $2,683 of accrued interest and $50,666 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement of 8,966.
 
On February 4, 2020, the Company issued 6,467,394 common shares with a fair value of $239,293 for the conversion
of $98,000 of note payable, $5,907 of accrued interest, $105 of fees and $166,151 of derivative liability resulting in a
gain on settlement of $30,870.
 
On February 5, 2020, the Company issued 2,503,957 common shares with a fair value of $113,930 for the conversion
of $40,000 of note payable, $3,589 of accrued interest and $72,495 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on
settlement of $2,154.
 
On February 5, 2020, the Company issued 670,000 common shares with a fair value of $30,485 for the conversion of
$8,278 of note payable, $750 of fees and $22,106 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement of $649.
 
On February 6, 2020, the Company issued 5,026,425 common shares with a fair value of $201,057 for the conversion
of $78,630 of note payable, $4,375 of accrued interest and $134,206 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on
settlement of $16,154.
 
On February 10, 2020, the Company issued 9,723,549 common shares with a fair value of $495,901 for the
conversion of $150,000 of note payable, $11,096 of accrued interest, $105 of fees and $366,278 of derivative liability
resulting in a gain on settlement of $31,578.
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Common Shares (continued) 
 
On February 10, 2020, the Company issued 1,118,568 common shares with a fair value of $57,047 for the conversion
of $20,000 of note payable and $37,087 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement of $40.
 
On February 10, 2020, the Company issued 7,834,840 common shares with a fair value of $399,577 for the
conversion of $125,000 of note payable, $14,524 of accrued interest and $269,904 of derivative liability resulting in a
gain on settlement of $9,851.
 
On February 11, 2020, the Company issued 2,051,298 common shares with a fair value of $137,355 for the
conversion of $18,641 of note payable, $4,564 of accrued interest, $1,500 of fees and $108,919 of derivative liability
resulting in a gain on settlement of $3,731.
 
On February 12, 2020, the Company issued 1,388,889 common shares with a fair value of $83,333 for the conversion
of $25,000 of note payable and $65,150 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement of $6,817.
 
On February 14, 2020, the Company issued 2,688,172 common shares with a fair value of $161,290 for the
conversion of 50,000 of note payable, $3,550 of accrued interest and $127,306 of derivative liability resulting in a gain
on settlement of $19,566.
 
On February 19, 2020, the Company issued 9,301,308 common shares with a fair value of $836,188 for the
conversion of $175,000 of note payable, $14,529 of accrued interest, $105 of fees and $238,239 of derivative liability
resulting in a loss on settlement on 408,315.
 
On February 19, 2020, the Company issued 3,643,827 common shares with a fair value of $327,580 for the
conversion of $60,000 of note payable, $5,472 of accrued interest and $327,580 of derivative liability resulting in a gain
on settlement of $65,472.
 
On February 24, 2020, the Company issued 10,000,000 common shares with a fair value of 400,000 for consulting
services including 6,000,000 common shares with a fair value of $240,000 to three directors of the Company.
 
On February 24, 2020, the Company issued 9,206,396 common shares with a fair value of $535,996 for the
conversion of $175,000 of note payable, $12,705 of accrued interest, $105 of fees and $398,306 of derivative liability
resulting in a gain on settlement of $50,120.
 
On February 27, 2020, the Company issued 1,313,822 common shares for the exercise of cashless warrants.
 
On March 1, 2020, the Company issued 2,104,577 common shares with a fair value of $99,967 for the conversion of
$35,200 of note payable, $2,147 of accrued interest, $500 fees and $68,868 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on
settlement of 3,748.
 
On March 2, 2020, the Company issued 2,049,666 common shares with a fair value of $97,359 for the conversion of
$35,200 of note payable, $2,159 of accrued interest, $500 of fees and $69,374 of derivative liability resulting in a gain
on settlement of $9,874.
 
On March 4, 2020, the Company issued 7,910,062 common shares with a fair value of $514,154 for the conversion of
$150,000 of note payable, $11,635 of accrued interest, $105 of fees and $390,342 of derivative liability resulting in a
gain on settlement of $37,928.
 
On March 24, 2020, the Company issued 5,082,065 common shares with a fair value of $193,118 for the conversion
of $90,000 of note payable. $6,657 of accrued interest, $105 of fees and $127,986 of derivative liability resulting in a
gain on settlement of $31,630.
 
On April 7, 2020, the Company issued 5,666,272 common shares with a fair value of $214,185 for the conversion of
$100,000 of note payable. $7,781 of accrued interest, $105 of fees and $134,929 of derivative liability resulting in a
gain on settlement of $28,630.
 
On April 17, 2020, the Company issued 4,545,632 common shares with a fair value of $259,101 for the conversion of
$80,000 of note payable. $6,959 of accrued interest, $105 of fees and $177,250 of derivative liability resulting in a gain
on settlement of $5,213.
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Common Shares (continued) 
 
On April 22, 2020, the Company issued 1,544,271 common shares with a fair value of $64,859 for the conversion of
$29,150 of note payable. $1,817 of accrued interest, $500 of fees and $47,556 of derivative liability resulting in a gain
on settlement of $14,164.
 
On April 22, 2020, the Company issued 1,555,098 common shares with a fair value of $76,977 for the conversion of
$29,150 of note payable. $1,827 of accrued interest, $500 of fees and $58,343 of derivative liability resulting in a gain
on settlement of $12,842.
 
On April 29, 2020, the Company issued 2,512,923 common shares with a fair value of $150,775 for the conversion of
$52,000 of note payable. $2,817 of accrued interest, $105 of fees and $115,796 of derivative liability resulting in a gain
on settlement of $19,942.
 
On April 29, 2020, the Company issued 2,093,860 common shares for the exercise of cashless warrants.
 
On May 20, 2020, the Company issued 5,657,363 common shares for the exercise of cashless warrants.
 
On May 22, 2020, the Company issued 6,874,831 common shares with a fair value of $382,928 for consulting
services and management fee.
 
On June 19, 2020, the Company issued 859,259 common shares for the exercise of cashless warrants.
 
On June 29, 2020, the Company issued 3,750,000 units for proceeds of $150,000. Each unit is comprised of one
common share of the Company and 0.8 share purchase warrants where each whole
 
share purchase warrant can be exercised into one common share of the Company at $0.15 per share until October
31, 2024.
 
On June 30, 2020, the Company issued 1,712,824 common shares as part of the settlement for the exercise of
cashless warrants.
 
As at June 30, 2020, the Company received share subscriptions of $2,450,000 for the future issuance of private
placement units at $0.04 per unit, where each unit is comprised of one common share of the Company and 0.8 share
purchase warrants where each whole share purchase warrant can be exercised into one common share of the
Company at $0.15 per share until October 31, 2024. Refer to Note 12.
 
Year Ended September 30, 2019
 
On October 8, 2018, the Company issued 2,500,000 common shares with a fair value of $357,500 for services,
including 1,000,000 common shares to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and 1,000,000 shares to a director
of the Company.
 
On October 10, 2018, the Company issued 250,000 common shares with a fair value of $35,250 as part of the joint
venture agreement with CINC.
 
On October 11, 2018, the Company issued 193,986 common shares with a fair value of $22,308 for the conversion of
$20,000 of notes payable resulting in a loss on settlement of debt of $2,308.
 
On October 12, 2018, the Company issued 240,096 common shares with a fair value of $27,611 for the conversion of
$20,000 of notes payable resulting in a loss on settlement of debt of $7,611.
 
On October 15, 2018, the Company issued 216,086 common shares with a fair value of $21,047 for the conversion of
$18,000 of notes payable resulting in a loss on settlement of debt of $3,047.
 
On October 16, 2018, the Company issued 280,505 common shares with a fair value of $40,673 for the conversion of
20,000 of notes payable resulting in a loss on settlement of debt of $20,673.
 
On October 16, 2018, the Company issued 100,000 common shares with a fair value of $14,500 for consulting
services.
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Common Shares (continued) 
 
On October 17, 2018, the Company issued 175,035 common shares with a fair value of $25,800 for the conversion of
$7,800 of notes payable and $4,680 of accrued interest resulting in a loss on settlement of debt of $13,320.
 
On October 19, 2018, the Company issued 550,000 common shares with a fair value of $90,750 for consulting
services.
 
On October 23, 2018, the Company issued 150,000 common shares with a fair value of $42,000 for consulting
services.
 
On October 25, 2018, the Company issued 869,285 common shares with a fair value of $139,086 for the conversion
of $58,800 of notes payable and $3,180 of accrued interest resulting in a loss on settlement of debt of $77,106.
 
On October 26, 2018, the Company issued 414,785 common shares with a fair value of $66,366 for the conversion of
$25,000 of notes payable and $1,281 of accrued interest resulting in a loss on settlement of debt of $40,085.
 
On November 7, 2018, the Company issued 443,478 common shares with a fair value of $51,000 as part of a
conversion of notes payable at $0.115 per share.
 
On November 13, 2018, the Company issued 833,895 common shares with a fair value of $179,287 for the
conversion of $50,000 of notes payable and accrued interest of $2,836 resulting in a loss on settlement of debt of
$126,451.
 
On November 19, 2018, the Company issued 796,073 common shares with a fair value of $151,254 for the
conversion of $75,000 of notes payable and accrued interest of $2,445 resulting in a loss on settlement of debt of
$73,809.
 
On November 21, 2018, the Company issued 420,870 common shares with a fair value of $48,400 for the conversion
of notes payable at $0.115 per share.
 
On December 18, 2018, the Company issued 448,696 common shares with a fair value of $51,600 for the conversion
of notes payable at $0.115 per share.
 
On December 26, 2018, the Company issued 420,870 common shares with a fair value of $48,400 for the conversion
of notes payable at $0.115 per share.
 
On January 8, 2019, the Company issued 708,006 common shares with a fair value of $207,446 upon the conversion
of $75,000 of convertible notes payable $4,438 of accrued interest, and derivative liability of $138,845 resulting in a
gain on settlement of debt of $10,837.
 
On January 11, 2019, the Company issued 12,700,000 common shares with a fair value of $4,362,320 for services,
including 2,000,000 common shares with a fair value of $703,600 to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and
4,000,000 common shares with a fair value of $1,407,200 to directors of the Company.
 
On January 11, 2019, the Company issued 300,000 common shares with a fair value of $105,540 for consulting
services.
 
On January 11, 2019, the Company issued 180,181 common shares with a fair value of $62,234 upon the conversion
of $15,000 of convertible notes payable, resulting in a gain on settlement of debt of $159.
 
On January 14, 2019, the Company issued 180,180 common shares with a fair value of $62,234 upon the conversion
of $15,000 of convertible notes payable and derivative liability of $47,316, resulting in a gain on settlement of debt of
$82.
 
On February 7, 2019, the Company issued 434,783 common shares with a fair value of $50,000 for the conversion of
$39,000 of notes payable and $11,000 of accrued interest at $0.115 per share.
 
On February 22, 2019, the Company issued 629,833 common shares with a fair value of $135,414 upon the
conversion of $75,000 of convertible notes payable, $4,438 of accrued interest, and $59,352 of derivative liability
resulting in a gain on settlement of debt of $3,376.
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Common Shares (continued) 
 
On February 27, 2019, the Company cancelled 10,000,000 common shares that were previously issued for consulting
services.
 
On February 27, 2019, the Company issued 6,100,000 common shares with a fair value of $1,220,000 for consulting
services, including 1,000,000 common shares with a fair value of $200,000 to a director of the Company.
 
On February 28, 2019, the Company issued 750,000 common shares with a fair value of $151,500 for consulting
services.
 
On March 19, 2019, the Company issued 110,000 common shares with a fair value of $24,090 for the conversion of
$9,400 of convertible notes payable and derivative liability of $14,750, resulting in a gain on settlement of debt of $60.
 
On April 23, 2019, the Company issued 300,000 common shares with a fair value of $74,250 for consulting services.
 
On May 8, 2019, the Company issued 184,930 common shares with a fair value of $48,082 for the conversion of
$18,100 of convertible notes payable, $1,742 of accrued interest, and derivative liability of $22,363, resulting in a loss
on settlement of debt of $5,377.
 
On June 11, 2019, the Company issued 552,381 common shares with a fair value of $132,516 for the conversion of
$75,000 of convertible notes payable, $3,842 of accrued interest and derivative liability of $61,803, resulting in a gain
on settlement of debt of $8,129.
 
On June 11, 2019, the Company issued 869,565 common shares with a fair value of $100,000 as part of a conversion
of notes payable at $0.115 per share.
 
On July 8, 2019, the Company issued 1,650,000 common shares with a fair value of $396,000 for consulting services.
 
On July 15, 2019, the Company issued 1,352,240 common shares with a fair value of $311,015 as part of a
conversion of $190,000 of convertible notes payable, $11,192 of accrued interest and derivative liability of $133,574,
resulting in a gain on settlement of debt of $23,750.
 
On July 19, 2019, the Company issued 1,414.000 common shares with a fair value of $162,610 as part of the
conversion of $136,100 of convertible notes payable and $26,510 of accrued interest.
 
On July 30, 2019, the Company issued 160,552 common shares with a fair value of $27,294 for the settlement of
$15,000 of convertible notes payable, conversion fees of $500, accrued interest of $9, and derivative liability of
$12,388 resulting in a gain on settlement of debt of $603.

 
On July 31, 2019, the Company issued 129,453 common shares with a fair value of $23,302 for the settlement of
$12,500 of convertible notes payable and $10,853 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement of debt of $51.
 
On August 1, 2019, the Company issued 300,000 common shares with a fair value of $54,000 for consulting services.
 
On August 8, 2019, the Company issued 196,711 common shares with a fair value of $34,424 for the settlement of
$20,000 of convertible notes payable, conversion fees of $500, and derivative liability of $13,998 resulting in a gain on
settlement of debt of $74.
 
On August 12, 2019, the Company issued 167,946 common shares with a fair value of $28,551 for the settlement of
$17,500 of convertible notes payable and $11,110 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement of debt of $59.
 
On August 21, 2019, the Company issued 1,500,000 common shares with a fair value of $226,500 for consulting
services including 1,000,000 common shares with a fair value of $151,000 to the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company.
 
On August 22, 2019, the Company issued 1,233,035 common shares with a fair value of $188,038 for the conversion
of $110,000 of convertible notes payable, $6,781 of accrued interest, and $76,580 of derivative liability resulting in a
gain on settlement of debt of $5,223.

F-26

9.

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the nine months ended June 30, 2020 and twelve months ended September 30, 2019
 

Common Shares (continued) 
 
On August 27, 2019, the Company issued 310,606 common shares with a fair value of $34,167 for the conversion of
$20,000 of convertible notes payable, conversion fees of $500, and derivative liability of $13,717 resulting in a gain on
settlement of debt of $50.
 
On August 27, 2019, the Company issued 303,030 common shares with a fair value of $33,333 for the conversion of
$20,000 of convertible notes payable and $13,383 of derivative liability resulting in a gain on settlement of debt of $50.
 
On September 3, 2019, the Company issued 507,826 common shares with a fair value of $49,513 for the settlement
of $30,000 of convertible notes payable, conversion fees of $500, and derivative liability of $19,078 resulting in a gain
on settlement of debt of $65.
 
On September 3, 2019, the Company issued 249,727 common shares with a fair value of $24,348 for the settlement
of $15,000 of convertible notes payable, $988 of accrued interest, and $9,149 of derivative liability resulting in a gain
on settlement of debt of $789.
 
On September 5, 2019, the Company issued 504,919 common shares with a fair value of $40,394 for the settlement
of $25,000 of convertible notes payable, $1,660 of accrued interest, and $15,344 of derivative liability resulting in a
gain on settlement of debt of $1,610.
 
On September 6, 2019, the Company issued 388,257 common shares with a fair value of $29,090 for the settlement
of $20,000 of convertible notes payable, conversion fees of $500, and derivative liability of $8,620 resulting in a gain
on settlement of debt of $40.
 
On September 9, 2019, the Company issued 622,086 common shares with a fair value of $42,862 for the settlement
of $25,000 of convertible notes payable, $1,688 of accrued interest, and $17,260 of derivative liability resulting in a
gain on settlement of debt of $1,086.
 
On September 11, 2019, the Company issued 426,997 common shares with a fair value of $43,554 for the settlement
of $15,000 of convertible notes payable, $500 of conversion fees, and $28,080 of derivative liability resulting in a gain
on settlement of debt of $25.
 
On September 11, 2019, the Company issued 471,763 common shares with a fair value of $48,120 for the settlement
of $12,500 of convertible notes payable, $500 of conversion fees, and $2,913 of accrued interest and derivative liability
resulting in a loss on settlement of debt of $32,207.
 
On September 11, 2019, the Company issued 650,000 common shares with a fair value of $66,300 for the settlement
of $17,375 of convertible notes payable, $500 of conversion fees, and $49,683 of derivative liability resulting in a gain
on settlement of debt of $1,258.
 
On September 13, 2019, the Company issued 200,000 common shares with a fair value of $14,000 for consulting
services.
 
On September 16, 2019, the Company issued 736,532 common shares with a fair value of $51,395 for the settlement
of $30,000 of convertible notes payable, $2,100 of accrued interest, and $50,051 of derivative liability resulting in a
gain on settlement of debt of $2,564.
 
On September 17, 2019, the Company issued 1,619,344 common shares with a fair value of $100,399 for the
settlement of $55,000 of convertible notes payable, $3,782 of accrued interest, and $50,872 of derivative liability
resulting in a gain on settlement of debt of $9,255.
 
On September 17, 2019, the Company issued 463,843 common shares with a fair value of $28,758 for the settlement
of $10,000 of convertible notes payable, $500 of conversion fees, $6,338 of accrued interest, and $1,487 of derivative
liability resulting in a loss on settlement of debt of $10,433.
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AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the nine months ended June 30, 2020 and twelve months ended September 30, 2019
 

Common Shares (continued) 
 
On September 18, 2019, the Company issued 884,298 common shares with a fair value of $79,587 for the settlement
of $30,000 of convertible notes payable, $2,100 of accrued interest, and $50,051 of derivative liability resulting in a
gain on settlement of debt of $2,564.
 
Share Purchase Warrants 

 
 

Number of
warrants

 Weighted
average

exercise price
$

Balance, September 30, 2018 and 2019 8,925,334  0.09
Issued 6,522,224  0.16
Exercised (5,610,807)  0.09

Expired (1,233,639)  0.09
    
Balance, June 30, 2020 8,603,112  0.14

 
Additional information regarding share purchase warrants as of June 30, 2020, is as follows:
 

 Outstanding and exercisable  

Range of
Exercise Prices

$
Number of
Warrants

Weighted Average
Remaining

Contractual Life
(years)  

0.1 3,250,000 1.1  
0.15 4,500,000 2.2  
0.17 250,000 0.1  
0.18 361,112 0.1  
0.5 242,000 0.0  
    
 8,603,112 3.5  

 
Income Taxes 

 
The Company has $24,600,000 of net operating losses carried forward to offset taxable income in future years which
expire commencing in fiscal 2032. The income tax benefit differs from the amount computed by applying the US
federal income tax rate at 21% per annum to net loss before income taxes. As at June 30, 2020 and September 30,
2019, the Company had no uncertain tax positions.
 

 

June 30,
2020

$

 September 30,
2019

$
Net loss before taxes 13,318,408  12,625,204
Statutory rate 21%  21%

    
Computed expected tax recovery 2,796,866  2,651,293
Permanent differences and other (1,437,275)  (396,668)
Change in valuation allowance (1,359,591)  (2,254,625)
    
Income tax provision -  –
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AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the nine months ended June 30, 2020 and twelve months ended September 30, 2019
 

Income Taxes (continued) 
 

The significant components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities as at June 30, 2020 and September 30, 2019
after applying enacted corporate income tax rates are as follows:
 

 
2020

$
 2019

$
    
Net operating losses carried forward 5,166,165  3,806,574
Valuation allowance (5,166,165)  (3,806,574)
    
Net deferred tax asset –  –

 
Subsequent Events 

 
On July 9, 2020, the Company issued 7,950,000 common shares as consideration for consulting services.  
 
On July 9, 2020, the Company issued 6,081,150 common shares pursuant to the conversion of $147,250 of
convertible notes payable and $5,890 accrued interests dated June 25, 2020. 
 
On August 18, 2020, the Company issued 1,000,000 common shares as consideration for management fees and
1,890,000 common shares as consideration for marketing consulting fees.  
 
On August 26, 2020, the Company issued 2,196,822 common shares pursuant to the conversion of $100,000
convertible notes payable and $5,342 accrued interests dated August 20, 2020. 
 
On August 27, 2020, the Company issued 5,055,132 common shares pursuant to the exercise of warrants. 
 
On September 16, 2020, the Company issued 1,696,856 common shares pursuant to the conversion of $77,200
convertible notes payable and $4,653 accrued interests dated September 14, 2020. 
 

Subsequent to June 30, 2020, the Company issued 60,625,000 common shares to various parties for proceeds of
$2,425,000 received during the nine months ended June 30, 2020 as part of the private placement at $0.04 per unit.
Each unit is comprised of one common share of the Company and 0.8 share purchase warrants where each whole share
purchase warrant can be exercised into one common share of the Company at $0.15 per share until October 31, 2024.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
 
None.
 
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
 
a) Disclosure Controls and Procedures
 
The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance that information
required to be disclosed in reports filed pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information is
accumulated and communicated to management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as
appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In addition, the Company contracts with an
independent firm to review and test its internal controls. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can
provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met.
 
As of June 30, 2020, the Company’s management carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls
and procedures as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934. Based on that
evaluation, it was concluded the disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of June 30, 2020.
 
(b) Report of Management on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
 
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act. The Company has designed internal controls to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance that financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The Company
assesses the effectiveness of internal controls based on the criteria set forth in the 2013 Internal Control - Integrated
Framework developed by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this
evaluation, management has concluded that the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting was not effective as
of June 30, 2020.
 
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. It
should be noted that any system of internal control, however well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable,
and not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the system will be met. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
 
Item 9B. Other Information
 
None.
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PART III
 

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
 
The following table sets forth the names and ages of our current directors and executive officers, the principal offices and
positions held by each person:
 

Name  Age  Positions

William Hunter  52  Director
Douglas MacLellan  65  Director

Douglas Cole  65  
Director, Chairman, CEO, CFO,
Secretary

Ryan Melsert  38  Director, CTO
 
William Hunter, Director
 
Mr. Hunter, age 52, received his B.Sc. from DePaul University in Chicago and an MBA with distinction from the Kellstadt
School of Business at DePaul University. Mr. Hunter is currently the CFO of AMCI Group and CEO and board member of
AMCI Acquisition Corp (Nasdaq: AMCIU). He is a seasoned financial executive with over 20 years of advisory and capital
markets experience and has been involved in over $20 billion of transactions throughout his career in the natural
resources and industrial industries. Prior to joining AMCI, Mr. Hunter led the Americas Banking team at Nomura where he
advised Mitsui in their acquisition of a minority interest in the Moatize Coal Mining complex from Vale and Globe Specialty
Metals in their $3.1 billion ‘merger of equals’ transaction with FerroAtlantica. Before Nomura he led industrial and natural
resource teams at Jefferies, TD Securities and BMO Nesbitt Burns.
 
There have been no transactions since the beginning of the Company's last fiscal year, and there are no currently
proposed transactions, in which the Company was or is to be a participant and in which Mr. Hunter (or any member of his
immediate family) had or will have any interest, that are required to be reported under Item 404(a) of Regulation S-K. The
appointment of Mr. Hunter was not pursuant to any arrangement or understanding between him and any person, other
than a director or executive officer of the Company acting in his or her official capacity.
 
Douglas MacLellan, Director
 
Mr. MacLellan, age 65, currently serves as Chairman of the Board of eWellness Healthcare Corporation (OTCQB: EWLL),
since May 2013. From November 2009 to December 2017 Mr. MacLellan was an independent director and Chairman of
the Audit Committee of ChinaNet Online Holdings, Inc. (NASDAQ: CNET) a media development, advertising and
communications company. From June 2011 to present Mr. MacLellan has been Chairman of Innovare Products, Inc., a
privately held company that develops innovative consumer products. From May 2014 to October 2016, Mr. MacLellan was
a member of the Board as an independent director of Jameson Stanford Resources Corporation (OTCBB: JMSN) an early
stage mining company. From September 1992 through April 2014, Mr. MacLellan held various Board positions and was
Chairman and chief executive officer at Radient Pharmaceuticals Corporation. (OTCQB: RXPC.PK), a vertically integrated
specialty pharmaceutical company. He also continued to serve as president and chief executive officer for the MacLellan
Group, an international financial advisory firm from March 1992 through January 2016. From August 2005 to May 2009,
Mr. MacLellan was co-founder and vice chairman at Ocean Smart, Inc., a Canadian based aquaculture company. From
February 2002 to September 2006, Mr. MacLellan served as chairman and cofounder at Broadband Access MarketSpace,
Ltd., a China based IT advisory firm, and was also co-founder at Datalex Corp., a software and IT company specializing in
mainframe applications, from February 1997 to May 2002. Mr. MacLellan was educated at the University of Southern
California in economics and international relations.
 
There have been no transactions since the beginning of the Company's last fiscal year, and there are no currently
proposed transactions, in which the Company was or is to be a participant and in which Mr. MacLellan (or any member of
his immediate family) had or will have any interest, that are required to be reported under Item 404(a) of Regulation S-K.
The appointment of Mr. MacLellan was not pursuant to any arrangement or understanding between him and any person,
other than a director or executive officer of the Company acting in his or her official capacity.
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Douglas Cole, Director, CEO, CFO, Controller, Secretary
 
Mr. Cole, age 65, has been a Partner overseeing all ongoing deal activities with Objective Equity LLC since 2005, a
boutique investment bank focused on the high technology, data analytics and the mining sector. Mr. Cole currently serves
on the Board of Directors of eWellness Healthcare Corporation (EWLL). Since 1977 Mr. Cole has held various executive
roles, including Chairman, Executive Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President of multiple public corporations.
From May 2000 to September 2005, he was also the Director of Lair of the Bear, The University of California Family
Camp located in Pinecrest, California. During the period between 1991 and 1996 he was the CEO of HealthSoft and he
also founded and operated Great Bear Technology, which acquired Sony Image Soft and Starpress, then went public and
eventually sold to Graphix Zone. In 1995 Mr. Cole was honored by NEA, a leading venture capital firm, as CEO of the
year. In 1997 Mr. Cole became CEO of NetAmerica until merging in 1999. Since 1982 he has been very active with the
University of California, Berkeley mentoring early-stage technology companies. Mr. Cole has extensive experience in
global M&A and global distributions. He obtained his BA in Social Sciences from UC Berkeley in 1978.
 
There have been no transactions since the beginning of the Company's last fiscal year, and there are no currently
proposed transactions, in which the Company was or is to be a participant and in which Mr. Cole (or any member of his
immediate family) had or will have any interest, that are required to be reported under Item 404(a) of Regulation S-K. The
appointment of Mr. Cole was not pursuant to any arrangement or understanding between him and any person, other than
a director or executive officer of the Company acting in his or her official capacity.
 
Ryan Melsert, Director, CTO
 
Mr. Melsert, age 38, is the CTO at American Battery Metals Corporation, overseeing all aspects of the Company’s battery
metal extraction and battery recycling divisions. Mr. Melsert specializes in the development and scale-up of highly
innovative first-of-kind systems. This development process consists of fundamental conceptual design, rigorous
thermodynamic and process modeling, design and fabrication of bench-scale prototypes, construction and operation of
integrated pilot systems, and implementation of commercial-scale systems. Joining the Company in August 2019, Mr.
Melsert has been accelerating the development and implementation of the Company’s proprietary battery metal extraction
technologies and battery recycling programs with the planning and construction of a multi-functional facility. Since June
2019, Mr. Melsert has been the CEO of M2 Thermal Solutions whose first-of-kind residential air conditioning system, that
exhibits a disruptive ~400% improvement in energy efficiency over current state-of-the-art systems, has been accepted as
one of eight finalist designs in the Global Cooling Prize challenge. From May 2015 to March 2019 Mr. Melsert served as
R&D Manager for Tesla's Giga Factory Battery Materials Processing group. He founded and led this cross-functional team
of mechanical and chemical engineers who implemented first principles design to develop novel first-of-kind systems for
the extraction, purification, and synthesis of precursor and active battery materials. This development scope included the
fundamental conceptual design, rigorous thermodynamic and process modeling, design and fabrication of bench-scale
prototypes, construction and operation of integrated pilot systems, and implementation of commercial scale systems for the
processing of battery materials. During this time Mr. Melsert was awarded 5 different patents. From April 2013 to May
2015 Mr. Melsert served as R&D Manager, Advanced Energy & Transportation Technologies for Southern Research
where he led a project team of 5-10 chemical/mechanical engineers in fundamental design of first-of-kind systems
throughout energy systems field. While there, Mr. Melsert wrote and won several DOE grants in addition to winning the
company-wide “Invention of the Year” 2015, presented at ARPA-E Innovation Summit. From September 2010 to March
2013 Mr. Melsert served as an Energy Systems Consultant for the Advanced Technology Development Center in Atlanta
Georgia. From January 2008 to June 2011 Mr. Melsert was the Program Manager at General Motors while also serving as
the Lead Development Engineer for a solar driven chemical heat engine from May 2008 to December 2018 which was
sponsored by King Saud University in Riyadh, Saudi Arabia. From August 2005 to September 2009 Mr. Melsert was the
Lead Development Engineer for C2 Biofuels. In 2005 Mr. Melsert worked at Lockheed Martin as a Fluid Dynamics
Engineer. Mr. Melsert has 12 publications to his name written between 2007 and 2015. His education includes an MS in
Mechanical Engineering and an MBA from Georgia Tech awarded in 2007 and 2011, and a BS in Mechanical Engineering
with Minors in Engineering Mechanics, French, and International Studies from Penn State University awarded in 2004.
 
There have been no transactions since the beginning of the Company's last fiscal year, and there are no currently
proposed transactions, in which the Company was or is to be a participant and in which Mr. Melsert (or any member of his
immediate family) had or will have any interest, that are required to be reported under Item 404(a) of Regulation S-K. The
appointment of Mr. Melsert was not pursuant to any arrangement or understanding between him and any person, other
than a director or executive officer of the Company acting in his or her official capacity.
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Director Qualifications
 
We believe that our directors should have the highest professional and personal ethics and values, consistent with our
longstanding values and standards. They should have broad experience at the policy-making level in business or banking.
They should be committed to enhancing stockholder value and should have sufficient time to carry out their duties and to
provide insight and practical wisdom based on experience. Their service on other boards of public companies should be
limited to a number that permits them, given their individual circumstances, to perform responsibly all director duties for us.
Each director must represent the interests of all stockholders. When considering potential director candidates, the Board
also considers the candidate’s character, judgment, diversity, age and skills, including financial literacy and experience in
the context of our needs and the needs of the Board.
 
Family Relationships
 
None.
 
Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings
 
Our directors and executive officers have not been involved in any of the following events during the past ten years:
 

Any bankruptcy petition filed by or against such person or any business of which such person was a general
partner or executive officer either at the time of the bankruptcy or within two years prior to that time; 
Any conviction in a criminal proceeding or being subject to a pending criminal proceeding (excluding traffic
violations and other minor offenses); 
Being subject to any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any court
of competent jurisdiction, permanently or temporarily enjoining him from or otherwise limiting his involvement in
any type of business, securities or banking activities or to be associated with any person practicing in banking or
securities activities; 
Being found by a court of competent jurisdiction in a civil action, the SEC or the Commodity Futures Trading
Commission to have violated a Federal or state securities or commodities law, and the judgment has not been
reversed, suspended, or vacated; 
Being subject of, or a party to, any Federal or state judicial or administrative order, judgment decree, or finding,
not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, relating to an alleged violation of any Federal or state
securities or commodities law or regulation, any law or regulation respecting financial institutions or insurance
companies, or any law or regulation prohibiting mail or wire fraud or fraud in connection with any business entity;
or 
Being subject of or party to any sanction or order, not subsequently reversed, suspended, or vacated, of any self-
regulatory organization, any registered entity or any equivalent exchange, association, entity or organization that
has disciplinary authority over its members or persons associated with a member.  

 
Code of Ethics
 
The Company has not adopted a Code of Ethics and Business Conduct. Management intends to adopt a Code of Ethics
and Business Conduct in the near future.
 
Term of Office
 
Our directors are appointed to hold office until the next annual general meeting of our stockholders or until removed from
office in accordance with our Bylaws. Our officers are appointed by our Board and hold office until removed by the Board,
absent an employment agreement.
 
Conflicts of Interest
 
Since we do not have an audit or compensation committee comprised of independent directors, the functions that would
have been performed by such committees are performed by our directors. The Board has not established an audit
committee and does not have an audit committee financial expert, nor has the Board established a nominating committee.
The Board is of the opinion that such committees are not necessary since the Company is in the early stages of
operations. The Company has four directors, two of which are not involved in the management of the Company, and to
date, such directors have been performing the functions of such committees. The involvement of the two non-
management directors mitigates some potential conflict of interest issues.
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Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Compliance Reporting
 
Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires a company’s directors and officers, and persons who own more than 10% of
any class of a company’s equity securities which are registered under Section 12 of the Exchange Act, to file with the SEC
reports of ownership on Form 3 and reports of changes in ownership on Forms 4 and 5. Such officers, directors and 10%
stockholders are also required to furnish the company with copies of all Section 16(a) reports they file. Based solely on our
review of the copies of such forms received by us and on written representations from certain reporting persons as of June
30, 2020, we do not believe that all Section 16(a) reports applicable to our officers, directors and 10% stockholders with
respect to the period ended June 30, 2020 have been filed.
 
Item 11. Executive Compensation
 
Summary Compensation Table
 

Name
and

Principal
Position

Fiscal Year
Ended

9/30/19 and
Transition

Period
Ended
6/30/20

Salary
($)

Bonus
($)

Stock
Awards

($)

Option
Awards

($)

Non-Equity
Incentive

Plan
Compensation

($)

Nonqualified
Deferred

Compensation
Earnings

($)

All Other
Compensation

($)
Total

($)

 
Douglas Cole
CEO, CFO,
and Chairman
of the Board

 
 
 

2019 250,000 - 1,237,600 - - - - 1,487,600.00

2020 341,346 60,000 135,700 - - - - 537,046.00

 
Douglas
MacLellan
Director

 
 

2019 57,500 - 886,600 - - - - 944,100.00

2020 47,500 20,000 122,000 - - - - 189,500.00

 
William
Hunter
Director

 
 

2019 65,000 - 903,600 - - - - 968,600.00

2020 47,500 20,000 120,000 - - - - 187,500.00

 
Ryan Melsert
Director, Chief
Technology
Officer

 
 
 

2019 - - - - - - - -

2020 156,250 - 233,720 - - - 24,000.00 413,970.00

 
Outstanding Equity Awards
 
Since incorporation on October 6, 2011 to June 30, 2020, we have not granted any stock options or stock appreciation
rights to our executive officer or directors.
 
Compensation of Directors and Officers
 
As of June 30, 2020, we had no standard arrangement to compensate our directors for their services in the capacity as a
director. On December 29, 2017, the Company entered into consulting agreements with Mr. Douglas Cole, Mr. William
Hunter, and Mr. Douglas MacLellan and entered into an employment agreement with its executive officer, Mr. Douglas
Cole. On September 16, 2019 the Company entered into an employment agreement with its Chief Technology Officer, Mr.
Ryan Melsert. On September 8, 2020, the Company entered into a director agreement with Mr. Ryan Melsert. All travel
and lodging expenses associated with corporate matters are reimbursed by us, if and when incurred.
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
 
The following table sets forth certain information as of September 21, 2020 regarding the beneficial ownership of our
common stock and preferred stock, based on 451,686,173 shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding and 300,000
shares of preferred stock issued and outstanding, by (i) each person or entity who, to our knowledge, owns more than 5%
of our common stock or preferred stock and (ii) each executive officer and director. Unless otherwise indicated in the
footnotes to the following table, each person named in the table has sole voting and investment power and that person’s
address is deemed to be the address of our principal executive offices.
 
Shares of common stock subject to options, warrants, or other rights currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of
September 21, 2020, are deemed to be beneficially owned and outstanding for computing the share ownership and
percentage of the stockholder holding such options, warrants or other rights, but are not deemed outstanding for
computing the percentage of any other stockholder.
 

Name of Beneficial
Owner

 

Number of Shares of
Common Stock

Beneficially Owned

 

Percentage of
Common Stock

Beneficially Owned

 Number of Shares
of Preferred Stock

Beneficially
Owned1

 Percentage of
Preferred Stock

Beneficially
Owned

William Hunter  11,190,000  2.48%  100,000  33%
Douglas Cole  16,190,000  3.58%  100,000  33%

Douglas MacLellan  9,190,000  2.03%  100,000  33%
Ryan Melsert  10,075,000  2.23%  0  0%

 
1 Each share of preferred stock entitles the holder to cast 1,000 votes and such shares vote with the common stock as a
single class.
 
There are no arrangements known to the Company which may at a subsequent date result in a change-in-control.
 
Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions and Director Independence
 
Related Party Transactions
 
As of June 30, 2020, the Company owes $120,146 (September 30, 2019 - $120,146) to the former Chief Executive Officer
and Director of the Company for advances to the Company to fund day-to-day operations.  The amounts owing are
unsecured, non-interest bearing, and due on demand.  
 
As of June 30, 2020, the Company owes $85,500 (September 30, 2019 - $85,500) to the former Chief Executive Officer
and Director of the Company for advances to the Company to fund day-to-day operations and accrued management fees.
 The amounts owing are unsecured, non-interest bearing, and due on demand.  
 
As of June 30, 2020, the Company owes $388,577 (September 30, 2019 - $221,897) to the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company for accrued management fees.  The amounts owing are unsecured, non-interest bearing, and due on demand.
 
As of June 30, 2020, the Company owes $30,726 (September 30, 2019– $30,726) to directors of the Company for
accrued management fees. The amounts owing are unsecured, non-interest bearing, and due on demand.
 
Director Independence
 
Douglas Cole and Ryan Melsert are not independent within the meaning of Section 5605 of NASDAQ.
 
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services
 
The aggregate fees billed for the two most recently completed fiscal years for professional services rendered by the
principal accountant for the audit of our annual financial statements and review of the financial statements that are
normally provided by the accountant in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements for those fiscal
periods were as follows:
 

  Nine months ended
June 30, 2020

 Year Ended
September 30, 2019

Audit Fees $ 43,000 $ 17,000
Audit-Related Fees  -  -
Tax Fees  -  -
All Other Fees  -  -
Total $ 43,000 $ 17,000
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PART IV
 
Item 15.  Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.
 
The following exhibits are either provided with this Annual Report or are incorporated herein by reference:
 

Exhibit Description
Filed

Herein
Incorporated

Date
By

Form
Reference

Exhibit
3.1 Articles of Incorporation, as amended x    
3.2 Bylaws  May 22, 2013 S-1 3.2
3.3 Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights

and Limitations of Series A Preferred Stock
 October 8, 2019 8-K 3.1

3.4 Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights
and Limitations of Series B Preferred Stock

 February 19,
2020

8-K  

10.1 Securities Purchase Agreement by and between
American Battery Metals Corporation and Power
Up Lending Group Ltd. dated April 6, 2020.

x
   

10.2 Convertible Promissory Note of American Battery
Metals Corporation in favor of Power Up Lending
Group Ltd. dated April 6, 2020.

x
   

10.3 Securities Purchase Agreement by and between
American Battery Metals Corporation and Adar
Alef, LLC dated April 7, 2020.

x
   

10.4 Convertible Promissory Note of American Battery
Metals Corporation in favor of Adar Alef, LLC dated
April 7, 2020.

x
   

10.5 Securities Purchase Agreement by and between
American Battery Metals Corporation and Auctus
Fund, LLC dated April 10, 2020.

x
   

10.6 Convertible Promissory Note of American Battery
Metals Corporation in favor of Auctus Fund, LLC
dated April 10, 2020.

x
   

10.7 Securities Purchase Agreement by and between
American Battery Metals Corporation and Power
Up Lending Group Ltd. dated April 21, 2020.

x
   

10.8 Convertible Promissory Note of American Battery
Metals Corporation in favor of Power Up Lending
Group Ltd. dated April 21, 2020.

x
   

10.9 Securities Purchase Agreement by and between
American Battery Metals Corporation and Black Ice
Advisors, LLC dated April 22, 2020.

x
   

10.10 Convertible Promissory Note of American Battery
Metals Corporation in favor of Black Ice Advisors,
LLC dated April 22, 2020.

x
   

10.11 Securities Purchase Agreement by and between
American Battery Metals Corporation and Efrat
Investments, LLC dated April 23, 2020.

x
   

10.12 Convertible Promissory Note of American Battery
Metals Corporation in favor of Efrat Investments,
LLC dated April 23, 2020.

x
   

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002.

x
   

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002.

x
   

101 INS XBRL Instant Document. x    

101
SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
Document

x    

101
CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation
Linkbase Document

x    

101 LAB XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Document x    

101
PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation
Linkbase Document

x    

101
DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition
Linkbase Document

x    
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Item 16. Form 10-K Summary.
 
None.

 
 

SIGNATURES
 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
 

    

 
AMERICAN BATTERY METALS
CORPORATION
(Registrant)

 

    
Date: September 28, 2020 By: /s/ Douglas D Cole  
  Douglas D Cole  

  Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 10.1

 
SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT

 
This SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), dated as of April 6, 2020, by and between

AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION, a Nevada corporation, with its address at 930 Tahoe Blvd. Suite
802-16, Incline Village, NV 89451 (the “Company”), and POWER UP LENDING GROUP LTD. , a Virginia corporation,
with its address at 111 Great Neck Road, Suite 216, Great Neck, NY 11021 (the “Buyer”).
 

WHEREAS:
 

The Company and the Buyer are executing and delivering this Agreement in reliance upon the exemption
from securities registration afforded by the rules and regulations as promulgated by the United States Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”); and 
 

Buyer desires to purchase and the Company desires to issue and sell, upon the terms and conditions set
forth in this Agreement a convertible note of the Company, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, in the aggregate
principal amount of $78,000.00 (together with any note(s) issued in replacement thereof or as a dividend thereon or
otherwise with respect thereto in accordance with the terms thereof, the “Note”), convertible into shares of common stock,
$0.001 par value per share, of the Company (the “Common Stock”), upon the terms and subject to the limitations and
conditions set forth in such Note. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the Company and the Buyer severally (and not jointly) hereby agree as follows:
 

PURCHASE AND SALE OF NOTE.  
 

Purchase of Note. On the Closing Date (as defined below), the Company shall issue
and sell to the Buyer and the Buyer agrees to purchase from the Company such principal amount of Note as is set forth
immediately below the Buyer’s name on the signature pages hereto. 
 

Form of Payment. On the Closing Date (as defined below), (i) the Buyer shall pay the
purchase price for the Note to be issued and sold to it at the Closing (as defined below) (the “Purchase Price”) by wire
transfer of immediately available funds to the Company, in accordance with the Company’s written wiring instructions,
against delivery of the Note in the principal amount equal to the Purchase Price as is set forth immediately below the
Buyer’s name on the signature pages hereto, and 

the Company shall deliver such duly executed Note on behalf of the Company, to the Buyer, against delivery of
such Purchase Price. 
 

Closing Date. Subject to the satisfaction (or written waiver) of the conditions thereto set
forth in Section 6 and Section 7 below, the date and time of the issuance and sale of the Note pursuant to this Agreement
(the “Closing Date”) shall be 12:00 noon, Eastern Standard Time on or about April 7, 2020, or such other mutually agreed
upon time. The closing of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the “Closing”) shall occur on the Closing Date
at such location as may be agreed to by the parties. 
 

BUYER’S REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. The Buyer represents and warrants to
the Company that: 

 
Investment Purpose. As of the date hereof, the Buyer is purchasing the Note and the

shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to the Note (such shares of Common Stock
being collectively referred to herein as the “Conversion Shares” and, collectively with the Note, the “Securities”) for its own
account and not with a present view towards the public sale or distribution thereof, except pursuant to sales registered or
exempted from registration under the 1933 Act. 
 

Accredited Investor Status. The Buyer is an “accredited investor” as that term is defined
in Rule 501(a) of Regulation D (an “Accredited Investor”). 
 

Reliance on Exemptions. The Buyer understands that the Securities are being offered
and sold to it in reliance upon specific exemptions from the registration requirements of United States federal and state
securities laws and that the Company is relying upon the truth and accuracy of, and the Buyer’s compliance with, the
representations, warranties, agreements, acknowledgments and understandings of the Buyer set forth herein in order to
determine the availability of such exemptions and the eligibility of the Buyer to acquire the Securities. 
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Information. The Company has not disclosed to the Buyer any material nonpublic
information and will not disclose such information unless such information is disclosed to the public prior to or promptly
following such disclosure to the Buyer. 
 

Legends. The Buyer understands that the Note and, until such time as the Conversion
Shares have been registered under the 1933 Act; or may be sold pursuant to an applicable exemption from registration,
the Conversion Shares may bear a restrictive legend in substantially the following form: 
 

"THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS INSTRUMENT HAVE NOT BEEN
REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE
"SECURITIES ACT"), OR UNDER ANY STATE SECURITIES LAWS, AND MAY NOT
BE PLEDGED, SOLD, ASSIGNED, HYPOTHECATED OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED UNLESS (1) A REGISTRATION STATEMENT WITH RESPECT
THERETO IS EFFECTIVE UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND ANY APPLICABLE
STATE SECURITIES LAWS OR (2) THE ISSUER OF SUCH SECURITIES
RECEIVES AN OPINION OF COUNSEL TO THE HOLDER OF SUCH SECURITIES,
WHICH COUNSEL AND OPINION ARE REASONABLY ACCEPTABLE TO THE
ISSUER’S TRANSFER AGENT, THAT SUCH SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED,
SOLD, ASSIGNED, HYPOTHECATED OR OTHERWISE

 
TRANSFERRED WITHOUT AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER
THE SECURITIES ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS."

 
The legend set forth above shall be removed and the Company shall issue a certificate without such legend to

the holder of any Security upon which it is stamped, if, unless otherwise required by applicable state securities laws, (a)
such Security is registered for sale under an effective registration statement filed under the 1933 Act or otherwise may
be sold pursuant to an exemption from registration without any restriction as to the number of securities as of a
particular date that can then be immediately sold, or (b) such holder provides the Company with an opinion of counsel,
in form, substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions, to the effect that a public
sale or transfer of such Security may be made without registration under the 1933 Act, which opinion shall be accepted
by the Company so that the sale or transfer is effected. The Buyer agrees to sell all Securities, including those
represented by a certificate(s) from which the legend has been removed, in compliance with applicable prospectus
delivery requirements, if any. In the event that the Company does not accept the opinion of counsel provided by the
Buyer with respect to the transfer of Securities pursuant to an exemption from registration, such as Rule 144, at the
Deadline, it will be considered an Event of Default pursuant to Section 3.2 of the Note; provided such opinion complies
with the Irrevocable Transfer Agent Instructions (as defined herein).

 
Authorization; Enforcement. This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized. This

Agreement has been duly executed and delivered on behalf of the Buyer, and this Agreement constitutes a valid and
binding agreement of the Buyer enforceable in accordance with its terms. 
 

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY . The Company represents and
warrants to the Buyer that: 

 
Organization and Qualification . The Company and each of its Subsidiaries (as defined

below), if any, is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction in
which it is incorporated, with full power and authority (corporate and other) to own, lease, use and operate its properties
and to carry on its business as and where now owned, leased, used, operated and conducted. “Subsidiaries” means any
corporation or other organization, whether incorporated or unincorporated, in which the Company owns, directly or
indirectly, any equity or other ownership interest. 
 

Authorization; Enforcement. (i) The Company has all requisite corporate power and
authority to enter into and perform this Agreement, the Note and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby
and thereby and to issue the Securities, in accordance with the terms hereof and thereof, (ii) the execution and delivery of
this Agreement, the Note by the Company and the consummation by it of the transactions contemplated hereby and
thereby (including without limitation, the issuance of the Note and the issuance and reservation for issuance of the
Conversion Shares issuable upon conversion or exercise thereof) have been duly authorized by the Company’s Board of
Directors and no further consent or authorization of the Company, its Board of Directors, or its shareholders is required,
(iii) this Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the Company by its authorized representative, and such
authorized representative is the true and official representative with authority to sign this Agreement and the other
documents executed in connection herewith and bind the Company accordingly, and (iv) this Agreement constitutes, and
upon execution and delivery by the Company of the Note, each of such instruments will constitute, a legal, valid and
binding obligation of the Company enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms. 
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Capitalization. As of the date hereof, the authorized common stock of the Company
consists of 1,200,000,000 authorized shares of Common Stock, $0.001 par value per share, of which 265,533,805 shares
are issued and outstanding; and 23,039,432 shares are reserved for issuance upon conversion of the Note. All of such
outstanding shares of capital stock are, or upon issuance will be, duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and non-
assessable. . 
 

Issuance of Shares. The Conversion Shares are duly authorized and reserved for
issuance and, upon conversion of the Note in accordance with its terms, will be validly issued, fully paid and non-
assessable, and free from all taxes, liens, claims and encumbrances with respect to the issue thereof and shall not be
subject to preemptive rights or other similar rights of shareholders of the Company and will not impose personal liability
upon the holder thereof. 
 

No Conflicts. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the Note
by the Company and the consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby (including,
without limitation, the issuance and reservation for issuance of the Conversion Shares) will not (i) conflict with or result in
a violation of any provision of the Certificate of Incorporation or By-laws, or (ii) violate or conflict with, or result in a breach
of any provision of, or constitute a default (or an event which with notice or lapse of time or both could become a default)
under, or give to others any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation of, any agreement, indenture,
patent, patent license or instrument to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party, or (iii) result in a violation of
any law, rule, regulation, order, judgment or decree (including federal and state securities laws and regulations and
regulations of any self-regulatory organizations to which the Company or its securities are subject) applicable to the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries or by which any property or asset of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is bound
or affected (except for such conflicts, defaults, terminations, amendments, accelerations, cancellations and violations as
would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect). The businesses of the Company and its
Subsidiaries, if any, are not being conducted, and shall not be conducted so long as the Buyer owns any of the Securities,
in violation of any law, ordinance or regulation of any governmental entity. “Material Adverse Effect” means any material
adverse effect on the business, operations, assets, financial condition or prospects of the Company or its Subsidiaries, if
any, taken as a whole, or on the transactions contemplated hereby or by the agreements or instruments to be entered into
in connection herewith. 
 

SEC Documents; Financial Statements. The Company has filed all reports, schedules,
forms, statements and other documents required to be filed by it with the SEC pursuant to the reporting requirements of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “1934 Act”) (all of the foregoing filed prior to the date hereof and all
exhibits included therein and financial statements and schedules thereto and documents (other than exhibits to such
documents) incorporated by reference therein, being hereinafter referred to herein as the “SEC Documents”). Upon written
request the Company will deliver to the Buyer true and complete copies of the SEC Documents, except for such exhibits
and incorporated documents. As of their respective dates or if amended, as of the dates of the amendments, the SEC
Documents complied in all material respects with the requirements of the 1934 Act and the rules and regulations of the
SEC promulgated thereunder applicable to the SEC Documents, and none of the SEC Documents, at the time they were
filed with the SEC, contained any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to state a material fact required to be
stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were
made, not misleading. None of the statements made in any such SEC Documents is, or has been, required to be
amended or updated under applicable law (except for such statements as have been amended or updated in subsequent
filings prior the date hereof). As of their respective dates or if amended, as of the dates of the amendments, the financial
statements of the Company included in the SEC Documents complied as to form in all material respects with applicable
accounting requirements and the published rules and regulations of the SEC with respect thereto. Such financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles, consistently
applied, during the periods involved and fairly present in all material respects the consolidated financial position of the
Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries as of the dates thereof and the consolidated results of their operations and
cash flows for the periods then ended (subject, in the case of unaudited statements, to normal year-end audit
adjustments). The Company is subject to the reporting requirements of the 1934 Act. 
 

Absence of Certain Changes. Since December 31, 2019, except as set forth in the SEC
Documents, there has been no material adverse change and no material adverse development in the assets, liabilities,
business, properties, operations, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or 1934 Act reporting status of the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries. 
 

Absence of Litigation. Except as set forth in the SEC Documents, there is no action,
suit, claim, proceeding, inquiry or investigation before or by any court, public board, government agency, self-regulatory
organization or body pending or, to the knowledge of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, threatened against or
affecting the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or their officers or directors in their capacity as such, that could have a
Material Adverse Effect. The Company and its Subsidiaries are unaware of any facts or circumstances which might give
rise to any of the foregoing. 
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No Integrated Offering. Neither the Company, nor any of its affiliates, nor any person
acting on its or their behalf, has directly or indirectly made any offers or sales in any security or solicited any offers to buy
any security under circumstances that would require registration under the 1933 Act of the issuance of the Securities to
the Buyer. The issuance of the Securities to the Buyer will not be integrated with any other issuance of the Company’s
securities (past, current or future) for purposes of any shareholder approval provisions applicable to the Company or its
securities. 
 

No Brokers. The Company has taken no action which would give rise to any claim by
any person for brokerage commissions, transaction fees or similar payments relating to this Agreement or the transactions
contemplated hereby. 
 

No Investment Company. The Company is not, and upon the issuance and sale of the
Securities as contemplated by this Agreement will not be an “investment company” required to be registered under the
Investment Company Act of 1940 (an “Investment Company”). The Company is not controlled by an Investment
Company. 
 

Breach of Representations and Warranties by the Company . If the Company breaches
any of the representations or warranties set forth in this Section 3, and in addition to any other remedies available to the
Buyer pursuant to this Agreement, it will be considered an Event of default under Section 3.4 of the Note. 
 

COVENANTS. 
 

Best Efforts. The Company shall use its best efforts to satisfy timely each of the
conditions described in Section 7 of this Agreement. 
 

Form D; Blue Sky Laws. The Company agrees to timely make any filings required by
federal and state laws as a result of the closing of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 
 

Use of Proceeds. The Company shall use the proceeds for general working capital
purposes. 

 
Expenses. At the Closing, the Company’s obligation with respect to the transactions

contemplated by this Agreement is to reimburse Buyer’ expenses shall be $3,000.00 for Buyer’s legal fees and due
diligence fee. 
 

Corporate Existence. So long as the Buyer beneficially owns any Note, the Company
shall maintain its corporate existence and shall not sell all or substantially all of the Company’s assets, except with the
prior written consent of the Buyer. 
 

Breach of Covenants. If the Company breaches any of the covenants set forth in this
Section 4, and in addition to any other remedies available to the Buyer pursuant to this Agreement, it will be considered
an event of default under Section 3.4 of the Note. 
 

Failure to Comply with the 1934 Act . So long as the Buyer beneficially owns the Note,
the Company shall comply with the reporting requirements of the 1934 Act; and the Company shall continue to be subject
to the reporting requirements of the 1934 Act. 
 

Trading Activities. Neither the Buyer nor its affiliates has an open short position in the
common stock of the Company and the Buyer agrees that it shall not, and that it will cause its affiliates not to, engage in
any short sales of or hedging transactions with respect to the common stock of the Company. 
 

Right of First Refusal. Unless it shall have first delivered to the Buyer, at least forty eight
(48) hours prior to the closing of such Future Offering (as defined herein), written notice describing the proposed Future
Offering (“ROFR Notice”), including the terms and conditions thereof, identity of the proposed purchaser and proposed
definitive documentation to be entered into in connection therewith, and providing the Buyer an option during the forty
eight (48) hour period following delivery of such notice to purchase the securities being offered in the Future Offering on
the same terms as contemplated by such Future Offering (the limitations referred to in this sentence and the preceding
sentence are collectively referred to as the “Right of First Refusal”), the Company will not conduct any equity (or debt with
an equity component) financing in an amount less than $150,000 (“Future Offering(s)”) during the period beginning on the
Closing Date and ending nine (9) months following the Closing Date. In the event the terms and conditions of a proposed
Future Offering are amended in any respect after delivery of the notice to the Buyer concerning the proposed Future
Offering, the Company shall deliver a new notice to the Buyer describing the amended terms and conditions of the
proposed Future Offering and the Buyer thereafter shall have an option during the forty eight (48) hour period following
delivery of such new notice to purchase the securities being offered on the same terms as contemplated by such proposed
Future Offering, as amended. 
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TRANSFER AGENT INSTRUCTIONS. The Company shall issue irrevocable instructions to its
transfer agent to issue certificates, registered in the name of the Buyer or its nominee, for the Conversion Shares in such
amounts as specified from time to time by the Buyer to the Company upon conversion of the Note in accordance with the
terms thereof (the “Irrevocable Transfer Agent Instructions”). In the event that the Company proposes to replace its
transfer agent, the Company shall provide, prior to the effective date of such replacement, a fully executed Irrevocable
Transfer Agent Instructions in a form as initially delivered pursuant to this Agreement (including but not limited to the
provision to irrevocably reserve shares of Common Stock in the Reserved Amount as such term is defined in the Note)
signed by the successor transfer agent to Company and the Company. Prior to registration of the Conversion Shares
under the 1933 Act or the date on which the Conversion Shares may be sold pursuant to an exemption from registration,
all such certificates shall bear the restrictive legend specified in Section 2(e) of this Agreement. The Company warrants
that: (i) no instruction other than the Irrevocable Transfer Agent Instructions referred to in this Section 5, will be given by
the Company to its transfer agent and that the Securities shall otherwise be freely transferable on the books and records
of the Company as and to the extent provided in this Agreement and the Note; (ii) it will not direct its transfer agent not to
transfer or delay, impair, and/or hinder its transfer agent in transferring (or issuing)(electronically or in certificated form)
any certificate for Conversion Shares to be issued to the Buyer upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to the Note as
and when required by the Note and this Agreement; and (iii) it will not fail to remove (or directs its transfer agent not to
remove or impairs, delays, and/or hinders its transfer agent from removing) any restrictive legend (or to withdraw any stop
transfer instructions in respect thereof) on any certificate for any Conversion Shares issued to the Buyer upon conversion
of or otherwise pursuant to the Note as and when required by the Note and/or this Agreement. If the Buyer provides the
Company and the Company’s transfer agent, at the cost of the Buyer, with an opinion of counsel in form, substance and
scope customary for opinions in comparable transactions, to the effect that a public sale or transfer of such Securities may
be made without registration under the 1933 Act, the Company shall permit the transfer, and, in the case of the
Conversion Shares, promptly instruct its transfer agent to issue one or more certificates, free from restrictive legend, in
such name and in such denominations as specified by the Buyer. The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its
obligations hereunder will cause irreparable harm to the Buyer, by vitiating the intent and purpose of the transactions
contemplated hereby. Accordingly, the Company acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its obligations under
this Section 5 may be inadequate and agrees, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Company of the
provisions of this Section, that the Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies, to an injunction
restraining any breach and requiring immediate transfer, without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any
bond or other security being required. 
 

CONDITIONS TO THE COMPANY’S OBLIGATION TO SELL. The obligation of the Company
hereunder to issue and sell the Note to the Buyer at the Closing is subject to the satisfaction, at or before the Closing Date
of each of the following conditions thereto, provided that these conditions are for the Company’s sole benefit and may be
waived by the Company at any time in its sole discretion: 
 

The Buyer shall have executed this Agreement and delivered the same to the
Company. 
 

The Buyer shall have delivered the Purchase Price in accordance with Section 1(b)
above. 
 

The representations and warranties of the Buyer shall be true and correct in all material
respects as of the date when made and as of the Closing Date as though made at that time (except for representations
and warranties that speak as of a specific date), and the Buyer shall have performed, satisfied and complied in all material
respects with the covenants, agreements and conditions required by this Agreement to be performed, satisfied or
complied with by the Buyer at or prior to the Closing Date. 
 

No litigation, statute, rule, regulation, executive order, decree, ruling or injunction shall
have been enacted, entered, promulgated or endorsed by or in any court or governmental authority of competent
jurisdiction or any self-regulatory organization having authority over the matters contemplated hereby which prohibits the
consummation of any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 
 

CONDITIONS TO THE BUYER’S OBLIGATION TO PURCHASE . The obligation of the Buyer
hereunder to purchase the Note at the Closing is subject to the satisfaction, at or before the Closing Date of each of the
following conditions, provided that these conditions are for the Buyer’s sole benefit and may be waived by the Buyer at any
time in its sole discretion: 
 

The Company shall have executed this Agreement and delivered the same to the
Buyer. 
 

The Company shall have delivered to the Buyer the duly executed Note (in such
denominations as the Buyer shall request) in accordance with Section 1(b) above. 
 

The Irrevocable Transfer Agent Instructions, in form and substance satisfactory to the
Buyer, shall have been delivered to and acknowledged in writing by the Company’s Transfer Agent. 
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The representations and warranties of the Company shall be true and correct in all
material respects as of the date when made and as of the Closing Date as though made at such time (except for
representations and warranties that speak as of a specific date) and the Company shall have performed, satisfied and
complied in all material respects with the covenants, agreements and conditions required by this Agreement to be
performed, satisfied or complied with by the Company at or prior to the Closing Date. The Buyer shall have received a
certificate or certificates, executed by the chief executive officer of the Company, dated as of the Closing Date, to the
foregoing effect and as to such other matters as may be reasonably requested by the Buyer including, but not limited to
certificates with respect to the Board of Directors’ resolutions relating to the transactions contemplated hereby. 
 

No litigation, statute, rule, regulation, executive order, decree, ruling or injunction shall
have been enacted, entered, promulgated or endorsed by or in any court or governmental authority of competent
jurisdiction or any self-regulatory organization having authority over the matters contemplated hereby which prohibits the
consummation of any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 
 

No event shall have occurred which could reasonably be expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect on the Company including but not limited to a change in the 1934 Act reporting status of the Company or
the failure of the Company to be timely in its 1934 Act reporting obligations. 
 

The Conversion Shares shall have been authorized for quotation on an exchange or
electronic quotation system and trading in the Common Stock on such exchange or electronic quotation system shall not
have been suspended by the SEC or an exchange or electronic quotation system. 
 

The Buyer shall have received an officer’s certificate described in Section 3(d) above,
dated as of the Closing Date. 
 

GOVERNING LAW; MISCELLANEOUS. 
 

Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of the State of Virginia without regard to principles of conflicts of laws. Any action brought by either party
against the other concerning the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be brought only in the state courts of
New York or in the federal courts located in New York and the county of Nassau. The parties to this Agreement hereby
irrevocably waive any objection to jurisdiction and venue of any action instituted hereunder and shall not assert any
defense based on lack of jurisdiction or venue or based upon forum non conveniens . The Company and Buyer waive trial
by jury. The prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party its reasonable attorney's fees and costs. In
the event that any provision of this Agreement or any other agreement delivered in connection herewith is invalid or
unenforceable under any applicable statute or rule of law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent
that it may conflict therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any such provision
which may prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision
of any agreement. Each party hereby irrevocably waives personal service of process and consents to process being
served in any suit, action or proceeding in connection with this Agreement, the Note or any related document or
agreement by mailing a copy thereof via registered or certified mail or overnight delivery (with evidence of delivery) to
such party at the address in effect for notices to it under this Agreement and agrees that such service shall constitute good
and sufficient service of process and notice thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any
right to serve process in any other manner permitted by law. 
 

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original but all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement and shall become effective
when counterparts have been signed by each party and delivered to the other party. 
 

Headings. The headings of this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and
shall not form part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Agreement. 
 

Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or
unenforceable under any applicable statute or rule of law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent
that it may conflict therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any provision
hereof which may prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other
provision hereof. 
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Entire Agreement; Amendments. This Agreement and the instruments referenced
herein contain the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the matters covered herein and therein and, except
as specifically set forth herein or therein, neither the Company nor the Buyer makes any representation, warranty,
covenant or undertaking with respect to such matters. No provision of this Agreement may be waived or amended other
than by an instrument in writing signed by the majority in interest of the Buyer. 
 

Notices. All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals, and other
communications required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and, unless otherwise specified herein, shall be (i)
personally served, (ii) deposited in the mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, (iii)
delivered by reputable air courier service with charges prepaid, or (iv) transmitted by hand delivery, telegram, or facsimile,
addressed as set forth below or to such other address as such party shall have specified most recently by written notice.
Any notice or other communication required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be deemed effective (a) upon hand
delivery or delivery by facsimile, with accurate confirmation generated by the transmitting facsimile machine, at the
address or number designated below (if delivered on a business day during normal business hours where such notice is
to be received), or the first business day following such delivery (if delivered other than on a business day during normal
business hours where such notice is to be received) or (b) on the second business day following the date of mailing by
express courier service, fully prepaid, addressed to such address, or upon actual receipt of such mailing, whichever shall
first occur. The addresses for such communications shall be as set forth in the heading of this Agreement with a copy by
fax only to (which copy shall not constitute notice) to Naidich Wurman LLP, 111 Great Neck Road, Suite 214, Great Neck,
NY 11021, Attn: Allison Naidich, facsimile: 516-466-3555, e-mail: allison@nwlaw.com. Each party shall provide notice to
the other party of any change in address. 
 

Successors and Assigns . This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit
of the parties and their successors and assigns. Neither the Company nor the Buyer shall assign this Agreement or any
rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the other. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Buyer may
assign its rights hereunder to any person that purchases Securities in a private transaction from the Buyer or to any of its
“affiliates,” as that term is defined under the 1934 Act, without the consent of the Company. 
 

Survival. The representations and warranties of the Company and the agreements and
covenants set forth in this Agreement shall survive the closing hereunder notwithstanding any due diligence investigation
conducted by or on behalf of the Buyer. The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Buyer and all of its
officers, directors, employees and agents for loss or damage arising as a result of or related to any breach or alleged
breach by the Company of any of its representations, warranties and covenants set forth in this Agreement or any of its
covenants and obligations under this Agreement, including advancement of expenses as they are incurred. 
 

Further Assurances. Each party shall do and perform, or cause to be done and
performed, all such further acts and things, and shall execute and deliver all such other agreements, certificates,
instruments and documents, as the other party may reasonably request in order to carry out the intent and accomplish the
purposes of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby. 
 

No Strict Construction. The language used in this Agreement will be deemed to be the
language chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rules of strict construction will be applied against
any party. 

 
Remedies. The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder

will cause irreparable harm to the Buyer by vitiating the intent and purpose of the transaction contemplated hereby.
Accordingly, the Company acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its obligations under this Agreement will
be inadequate and agrees, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Company of the provisions of this
Agreement, that the Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies at law or in equity, and in addition to
the penalties assessable herein, to an injunction or injunctions restraining, preventing or curing any breach of this
Agreement and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions hereof, without the necessity of showing economic loss
and without any bond or other security being required. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Buyer and the Company have caused this Agreement to be duly
executed as of the date first above written.

 
 

AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
 

By: /s/ Douglas D Cole
Chief Executive Officer

 
 

POWER UP LENDING GROUP LTD.  

By: /s/ Curt Kramer
Name: Curt Kramer
Title: Chief Executive Officer
 
AGGREGATE SUBSCRIPTION AMOUNT:
Aggregate Principal Amount of Note: $78,000.00
Aggregate Purchase Price: $78,000.00
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Exhibit 10.2
 
NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE
SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE CONVERTIBLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES
MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN
EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL (WHICH COUNSEL SHALL BE SELECTED BY THE HOLDER), IN
A GENERALLY ACCEPTABLE FORM, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT.
NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA
FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.

 
 

 
 
 

CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTE
 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION, a Nevada corporation (hereinafter
called the “Borrower”), hereby promises to pay to the order of POWER UP LENDING GROUP LTD. , a Virginia
corporation, or registered assigns (the “Holder”) the sum of $78,000.00 together with any interest as set forth herein, on
February 15, 2020 (the “Maturity Date”), and to pay interest on the unpaid principal balance hereof at the rate of twelve
percent (12%)(the “Interest Rate”) per annum from the date hereof (the “Issue Date”) until the same becomes due and
payable, whether at maturity or upon acceleration or by prepayment or otherwise. This Note may not be prepaid in whole
or in part except as otherwise explicitly set forth herein. Any amount of principal or interest on this Note which is not paid
when due shall bear interest at the rate of twenty two percent (22%) per annum from the due date thereof until the same is
paid (“Default Interest”). Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 365 day year and the actual number of days elapsed.
Interest shall commence accruing on the Issue Date and shall be payable upon the earlier of prepayment, acceleration,
each conversion and the Maturity Date. All payments due hereunder (to the extent not converted into common stock,
$0.001 par value per share (the “Common Stock”) in accordance with the terms hereof) shall be made in lawful money of
the United States of America. All payments shall be made at such address as the Holder shall hereafter give to the
Borrower by written notice made in accordance with the provisions of this Note. Each capitalized term used herein, and
not otherwise defined, shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in that certain Securities Purchase Agreement dated the
date hereof, pursuant to which this Note was originally issued (the “Purchase Agreement”).
 

This Note is free from all taxes, liens, claims and encumbrances with respect to the issue thereof and shall not
be subject to preemptive rights or other similar rights of shareholders of the Borrower and will not impose personal
liability upon the holder thereof.

 
The following terms shall apply to this Note:

 
ARTICLE I. CONVERSION RIGHTS

 
Conversion Right. The Holder shall have the right from time to time, and at any time during the

period beginning on the date which is one hundred eighty (180) days following the date of this Note and ending on the
later of: (i) the Maturity Date and (ii) the date of payment of the Default Amount (as defined in Article III), each in respect
of the remaining outstanding amount of this Note to convert all or any part of the outstanding and unpaid amount of this
Note into fully paid and non- assessable shares of Common Stock, as such Common Stock exists on the Issue Date, or
any shares of capital stock or other securities of the Borrower into which such Common Stock shall hereafter be changed
or reclassified at the conversion price (the “Conversion Price”) determined as provided herein (a “Conversion”); provided,
however, that in no event shall the Holder be entitled to convert any portion of this Note in excess of that portion of this
Note upon conversion of which the sum of (1) the number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by the Holder
and its affiliates (other than shares of Common Stock which may be deemed beneficially owned through the ownership of
the unconverted portion of the Notes or the unexercised or unconverted portion of any other security of the Borrower
subject to a limitation on conversion or exercise analogous to the limitations contained herein) and (2) the number of
shares of Common Stock issuable upon the conversion of the portion of this Note with respect to which the determination
of this proviso is being made, would result in beneficial ownership by the Holder and its affiliates of more than 4.99% of
the outstanding shares of Common Stock. For purposes of the proviso to the immediately preceding sentence, beneficial
ownership shall be determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(the “Exchange Act”), and Regulations 13D-G thereunder, except as otherwise provided in clause (1) of such proviso.
The beneficial ownership limitations on conversion as set forth in the section may NOT be waived by the Holder . The
number of shares of Common Stock to be issued upon each conversion of this Note shall be determined by dividing the
Conversion Amount (as defined below) by the applicable Conversion Price then in effect on the date specified in the
notice of conversion, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A  

Principal Amount: $78,000.00 Issue Date: April 6, 2020 Purchase Price: $78,000.00
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(the “Notice of Conversion”), delivered to the Borrower by the Holder in accordance with Section 1.4 below; provided that
the Notice of Conversion is submitted by facsimile or e-mail (or by other means resulting in, or reasonably expected to
result in, notice) to the Borrower before 6:00 p.m., New York, New York time on such conversion date (the “Conversion
Date”); however, if the Notice of Conversion is sent after 6:00pm, New York, New York time the Conversion Date shall
be the next business day. The term “Conversion Amount” means, with respect to any conversion of this Note, the sum of
(1) the principal amount of this Note to be converted in such conversion plus (2) at the Holder’s option, accrued and
unpaid interest, if any, on such principal amount at the interest rates provided in this Note to the Conversion Date, plus
(3) at the Holder’s option, Default Interest, if any, on the amounts referred to in the immediately preceding clauses (1)
and/or (2) plus (4) at the Holder’s option, any amounts owed to the Holder pursuant to Sections 1.4 hereof.
 

Conversion Price. The conversion price (the “Conversion Price”) shall equal the Variable
Conversion Price (as defined herein) (subject to equitable adjustments by the Borrower relating to the Borrower’s
securities or the securities of any subsidiary of the Borrower, combinations, recapitalization, reclassifications,
extraordinary distributions and similar events). The "Variable Conversion Price" shall mean 61% multiplied by the Market
Price (as defined herein) (representing a discount rate of 39%). “Market Price” means the lowest Trading Price (as
defined below) for the Common Stock during the ten (10) Trading Day period ending on the latest complete Trading Day
prior to the Conversion Date. “Trading Price” means, for any security as of any date, the closing bid price on the OTCQB,
OTCQX, Pink Sheets electronic quotation system or applicable trading market (the “OTC”) as reported by a reliable
reporting service (“Reporting Service”) designated by the Holder (i.e. Bloomberg) or, if the OTC is not the principal
trading market for such security, the closing bid price of such security on the principal securities exchange or trading
market where such security is listed or traded or, if no closing bid price of such security is available in any of the
foregoing manners, the average of the closing bid prices of any market makers for such security that are listed in the
“pink sheets”. If the Trading Price cannot be calculated for such security on such date in the manner provided above, the
Trading Price shall be the fair market value as reasonably determined by the Borrower. “Trading Day” shall mean any
day on which the Common Stock is tradable for any period on the OTC, or on the principal securities exchange or other
securities market on which the Common Stock is then being traded. 
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Authorized Shares. The Borrower covenants that during the period that this Note is
outstanding, the Borrower will reserve from its authorized and unissued Common Stock a sufficient number of shares,
free from preemptive rights, to provide for the issuance of Common Stock upon the full conversion of this Note issued
pursuant to the Purchase Agreement. The Borrower is required at all times to have authorized and reserved six times the
number of shares that would be issuable upon full conversion of the Note (assuming that the 4.99% limitation set forth in
Section 1.1 is not in effect)(based on the respective Conversion Price of the Note (as defined in Section 1.2) in effect
from time to time, initially 23,039,432)(the “Reserved Amount”). The Reserved Amount shall be increased (or decreased
with the written consent of the Holder) from time to time in accordance with the Borrower’s obligations hereunder. The
Borrower represents that upon issuance, such shares will be duly and validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable. In
addition, if the Borrower shall issue any securities or make any change to its capital structure which would change the
number of shares of Common Stock into which the Notes shall be convertible at the then current Conversion Price, the
Borrower shall at the same time make proper provision so that thereafter there shall be a sufficient number of shares of
Common Stock authorized and reserved, free from preemptive rights, for conversion of the outstanding Note. The
Borrower (i) acknowledges that it has irrevocably instructed its transfer agent to issue certificates for the Common Stock
issuable upon conversion of this Note, and (ii) agrees that its issuance of this Note shall constitute full authority to its
officers and agents who are charged with the duty of executing stock certificates to execute and issue the necessary
certificates for shares of Common Stock in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Note. 
 
If, at any time the Borrower does not maintain the Reserved Amount it will be considered an Event of Default under
Section 3.2 of the Note.

 
Method of Conversion. 

 
Mechanics of Conversion. As set forth in Section 1.1 hereof, from time to time, and at

any time during the period beginning on the date which is one hundred eighty (180) days following the date of this Note
and ending on the later of: (i) the Maturity Date and (ii) the date of payment of the Default Amount, this Note may be
converted by the Holder in whole or in part at any time from time to time after the Issue Date, by (A) submitting to the
Borrower a Notice of Conversion (by facsimile, e-mail or other reasonable means of communication dispatched on the
Conversion Date prior to 6:00 p.m., New York, New York time) and (B) subject to Section 1.4(b), surrendering this Note at
the principal office of the Borrower (upon payment in full of any amounts owed hereunder). 
 

Surrender of Note Upon Conversion. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth
herein, upon conversion of this Note in accordance with the terms hereof, the Holder shall not be required to physically
surrender this Note to the Borrower unless the entire unpaid principal amount of this Note is so converted. The Holder and
the Borrower shall maintain records showing the principal amount so converted and the dates of such conversions or shall
use such other method, reasonably satisfactory to the Holder and the Borrower, so as not to require physical surrender of
this Note upon each such conversion. 
 

Delivery of Common Stock Upon Conversion . Upon receipt by the Borrower from the
Holder of a facsimile transmission or e-mail (or other reasonable means of communication) of a Notice of Conversion
meeting the requirements for conversion as provided in this Section 1.4, the Borrower shall issue and deliver or cause to
be issued and delivered to or upon the order of the Holder certificates for the Common Stock issuable upon such
conversion within two (2) business days after such receipt (the “Deadline”) (and, solely in the case of conversion of the
entire unpaid principal amount hereof, surrender of this Note) in accordance with the terms hereof and the Purchase
Agreement. Upon receipt by the Borrower of a Notice of Conversion, the Holder shall be deemed to be the holder of
record of the Common Stock issuable upon such conversion, the outstanding principal amount and the amount of accrued
and unpaid interest on this Note shall be reduced to reflect such conversion, and, unless the Borrower defaults on its
obligations hereunder, all rights with respect to the portion of this Note being so converted shall forthwith terminate except
the right to receive the Common Stock or other securities, cash or other assets, as herein provided, on such conversion. If
the Holder shall have given a Notice of Conversion as provided herein, the Borrower’s obligation to issue and deliver the
certificates for Common Stock shall be absolute and unconditional, irrespective of the absence of any action by the Holder
to enforce the same, any waiver or consent with respect to any provision thereof, the recovery of any judgment against
any person or any action to enforce the same, any failure or delay in the enforcement of any other obligation of the
Borrower to the holder of record, or any setoff, counterclaim, recoupment, limitation or termination, or any breach or
alleged breach by the Holder of any obligation to the Borrower, and irrespective of any other circumstance which might
otherwise limit such obligation of the Borrower to the Holder in connection with such conversion. 
 

Delivery of Common Stock by Electronic Transfer . In lieu of delivering physical
certificates representing the Common Stock issuable upon conversion, provided the Borrower is participating in the
Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) Fast Automated Securities Transfer (“FAST”) program, upon request of the Holder
and its compliance with the provisions set forth herein, the Borrower shall use its best efforts to cause its transfer agent to
electronically transmit the Common Stock issuable upon conversion to the Holder by crediting the account of Holder’s
Prime Broker with DTC through its Deposit and Withdrawal at Custodian (“DWAC”) system. 
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Failure to Deliver Common Stock Prior to Deadline . Without in any way limiting the
Holder’s right to pursue other remedies, including actual damages and/or equitable relief, the parties agree that if delivery
of the Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note is not delivered by the Deadline due to action and/or inaction
of the Borrower, the Borrower shall pay to the Holder $2,000 per day in cash, for each day beyond the Deadline that the
Borrower fails to deliver such Common Stock (the “Fail to Deliver Fee”); provided; however that the Fail to Deliver Fee
shall not be due if the failure is a result of a third party (i.e., transfer agent; and not the result of any failure to pay such
transfer agent) despite the best efforts of the Borrower to effect delivery of such Common Stock. Such cash amount shall
be paid to Holder by the fifth day of the month following the month in which it has accrued or, at the option of the Holder
(by written notice to the Borrower by the first day of the month following the month in which it has accrued), shall be
added to the principal amount of this Note, in which event interest shall accrue thereon in accordance with the terms of
this Note and such additional principal amount shall be convertible into Common Stock in accordance with the terms of
this Note. The Borrower agrees that the right to convert is a valuable right to the Holder. The damages resulting from a
failure, attempt to frustrate, interference with such conversion right are difficult if not impossible to qualify. Accordingly, the
parties acknowledge that the liquidated damages provision contained in this Section 1.4(e) are justified. 
 

Concerning the Shares. The shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note
may not be sold or transferred unless: (i) such shares are sold pursuant to an effective registration statement under the
Act or (ii) the Borrower or its transfer agent shall have been furnished with an opinion of counsel (which opinion shall be
in form, substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions) to the effect that the shares
to be sold or transferred may be sold or transferred pursuant to an exemption from such registration (such as Rule 144 or
a successor rule) (“Rule 144”); or (iii) such shares are transferred to an “affiliate” (as defined in Rule 144) of the Borrower
who agrees to sell or otherwise transfer the shares only in accordance with this Section 1.5 and who is an Accredited
Investor (as defined in the Purchase Agreement). 
 
Any restrictive legend on certificates representing shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note shall
be removed and the Borrower shall issue to the Holder a new certificate therefore free of any transfer legend if the
Borrower or its transfer agent shall have received an opinion of counsel from Holder’s counsel, in form, substance and
scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions, to the effect that (i) a public sale or transfer of
such Common Stock may be made without registration under the Act, which opinion shall be accepted by the Company
so that the sale or transfer is effected; or (ii) in the case of the Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note,
such security is registered for sale by the Holder under an effective registration statement filed under the Act; or
otherwise may be sold pursuant to an exemption from registration. In the event that the Company does not reasonably
accept the opinion of counsel provided by the Holder with respect to the transfer of Securities pursuant to an exemption
from registration (such as Rule 144), at the Deadline, it will be considered an Event of Default pursuant to Section 3.2 of
the Note.

 
Effect of Certain Events . 

 
Effect of Merger, Consolidation, Etc. At the option of the Holder, the sale, conveyance

or disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Borrower, the effectuation by the Borrower of a transaction or
series of related transactions in which more than 50% of the voting power of the Borrower is disposed of, or the
consolidation, merger or other business combination of the Borrower with or into any other Person (as defined below) or
Persons when the Borrower is not the survivor shall be deemed to be an Event of Default (as defined in Article III)
pursuant to which the Borrower shall be required to pay to the Holder upon the consummation of and as a condition to
such transaction an amount equal to the Default Amount (as defined in Article III). “Person” shall mean any individual,
corporation, limited liability company, partnership, association, trust or other entity or organization. 
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Adjustment Due to Merger, Consolidation, Etc. If, at any time when this Note is issued

and outstanding and prior to conversion of all of the Note, there shall be any merger, consolidation, exchange of shares,
recapitalization, reorganization, or other similar event, as a result of which shares of Common Stock of the Borrower shall
be changed into the same or a different number of shares of another class or classes of stock or securities of the
Borrower or another entity, or in case of any sale or conveyance of all or substantially all of the assets of the Borrower
other than in connection with a plan of complete liquidation of the Borrower, then the Holder of this Note shall thereafter
have the right to receive upon conversion of this Note, upon the basis and upon the terms and conditions specified herein
and in lieu of the shares of Common Stock immediately theretofore issuable upon conversion, such stock, securities or
assets which the Holder would have been entitled to receive in such transaction had this Note been converted in full
immediately prior to such transaction (without regard to any limitations on conversion set forth herein), and in any such
case appropriate provisions shall be made with respect to the rights and interests of the Holder of this Note to the end that
the provisions hereof (including, without limitation, provisions for adjustment of the Conversion Price and of the number of
shares issuable upon conversion of the Note) shall thereafter be applicable, as nearly as may be practicable in relation to
any securities or assets thereafter deliverable upon the conversion hereof. The Borrower shall not affect any transaction
described in this Section 1.6(b) unless (a) it first gives, to the extent practicable, ten (10) days prior written notice (but in
any event at least five (5) days prior written notice) of the record date of the special meeting of shareholders to approve, or
if there is no such record date, the consummation of, such merger, consolidation, exchange of shares, recapitalization,
reorganization or other similar event or sale of assets (during which time the Holder shall be entitled to convert this Note)
and (b) the resulting successor or acquiring entity (if not the Borrower) assumes by written instrument the obligations of
this Note. The above provisions shall similarly apply to successive consolidations, mergers, sales, transfers or share
exchanges. 
 

Adjustment Due to Distribution. If the Borrower shall declare or make any distribution of
its assets (or rights to acquire its assets) to holders of Common Stock as a dividend, stock repurchase, by way of return of
capital or otherwise (including any dividend or distribution to the Borrower’s shareholders in cash or shares (or rights to
acquire shares) of capital stock of a subsidiary (i.e., a spin-off)) (a “Distribution”), then the Holder of this Note shall be
entitled, upon any conversion of this Note after the date of record for determining shareholders entitled to such
Distribution, to receive the amount of such assets which would have been payable to the Holder with respect to the
shares of Common Stock issuable upon such conversion had such Holder been the holder of such shares of Common
Stock on the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to such Distribution. 
 

Prepayment. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Note, at any time
during the periods set forth on the table immediately following this paragraph (the “Prepayment Periods”), the Borrower
shall have the right, exercisable on not more than three (3) Trading Days prior written notice to the Holder of the Note to
prepay the outstanding Note (principal and accrued interest), in full, in accordance with this Section 1.7. Any notice of
prepayment hereunder (an “Optional Prepayment Notice”) shall be delivered to the Holder of the Note at its registered
addresses and shall state: (1) that the Borrower is exercising its right to prepay the Note, and (2) the date of prepayment
which shall be not more than three (3) Trading Days from the date of the Optional Prepayment Notice. On the date fixed
for prepayment (the “Optional Prepayment Date”), the Borrower shall make payment of the Optional Prepayment Amount
(as defined below) to Holder, or upon the direction of the Holder as specified by the Holder in a writing to the Borrower
(which direction shall to be sent to Borrower by the Holder at least one (1) business day prior to the Optional Prepayment
Date). If the Borrower exercises its right to prepay the Note, the Borrower shall make payment to the Holder of an amount
in cash equal to the percentage (“Prepayment Percentage”) as set forth in the table immediately following this paragraph
opposite the applicable Prepayment Period, multiplied by the sum of: (w) the then outstanding principal amount of this
Note plus (x) accrued and unpaid interest on the unpaid principal amount of this Note to the Optional Prepayment Date
plus (y) Default Interest, if any, on the amounts referred to in clauses (w) and (x) plus (z) any amounts owed to the
Holder pursuant to Section 1.4 hereof (the “Optional Prepayment Amount”). If the Borrower delivers an Optional
Prepayment Notice and fails to pay the Optional Prepayment Amount due to the Holder of the Note within two (2)
business days following the Optional Prepayment Date, the Borrower shall forever forfeit its right to prepay the Note
pursuant to this Section 1.7. 
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Prepayment Period Prepayment
Percentage

The period beginning on the Issue Date and ending
on the date which is thirty (30) days following the Issue Date. 

115%

The period beginning on the date which is thirty-one
(31) days following the Issue Date and ending on the date which is
sixty (60) days following the Issue Date. 

120%

The period beginning on the date which is sixty-one
(61) days following the Issue Date and ending on the date which is
ninety (90) days following the Issue Date. 

125%

The period beginning on the date that is ninety-one
(91) day from the Issue Date and ending one hundred twenty (120)
days following the Issue Date. 

130%

The period beginning on the date that is one hundred
twenty-one (121) day from the Issue Date and ending one hundred
fifty (150) days following the Issue Date. 

135%

The period beginning on the date that is one hundred
fifty-one (151) day from the Issue Date and ending one hundred
eighty (180) days following the Issue Date. 

140%

 
After the expiration of one hundred eighty (180) days following the Issue Date, the Borrower shall have no right of
prepayment.

 
ARTICLE II. CERTAIN COVENANTS

 
Sale of Assets. So long as the Borrower shall have any obligation under this Note, the Borrower

shall not, without the Holder’s written consent, sell, lease or otherwise dispose of any significant portion of its assets
outside the ordinary course of business. Any consent to the disposition of any assets may be conditioned on a specified
use of the proceeds of disposition. 
 

ARTICLE III. EVENTS OF DEFAULT
 
If any of the following events of default (each, an “Event of Default”) shall occur:

 
Failure to Pay Principal and Interest. The Borrower fails to pay the principal hereof or interest

thereon when due on this Note, whether at maturity or upon acceleration and such breach continues for a period of five
(5) days after written notice from the Holder. 
 

Conversion and the Shares . The Borrower fails to issue shares of Common Stock to the Holder
(or announces or threatens in writing that it will not honor its obligation to do so) upon exercise by the Holder of the
conversion rights of the Holder in accordance with the terms of this Note, fails to transfer or cause its transfer agent to
transfer (issue) (electronically or in certificated form) any certificate for shares of Common Stock issued to the Holder
upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to this Note as and when required by this Note, the Borrower directs its transfer
agent not to transfer or delays, impairs, and/or hinders its transfer agent in transferring (or issuing) (electronically or in
certificated form) any certificate for shares of Common Stock to be issued to the Holder upon conversion of or otherwise
pursuant to this Note as and when required by this Note, or fails to remove (or directs its transfer agent not to remove or
impairs, delays, and/or hinders its transfer agent from removing) any restrictive legend (or to withdraw any stop transfer
instructions in respect thereof) on any certificate for any shares of Common Stock issued to the Holder upon conversion
of or otherwise pursuant to this Note as and when required by this Note (or makes any written announcement, statement
or threat that it does not intend to honor the obligations described in this paragraph) and any such failure shall continue
uncured (or any written announcement, statement or threat not to honor its obligations shall not be rescinded in writing)
for two (2) business days after the Holder shall have delivered a Notice of Conversion. It is an obligation of the Borrower
to remain current in its obligations to its transfer agent. It shall be an event of default of this Note, if a conversion of this
Note is delayed, hindered or frustrated due to a balance owed by the Borrower to its transfer agent. If at the option of the
Holder, the Holder advances any funds to the Borrower’s transfer agent in order to process a conversion, such advanced
funds shall be paid by the Borrower to the Holder within forty-eight (48) hours of a demand from the Holder. 
 

Breach of Covenants. The Borrower breaches any material covenant or other material term or
condition contained in this Note and any collateral documents including but not limited to the Purchase Agreement and
such breach continues for a period of twenty (20) days after written notice thereof to the Borrower from the Holder. 
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Breach of Representations and Warranties . Any representation or warranty of the Borrower
made herein or in any agreement, statement or certificate given in writing pursuant hereto or in connection herewith
(including, without limitation, the Purchase Agreement), shall be false or misleading in any material respect when made
and the breach of which has (or with the passage of time will have) a material adverse effect on the rights of the Holder
with respect to this Note or the Purchase Agreement. 
 

Receiver or Trustee. The Borrower or any subsidiary of the Borrower shall make an
assignment for the benefit of creditors, or apply for or consent to the appointment of a receiver or trustee for it or for a
substantial part of its property or business, or such a receiver or trustee shall otherwise be appointed. 
 

Bankruptcy. Bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or liquidation proceedings or other
proceedings, voluntary or involuntary, for relief under any bankruptcy law or any law for the relief of debtors shall be
instituted by or against the Borrower or any subsidiary of the Borrower. 
 

Delisting of Common Stock. The Borrower shall fail to maintain the listing of the Common Stock
on at least one of the OTC (which specifically includes the quotation platforms maintained by the OTC Markets Group) or
an equivalent replacement exchange, the Nasdaq National Market, the Nasdaq SmallCap Market, the New York Stock
Exchange, or the American Stock Exchange. 
 

Failure to Comply with the Exchange Act . The Borrower shall fail to comply with the reporting
requirements of the Exchange Act; and/or the Borrower shall cease to be subject to the reporting requirements of the
Exchange Act. 
 

Liquidation. Any dissolution, liquidation, or winding up of Borrower or any substantial portion of
its business. 
 

Cessation of Operations. Any cessation of operations by Borrower or Borrower admits it is
otherwise generally unable to pay its debts as such debts become due, provided, however, that any disclosure of the
Borrower’s ability to continue as a “going concern” shall not be an admission that the Borrower cannot pay its debts as
they become due. 
 

The restatement of any financial statements filed by the
Borrower with the SEC at any time after 180 days after the Issuance Date for any date or period until this Note is no
longer outstanding, if the result of such restatement would, by comparison to the un-restated financial statement, have
constituted a material adverse effect on the rights of the Holder with respect to this Note or the Purchase Agreement. 

 
Replacement of Transfer Agent. In the event that the Borrower proposes to replace its transfer

agent, the Borrower fails to provide, prior to the effective date of such replacement, a fully executed Irrevocable Transfer
Agent Instructions in a form as initially delivered pursuant to the Purchase Agreement (including but not limited to the
provision to irrevocably reserve shares of Common Stock in the Reserved Amount) signed by the successor transfer
agent to Borrower and the Borrower. 
 

Cross-Default. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Note or the other
related or companion documents, a breach or default by the Borrower of any covenant or other term or condition
contained in any of the Other Agreements, after the passage of all applicable notice and cure or grace periods, shall, at
the option of the Holder, be considered a default under this Note and the Other Agreements, in which event the Holder
shall be entitled (but in no event required) to apply all rights and remedies of the Holder under the terms of this Note and
the Other Agreements by reason of a default under said Other Agreement or hereunder. “Other Agreements” means,
collectively, all agreements and instruments between, among or by: (1) the Borrower, and, or for the benefit of, (2) the
Holder and any affiliate of the Holder, including, without limitation, promissory notes; provided, however, the term “Other
Agreements” shall not include the related or companion documents to this Note. Each of the loan transactions will be
cross-defaulted with each other loan transaction and with all other existing and future debt of Borrower to the Holder. 
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Upon the occurrence and during the continuation of any Event of Default specified in Section 3.1 (solely with respect to
failure to pay the principal hereof or interest thereon when due at the Maturity Date), the Note shall become immediately
due and payable and the Borrower shall pay to the Holder, in full satisfaction of its obligations hereunder, an amount equal
to the Default Amount (as defined herein). UPON THE OCCURRENCE AND DURING THE CONTINUATION OF ANY
EVENT OF DEFAULT SPECIFIED IN SECTION 3.2, THE NOTE SHALL BECOME IMMEDIATELY DUE AND PAYABLE
AND THE BORROWER SHALL PAY TO THE HOLDER, IN FULL SATISFACTION OF ITS OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER,
AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO: (Y) THE DEFAULT AMOUNT (AS DEFINED HEREIN); MULTIPLIED BY (Z) TWO (2). Upon
the occurrence and during the continuation of any Event of Default specified in Sections 3.1 (solely with respect to failure
to pay the principal hereof or interest thereon when due on this Note or upon acceleration), 3.3, 3.4, 3.7, 3.8, 3.10, 3.11,
3.12, 3.13, and/or 3.14 exercisable through the delivery of written notice to the Borrower by such Holders (the “Default
Notice”), and upon the occurrence of an Event of Default specified the remaining sections of Articles III (other than failure
to pay the principal hereof or interest thereon at the Maturity Date specified in Section 3,1 hereof), the Note shall become
immediately due and payable and the Borrower shall pay to the Holder, in full satisfaction of its obligations hereunder, an
amount equal to the greater of (i) 150% times the sum of (w) the then outstanding principal amount of this Note plus (x)
accrued and unpaid interest on the unpaid principal amount of this Note to the date of payment (the “Mandatory
Prepayment Date”) plus (y) Default Interest, if any, on the amounts referred to in clauses (w) and/or (x) plus (z) any
amounts owed to the Holder pursuant to Section 1.4(e) hereof (the then outstanding principal amount of this Note to the
date of payment plus the amounts referred to in clauses (x), (y) and (z) shall collectively be known as the “Default
Amount”) and all other amounts payable hereunder shall immediately become due and payable, all without demand,
presentment or notice, all of which hereby are expressly waived, together with all costs, including, without limitation, legal
fees and expenses, of collection, and the Holder shall be entitled to exercise all other rights and remedies available at law
or in equity.
 

If the Borrower fails to pay the Default Amount within five (5) business days of written notice that such amount is due
and payable, then the Holder shall have the right at any time, so long as the Borrower remains in default (and so long
and to the extent that there are sufficient authorized shares), to require the Borrower, upon written notice, to
immediately issue, in lieu of the Default Amount, the number of shares of Common Stock of the Borrower equal to the
Default Amount divided by the Conversion Price then in effect.

 
ARTICLE IV. MISCELLANEOUS

 
Failure or Indulgence Not Waiver . No failure or delay on the part of the Holder in the exercise

of any power, right or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any
such power, right or privilege preclude other or further exercise thereof or of any other right, power or privileges. All
rights and remedies existing hereunder are cumulative to, and not exclusive of, any rights or remedies otherwise
available. 
 

Notices. All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals, and other communications
required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and, unless otherwise specified herein, shall be (i) personally served,
(ii) deposited in the mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, (iii) delivered by reputable air
courier service with charges prepaid, or (iv) transmitted by hand delivery, telegram, or facsimile, addressed as set forth
below or to such other address as such party shall have specified most recently by written notice. Any notice or other
communication required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be deemed effective (a) upon hand delivery or delivery
by facsimile, with accurate confirmation generated by the transmitting facsimile machine, at the address or number
designated below (if delivered on a business day during normal business hours where such notice is to be received), or
the first business day following such delivery (if delivered other than on a business day during normal business hours
where such notice is to be received) or (b) on the second business day following the date of mailing by express courier
service, fully prepaid, addressed to such address, or upon actual receipt of such mailing, whichever shall first occur. The
addresses for such communications shall be: 
 

If to the Borrower, to:
 

AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
930 Tahoe Blvd. Suite 802-16 Incline Village, NV 89451
Attn: Douglas D Cole, Chief Executive Officer
Fax:
Email: dougcole@mac.com
 
If to the Holder:
 
POWER UP LENDING GROUP LTD.
111 Great Neck Road, Suite 214 Great Neck, NY 11021
Attn: Curt Kramer, Chief Executive Officer
e-mail: info@poweruplending.com
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With a copy by fax only to (which copy shall not constitute notice):
 

Naidich Wurman LLP
111 Great Neck Road, Suite 216 Great Neck, NY 11021
Attn: Allison Naidich
facsimile: 516-466-3555
e-mail: allison@nwlaw.com

 
Amendments. This Note and any provision hereof may only be amended by an instrument in

writing signed by the Borrower and the Holder. The term “Note” and all reference thereto, as used throughout this
instrument, shall mean this instrument (and the other Notes issued pursuant to the Purchase Agreement) as originally
executed, or if later amended or supplemented, then as so amended or supplemented. 
 

Most Favored Nation . During the period where any monies are owed to the Holder pursuant to
this Note, if the Borrower engages in any future financing transactions with a third party investor, the Borrower will
provide the Holder with written notice (the “MFN Notice”) thereof promptly but in no event less than 10 days prior to
closing any financing transactions. Included with the MFN Notice shall be a copy of all documentation relating to such
financing transaction and shall include, upon written request of the Holder, any additional information related to such
subsequent investment as may be reasonably requested by the Holder. In the event the Holder determines that the
terms of the subsequent investment are preferable to the terms of the securities of the Borrower issued to the Holder
pursuant to the terms of the Purchase Agreement, the Holder will notify the Borrower in writing. Promptly after receipt of
such written notice from the Holder, the Borrower agrees to amend and restate the Securities (which may include the
conversion terms of this Note), to be identical to the instruments evidencing the subsequent investment. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, this Section 4.4 shall not apply in respect of (i) an Exempt Issuance, or (ii) an underwritten public offering
of Common Stock. “Exempt Issuance” means the issuance of: (a) shares of Common Stock or options to employees,
officers, consultants, advisors or directors of the Borrower pursuant to any stock or option plan duly adopted for such
purpose by a majority of the members of the Board of Directors or a majority of the members of a committee of directors
established for such purpose, (b) securities upon the exercise or exchange of or conversion of this Note and/or other
securities exercisable or exchangeable for or convertible into shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding on the
date hereof, and (c) securities issued pursuant to acquisitions or strategic transactions approved by a majority of the
disinterested directors of the Borrower, provided that any such issuance shall only be to a Person which is, itself or
through its subsidiaries, an operating company in a business synergistic with the business of the Borrower and in which
the Borrower receives benefits in addition to the investment of funds, but shall not include a transaction in which the
Borrower is issuing securities primarily for the purpose of raising capital or to an entity whose primary business is
investing in securities. 
 

Assignability. This Note shall be binding upon the Borrower and its successors and assigns,
and shall inure to be the benefit of the Holder and its successors and assigns. Each transferee of this Note must be an
“accredited investor” (as defined in Rule 501(a) of the Securities and Exchange Commission). Notwithstanding anything
in this Note to the contrary, this Note may be pledged as collateral in connection with a bona fide margin account or
other lending arrangement; and may be assigned by the Holder without the consent of the Borrower. 
 

Cost of Collection. If default is made in the payment of this Note, the Borrower shall pay the
Holder hereof costs of collection, including reasonable attorneys’ fees. 
 

Governing Law. This Note shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of
the State of Virginia without regard to principles of conflicts of laws. Any action brought by either party against the other
concerning the transactions contemplated by this Note shall be brought only in the state courts of New York or in the
federal courts located in the Eastern District of New York. The parties to this Note hereby irrevocably waive any objection
to jurisdiction and venue of any action instituted hereunder and shall not assert any defense based on lack of jurisdiction
or venue or based upon forum non conveniens . The Borrower and Holder waive trial by jury. The prevailing party shall be
entitled to recover from the other party its reasonable attorney's fees and costs. In the event that any provision of this
Note or any other agreement delivered in connection herewith is invalid or unenforceable under any applicable statute or
rule of law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent that it may conflict therewith and shall be
deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any such provision which may prove invalid or
unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of any agreement. Each
party hereby irrevocably waives personal service of process and consents to process being served in any suit, action or
proceeding in connection with this Note, any agreement or any other document delivered in connection with this Note by
mailing a copy thereof via registered or certified mail or overnight delivery (with evidence of delivery) to such party at the
address in effect for notices to it under this Note and agrees that such service shall constitute good and sufficient service
of process and notice thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in
any other manner permitted by law. 
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Purchase Agreement. By its acceptance of this Note, each party agrees to be bound by the
applicable terms of the Purchase Agreement. 
 

Remedies. The Borrower acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder will
cause irreparable harm to the Holder, by vitiating the intent and purpose of the transaction contemplated hereby.
Accordingly, the Borrower acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its obligations under this Note will be
inadequate and agrees, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Borrower of the provisions of this Note, that
the Holder shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies at law or in equity, and in addition to the penalties
assessable herein, to an injunction or injunctions restraining, preventing or curing any breach of this Note and to enforce
specifically the terms and provisions thereof, without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond or
other security being required. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower has caused this Note to be signed in its name by its duly authorized officer
this on April 6, 2020

 
AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION

 
 

By: /s/ Douglas D Cole
Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT A -- NOTICE OF CONVERSION
Tomorrow

 
The undersigned hereby elects to convert $______________principal amount of the Note (defined below) into

that number of shares of Common Stock to be issued pursuant to the conversion of the Note (“Common Stock”) as set
forth below, of AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION, a Nevada corporation (the “Borrower”) according to
the conditions of the convertible note of the Borrower dated as of April 6, 2020 (the “Note”), as of the date written below.
No fee will be charged to the Holder for any conversion, except for transfer taxes, if any.

 
Box Checked as to applicable instructions:

 
The Borrower shall electronically transmit the Common Stock issuable pursuant to this Notice of
Conversion to the account of the undersigned or its nominee with DTC through its Deposit Withdrawal
Agent Commission system (“DWAC Transfer”). 

 
Name of DTC Prime Broker:
Account Number:

 
[   ] The undersigned hereby requests that the Borrower issue a certificate or certificates for the number of

shares of Common Stock set forth below (which numbers are based on the Holder’s calculation
attached hereto) in the name(s) specified immediately below or, if additional space is necessary, on an
attachment hereto:

 
POWER UP LENDING GROUP LTD.
111 Great Neck Road, Suite 214 Great Neck,
NY 11021 Attention: Certificate Delivery
e-mail: info@poweruplendinggroup.com

 

Date of conversion   

Applicable Conversion Price: $  
Number of shares of common stock to be

issued pursuant to conversion of the Notes:   
Amount of Principal Balance due remaining

under the Note after this conversion:   
 

 
POWER UP LENDING GROUP LTD.

 
By: /s/ Curt Kramer
Name: Curt Kramer
Title: Chief Executive Officer
Date: ____________________
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Exhibit 10.3

SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT
_____
 

This SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), dated as of April 7, 2020, by and between
American Battery Metals Corporation., a Nevada corporation, with headquarters located at 930 Tahoe Blvd., Suite
802-16, Incline Village, NV 89451 (the “Company”) and ADAR ALEF, LLC, with its address at 38 Olympia Ln, Monsey,
NY 10952 (the “Buyer”).

 
WHEREAS:

 
The Company and the Buyer are executing and delivering this Agreement in reliance upon the

exemption from securities registration afforded by the rules and regulations as promulgated by the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”); 
 

Buyer desires to purchase and the Company desires to issue and sell, upon the terms and conditions
set forth in this Agreement a 10% convertible note of the Company, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A in the
aggregate principal amount of $110,000.00 (together with any note(s) issued in replacement thereof or as a dividend
thereon or otherwise with respect thereto in accordance with the terms thereof, the “Note”), convertible into shares of
common stock, of the Company (the “Common Stock”), upon the terms and subject to the limitations and conditions set
forth in such Note. The Note shall contain an original issue discount of $10,000.00 such that the purchase price of the
Note shall be $100,000.00. 
 

The Buyer wishes to purchase, upon the terms and conditions stated in this Agreement, such principal
amount of Note as is set forth immediately below its name on the signature pages hereto; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the Company and the Buyer severally (and not jointly) hereby agree as follows:
 

PURCHASE AND SALE OF NOTE.  
 

Purchase of Note. On the Closing Date (as defined below), the Company shall issue and
sell to the Buyer and the Buyer agrees to purchase from the Company such principal amount of Note as is set forth
immediately below the Buyer’s name on the signature pages hereto. 

 
Form of Payment. On the Closing Date (as defined below), (i) the Buyer shall pay the

purchase price for the Note to be issued and sold to it at the Closing (as defined below) (the “Purchase Price”) by wire
transfer of immediately available funds to the Company, in accordance with the Company’s written wiring instructions,
against delivery of the Note in the principal amount equal to the Purchase Price as is set forth immediately below the
Buyer’s name on the signature pages hereto, and (ii) the Company shall deliver such duly executed Note on behalf of the
Company, to the Buyer, against delivery of such Purchase Price. 
 

Closing Date. The date and time of the first issuance and sale of the Note pursuant to this
Agreement (the “Closing Date”) shall be on or about April 7, 2020, or such other mutually agreed upon time. The closing
of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the “Closing”) shall occur on the Closing Date at such location as
may be agreed to by the parties. 
 

BUYER’S REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. 
 
The Buyer represents and warrants to the Company that:

 
Investment Purpose. As of the date hereof, the Buyer is purchasing the Note and the shares

of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to the Note, such shares of Common Stock being
collectively referred to herein as the “Conversion Shares” and, collectively with the Note, the “Securities”) for its own
account and not with a present view towards the public sale or distribution thereof, except pursuant to sales registered or
exempted from registration under the 1933 Act; provided, however, that by making the representations herein, the Buyer
does not agree to hold any of the Securities for any minimum or other specific term and reserves the right to dispose of
the Securities at any time in accordance with or pursuant to a registration statement or an exemption under the 1933 Act. 
 

Accredited Investor Status. The Buyer is an “accredited investor” as that term is defined in
Rule 501(a) of Regulation D (an “Accredited Investor”). 
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Reliance on Exemptions. The Buyer understands that the Securities are being offered and
sold to it in reliance upon specific exemptions from the registration requirements of United States federal and state
securities laws and that the Company is relying upon the truth and accuracy of, and the Buyer’s compliance with, the
representations, warranties, agreements, acknowledgments and understandings of the Buyer set forth herein in order to
determine the availability of such exemptions and the eligibility of the Buyer to acquire the Securities. 
 

Information. The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been, and for so long as the Note
remain outstanding will continue to be, furnished with all materials relating to the business, finances and operations of the
Company and materials relating to the offer and sale of the Securities which have been requested by the Buyer or its
advisors. The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been, and for so long as the Note remain outstanding will continue to be,
afforded the opportunity to ask questions of the Company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company has not disclosed
to the Buyer any material nonpublic information and will not disclose such information unless such information is disclosed
to the public prior to or promptly following such disclosure to the Buyer. Neither such inquiries nor any other due diligence
investigation conducted by Buyer or any of its advisors or representatives shall modify, amend or affect Buyer’s right to
rely on the Company’s representations and warranties contained in Section 3 below. The Buyer understands that its
investment in the Securities involves a significant degree of risk. The Buyer is not aware of any facts that may constitute a
breach of any of the Company's representations and warranties made herein. 
 

Governmental Review. The Buyer understands that no United States federal or state
agency or any other government or governmental agency has passed upon or made any recommendation or
endorsement of the Securities. 
 

Transfer or Re-sale. The Buyer understands that (i) the sale or re-sale of the Securities has
not been and is not being registered under the 1933 Act or any applicable state securities laws, and the Securities may
not be transferred unless (a) the Securities are sold pursuant to an effective registration statement under the 1933 Act, (b)
the Buyer shall have delivered to the Company, at the cost of the Buyer, an opinion of counsel that shall be in form,
substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions to the effect that the Securities to be
sold or transferred may be sold or transferred pursuant to an exemption from such registration, which opinion shall be
accepted by the Company, (c) the Securities are sold or transferred to an “affiliate” (as defined in Rule 144 promulgated
under the 1933 Act (or a successor rule) (“Rule 144”) of the Buyer who agrees to sell or otherwise transfer the Securities
only in accordance with this Section 2(f) and who is an Accredited Investor, (d) the Securities are sold pursuant to Rule
144, or (e) the Securities are sold pursuant to Regulation S under the 1933 Act (or a successor rule) (“Regulation S”), and
the Buyer shall have delivered to the Company, at the cost of the Buyer, an opinion of counsel that shall be in form,
substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in corporate transactions, which opinion shall be accepted by the
Company; (ii) any sale of such Securities made in reliance on Rule 144 may be made only in accordance with the terms
of said Rule and further, if said Rule is not applicable, any re-sale of such Securities under circumstances in which the
seller (or the person through whom the sale is made) may be deemed to be an underwriter (as that term is defined in the
1933 Act) may require compliance with some other exemption under the 1933 Act or the rules and regulations of the SEC
thereunder; and (iii) neither the Company nor any other person is under any obligation to register such Securities under
the 1933 Act or any state securities laws or to comply with the terms and conditions of any exemption thereunder (in each
case). Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything else contained herein to the contrary, the Securities may be pledged as
collateral in connection with a bona fide margin account or other lending arrangement. 
 

Legends. The Buyer understands that the Note and, until such time as the Conversion
Shares have been registered under the 1933 Act may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 or Regulation S without any restriction
as to the number of securities as of a particular date that can then be immediately sold, the Conversion Shares may bear
a restrictive legend in substantially the following form (and a stop-transfer order may be placed against transfer of the
certificates for such Securities): 
 

“NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY
THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES
ARE EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT
OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE
SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR
ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION
STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL (WHICH COUNSEL SHALL BE
SELECTED BY THE HOLDER), IN A GENERALLY ACCEPTABLE FORM, THAT
REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II) UNLESS SOLD
PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR RULE 144A UNDER SAID ACT.
NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN
CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR
FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.”
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The legend set forth above shall be removed and the Company shall issue a certificate without such legend to
the holder of any Security upon which it is stamped, if, unless otherwise required by applicable state securities laws, (a)
such Security is registered for sale under an effective registration statement filed under the 1933 Act or otherwise may
be sold pursuant to Rule 144 or Regulation S without any restriction as to the number of securities as of a particular date
that can then be immediately sold, or (b) such holder provides the Company with an opinion of counsel, in form,
substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions, to the effect that a public sale or
transfer of such Security may be made without registration under the 1933 Act, which opinion shall be accepted by the
Company so that the sale or transfer is effected. The Buyer agrees to sell all Securities, including those represented by
a certificate(s) from which the legend has been removed, in compliance with applicable prospectus delivery
requirements, if any. In the event that the Company does not accept the opinion of counsel provided by the Buyer with
respect to the transfer of Securities pursuant to an exemption from registration, such as Rule 144 or Regulation S,
within 2 business days, it will be considered an Event of Default under the Note.

 
Authorization; Enforcement. This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized. This

Agreement has been duly executed and delivered on behalf of the Buyer, and this Agreement constitutes a valid and
binding agreement of the Buyer enforceable in accordance with its terms. 
 

Residency. The Buyer is a resident of the jurisdiction set forth immediately below the
Buyer’s name on the signature pages hereto. 
 

No Short Sales. Buyer/Holder, its successors and assigns, agree that so long as the Note
remains outstanding, the Buyer/Holder shall not enter into or effect “short sales” of the Common Stock or hedging
transaction which establishes a short position with respect to the Common Stock of the Company. The Company
acknowledges and agrees that upon delivery of a Conversion Notice by the Buyer/Holder, the Buyer/Holder immediately
owns the shares of Common Stock described in the Conversion Notice and any sale of those shares issuable under such
Conversion Notice would not be considered short sales. 
 

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY .  
 
The Company represents and warrants to the Buyer that:

 
Organization and Qualification . The Company and each of its subsidiaries, if any, is a

corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction in which it is
incorporated, with full power and authority (corporate and other) to own, lease, use and operate its properties and to carry
on its business as and where now owned, leased, used, operated and conducted. 
 

Authorization; Enforcement. (i) The Company has all requisite corporate power and authority
to enter into and perform this Agreement, the Note and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby
and to issue the Securities, in accordance with the terms hereof and thereof, (ii) the execution and delivery of this
Agreement, the Note by the Company and the consummation by it of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby
(including without limitation, the issuance of the Note and the issuance and reservation for issuance of the Conversion
Shares issuable upon conversion or exercise thereof) have been duly authorized by the Company’s Board of Directors and
no further consent or authorization of the Company, its Board of Directors, or its shareholders is required, (iii) this
Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the Company by its authorized representative, and such authorized
representative is the true and official representative with authority to sign this Agreement and the other documents
executed in connection herewith and bind the Company accordingly, and (iv) this Agreement constitutes, and upon
execution and delivery by the Company of the Note, each of such instruments will constitute, a legal, valid and binding
obligation of the Company enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms. 
 

Issuance of Shares. The Conversion Shares are duly authorized and reserved for issuance
and, upon conversion of the Note in accordance with its respective terms, will be validly issued, fully paid and non-
assessable, and free from all taxes, liens, claims and encumbrances with respect to the issue thereof and shall not be
subject to preemptive rights or other similar rights of shareholders of the Company and will not impose personal liability
upon the holder thereof. 
 

Acknowledgment of Dilution. The Company understands and acknowledges the potentially
dilutive effect to the Common Stock upon the issuance of the Conversion Shares upon conversion of the Note. The
Company further acknowledges that its obligation to issue Conversion Shares upon conversion of the Note in accordance
with this Agreement, the Note is absolute and unconditional regardless of the dilutive effect that such issuance may have
on the ownership interests of other shareholders of the Company. 
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No Conflicts. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, the Note by the
Company and the consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby (including,
without limitation, the issuance and reservation for issuance of the Conversion Shares) will not (i) conflict with or result in
a violation of any provision of the Certificate of Incorporation or By-laws, or (ii) violate or conflict with, or result in a breach
of any provision of, or constitute a default (or an event which with notice or lapse of time or both could become a default)
under, or give to others any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation of, any agreement, indenture,
patent, patent license or instrument to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries is a party, or (iii) result in a violation of
any law, rule, regulation, order, judgment or decree (including federal and state securities laws and regulations and
regulations of any self-regulatory organizations to which the Company or its securities are subject) applicable to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or by which any property or asset of the Company or any of its subsidiaries is bound or
affected (except for such conflicts, defaults, terminations, amendments, accelerations, cancellations and violations as
would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect). All consents, authorizations, orders, filings and
registrations which the Company is required to obtain pursuant to the preceding sentence have been obtained or effected
on or prior to the date hereof. The Company is not in violation of the listing requirements of the OTC marketplace (the
“OTC MARKETS”) and does not reasonably anticipate that the Common Stock will be delisted by the OTC Markets in the
foreseeable future, nor are the Company’s securities “chilled” by DTC. The Company and its subsidiaries are unaware of
any facts or circumstances which might give rise to any of the foregoing. 
 

Absence of Litigation. Except as disclosed in the Company’s public filings, there is no
action, suit, claim, proceeding, inquiry or investigation before or by any court, public board, government agency, self-
regulatory organization or body pending or, to the knowledge of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, threatened against
or affecting the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or their officers or directors in their capacity as such, that could have a
material adverse effect. Schedule 3(f) contains a complete list and summary description of any pending or, to the
knowledge of the Company, threatened proceeding against or affecting the Company or any of its subsidiaries, without
regard to whether it would have a material adverse effect. The Company and its subsidiaries are unaware of any facts or
circumstances which might give rise to any of the foregoing. 
 

Acknowledgment Regarding Buyer’ Purchase of Securities. The Company acknowledges
and agrees that the Buyer is acting solely in the capacity of arm’s length purchasers with respect to this Agreement and
the transactions contemplated hereby. The Company further acknowledges that the Buyer is not acting as a financial
advisor or fiduciary of the Company (or in any similar capacity) with respect to this Agreement and the transactions
contemplated hereby and any statement made by the Buyer or any of its respective representatives or agents in
connection with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby is not advice or a recommendation and is
merely incidental to the Buyer’ purchase of the Securities. The Company further represents to the Buyer that the
Company’s decision to enter into this Agreement has been based solely on the independent evaluation of the Company
and its representatives. 
 

No Integrated Offering. Neither the Company, nor any of its affiliates, nor any person acting
on its or their behalf, has directly or indirectly made any offers or sales in any security or solicited any offers to buy any
security under circumstances that would require registration under the 1933 Act of the issuance of the Securities to the
Buyer. The issuance of the Securities to the Buyer will not be integrated with any other issuance of the Company’s
securities (past, current or future) for purposes of any shareholder approval provisions applicable to the Company or its
securities. 
 

Title to Property. The Company and its subsidiaries have good and marketable title in fee
simple to all real property and good and marketable title to all personal property owned by them which is material to the
business of the Company and its subsidiaries, in each case free and clear of all liens, encumbrances and defects except
such as are described in Schedule 3(i) or such as would not have a material adverse effect. Any real property and facilities
held under lease by the Company and its subsidiaries are held by them under valid, subsisting and enforceable leases
with such exceptions as would not have a material adverse effect. 
 

Bad Actor. No officer or director of the Company would be disqualified under Rule 506(d) of
the Securities Act as amended on the basis of being a "bad actor" as that term is established in the September 19, 2013
Small Entity Compliance Guide published by the Securities and Exchange Commission. 
 

Breach of Representations and Warranties by the Company . If the Company breaches any
of the representations or warranties set forth in this Section 3, and in addition to any other remedies available to the Buyer
pursuant to this Agreement, it will be considered an Event of default under the Note. 
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COVENANTS. 
 

Expenses. At the Closing, the Company shall reimburse Buyer for expenses incurred by
them in connection with the negotiation, preparation, execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the other
agreements to be executed in connection herewith (“Documents”), including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ and
consultants’ fees and expenses, transfer agent fees, fees for stock quotation services, fees relating to any amendments or
modifications of the Documents or any consents or waivers of provisions in the Documents, fees for the preparation of
opinions of counsel, escrow fees, and costs of restructuring the transactions contemplated by the Documents. When
possible, the Company must pay these fees directly, otherwise the Company must make immediate payment for
reimbursement to the Buyer for all fees and expenses immediately upon written notice by the Buyer or the submission of
an invoice by the Buyer. 
 

Listing. The Company shall promptly secure the listing of the Conversion Shares upon each
national securities exchange or automated quotation system, if any, upon which shares of Common Stock are then listed
(subject to official notice of issuance) and, so long as the Buyer owns any of the Securities, shall maintain, so long as any
other shares of Common Stock shall be so listed, such listing of all Conversion Shares from time to time issuable upon
conversion of the Note. The Company will obtain and, so long as the Buyer owns any of the Securities, maintain the listing
and trading of its Common Stock on the OTC MARKETS or any equivalent replacement market, the Nasdaq stock market
(“Nasdaq”) or the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) and will comply in all respects with the Company’s reporting, filing
and other obligations under the bylaws or rules of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”) and such
exchanges, as applicable. The Company shall promptly provide to the Buyer copies of any notices it receives from the
OTC MARKETS and any other markets on which the Common Stock is then listed regarding the continued eligibility of the
Common Stock for listing on such markets. 
 

Corporate Existence. So long as the Buyer beneficially owns any Note, the Company shall
maintain its corporate existence and shall not sell all or substantially all of the Company’s assets, except in the event of a
merger or consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets, where the surviving or successor entity
in such transaction (i) assumes the Company’s obligations hereunder and under the agreements and instruments entered
into in connection herewith and (ii) is a publicly traded corporation whose Common Stock is listed for trading on the OTC
MARKETS, Nasdaq or NYSE. 
 

No Integration. The Company shall not make any offers or sales of any security (other than
the Securities) under circumstances that would require registration of the Securities being offered or sold hereunder under
the 1933 Act or cause the offering of the Securities to be integrated with any other offering of securities by the Company
for the purpose of any stockholder approval provision applicable to the Company or its securities. 
 

Filings. The Company shall include all of the Notes in its next scheduled SEC filing whether
that shall be a 10Q or a10K. 
 

Breach of Covenants. If the Company breaches any of the covenants set forth in this
Section 4, and in addition to any other remedies available to the Buyer pursuant to this Agreement, it will be considered
an event of default under the Note. 

GOVERNING LAW; MISCELLANEOUS. 
 

Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New York without regard to principles of conflicts of laws. Any action brought by either party against
the other concerning the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be brought only in the state courts of New
York or in the federal courts located in the state and county of New York. The parties to this Agreement hereby irrevocably
waive any objection to jurisdiction and venue of any action instituted hereunder and shall not assert any defense based on
lack of jurisdiction or venue or based upon forum non conveniens . The Company and Buyer waive trial by jury. The
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party its reasonable attorney's fees and costs. In the event that
any provision of this Agreement or any other agreement delivered in connection herewith is invalid or unenforceable under
any applicable statute or rule of law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent that it may conflict
therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any such provision which may prove
invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of any
agreement. Each party hereby irrevocably waives personal service of process and consents to process being served in
any suit, action or proceeding in connection with this Agreement or any other Transaction Document by mailing a copy
thereof via registered or certified mail or overnight delivery (with evidence of delivery) to such party at the address in
effect for notices to it under this Agreement and agrees that such service shall constitute good and sufficient service of
process and notice thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in any
other manner permitted by law. 
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Counterparts; Signatures by Facsimile. This Agreement may be executed in one or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement and
shall become effective when counterparts have been signed by each party and delivered to the other party. This
Agreement, once executed by a party, may be delivered to the other party hereto by facsimile transmission of a copy of
this Agreement bearing the signature of the party so delivering this Agreement. 
 

Headings. The headings of this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall
not form part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Agreement. 
 

Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable
under any applicable statute or rule of law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent that it may
conflict therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any provision hereof which
may prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision
hereof. 
 

Entire Agreement; Amendments. This Agreement and the instruments referenced herein
contain the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the matters covered herein and therein and, except as
specifically set forth herein or therein, neither the Company nor the Buyer makes any representation, warranty, covenant
or undertaking with respect to such matters. No provision of this Agreement may be waived or amended other than by an
instrument in writing signed by the majority in interest of the Buyer. 
 

Notices. All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals, and other communications
required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and, unless otherwise specified herein, shall be (i) personally served,
(ii) deposited in the mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, (iii) delivered by reputable air
courier service with charges prepaid, (iv) via electronic mail or (v) transmitted by hand delivery, telegram, or facsimile,
addressed as set forth below or to such other address as such party shall have specified most recently by written notice.
Any notice or other communication required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be deemed effective (a) upon hand
delivery or delivery by facsimile, with accurate confirmation generated by the transmitting facsimile machine, at the
address or number designated below (if delivered on a business day during normal business hours where such notice is
to be received) or delivery via electronic mail, or the first business day following such delivery (if delivered other than on a
business day during normal business hours where such notice is to be received) or (b) on the second business day
following the date of mailing by express courier service, fully prepaid, addressed to such address, or upon actual receipt of
such mailing, whichever shall first occur. The addresses for such communications shall be: 

 
If to the Company, to:
 

American Battery Metals Corporation
930 Tahoe Blvd., Suite 802-16
Incline Village, NV 89451
Attn: Douglas D Cole, CEO

 
If to the Buyer:
 

ADAR ALEF, LLC
38 Olympia Ln
Monsey, NY 10952
Attn: Aryeh Goldstein, Manager

 
Each party shall provide notice to the other party of any change in address.

 
Successors and Assigns . This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of

the parties and their successors and assigns. Neither the Company nor the Buyer shall assign this Agreement or any
rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the other. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Buyer may
assign its rights hereunder to any “qualified person”, any “permitted assigns”, or “prospective transferee” that acquires or
purchases Note Securities in a private transaction from the Buyer or to any of its “affiliates,” as that term is defined under
the 1934 Act, with the prior written consent of the Company, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, and with
Buyer’s Opinion of Counsel. A qualified person is an “accredited investor” transferee, assignee, or purchaser of the Note
who succeeds to the Holder’s right, title and interest to all or a portion of the Note accompanied with an Opinion of Counsel
as provided for in Section 2(f). 
 

Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is intended for the benefit of the parties hereto
and their respective permitted successors and assigns, and is not for the benefit of, nor may any provision hereof be
enforced by, any other person. 
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Survival. The representations and warranties of the Company and the agreements and
covenants set forth in this Agreement shall survive the closing hereunder notwithstanding any due diligence investigation
conducted by or on behalf of the Buyer. The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Buyer and all their
officers, directors, employees and agents for loss or damage arising as a result of or related to any breach or alleged
breach by the Company of any of its representations, warranties and covenants set forth in this Agreement or any of its
covenants and obligations under this Agreement, including advancement of expenses as they are incurred. 
 

Further Assurances. Each party shall do and perform, or cause to be done and performed,
all such further acts and things, and shall execute and deliver all such other agreements, certificates, instruments and
documents, as the other party may reasonably request in order to carry out the intent and accomplish the purposes of this
Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby. 

 
No Strict Construction. The language used in this Agreement will be deemed to be the

language chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rules of strict construction will be applied against
any party. 
 

Remedies. The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder will
cause irreparable harm to the Buyer by vitiating the intent and purpose of the transaction contemplated hereby.
Accordingly, the Company acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its obligations under this Agreement will
be inadequate and agrees, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Company of the provisions of this
Agreement, that the Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies at law or in equity, and in addition to
the penalties assessable herein, to an injunction or injunctions restraining, preventing or curing any breach of this
Agreement and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions hereof, without the necessity of showing economic loss
and without any bond or other security being required. 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Buyer and the Company have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as
of the date first above written.

 
American Battery Metals Corporation

 
By: /s/ Douglas D Cole
Name: Douglas D Cole
Title: CEO

 
 

ADAR ALEF, LLC.
 
By: /s/ Aryeh Goldstein
Name: Aryeh Goldstein
Title: Manager

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGGREGATE SUBSCRIPTION AMOUNT:
 

Aggregate Principal Amount of Note: $110,000.00
 
Aggregate Purchase Price:
 
Note: $110,000.00 less $10,000.00 in original issue discount, less $5,000.00 in legal fees.
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EXHIBIT A
144 NOTE - $110,000.00
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Exhibit 10.4

 
THIS NOTE AND THE COMMON STOCK ISSUABLE UPON CONVERSION
OF THIS NOTE HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGISTERED WITH
THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR
THE SECURITIES COMMISSION OF ANY STATE PURSUANT TO AN
EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION PROVIDED UNDER THE SECURITIES
ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AND THE RULES AND REGULATIONS
PROMULGATED THEREUNDER (THE "1933 ACT”)

 
US $110,000.00

 
AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION

10% CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE NOTE
DUE APRIL 7, 2021

 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, American Battery Metals Corporation (the “Company”) promises to pay to the order of

ADAR ALEF, LLC and its authorized successors and Permitted Assigns, defined below, ("Holder"), the aggregate
principal face amount of One Hundred Ten Thousand Dollars exactly (U.S. $110,000.00) on April 7, 2021 ("Maturity
Date") and to pay interest on the principal amount outstanding hereunder at the rate of 10% per annum commencing on
April 7, 2020 (“Issuance Date”). This Note shall contain a $10,000 original issue discount such that the purchase price
shall be $100,000. The interest will be paid to the Holder in whose name this Note is registered on the records of the
Company regarding registration and transfers of this Note. The principal of, and interest on, this Note are payable at 38
Olympia Ln, Monsey, NY 10952, initially, and if changed, last appearing on the records of the Company as designated
in writing by the Holder hereof from time to time. The Company will pay each interest payment and the outstanding
principal due upon this Note before or on the Maturity Date, less any amounts required by law to be deducted or
withheld, to the Holder of this Note by check or wire transfer addressed to such Holder at the last address appearing on
the records of the Company. The forwarding of such check or wire transfer shall constitute a payment of outstanding
principal hereunder and shall satisfy and discharge the liability for principal on this Note to the extent of the sum
represented by such check or wire transfer. Interest shall be payable in Common Stock (as defined below) pursuant to
paragraph 4(b) herein. Permitted Assigns means any Holder assignment, transfer or sale of all or a portion of this Note
accompanied by an Opinion of Counsel as provided for in Section 2(f) of the Securities Purchase Agreement.

 
This Note is subject to the following additional provisions:

 
This Note is exchangeable for an equal aggregate principal amount of Notes of different

authorized denominations, as requested by the Holder surrendering the same. No service charge will be made for such
registration or transfer or exchange, except that Holder shall pay any tax or other governmental charges payable in
connection therewith. To the extent that Holder subsequently transfers, assigns, sells or exchanges any of the multiple
lesser denomination notes, Holder acknowledges that it will provide the Company with Opinions of Counsel as provided
for in Section 2(f) of the Securities Purchase Agreement. 
 

The Company shall be entitled to withhold from all payments any amounts required to be withheld
under applicable laws. 
 

This Note may be transferred or exchanged only in compliance with the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended ("Act"), applicable state securities laws and Sections 2(f) and 5(f) of the Securities Purchase Agreement. Any
attempted transfer to a non-qualifying party shall be treated by the Company as void. Prior to due presentment for transfer
of this Note, the Company and any agent of the Company may treat the person in whose name this Note is duly
registered on the Company's records as the owner hereof for all other purposes, whether or not this Note be overdue, and
neither the Company nor any such agent shall be affected or bound by notice to the contrary. Any Holder of this Note
electing to exercise the right of conversion set forth in Section 4(a) hereof, in addition to the requirements set forth in
Section 4(a), and any prequalified prospective transferee of this Note, also is required to give the Company written
confirmation that this Note is being converted ("Notice of Conversion") in the form annexed hereto as Exhibit A. The date
of receipt (including receipt by telecopy) of such Notice of Conversion shall be the Conversion Date. All notices of
conversion will be accompanied by an Opinion of Counsel. 
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(a) The Holder of this Note is entitled, at its option, at any time, to convert all or any amount of the
principal face amount of this Note then outstanding into shares of the Company's common stock (the "Common Stock") at
a price ("Conversion Price") for each share of Common Stock equal to 60% of the lowest closing bid price of the
Common Stock as reported on the National Quotations Bureau OTC Market exchange which the Company’s shares are
traded or any exchange upon which the Common Stock may be traded in the future ("Exchange"), for the  fifteen prior
trading days including the day upon which a Notice of Conversion is received by the Company (provided such Notice of
Conversion is delivered together with an Opinion of Counsel, by fax or other electronic method of communication to the
Company after 4 P.M. Eastern Standard or Daylight Savings Time if the Holder wishes to include the same day closing
price). If the shares have not been delivered within 2 business days, the Notice of Conversion may be rescinded. Such
conversion shall be effectuated by the Company delivering the shares of Common Stock to the Holder within 2 business
days of receipt by the Company of the Notice of Conversion. Accrued, but unpaid interest shall be subject to conversion.
No fractional shares or scrip representing fractions of shares will be issued on conversion, but the number of shares
issuable shall be rounded to the nearest whole share. To the extent the Conversion Price of the Company’s Common
Stock closes below the par value per share, the Company will take all steps necessary to solicit the consent of the
stockholders to reduce the par value to the lowest value possible under law. The Company agrees to honor all
conversions submitted pending this increase. In the event the Company experiences a DTC “Chill” on its shares, the
conversion price shall be decreased to 50% instead of 60% while that “Chill” is in effect. If the Company has a closing
price of less than $0.01 per share, then the Conversion Price shall be decreased by an additional 5% (resulting in a
conversion price discount increase of 5% from 40% to 45%). In no event shall the Holder be allowed to effect a conversion
if such conversion, along with all other shares of Company Common Stock beneficially owned by the Holder and its
affiliates would exceed 4.99% of the outstanding shares of the Common Stock of the Company (which may be increased
up to 9.9% upon 60 days’ prior written notice by the Holder). The conversion discount, look back period and other terms
will be adjusted on a ratchet basis if the Company offers a more favorable conversion discount, interest rate, (whether
through a straight discount or in combination with an original issue discount), look back period or other more favorable
term to another party for any financings while this Note is in effect. 
 

Interest on any unpaid principal balance of this Note shall be paid at the rate of 10% per
annum. Interest shall be paid by the Company in Common Stock ("Interest Shares"). Holder may, at any time
commencing six months after the date of funding to the Company by the Holder, send in a Notice of Conversion to the
Company for Interest Shares based on the formula provided in Section 4(a) above. The dollar amount converted into
Interest Shares shall be all or a portion of the accrued interest calculated on the unpaid principal balance of this Note to
the date of such notice. 
 

The Notes may be prepaid with the following penalties: 
 

PREPAY DATE PREPAY AMOUNT
≤ 61 days 120% of principal plus accrued interest
61- 120 days 130% of principal plus accrued interest
121-180 days 140% of principal plus accrued interest

 
This Note may not be prepaid after the 180 th day. Such redemption must be closed and funded within 3 days of giving
notice of redemption or the right to redeem shall be null and void. Any partial prepayments will be made in accordance
with the formula set forth in the chart above with respect to principal, premium and interest.

 
Upon (i) a transfer of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company to any person in a

single transaction or series of related transactions, (ii) a reclassification, capital reorganization (excluding an increase in
authorized capital) or other change or exchange of outstanding shares of the Common Stock, other than a forward or
reverse stock split or stock dividend, or (iii) any consolidation or merger of the Company with or into another person or
entity in which the Company is not the surviving entity (other than a merger which is effected solely to change the
jurisdiction of incorporation of the Company and results in a reclassification, conversion or exchange of outstanding
shares of Common Stock solely into shares of Common Stock) (each of items (i), (ii) and (iii) being referred to as a "Sale
Event"), then, in each case, the Company shall, upon request of the Holder, redeem this Note in cash for 150% of the
principal amount, plus accrued but unpaid interest through the date of redemption, or at the election of the Holder, such
Holder may convert the unpaid principal amount of this Note (together with the amount of accrued but unpaid interest)
into shares of Common Stock immediately prior to such Sale Event at the Conversion Price. 
 

In case of any Sale Event (not to include a sale of all or substantially all of the Company’s
assets) in connection with which this Note is not redeemed or converted, the Company shall cause effective provision to
be made so that the Holder of this Note shall have the right thereafter, by converting this Note, to purchase or convert this
Note into the kind and number of shares of stock or other securities or property (including cash) receivable upon such
reclassification, capital reorganization or other change, consolidation or merger by a holder of the number of shares of
Common Stock that could have been purchased upon exercise of the Note and at the same Conversion Price, as defined
in this Note, immediately prior to such Sale Event. The foregoing provisions shall similarly apply to successive Sale
Events. If the consideration received by the holders of Common Stock is other than cash, the value shall be as
determined by the Board of Directors of the Company or successor person or entity acting in good faith. 
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No provision of this Note shall alter or impair the obligation of the Company, which is absolute and
unconditional, to pay the principal of, and interest on, this Note at the time, place, and rate, and in the form, herein
prescribed. 
 

The Company hereby expressly waives demand and presentment for payment, notice of non-
payment, protest, notice of protest, notice of dishonor, notice of acceleration or intent to accelerate, and diligence in taking
any action to collect amounts called for hereunder and shall be directly and primarily liable for the payment of all sums
owing and to be owing hereto. 
 

The Company agrees to pay all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees and
expenses, which may be incurred by the Holder in collecting any amount due under this Note. 
 

If one or more of the following described "Events of Default" shall occur: 
 

The Company shall default in the payment of principal or interest on this Note or any other note
issued to the Holder by the Company; or 
 

Any of the representations or warranties made by the Company herein or in any certificate or
financial or other written statements heretofore or hereafter furnished by or on behalf of the Company in connection with
the execution and delivery of this Note, or the Securities Purchase Agreement under which this note was issued shall be
false or misleading in any respect; or 
 

The Company shall fail to perform or observe, in any respect, any covenant, term, provision,
condition, agreement or obligation of the Company under this Note or any other note issued to the Holder; or 
 

The Company shall (1) become insolvent (which does not include a “going concern opinion); (2)
admit in writing its inability to pay its debts generally as they mature; (3) make an assignment for the benefit of creditors
or commence proceedings for its dissolution; (4) apply for or consent to the appointment of a trustee, liquidator or
receiver for its or for a substantial part of its property or business; (5) file a petition for bankruptcy relief, consent to the
filing of such petition or have filed against it an involuntary petition for bankruptcy relief, all under federal or state laws as
applicable; or 
 

A trustee, liquidator or receiver shall be appointed for the Company or for a substantial part of
its property or business without its consent and shall not be discharged within 

sixty (60) days after such appointment; or
 

Any governmental agency or any court of competent jurisdiction at the instance of any
governmental agency shall assume custody or control of the whole or any substantial portion of the properties or assets
of the Company; or 
 

One or more money judgments, writs or warrants of attachment, or similar process, in excess
of one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) in the aggregate, shall be entered or filed against the Company or any of its
properties or other assets and shall remain unpaid, unvacated, unbonded or unstayed for a period of fifteen (15) days or
in any event later than five (5) days prior to the date of any proposed sale thereunder; or 
 

Defaulted on or breached any term of any other note of similar debt instrument into which the
Company has entered and failed to cure such default within the appropriate grace period; or 
 

The Company shall have its Common Stock delisted from an exchange (including the OTC
Markets exchange) or, if the Common Stock trades on an exchange, then trading in the Common Stock shall be
suspended for more than 10 consecutive days or ceases to file its 1934 act reports with the SEC; 
 

If a majority of the members of the Board of Directors of the Company on the date hereof are
no longer serving as members of the Board; 
 

The Company shall not deliver to the Holder the Common Stock pursuant to paragraph 4
herein without restrictive legend within 2 business days of its receipt of a Notice of Conversion which includes an Opinion
of Counsel expressing an opinion which supports the removal of a restrictive legend; or 
 

The Company shall not replenish the reserve set forth in Section 12, within 3 business days of
the request of the Holder. 
 

The Company shall be delinquent in its periodic report filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission; or 
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The Company shall cause to lose the “bid” price for its stock in a market (including the OTC
marketplace or other exchange). 
 

Then, or at any time thereafter, unless cured within 5 days, and in each and every such case, unless such Event of
Default shall have been waived in writing by the Holder (which waiver shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any
subsequent default) at the option of the Holder and in the Holder's sole discretion, the Holder may consider this Note
immediately due and payable, without presentment, demand, protest or (further) notice of any kind (other than notice of
acceleration), all of which are hereby expressly waived, anything herein or in any note or other instruments contained to
the contrary notwithstanding, and the Holder may immediately, and without expiration of any period of grace, enforce
any and all of the Holder's rights and remedies provided herein or any other rights or remedies afforded by law. Upon
an Event of Default, interest shall accrue at a default interest rate of 24% per annum or, if such rate is usurious or not
permitted by current law, then at the highest rate of interest permitted by law. In the event of a breach of Section 8(k)
the penalty shall be $250 per day the shares are not issued beginning on the 4th day after the conversion notice was
delivered to the Company. This penalty shall increase to $500 per day beginning on the 10th day. The penalty for a
breach of Section 8(n) shall be an increase of the outstanding principal amounts by 20%. If this Note is not paid at
maturity, the outstanding principal due under this Note shall increase by 10%. Further, if a breach of Section 8(m)
occurs or is continuing after the 6 month anniversary of the Note, then the Holder shall be entitled to use the lowest
closing bid price during the delinquency period as a base price for the conversion. For example, if the lowest closing bid
price during the delinquency period is $0.01 per share and the conversion discount is 50% the Holder may elect to
convert future conversions at $0.005 per share

 
If the Holder shall commence an action or proceeding to enforce any provisions of this Note, including, without
limitation, engaging an attorney, then if the Holder prevails in such action, the Holder shall be reimbursed by the
Company for its attorneys’ fees and other costs and expenses incurred in the investigation, preparation and prosecution
of such action or proceeding.

 
Make-Whole for Failure to Deliver Loss. At the Holder’s election, if the Company fails for any reason to deliver to the
Holder the conversion shares by the by the 3rd business day following the delivery of a Notice of Conversion to the
Company and if the Holder incurs a Failure to Deliver Loss, then at any time the Holder may provide the Company
written notice indicating the amounts payable to the Holder in respect of the Failure to Deliver Loss and the Company
must make the Holder whole as follows:
Failure to Deliver Loss = [(Highest VWAP for the 30 trading days on or after the day of exercise) x (Number of
conversion shares)]

 
The Company must pay the Failure to Deliver Loss by cash payment, and any such cash payment must be made by the
third business day from the time of the Holder’s written notice to the Company.

 
In case any provision of this Note is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be excessive in

scope or otherwise invalid or unenforceable, such provision shall be adjusted rather than voided, if possible, so that it is
enforceable to the maximum extent possible, and the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Note
will not in any way be affected or impaired thereby. 
 

Neither this Note nor any term hereof may be amended, waived, discharged or terminated other
than by a written instrument signed by the Company and the Holder. 
 

The Company represents that it is not a “shell” issuer and that if it previously has been a “shell”
issuer that at least 12 months have passed since the Company has reported Form 10 type information indicating it is no
longer a “shell” issuer. 
 

The Company shall issue irrevocable transfer agent instructions reserving 20,370,000 shares of
its Common Stock for conversions under this Note (the “Share Reserve”). Upon full conversion of this Note, any shares
remaining in the Share Reserve shall be cancelled. The Company shall pay all transfer agent costs associated with
issuing and delivering the share certificates to Holder. If such amounts are to be paid by the Holder, it may deduct such
amounts from the principal amount being converted. The company should at all times reserve a minimum of four times the
amount of shares required if the note would be fully converted. The Holder may reasonably request increases from time to
time to reserve such amounts. The Company will instruct its transfer agent to provide the outstanding share information to
the Holder in connection with its conversions. 
 

The Company will give the Holder direct notice of any corporate actions, including but not limited
to name changes, stock splits, recapitalizations etc. This notice shall be given to the Holder as soon as possible under
law. 
 

If it shall be found that any interest or other amount deemed interest due hereunder violates the
applicable law governing usury, the applicable provision shall automatically be revised to equal the maximum rate of
interest or other amount deemed interest permitted under applicable law. The Company covenants (to the extent that it
may lawfully do so) that it will not seek to claim or take advantage of any law that would prohibit or forgive the Company
from paying all or a portion of the principal or interest on this Note. 

4

(n)

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 
 

 
This Note shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of New York

applicable to contracts made and wholly to be performed within the State of New York and shall be binding upon the
successors and assigns of each party hereto. The Holder and the Company hereby mutually waive trial by jury and
consent to exclusive jurisdiction and venue in the courts of the State of New York or in the Federal courts sitting in the
county or city of New York. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, and the facsimile transmission of an
executed counterpart to this Agreement shall be effective as an original. 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Note to be duly executed by an officer
thereunto duly authorized.

 
 

Dated: 04/07/2020
 
 
 

AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
 

By: /s/ Douglas D Cole
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EXHIBIT A
 

NOTICE OF CONVERSION
 

(To be Executed by the Registered Holder in order to Convert the Note)
 
The undersigned hereby irrevocably elects to convert $ _______________________of the above Note into
______________________________________Shares of Common Stock of American Battery Metals Corporation
(“Shares”) according to the conditions set forth in such Note, as of the date written below.
 
If Shares are to be issued in the name of a person other than the undersigned, the undersigned will pay all transfer and
other taxes and charges payable with respect thereto.
 

Date of Conversion:_____________________________________________________
 
Applicable Conversion Price:______________________________________________
 
Signature:______________________________________________________________

[Print Name of Holder and Title of Signer]
 

Address: __________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________

 
SSN or EIN: __________________________
 
Shares are to be registered in the following name: _____________________________________________________
 

Name:______________________________________________________________________
Address:_____________________________________________________________________
Tel:_________________________________________________________________________
Fax:_________________________________________________________________________
SSN or EIN:__________________________________________________________________

 
Shares are to be sent or delivered to the following account:

 
Account Name: ________________________________________________________________
Address:______________________________________________________________________
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Exhibit 10.5

 
SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT

 
This SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), dated as of April 10, 2020, by and between

AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION, a Nevada corporation, with headquarters located at 930 Tahoe
Blvd., Suite 802-16, Incline Village, NV 89451 (the “Company”), and AUCTUS FUND, LLC , a Delaware limited liability

company, with its address at 545 Boylston Street, 2nd Floor, Boston, MA 02116 (the “Buyer”).
 

WHEREAS:
 

The Company and the Buyer are executing and delivering this Agreement in reliance upon the
exemption from securities registration afforded by the rules and regulations as promulgated by the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”); 
 

Buyer desires to purchase and the Company desires to issue and sell, upon the terms and conditions
set forth in this Agreement the 10% convertible note of the Company, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, in the
aggregate principal amount of US$150,000.00 (together with any note(s) issued in replacement thereof or as a dividend
thereon or otherwise with respect thereto in accordance with the terms thereof, the “Note”), convertible into shares of
common stock, $0.001 par value per share, of the Company (the “Common Stock”), upon the terms and subject to the
limitations and conditions set forth in such Note. 
 

The Buyer wishes to purchase, upon the terms and conditions stated in this Agreement, such principal
amount of Note as is set forth immediately below its name on the signature pages hereto; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the Company and the Buyer severally (and not jointly) hereby agree as follows:
 

PURCHASE AND SALE OF NOTE . 
 

Purchase of Note. On the Closing Date (as defined below), the Company shall issue and
sell to the Buyer and the Buyer agrees to purchase from the Company such principal amount of Note as is set forth
immediately below the Buyer’s name on the signature pages hereto. In connection with the issuance of the Note, the
Company shall issue a common stock purchase warrant to Buyer to purchase 800,000 shares of the Company’s common
stock (the “Warrant”) as a commitment fee upon the terms and subject to the limitations and conditions set forth in such
Warrant. 
 

Form of Payment. On the Closing Date (as defined below), (i) the Buyer shall pay the
purchase price for the Note to be issued and sold to it at the Closing (as defined below) (the “Purchase Price”) by wire
transfer of immediately available funds to the Company, in accordance with the Company’s written wiring instructions,
against delivery of the Note in the principal amount equal to the Purchase Price as is set forth immediately below the
Buyer’s name on the signature pages hereto, and (ii) the Company shall deliver such duly executed Note on behalf of the
Company, to the Buyer, against delivery of such Purchase Price. 
 

Closing Date. Subject to the satisfaction (or written waiver) of the conditions thereto set forth
in Section 7 and Section 8 below, the date and time of the issuance and sale of the Note pursuant to this Agreement (the
“Closing Date”) shall be 12:00 noon, Eastern Standard Time on or about April 10, 2020, or such other mutually agreed
upon time. The closing of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the “Closing”) shall occur on the Closing Date
at such location as may be agreed to by the parties. 
 

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE BUYER.  
 
The Buyer represents and warrants to the Company that:

 
Investment Purpose. As of the date hereof, the Buyer is purchasing the Note and the shares

of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to the Note (including, without limitation, such
additional shares of Common Stock, if any, as are issuable (i) on account of interest on the Note or (ii) as a result of the
events described in Sections 1.3 and 1.4(g) of the Note pursuant to this Agreement, such shares of Common Stock being
collectively referred to herein as the “Conversion Shares” and, collectively with the Note, Warrant, and shares of Common
Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrant, the “Securities”) for its own account and not with a present view towards the
public sale or distribution thereof, except pursuant to sales registered or exempted from registration under the 1933 Act;
provided, however, that by making the representations herein, the Buyer does not agree to hold any of the Securities for
any minimum or other specific term and reserves the right to dispose of the Securities at any time in accordance with or
pursuant to a registration statement or an exemption under the 1933 Act. 
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Accredited Investor Status. The Buyer is an “accredited investor” as that term is defined in
Rule 501(a) of Regulation D (an “Accredited Investor”). 
 

Reliance on Exemptions. The Buyer understands that the Securities are being offered and
sold to it in reliance upon specific exemptions from the registration requirements of United States federal and state
securities laws and that the Company is relying upon the truth and accuracy of, and the Buyer’s compliance with, the
representations, warranties, agreements, acknowledgments and understandings of the Buyer set forth herein in order to
determine the availability of such exemptions and the eligibility of the Buyer to acquire the Securities. 
 

Information. The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been, and for so long as the Note
remains outstanding will continue to be, furnished with all materials relating to the business, finances and operations of the
Company and materials relating to the offer and sale of the Securities which have been requested by the Buyer or its
advisors. The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been, and for so long as the Note remains outstanding will continue to
be, afforded the opportunity to ask questions of the Company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company has not
disclosed to the Buyer any material nonpublic information and will not disclose such information unless such information is
disclosed to the public prior to or promptly following such disclosure to the Buyer. Neither such inquiries nor any other due
diligence investigation conducted by Buyer or any of its advisors or representatives shall modify, amend or affect Buyer’s
right to rely on the Company’s representations and warranties contained in Section 3 below. The Buyer understands that
its investment in the Securities involves a significant degree of risk. The Buyer is not aware of any facts that may
constitute a breach of any of the Company's representations and warranties made herein. 
 

Governmental Review. The Buyer understands that no United States federal or state
agency or any other government or governmental agency has passed upon or made any recommendation or
endorsement of the Securities. 
 

Transfer or Re-sale. The Buyer understands that (i) the sale or re-sale of the Securities has
not been and is not being registered under the 1933 Act or any applicable state securities laws, and the Securities may
not be transferred unless (a) the Securities are sold pursuant to an effective registration statement under the 1933 Act, (b)
the Buyer shall have delivered to the Company an opinion of counsel that shall be in form, substance and scope
customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions to the effect that the Securities to be sold or transferred may
be sold or transferred pursuant to an exemption from such registration, (c) the Securities are sold or transferred to an
“affiliate” (as defined in Rule 144 promulgated under the 1933 Act (or a successor rule) (“Rule 144”)) of the Buyer who
agrees to sell or otherwise transfer the Securities only in accordance with this Section 2(f) and who is an Accredited
Investor, (d) the Securities are sold pursuant to Rule 144, or (e) the Securities are sold pursuant to Regulation S under the
1933 Act (or a successor rule) (“Regulation S”), and the Buyer shall have delivered to the Company an opinion of counsel
that shall be in form, substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in corporate transactions; (ii) any sale of
such Securities made in reliance on Rule 144 may be made only in accordance with the terms of said Rule and further, if
said Rule is not applicable, any resale of such Securities under circumstances in which the seller (or the person through
whom the sale is made) may be deemed to be an underwriter (as that term is defined in the 1933 Act) may require
compliance with some other exemption under the 1933 Act or the rules and regulations of the SEC thereunder; and (iii)
neither the Company nor any other person is under any obligation to register such Securities under the 1933 Act or any
state securities laws or to comply with the terms and conditions of any exemption thereunder (in each case).
Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything else contained herein to the contrary, the Securities may be pledged as
collateral in connection with a bona fide margin account or other lending arrangement. 
 

Legends. The Buyer understands that the Note and, until such time as the Conversion
Shares have been registered under the 1933 Act may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 or Regulation S without any restriction
as to the number of securities as of a particular date that can then be immediately sold, the Conversion Shares may bear
a restrictive legend in substantially the following form (and a stop-transfer order may be placed against transfer of the
certificates for such Securities): 
 

“NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY
THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES
ARE EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT
OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE
SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR
ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION
STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL (WHICH COUNSEL SHALL BE
SELECTED BY THE HOLDER), IN A GENERALLY ACCEPTABLE FORM, THAT
REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II) UNLESS SOLD
PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR RULE 144A UNDER SAID ACT.
NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN
CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR
FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.”
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The legend set forth above shall be removed and the Company shall issue a certificate without such legend to
the holder of any Security upon which it is stamped, if, unless otherwise required by applicable state securities laws, (a)
such Security is registered for sale under an effective registration statement filed under the 1933 Act or otherwise may
be sold pursuant to Rule 144 or Regulation S without any restriction as to the number of securities as of a particular date
that can then be immediately sold, or (b) such holder provides the Company with an opinion of counsel, in form,
substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions, to the effect that a public sale or
transfer of such Security may be made without registration under the 1933 Act, so that the sale or transfer is effected.
The Buyer agrees to sell all Securities, including those represented by a certificate(s) from which the legend has been
removed, in compliance with applicable prospectus delivery requirements, if any.

 
Authorization; Enforcement. This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized. This

Agreement has been duly executed and delivered on behalf of the Buyer, and this Agreement constitutes a valid and
binding agreement of the Buyer enforceable in accordance with its terms. 

 
Residency. The Buyer is a resident of the jurisdiction set forth in the preamble. 

 
No Short Sales. Buyer, its successors and assigns, agree that so long as the Note remains

outstanding, the Buyer shall not enter into or effect “short sales” of the Common Stock or hedging transaction which
establishes a short position with respect to the Common Stock of the Company. 
 

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY .  
 
The Company represents and warrants to the Buyer that:

 
Organization and Qualification . The Company and each of its Subsidiaries (as defined

below), if any, is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction in
which it is incorporated, with full power and authority (corporate and other) to own, lease, use and operate its properties
and to carry on its business as and where now owned, leased, used, operated and conducted. The Company and each of
its Subsidiaries is duly qualified as a foreign corporation to do business and is in good standing in every jurisdiction in
which its ownership or use of property or the nature of the business conducted by it makes such qualification necessary
except where the failure to be so qualified or in good standing would not have a Material Adverse Effect. “Material Adverse
Effect” means any material adverse effect on the business, operations, assets, financial condition or prospects of the
Company or its Subsidiaries, if any, taken as a whole, or on the transactions contemplated hereby or by the agreements
or instruments to be entered into in connection herewith. “Subsidiaries” means any corporation or other organization,
whether incorporated or unincorporated, in which the Company owns, directly or indirectly, any equity or other ownership
interest. 
 

Authorization; Enforcement. (i) The Company has all requisite corporate power and authority
to enter into and perform this Agreement, the Note and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby
and to issue the Securities, in accordance with the terms hereof and thereof, (ii) the execution and delivery of this
Agreement, the Note by the Company and the consummation by it of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby
(including without limitation, the issuance of the Note and the issuance and reservation for issuance of the Conversion
Shares issuable upon conversion or exercise thereof) have been duly authorized by the Company’s Board of Directors and
no further consent or authorization of the Company, its Board of Directors, or its shareholders is required, (iii) this
Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the Company by its authorized representative, and such authorized
representative is the true and official representative with authority to sign this Agreement and the other documents
executed in connection herewith and bind the Company accordingly, and (iv) this Agreement constitutes, and upon
execution and delivery by the Company of the Note, each of such instruments will constitute, a legal, valid and binding
obligation of the Company enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms. 
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Capitalization. As of the date hereof, the authorized capital stock of the Company consists
of: (i) 1,200,000,000 shares of Common Stock, of which approximately 328,418,880 shares are issued and outstanding;
and (ii) 0 shares of preferred stock, of which 0 are issued and outstanding. Except as disclosed in the SEC Documents, no
shares are reserved for issuance pursuant to the Company’s stock option plans, no shares are reserved for issuance
pursuant to securities (other than the Note and any other convertible promissory note issued to the Buyer) exercisable for,
or convertible into or exchangeable for shares of Common Stock and 50,000,000 shares are reserved for issuance upon
conversion of the Note. All of such outstanding shares of capital stock are, or upon issuance will be, duly authorized,
validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable. No shares of capital stock of the Company are subject to preemptive rights
or any other similar rights of the shareholders of the Company or any liens or encumbrances imposed through the actions
or failure to act of the Company. Except as disclosed in the SEC Documents, as of the effective date of this Agreement, (i)
there are no outstanding options, warrants, scrip, rights to subscribe for, puts, calls, rights of first refusal, agreements,
understandings, claims or other commitments or rights of any character whatsoever relating to, or securities or rights
convertible into or exchangeable for any shares of capital stock of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or
arrangements by which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is or may become bound to issue additional shares of
capital stock of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, (ii) there are no agreements or arrangements under which the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries is obligated to register the sale of any of its or their securities under the 1933 Act and
(iii) there are no anti-dilution or price adjustment provisions contained in any security issued by the Company (or in any
agreement providing rights to security holders) that will be triggered by the issuance of the Note or the Conversion Shares.
The Company has filed in its SEC Documents true and correct copies of the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation as in
effect on the date hereof (“Certificate of Incorporation”), the Company’s By-laws, as in effect on the date hereof (the “By-
laws”), and the terms of all securities convertible into or exercisable for Common Stock of the Company and the material
rights of the holders thereof in respect thereto. The Company shall provide the Buyer with a written update of this
representation signed by the Company’s Chief Executive on behalf of the Company as of the Closing Date. 
 

Issuance of Shares. The issuance of the Note is duly authorized and, upon issuance in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement, will be validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable and free from all
preemptive or similar rights, taxes, liens, charges and other encumbrances with respect to the issue thereof. The
Conversion Shares are duly authorized and reserved for issuance and, upon conversion of the Note in accordance with its
respective terms, will be validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable, and free from all taxes, liens, claims and
encumbrances with respect to the issue thereof and shall not be subject to preemptive rights or other similar rights of
shareholders of the Company and will not impose personal liability upon the holder thereof. 
 

Acknowledgment of Dilution. The Company understands and acknowledges the potentially
dilutive effect to the Common Stock upon the issuance of the Conversion Shares upon conversion of the Note. The
Company further acknowledges that its obligation to issue Conversion Shares upon conversion of the Note in accordance
with this Agreement, the Note is absolute and unconditional regardless of the dilutive effect that such issuance may have
on the ownership interests of other shareholders of the Company. 
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No Conflicts. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the Note by
the Company and the consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby (including,
without limitation, the issuance and reservation for issuance of the Conversion Shares) will not (i) conflict with or result in
a violation of any provision of the Certificate of Incorporation or By-laws, or (ii) violate or conflict with, or result in a breach
of any provision of, or constitute a default (or an event which with notice or lapse of time or both could become a default)
under, or give to others any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation of, any agreement, indenture,
patent, patent license or instrument to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party, or (iii) result in a violation of
any law, rule, regulation, order, judgment or decree (including federal and state securities laws and regulations and
regulations of any self-regulatory organizations to which the Company or its securities are subject) applicable to the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries or by which any property or asset of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is bound
or affected (except for such conflicts, defaults, terminations, amendments, accelerations, cancellations and violations as
would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect). Neither the Company nor any of its
Subsidiaries is in violation of its Certificate of Incorporation, By-laws or other organizational documents and neither the
Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is in default (and no event has occurred which with notice or lapse of time or both
could put the Company or any of its Subsidiaries in default) under, and neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries
has taken any action or failed to take any action that would give to others any rights of termination, amendment,
acceleration or cancellation of, any agreement, indenture or instrument to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is
a party or by which any property or assets of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is bound or affected, except for
possible defaults as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect. The businesses of the
Company and its Subsidiaries, if any, are not being conducted, and shall not be conducted so long as the Buyer owns any
of the Securities, in violation of any law, ordinance or regulation of any governmental entity. Except as specifically
contemplated by this Agreement and as required under the 1933 Act and any applicable state securities laws, the
Company is not required to obtain any consent, authorization or order of, or make any filing or registration with, any court,
governmental agency, regulatory agency, self-regulatory organization or stock market or any third party in order for it to
execute, deliver or perform any of its obligations under this Agreement, the Note in accordance with the terms hereof or
thereof or to issue and sell the Note in accordance with the terms hereof and to issue the Conversion Shares upon
conversion of the Note. All consents, authorizations, orders, filings and registrations which the Company is required to
obtain pursuant to the preceding sentence have been obtained or effected on or prior to the date hereof. The Company is
not in violation of the listing requirements of the OTC Pink (the “OTC Pink”), the OTCQB or any similar quotation system,
and does not reasonably anticipate that the Common Stock will be delisted by the OTC Pink, the OTCQB or any similar
quotation system, in the foreseeable future nor are the Company's securities “chilled” by DTC. The Company and its
Subsidiaries are unaware of any facts or circumstances which might give rise to any of the foregoing. 
 

SEC Documents; Financial Statements. The Company has filed all reports, schedules,
forms, statements and other documents required to be filed by it with the SEC pursuant to the reporting requirements of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “1934 Act”) (all of the foregoing filed prior to the date hereof and all
exhibits included therein and financial statements and schedules thereto and documents (other than exhibits to such
documents) incorporated by reference therein, being hereinafter referred to herein as the “SEC Documents”). As of their
respective dates, the SEC Documents complied in all material respects with the requirements of the 1934 Act and the
rules and regulations of the SEC promulgated thereunder applicable to the SEC Documents, and none of the SEC
Documents, at the time they were filed with the SEC, contained any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to state
a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. None of the statements made in any such SEC Documents
is, or has been, required to be amended or updated under applicable law (except for such statements as have been
amended or updated in subsequent filings prior the date hereof). As of their respective dates, the financial statements of
the Company included in the SEC Documents complied as to form in all material respects with applicable accounting
requirements and the published rules and regulations of the SEC with respect thereto. Such financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles, consistently applied, during the
periods involved and fairly present in all material respects the consolidated financial position of the Company and its
consolidated Subsidiaries as of the dates thereof and the consolidated results of their operations and cash flows for the
periods then ended (subject, in the case of unaudited statements, to normal year-end audit adjustments). Except as set
forth in the financial statements of the Company included in the SEC Documents, the Company has no liabilities,
contingent or otherwise, other than (i) liabilities incurred in the ordinary course of business subsequent to June 30, 2019,
and (ii) obligations under contracts and commitments incurred in the ordinary course of business and not required under
generally accepted accounting principles to be reflected in such financial statements, which, individually or in the
aggregate, are not material to the financial condition or operating results of the Company. The Company is subject to the
reporting requirements of the 1934 Act. For the avoidance of doubt, filing of the documents required in this Section 3(g)
via the SEC’s Electronic Data Gathering, Analysis, and Retrieval system (“EDGAR”) shall satisfy all delivery requirements
of this Section 3(g). 
 

Absence of Certain Changes. Since June 30, 2019, there has been no material adverse
change and no material adverse development in the assets, liabilities, business, properties, operations, financial condition,
results of operations, prospects or 1934 Act reporting status of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries. 
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Absence of Litigation. Except as set forth in the SEC documents, there is no action, suit,
claim, proceeding, inquiry or investigation before or by any court, public board, government agency, self-regulatory
organization or body pending or, to the knowledge of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, threatened against or
affecting the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or their officers or directors in their capacity as such, that could have a
Material Adverse Effect. . The Company and its Subsidiaries are unaware of any facts or circumstances which might give
rise to any of the foregoing. 
 

Patents, Copyrights, etc. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries owns or possesses the
requisite licenses or rights to use all patents, patent applications, patent rights, inventions, know-how, trade secrets,
trademarks, trademark applications, service marks, service names, trade names and copyrights (“Intellectual Property”)
necessary to enable it to conduct its business as now operated (and, as presently contemplated to be operated in the
future). Except as disclosed in the SEC Documents, there is no claim or action by any person pertaining to, or proceeding
pending, or to the Company’s knowledge threatened, which challenges the right of the Company or of a Subsidiary with
respect to any Intellectual Property necessary to enable it to conduct its business as now operated (and, as presently
contemplated to be operated in the future); to the best of the Company’s knowledge, the Company’s or its Subsidiaries’
current and intended products, services and processes do not infringe on any Intellectual Property or other rights held by
any person; and the Company is unaware of any facts or circumstances which might give rise to any of the foregoing. The
Company and each of its Subsidiaries have taken reasonable security measures to protect the secrecy, confidentiality and
value of their Intellectual Property. 
 

No Materially Adverse Contracts, Etc. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is
subject to any charter, corporate or other legal restriction, or any judgment, decree, order, rule or regulation which in the
judgment of the Company’s officers has or is expected in the future to have a Material Adverse Effect. Neither the
Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to any contract or agreement which in the judgment of the Company’s
officers has or is expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. 
 

Tax Status. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries has made or filed all federal, state
and foreign income and all other tax returns, reports and declarations required by any jurisdiction to which it is subject
(unless and only to the extent that the Company and each of its Subsidiaries has set aside on its books provisions
reasonably adequate for the payment of all unpaid and unreported taxes) and has paid all taxes and other governmental
assessments and charges that are material in amount, shown or determined to be due on such returns, reports and
declarations, except those being contested in good faith and has set aside on its books provisions reasonably adequate
for the payment of all taxes for periods subsequent to the periods to which such returns, reports or declarations apply.
There are no unpaid taxes in any material amount claimed to be due by the taxing authority of any jurisdiction, and the
officers of the Company know of no basis for any such claim. The Company has not executed a waiver with respect to the
statute of limitations relating to the assessment or collection of any foreign, federal, state or local tax. None of the
Company’s tax returns is presently being audited by any taxing authority. 
 

Certain Transactions. Except for arm’s length transactions pursuant to which the Company
or any of its Subsidiaries makes payments in the ordinary course of business upon terms no less favorable than the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries could obtain from third parties and other than the grant of stock options disclosed on
Schedule 3(c), none of the officers, directors, or employees of the Company is presently a party to any transaction with
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries (other than for services as employees, officers and directors), including any
contract, agreement or other arrangement providing for the furnishing of services to or by providing for rental of real or
personal property to or from, or otherwise requiring payments to or from any officer, director or such employee or, to the
knowledge of the Company, any corporation, partnership, trust or other entity in which any officer, director, or any such
employee has a substantial interest or is an officer, director, trustee or partner. 
 

Disclosure. All information relating to or concerning the Company or any of its Subsidiaries
set forth in this Agreement and provided to the Buyer pursuant to Section 2(d) hereof and otherwise in connection with the
transactions contemplated hereby is true and correct in all material respects and the Company has not omitted to state
any material fact necessary in order to make the statements made herein or therein, in light of the circumstances under
which they were made, not misleading. No event or circumstance has occurred or exists with respect to the Company or
any of its Subsidiaries or its or their business, properties, prospects, operations or financial conditions, which, under
applicable law, rule or regulation, requires public disclosure or announcement by the Company but which has not been so
publicly announced or disclosed (assuming for this purpose that the Company’s reports filed under the 1934 Act are being
incorporated into an effective registration statement filed by the Company under the 1933 Act). 
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Acknowledgment Regarding Buyer’ Purchase of Securities. The Company acknowledges
and agrees that the Buyer is acting solely in the capacity of arm’s length purchasers with respect to this Agreement and
the transactions contemplated hereby. The Company further acknowledges that the Buyer is not acting as a financial
advisor or fiduciary of the Company (or in any similar capacity) with respect to this Agreement and the transactions
contemplated hereby and any statement made by the Buyer or any of its respective representatives or agents in
connection with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby is not advice or a recommendation and is
merely incidental to the Buyer’ purchase of the Securities. The Company further represents to the Buyer that the
Company’s decision to enter into this Agreement has been based solely on the independent evaluation of the Company
and its representatives. 
 

No Integrated Offering. Neither the Company, nor any of its affiliates, nor any person acting
on its or their behalf, has directly or indirectly made any offers or sales in any security or solicited any offers to buy any
security under circumstances that would require registration under the 1933 Act of the issuance of the Securities to the
Buyer. The issuance of the Securities to the Buyer will not be integrated with any other issuance of the Company’s
securities (past, current or future) for purposes of any shareholder approval provisions applicable to the Company or its
securities. 
 

No Brokers. The Company has taken no action which would give rise to any claim by any
person for brokerage commissions, transaction fees or similar payments relating to this Agreement or the transactions
contemplated hereby. 
 

Permits; Compliance. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is in conflict with, or
in default or violation of, any of the franchises, grants, authorizations, licenses, permits, easements, variances,
exemptions, consents, certificates, approvals and orders necessary to own, lease and operate its properties and to carry
on its business as it is now being conducted (collectively, the “Company Permits”), except for any such conflicts, defaults
or violations which, individually or in the aggregate, would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.
Since June 30, 2019, neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has received any notification with respect to
possible conflicts, defaults or violations of applicable laws, except for notices relating to possible conflicts, defaults or
violations, which conflicts, defaults or violations would not have a Material Adverse Effect. 
 

Title to Property. Except as disclosed in the SEC Documents the Company and its
Subsidiaries have good and marketable title in fee simple to all real property and good and marketable title to all personal
property owned by them which is material to the business of the Company and its Subsidiaries, in each case free and
clear of all liens, encumbrances and defects or such as would not have a Material Adverse Effect. Any real property and
facilities held under lease by the Company and its Subsidiaries are held by them under valid, subsisting and enforceable
leases with such exceptions as would not have a Material Adverse Effect. 
 

No Investment Company. The Company is not, and upon the issuance and sale of the
Securities as contemplated by this Agreement will not be an “investment company” required to be registered under the
Investment Company Act of 1940 (an “Investment Company”). The Company is not controlled by an Investment
Company. 
 

Bad Actor. No officer or director of the Company would be disqualified under Rule 506(d) of
the Securities Act as amended on the basis of being a “bad actor” as that term is established in the September 19, 2013
Small Entity Compliance Guide published by the SEC. 
 

Shell Status. The Company represents that it is not a “shell” issuer and has never been a
“shell” issuer, or that if it previously has been a “shell” issuer, that at least twelve (12) months have passed since the
Company has reported Form 10 type information indicating that it is no longer a “shell” issuer. 
 

No-Off Balance Sheet Arrangements. There is no transaction, arrangement, or other
relationship between the Company or any of its Subsidiaries and an unconsolidated or other off balance sheet entity that
is required to be disclosed by the Company in its 1934 Act filings and is not so disclosed or that otherwise could be
reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect. 
 

Manipulation of Price. The Company has not, and to its knowledge no one acting on its
behalf has: (i) taken, directly or indirectly, any action designed to cause or to result, or that could reasonably be expected
to cause or result, in the stabilization or manipulation of the price of any security of the Company to facilitate the sale or
resale of any of the Securities, (ii) sold, bid for, purchased, or paid any compensation for soliciting purchases of, any of the
Securities, or (iii) paid or agreed to pay to any person any compensation for soliciting another to purchase any other
securities of the Company. 
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Breach of Representations and Warranties by the Company . The Company agrees that if
the Company breaches any of the representations or warranties set forth in this Section 3, and in addition to any other
remedies available to the Buyer pursuant to this Agreement and it being considered an Event of Default under Section 3.5
of the Note, the Company shall pay to the Buyer the Standard Liquidated Damages Amount in cash or in shares of
Common Stock at the option of the Company, until such breach is cured. If the Company elects to pay the Standard
Liquidated Damages Amounts in shares of Common Stock, such shares shall be issued at the Conversion Price at the
time of payment. 
 

COVENANTS. 
 

Best Efforts. The parties shall use their commercially reasonable best efforts to satisfy timely
each of the conditions described in Section 7 and 8 of this Agreement. 
 

Intentionally Omitted. 
 

Use of Proceeds. The Company shall use the proceeds from the sale of the Note for
working capital and other general corporate purposes and shall not, directly or indirectly, use such proceeds for any loan
to or investment in any other corporation, partnership, enterprise or other person (except in connection with its currently
existing direct or indirect Subsidiaries).  

 
Expenses. The Company shall reimburse Buyer for expenses incurred by them in

connection with the negotiation, preparation, execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the other
agreements to be executed in connection herewith (“Documents”) in an amount not to exceed $2,750.00 which shall be
paid to Buyer’s legal counsel at Closing. 
 

Financial Information. The Company agrees to send or make available the following reports
to the Buyer until the Buyer transfers, assigns, or sells all of the Securities: (i) within ten (10) days after the filing with the
SEC, a copy of its Annual Report on Form 10-K its Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and any Current Reports on Form 8-
K; (ii) within one (1) day after release, copies of all press releases issued by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries; and
(iii) contemporaneously with the making available or giving to the shareholders of the Company, copies of any notices or
other information the Company makes available or gives to such shareholders. For the avoidance of doubt, filing the
documents required in (i) above via EDGAR or releasing any documents set forth in (ii) above via a recognized wire
service shall satisfy the delivery requirements of this Section 4(f). 
 

Listing. The Company shall promptly secure the listing of the Conversion Shares upon each
national securities exchange or automated quotation system, if any, upon which shares of Common Stock are then listed
(subject to official notice of issuance) and, so long as the Buyer owns any of the Securities, shall maintain, so long as any
other shares of Common Stock shall be so listed, such listing of all Conversion Shares from time to time issuable upon
conversion of the Note. The Company will obtain and, so long as the Buyer owns any of the Securities, maintain the listing
and trading of its Common Stock on the OTC Pink, OTCQB or any equivalent replacement exchange, the Nasdaq
National Market (“Nasdaq”), the Nasdaq SmallCap Market (“Nasdaq SmallCap”), the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”),
or the NYSE American and will comply in all respects with the Company’s reporting, filing and other obligations under the
bylaws or rules of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”) and such exchanges, as applicable. The
Company shall promptly provide to the Buyer copies of any material notices it receives from the OTC Pink, OTCQB and
any other exchanges or quotation systems on which the Common Stock is then listed regarding the continued eligibility of
the Common Stock for listing on such exchanges and quotation systems. The Company shall pay any and all fees and
expenses in connection with satisfying its obligation under this Section 4(g). 
 

Corporate Existence. So long as the Buyer beneficially owns any Note, the Company shall
maintain its corporate existence and shall not sell all or substantially all of the Company’s assets, except in the event of a
merger or consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets, where the surviving or successor entity
in such transaction (i) assumes the Company’s obligations hereunder and under the agreements and instruments entered
into in connection herewith and (ii) is a publicly traded corporation whose Common Stock is listed for trading on the OTC
Pink, OTCQB, Nasdaq, NasdaqSmallCap, NYSE or AMEX. 
 

No Integration. The Company shall not make any offers or sales of any security (other than
the Securities) under circumstances that would require registration of the Securities being offered or sold hereunder under
the 1933 Act or cause the offering of the Securities to be integrated with any other offering of securities by the Company
for the purpose of any stockholder approval provision applicable to the Company or its securities. 
 

Failure to Comply with the 1934 Act . So long as the Buyer beneficially owns the Note, the
Company shall comply with the reporting requirements of the 1934 Act; and the Company shall continue to be subject to
the reporting requirements of the 1934 Act. 
 

[Intentionally Omitted]. 
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[Intentionally Omitted] 
 

[Intentionally Omitted] 
 

[Intentionally Omitted] 
 

Breach of Covenants. The Company agrees that if the Company breaches any of the
covenants set forth in this Section 4, and in addition to any other remedies available to the Buyer pursuant to this
Agreement, it will be considered an Event of Default under Section 3.4 of the Note. 
 

TRANSACTION EXPENSE AMOUNT.  
 
Upon Closing, the Company shall pay Fifteen Thousand and 00/100 United States Dollars

(US$15,000.00) to Auctus Fund Management, LLC (“Auctus Management”) to cover the Holder's due diligence,
monitoring, and other transaction costs incurred for services rendered in connection herewith (the “Transaction Expense
Amount”). The Transaction Expense Amount shall be offset against the proceeds of the Note and shall be paid to Auctus
Management upon the execution hereof.
 

TRANSFER AGENT INSTRUCTIONS.  
 
The Company shall issue irrevocable instructions to its transfer agent to issue certificates, registered in

the name of the Buyer or its nominee, for the Conversion Shares in such amounts as specified from time to time by the
Buyer to the Company upon conversion of the Note in accordance with the terms thereof (the “Irrevocable Transfer Agent
Instructions”). In the event that the Borrower proposes to replace its transfer agent, the Borrower shall provide, prior to the
effective date of such replacement, a fully executed Irrevocable Transfer Agent Instructions in a form as initially delivered
pursuant to the Purchase Agreement (including but not limited to the provision to irrevocably reserve shares of Common
Stock in the Reserved Amount) signed by the successor transfer agent to Borrower and the Borrower. Prior to registration
of the Conversion Shares under the 1933 Act or the date on which the Conversion Shares may be sold pursuant to Rule
144 without any restriction as to the number of Securities as of a particular date that can then be immediately sold, all
such certificates shall bear the restrictive legend specified in Section 2(g) of this Agreement. The Company warrants that:
(i) no instruction other than the Irrevocable Transfer Agent Instructions referred to in this Section, and stop transfer
instructions to give effect to Section 2(f) hereof (in the case of the Conversion Shares, prior to registration of the
Conversion Shares under the 1933 Act or the date on which the Conversion Shares may be sold pursuant to Rule 144
without any restriction as to the number of Securities as of a particular date that can then be immediately sold), will be
given by the Company to its transfer agent and that the Securities shall otherwise be freely transferable on the books and
records of the Company as and to the extent provided in this Agreement and the Note; (ii) it will not direct its transfer
agent not to transfer or delay, impair, and/or hinder its transfer agent in transferring (or issuing)(electronically or in
certificated form) any certificate for Conversion Shares to be issued to the Buyer upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant
to the Note as and when required by the Note and this Agreement; and (iii) it will not fail to remove (or directs its transfer
agent not to remove or impairs, delays, and/or hinders its transfer agent from removing) any restrictive legend (or to
withdraw any stop transfer instructions in respect thereof) on any certificate for any Conversion Shares issued to the
Buyer upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to the Note as and when required by the Note and this Agreement.
Nothing in this Section shall affect in any way the Buyer’s obligations and agreement set forth in Section 2(g) hereof to
comply with all applicable prospectus delivery requirements, if any, upon re-sale of the Securities. If the Buyer provides
the Company with (i) an opinion of counsel in form, substance and scope customary for opinions in comparable
transactions, to the effect that a public sale or transfer of such Securities may be made without registration under the 1933
Act and such sale or transfer is effected or (ii) the Buyer provides reasonable assurances that the Securities can be sold
pursuant to Rule 144, the Company shall permit the transfer, and, in the case of the Conversion Shares, promptly instruct
its transfer agent to issue one or more certificates, free from restrictive legend, in such name and in such denominations
as specified by the Buyer. The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder will cause
irreparable harm to the Buyer, by vitiating the intent and purpose of the transactions contemplated hereby. Accordingly,
the Company acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its obligations under this Section may be inadequate
and agrees, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Company of the provisions of this Section, that the Buyer
shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies, to an injunction restraining any breach and requiring
immediate transfer, without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond or other security being required.
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CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO THE COMPANY’S OBLIGATIONS TO SELL .  
 
The obligation of the Company hereunder to issue and sell the Note to the Buyer at the Closing is

subject to the satisfaction, at or before the Closing Date of each of the following conditions thereto, provided that these
conditions are for the Company’s sole benefit and may be waived by the Company at any time in its sole discretion:
 

The Buyer shall have executed this Agreement and delivered the same to the Company. 
 

The Buyer shall have delivered the Purchase Price in accordance with Section 1(b) above. 
 

The representations and warranties of the Buyer shall be true and correct in all material
respects as of the date when made and as of the Closing Date as though made at that time (except for representations
and warranties that speak as of a specific date), and the Buyer shall have performed, satisfied and complied in all material
respects with the covenants, agreements and conditions required by this Agreement to be performed, satisfied or
complied with by the Buyer at or prior to the Closing Date. 
 

No litigation, statute, rule, regulation, executive order, decree, ruling or injunction shall have
been enacted, entered, promulgated or endorsed by or in any court or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction or
any self-regulatory organization having authority over the matters contemplated hereby which prohibits the consummation
of any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 
 

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO THE BUYER’S OBLIGATION TO PURCHASE .  
 
The obligation of the Buyer hereunder to purchase the Note at the Closing is subject to the satisfaction,

at or before the Closing Date of each of the following conditions, provided that these conditions are for the Buyer’s sole
benefit and may be waived by the Buyer at any time in its sole discretion:
 

The Company shall have executed this Agreement and delivered the same to the Buyer. 
 

The Company shall have delivered to the Buyer the duly executed Note and Warrant. 
 

The Irrevocable Transfer Agent Instructions, in form and substance satisfactory to a
majority-in-interest of the Buyer, shall have been delivered to and acknowledged in writing by the Company’s Transfer
Agent. 
 

The representations and warranties of the Company shall be true and correct in all material
respects as of the date when made and as of the Closing Date as though made at such time (except for representations
and warranties that speak as of a specific date) and the Company shall have performed, satisfied and complied in all
material respects with the covenants, agreements and conditions required by this Agreement to be performed, satisfied or
complied with by the Company at or prior to the Closing Date. The Buyer shall have received a certificate or certificates,
executed by the chief executive officer of the Company, dated as of the Closing Date, to the foregoing effect and as to
such other matters as may be reasonably requested by the Buyer including, but not limited to certificates with respect to
the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation, By-laws and Board of Directors’ resolutions relating to the transactions
contemplated hereby. 
 

No litigation, statute, rule, regulation, executive order, decree, ruling or injunction shall have
been enacted, entered, promulgated or endorsed by or in any court or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction or
any self-regulatory organization having authority over the matters contemplated hereby which prohibits the consummation
of any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 
 

No event shall have occurred which could reasonably be expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect on the Company including but not limited to a change in the 1934 Act reporting status of the Company or
the failure of the Company to be timely in its 1934 Act reporting obligations. 
 

The Conversion Shares shall have been authorized for quotation on the OTC Pink, OTCQB
or any similar quotation system and trading in the Common Stock on the OTC Pink, OTCQB or any similar quotation
system shall not have been suspended by the SEC or the OTC Pink, OTCQB or any similar quotation system. 
 

The Buyer shall have received an officer’s certificate described in Section 3(c) above, dated
as of the Closing Date. 
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GOVERNING LAW; MISCELLANEOUS. 
 

Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of Nevada without regard to principles of conflicts of laws. Any action brought by either party against the
other concerning the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, the Note or any other agreement, certificate,
instrument or document contemplated hereby shall be brought only in the state courts of Massachusetts or in the federal
courts located in the state of Massachusetts. The parties to this Agreement hereby irrevocably waive any objection to
jurisdiction and venue of any action instituted hereunder and shall not assert any defense based on lack of jurisdiction or
venue or based upon forum non conveniens . EACH PARTY HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY
HAVE TO, AND AGREES NOT TO REQUEST, A JURY TRIAL FOR THE ADJUDICATION OF ANY DISPUTE
HEREUNDER OR UNDER ANY OTHER TRANSACTION DOCUMENT OR IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING OUT
OF THIS AGREEMENT, ANY OTHER TRANSACTION DOCUMENT OR ANY TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED
HEREBY OR THEREBY. The prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party its reasonable attorney's
fees and costs. In the event that any provision of this Agreement or any other agreement delivered in connection herewith
is invalid or unenforceable under any applicable statute or rule of law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to
the extent that it may conflict therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any such
provision which may prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other
provision of any agreement. Each party hereby irrevocably waives personal service of process and consents to process
being served in any suit, action or proceeding in connection with this Agreement or any other Transaction Document by
mailing a copy thereof via registered or certified mail or overnight delivery (with evidence of delivery) to such party at the
address in effect for notices to it under this Agreement and agrees that such service shall constitute good and sufficient
service of process and notice thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve
process in any other manner permitted by law. 
 

Counterparts; Signatures by Facsimile. This Agreement may be executed in one or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement and
shall become effective when counterparts have been signed by each party and delivered to the other party. This
Agreement, once executed by a party, may be delivered to the other party hereto by facsimile transmission of a copy of
this Agreement bearing the signature of the party so delivering this Agreement. 
 

Construction; Headings. This Agreement shall be deemed to be jointly drafted by the
Company and the Buyer and shall not be construed against any person as the drafter hereof. The headings of this
Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not form part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Agreement. 
 

Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable
under any applicable statute or rule of law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent that it may
conflict therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any provision hereof which
may prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision
hereof. 
 

Entire Agreement; Amendments. This Agreement, the Note and the instruments referenced
herein contain the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the matters covered herein and therein and, except
as specifically set forth herein or therein, neither the Company nor the Buyer makes any representation, warranty,
covenant or undertaking with respect to such matters. No provision of this Agreement may be waived or amended other
than by an instrument in writing signed by the majority in interest of the Buyer. 
 

Notices. All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals, and other communications
required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and, unless otherwise specified herein, shall be (i) personally served,
(ii) deposited in the mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, (iii) delivered by reputable air
courier service with charges prepaid, or (iv) transmitted by hand delivery, telegram, email, or facsimile, addressed as set
forth below or to such other address as such party shall have specified most recently by written notice. Any notice or other
communication required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be deemed effective (a) upon hand delivery or delivery
by email or facsimile, with accurate confirmation generated by the transmitting facsimile machine, at the address or
number designated below (if delivered on a business day during normal business hours where such notice is to be
received), or the first business day following such delivery (if delivered other than on a business day during normal
business hours where such notice is to be received) or (b) on the second business day following the date of mailing by
express courier service, fully prepaid, addressed to such address, or upon actual receipt of such mailing, whichever shall
first occur. The addresses for such communications shall be: 
 

If to the Company, to:
 

American Battery Metals Corporation
930 Tahoe Blvd., Suite 802-16 Incline Village, NV
89451
Attn: Douglas Cole
E-mail: doug@batterymetals.com
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If to the Buyer:
 
Auctus Fund, LLC
545 Boylston Street, 2nd Floor Boston, MA
02116
Attn: Lou Posner Facsimile: (617) 532-6420
 

With a copy to (which copy shall not constitute notice):
 

Chad Friend, Esq., LL.M.
Anthony L.G., PLLC
625 N. Flagler Drive, Suite 600 West Palm Beach, FL 33401
E-mail: CFriend@AnthonyPLLC.com

 
Each party shall provide notice to the other party of any change in address.

 
Successors and Assigns . This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of

the parties and their successors and assigns. Neither the Company nor the Buyer shall assign this Agreement or any
rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the other. Notwithstanding the foregoing, subject to
Section 2(f), the Buyer may assign its rights hereunder to any person that purchases Securities in a private transaction
from the Buyer or to any of its “affiliates,” as that term is defined under the 1934 Act, without the consent of the Company. 
 

Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is intended for the benefit of the parties hereto
and their respective permitted successors and assigns, and is not for the benefit of, nor may any provision hereof be
enforced by, any other person. 
 

Survival. The representations and warranties of the Company and the agreements and
covenants set forth in this Agreement shall survive the closing hereunder not withstanding any due diligence investigation
conducted by or on behalf of the Buyer. The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Buyer and all their
officers, directors, employees and agents for loss or damage arising as a result of or related to any breach or alleged
breach by the Company of any of its representations, warranties and covenants set forth in this Agreement or any of its
covenants and obligations under this Agreement, including advancement of expenses as they are incurred. 
 

Further Assurances. Each party shall do and perform, or cause to be done and performed,
all such further acts and things, and shall execute and deliver all such other agreements, certificates, instruments and
documents, as the other party may reasonably request in order to carry out the intent and accomplish the purposes of this
Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby. 
 

No Strict Construction. The language used in this Agreement will be deemed to be the
language chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rules of strict construction will be applied against
any party. 
 

Remedies. The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder will
cause irreparable harm to the Buyer by vitiating the intent and purpose of the transaction contemplated hereby.
Accordingly, the Company acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its obligations under this Agreement will
be inadequate and agrees, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Company of the provisions of this
Agreement, that the Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies at law or in equity, and in addition to
the penalties assessable herein, to an injunction or injunctions restraining, preventing or curing any breach of this
Agreement and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions hereof, without the necessity of showing economic loss
and without any bond or other security being required. 
 

Publicity. The Company, and the Buyer shall have the right to review a reasonable period of
time before issuance of any press releases, SEC, OTCQB or FINRA filings, or any other public statements with respect to
the transactions contemplated hereby; provided, however, that the Company shall be entitled, without the prior approval
of the Buyer, to make any press release or SEC, OTCQB (or other applicable trading market) or FINRA filings with
respect to such transactions as is required by applicable law and regulations (although the Buyer shall be consulted by the
Company in connection with any such press release prior to its release and shall be provided with a copy thereof and be
given an opportunity to comment thereon). 
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Indemnification. In consideration of the Buyer’s execution and delivery of this Agreement and
acquiring the Securities hereunder, and in addition to all of the Company’s other obligations under this Agreement or the
Note, the Company shall defend, protect, indemnify and hold harmless the Buyer and its stockholders, partners, members,
officers, directors, employees and direct or indirect investors and any of the foregoing persons’ agents or other
representatives (including, without limitation, those retained in connection with the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement) (collectively, the “Indemnitees”) from and against any and all actions, causes of action, suits, claims, losses,
costs, penalties, fees, liabilities and damages, and expenses in connection therewith (irrespective of whether any such
Indemnitee is a party to the action for which indemnification hereunder is sought), and including reasonable attorneys’ fees
and disbursements (the “Indemnified Liabilities”), incurred by any Indemnitee as a result of, or arising out of, or relating to
(a) any misrepresentation or breach of any representation or warranty made by the Company in this Agreement or the
Note or any other agreement, certificate, instrument or document contemplated hereby or thereby, (b) any breach of any
covenant, agreement or obligation of the Company contained in this Agreement or the Note or any other agreement,
certificate, instrument or document contemplated hereby or thereby or (c) any cause of action, suit or claim brought or
made against such Indemnitee by a third party (but excluding any governmental or regulatory agency but including for
these purposes a derivative action brought on behalf of the Company) and arising out of or resulting from (i) the execution,
delivery, performance or enforcement of this Agreement or the Note or any other agreement, certificate, instrument or
document contemplated hereby or thereby, or (ii) any transaction financed or to be financed in whole or in part, directly or
indirectly, with the proceeds of the issuance of the Securities. To the extent that the foregoing undertaking by the
Company may be unenforceable for any reason, the Company shall make the maximum contribution to the payment and
satisfaction of each of the Indemnified Liabilities that is permissible under applicable law 
 
 

[signature page follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Buyer and the Company have caused this Agreement to be duly
executed as of the date first above written.

 
 

AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
By: /s/ Douglas D Cole
Name: Douglas Cole
Title: Chief Executive Officer

 
AUCTUS FUND, LLC

 
 
By: /s/ Lou Posner
Name: Lou Posner
Title: Managing Director

 
 

AGGREGATE SUBSCRIPTION AMOUNT:
 

US$150,000.00 
 

US$150,000.00 
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Exhibit 10.6

 
NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE
SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE CONVERTIBLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES
MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN
EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL (WHICH COUNSEL SHALL BE SELECTED BY THE HOLDER), IN
A GENERALLY ACCEPTABLE FORM, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II)
UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR RULE 144A UNDER SAID ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING THE
FOREGOING, THE SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT
OR OTHER LOAN OR FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.

 
 

 
CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTE

 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION, a Nevada corporation (hereinafter called
the “Borrower”) (Trading Symbol: ABML), hereby promises to pay to the order of AUCTUS FUND, LLC , a Delaware
limited liability company, or registered assigns (the “Holder”) the sum of US$150,000.00 together with any interest as set
forth herein, on April 10, 2021 (the “Maturity Date”), and to pay interest on the unpaid principal balance hereof at the rate
of ten percent (10%) (the “Interest Rate”) per annum from the date hereof (the “Issue Date”) until the same becomes due
and payable, whether at maturity or upon acceleration or by prepayment or otherwise. This Note may not be prepaid in
whole or in part except as otherwise explicitly set forth herein with the written consent of the Holder which may be
withheld for any reason or for no reason. Any amount of principal or interest on this Note which is not paid when due shall
bear interest at the rate of the lesser of (i) twenty-four percent (24%) per annum and (ii) the maximum amount permitted
under law from the due date thereof until the same is paid (the “Default Interest”). Interest shall commence accruing on
the date that the Note is fully paid and shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year and the actual number of days
elapsed. All payments due hereunder (to the extent not converted into common stock, $0.001 par value per share (the
“Common Stock”) in accordance with the terms hereof) shall be made in lawful money of the United States of America. All
payments shall be made at such address as the Holder shall hereafter give to the Borrower by written notice made in
accordance with the provisions of this Note. Whenever any amount expressed to be due by the terms of this Note is due
on any day which is not a business day, the same shall instead be due on the next succeeding day which is a business
day and, in the case of any interest payment date which is not the date on which this Note is paid in full, the extension of
the due date thereof shall not be taken into account for purposes of determining the amount of interest due on such date.
As used in this Note, the term “business day” shall mean any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or a day on which
commercial banks in the city of New York, New York are authorized or required by law or executive order to remain
closed.

 
Each capitalized term used herein, and not otherwise defined, shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in that certain
Securities Purchase Agreement dated the date hereof, pursuant to which this Note was originally issued (the “Purchase
Agreement”).

 
This Note is free from all taxes, liens, claims and encumbrances with respect to the issue thereof and shall not be
subject to preemptive rights or other similar rights of shareholders of the Borrower and will not impose personal liability
upon the holder thereof.

 
The following terms shall also apply to this Note:

Principal Amount: US$150,000.00 Issue Date: April 10, 2020 Purchase Price: US$150,000.00
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ARTICLE I. CONVERSION RIGHTS
 

Conversion Right. The Holder shall have the right from time to time, and at any time following the
Issue Date, and ending on the later of (i) the Maturity Date and (ii) the date of payment of the Default Amount (as defined
in Article III) pursuant to Section 1.6(a) or Article III, each in respect of the remaining outstanding principal amount of this
Note to convert all or any part of the outstanding and unpaid principal amount of this Note into fully paid and non-
assessable shares of Common Stock, as such Common Stock exists on the Issue Date, or any shares of capital stock or
other securities of the Borrower into which such Common Stock shall hereafter be changed or reclassified at the
Conversion Price (as defined below) determined as provided herein (a “Conversion”); provided, however, that in no
event shall the Holder be entitled to convert any portion of this Note in excess of that portion of this Note upon conversion
of which the sum of (1) the number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by the Holder and its affiliates (other
than shares of Common Stock which may be deemed beneficially owned through the ownership of the unconverted
portion of the Notes or the unexercised or unconverted portion of any other security of the Borrower subject to a
limitation on conversion or exercise analogous to the limitations contained herein) and (2) the number of shares of
Common Stock issuable upon the conversion of the portion of this Note with respect to which the determination of this
proviso is being made, would result in beneficial ownership by the Holder and its affiliates of more than 4.99% of the
outstanding shares of Common Stock. For purposes of the proviso to the immediately preceding sentence, beneficial
ownership shall be determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(the “Exchange Act”), and Regulations 13D-G thereunder, except as otherwise provided in clause (1) of such proviso.
The number of shares of Common Stock to be issued upon each conversion of this Note shall be determined by dividing
the Conversion Amount (as defined below) by the applicable Conversion Price then in effect on the date specified in the
notice of conversion, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Notice of Conversion”), delivered to the Borrower or
Borrower’s transfer agent by the Holder in accordance with Section 1.4 below; provided that the Notice of Conversion is
submitted by facsimile or e-mail (or by other means resulting in, or reasonably expected to result in, notice) to the
Borrower or Borrower’s transfer agent before 11:59 p.m., New York, New York time on such conversion date (the
“Conversion Date”). The term “Conversion Amount” means, with respect to any conversion of this Note, the sum of (1)
the principal amount of this Note to be converted in such conversion plus (2) at the Holder’s option, accrued and unpaid
interest, if any, on such principal amount at the interest rates provided in this Note to the Conversion Date, provided
however, that the Borrower shall have the right to pay any or all interest in cash plus (3) at the Holder’s option, Default
Interest, if any, on the amounts referred to in the immediately preceding clauses (1) and/or (2) plus (4) at the Holder’s
option, any amounts owed to the Holder pursuant to Sections 1.3 and 1.4(g) hereof. 
 

Conversion Price. 
 

Calculation of Conversion Price. Subject to the adjustments described herein, the
conversion price (the “Conversion Price”) shall equal the Variable Conversion Price (as defined herein) (subject to
equitable adjustments for stock splits, stock dividends or rights offerings by the Borrower relating to the Borrower’s
securities or the securities of any subsidiary of the Borrower, combinations, recapitalization, reclassifications,
extraordinary distributions and similar events). The “Variable Conversion Price” shall mean 68% multiplied by the Market
Price (as defined herein) (representing a discount rate of 32%). “Market Price” means the lowest Trading Price (as
defined below) for the Common Stock during the twenty (20) Trading Day period ending on the latest complete Trading
Day prior to the Conversion Date. “Trading Price” means, for any security as of any date, the lowest traded price on the
OTC Pink, OTCQB or applicable trading market as reported by a reliable reporting service (“Reporting Service”)
designated by the Holder or, if the OTC Pink is not the principal trading market for such security, the trading price of such
security on the principal securities exchange or trading market where such security is listed or traded or, if no trading
price of such security is available in any of the foregoing manners, the average of the trading prices of any market
makers for such security that are listed in the “pink sheets” by the National Quotation Bureau, Inc. To the extent the
Conversion Price of the Borrower’s Common Stock closes below the par value per share, the Borrower will take all steps
necessary to solicit the consent of the stockholders to reduce the par value to the lowest value possible under law. The
Borrower agrees to honor all conversions submitted pending this adjustment. If the shares of the Borrower’s Common
Stock have not been delivered within three (3) business days to the Borrower or Borrower’s transfer agent, the Notice of
Conversion may be rescinded. If in the case that the Borrower’s Common Stock is “chilled” for deposit into the DTC
system and only eligible for clearing deposit, an additional 10% discount shall apply for all future conversions under all
Notes while the “chill” is in effect. Additionally, if the Borrower ceases to be a reporting company pursuant to the 1934
Act, an additional 15% discount will be attributed to the Conversion Price. If the Trading Price cannot be calculated for
such security on such date in the manner provided above, the Trading Price shall be the fair market value as mutually
determined by the Borrower and the holders of a majority in interest of the Notes being converted for which the
calculation of the Trading Price is required in order to determine the Conversion Price of such Notes. “Trading Day” shall
mean any day on which the Common Stock is tradable for any period on the OTC Pink, OTCQB or on the principal
securities exchange or other securities market on which the Common Stock is then being traded. The Borrower shall be
responsible for the fees of its transfer agent and all DTC fees associated with any such issuance. 
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Conversion Price During Major Announcements . Notwithstanding anything contained in
Section 1.2(a) to the contrary, in the event the Borrower (i) makes a public announcement that it intends to consolidate or
merge with any other corporation (other than a merger in which the Borrower is the surviving or continuing corporation
and its capital stock is unchanged) or sell or transfer all or substantially all of the assets of the Borrower or (ii) any
person, group or entity (including the Borrower) publicly announces a tender offer to purchase 50% or more of the
Borrower’s Common Stock (or any other takeover scheme) (the date of the announcement referred to in clause (i) or (ii)
is hereinafter referred to as the “Announcement Date”), then the Conversion Price shall, effective upon the
Announcement Date and continuing through the Adjusted Conversion Price Termination Date (as defined below), be
equal to the lower of (x) the Conversion Price which would have been applicable for a Conversion occurring on the
Announcement Date and (y) the Conversion Price that would otherwise be in effect. From and after the Adjusted
Conversion Price Termination Date, the Conversion Price shall be determined as set forth in this Section 1.2(a). For
purposes hereof, “Adjusted Conversion Price Termination Date” shall mean, with respect to any proposed transaction or
tender offer (or takeover scheme) for which a public announcement as contemplated by this Section 1.2(b) has been
made, the date upon which the Borrower (in the case of clause (i) above) or the person, group or entity (in the case of
clause (ii) above) consummates or publicly announces the termination or abandonment of the proposed transaction or
tender offer (or takeover scheme) which caused this Section 1.2(b) to become operative. 
 

Pro Rata Conversion; Disputes. In the event of a dispute as to the number of shares of
Common Stock issuable to the Holder in connection with a conversion of this Note, the Borrower shall issue to the Holder
the number of shares of Common Stock not in dispute and resolve such dispute in accordance with Section 4.13. 
 

If at any time the Conversion Price as determined hereunder for any conversion would be
less than the par value of the Common Stock, then the Conversion Price hereunder shall equal such par value for such
conversion and the Conversion Amount for such conversion shall be increased to include Additional Principal, where
“Additional Principal” means such additional amount to be added to the Conversion Amount to the extent necessary to
cause the number of conversion shares issuable upon such conversion to equal the same number of conversion shares
as would have been issued had the Conversion Price not been subject to the minimum price set forth in this Section
1.2(c). 
 

Authorized Shares. The Borrower covenants that during the period the conversion right exists, the
Borrower will reserve from its authorized and unissued Common Stock a sufficient number of shares, free from
preemptive rights, to provide for the issuance of Common Stock upon the full conversion of this Note issued pursuant to
the Purchase Agreement. The Borrower is required at all times to have authorized and reserved four times the number of
shares that is actually issuable upon full conversion of the Note (based on the Conversion Price of the Notes in effect
from time to time) (the “Reserved Amount”). The Reserved Amount shall be increased from time to time in accordance
with the Borrower’s obligations pursuant to Section 3(d) of the Purchase Agreement. The Borrower represents that upon
issuance, such shares will be duly and validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable. In addition, if the Borrower shall
issue any securities or make any change to its capital structure which would change the number of shares of Common
Stock into which the Notes shall be convertible at the then current Conversion Price, the Borrower shall at the same time
make proper provision so that thereafter there shall be a sufficient number of shares of Common Stock authorized and
reserved, free from preemptive rights, for conversion of the outstanding Notes. The Borrower (i) acknowledges that it has
irrevocably instructed its transfer agent to issue certificates for the Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note,
and (ii) agrees that its issuance of this Note shall constitute full authority to its officers and agents who are charged with
the duty of executing stock certificates to execute and issue the necessary certificates for shares of Common Stock in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Note. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall the Reserved
Amount be lower than the initial Reserved Amount, regardless of any prior conversions. 
 

Method of Conversion. 
 

Mechanics of Conversion. Subject to Section 1.1, this Note may be converted by the
Holder in whole or in part at any time from time to time after the Issue Date, by (A) submitting to the Borrower or
Borrower’s transfer agent a Notice of Conversion (by facsimile, e-mail or other reasonable means of communication
dispatched on the Conversion Date prior to 11:59 p.m., New York, New York time) and (B) subject to Section 1.4(b),
surrendering this Note at the principal office of the Borrower. 
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Surrender of Note Upon Conversion. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth
herein, upon conversion of this Note in accordance with the terms hereof, the Holder shall not be required to physically
surrender this Note to the Borrower unless the entire unpaid principal amount of this Note is so converted. The Holder
and the Borrower shall maintain records showing the principal amount so converted and the dates of such conversions or
shall use such other method, reasonably satisfactory to the Holder and the Borrower, so as not to require physical
surrender of this Note upon each such conversion. In the event of any dispute or discrepancy, such records of the
Borrower shall, prima facie, be controlling and determinative in the absence of manifest error. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, if any portion of this Note is converted as aforesaid, the Holder may not transfer this Note unless the Holder
first physically surrenders this Note to the Borrower, whereupon the Borrower will forthwith issue and deliver upon the
order of the Holder a new Note of like tenor, registered as the Holder (upon payment by the Holder of any applicable
transfer taxes) may request, representing in the aggregate the remaining unpaid principal amount of this Note. The
Holder and any assignee, by acceptance of this Note, acknowledge and agree that, by reason of the provisions of this
paragraph, following conversion of a portion of this Note, the unpaid and unconverted principal amount of this Note
represented by this Note may be less than the amount stated on the face hereof. 
 

Payment of Taxes. The Borrower shall not be required to pay any tax which may be
payable in respect of any transfer involved in the issue and delivery of shares of Common Stock or other securities or
property on conversion of this Note in a name other than that of the Holder (or in street name), and the Borrower shall
not be required to issue or deliver any such shares or other securities or property unless and until the person or persons
(other than the Holder or the custodian in whose street name such shares are to be held for the Holder’s account)
requesting the issuance thereof shall have paid to the Borrower the amount of any such tax or shall have established to
the satisfaction of the Borrower that such tax has been paid. 
 

Delivery of Common Stock Upon Conversion . Upon receipt by the Borrower from the
Holder of a facsimile transmission or e-mail (or other reasonable means of communication) of a Notice of Conversion
meeting the requirements for conversion as provided in this Section 1.4, the Borrower shall issue and deliver or cause to
be issued and delivered to or upon the order of the Holder certificates for the Common Stock issuable upon such
conversion within three (3) business days after such receipt (the “Deadline”) (and, solely in the case of conversion of the
entire unpaid principal amount hereof, surrender of this Note) in accordance with the terms hereof and the Purchase
Agreement. 
 

Obligation of Borrower to Deliver Common Stock . Upon receipt by the Borrower of a Notice
of Conversion, the Holder shall be deemed to be the holder of record of the Common Stock issuable upon such
conversion, the outstanding principal amount and the amount of accrued and unpaid interest on this Note shall be
reduced to reflect such conversion, and, unless the Borrower defaults on its obligations under this Article I, all rights with
respect to the portion of this Note being so converted shall forthwith terminate except the right to receive the Common
Stock or other securities, cash or other assets, as herein provided, on such conversion. If the Holder shall have given a
Notice of Conversion as provided herein, the Borrower’s obligation to issue and deliver the certificates for Common Stock
shall be absolute and unconditional, irrespective of the absence of any action by the Holder to enforce the same, any
waiver or consent with respect to any provision thereof, the recovery of any judgment against any person or any action
to enforce the same, any failure or delay in the enforcement of any other obligation of the Borrower to the holder of
record, or any setoff, counterclaim, recoupment, limitation or termination, or any breach or alleged breach by the Holder
of any obligation to the Borrower, and irrespective of any other circumstance which might otherwise limit such obligation
of the Borrower to the Holder in connection with such conversion. The Conversion Date specified in the Notice of
Conversion shall be the Conversion Date so long as the Notice of Conversion is sent by the Holder to the Borrower or
Borrower’s transfer agent before 11:59 p.m., New York, New York time, on such date. 
 

Delivery of Common Stock by Electronic Transfer . In lieu of delivering physical certificates
representing the Common Stock issuable upon conversion, provided the Borrower is participating in the Depository Trust
Company (“DTC”) Fast Automated Securities Transfer (“FAST”) program, upon request of the Holder and its compliance
with the provisions contained in Section 1.1 and in this Section 1.4, the Borrower shall use its commercially reasonable
best efforts to cause its transfer agent to electronically transmit the Common Stock issuable upon conversion to the
Holder by crediting the account of Holder’s Prime Broker with DTC through its Deposit Withdrawal At Custodian
(“DWAC”) system. 
 

DTC Eligibility & Market Loss . If the Borrower fails to maintain its status as “DTC Eligible”
for any reason, or, if the Conversion Price is less than $0.01 at any time after the Issue Date, then an additional 10%
discount shall apply to the Conversion Price for all future conversions under the Note, subject to adjustment as provided
in this Note. 
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Failure to Deliver Common Stock Prior to Delivery Deadline . Without in any way limiting
the Holder’s right to pursue other remedies, including actual damages and/or equitable relief, the parties agree that if
delivery of the Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note is not delivered by the Deadline (other than a failure
due to the circumstances described in Section 1.3 above, which failure shall be governed by such Section) the Borrower
shall pay to the Holder $500 per day in cash, for each day beyond the Deadline that the Borrower fails to deliver such
Common Stock until the Borrower issues and delivers a certificate to the Holder or credit the Holder's balance account
with OTC for the number of shares of Common Stock to which the Holder is entitled upon such Holder's conversion of
any Conversion Amount (under Holder's and Borrower's expectation that any damages will tack back to the Issue Date)..
Such cash amount shall be paid to Holder by the fifth day of the month following the month in which it has accrued or, at
the option of the Holder (by written notice to the Borrower by the first day of the month following the month in which it
has accrued), shall be added to the principal amount of this Note, in which event interest shall accrue thereon in
accordance with the terms of this Note and such additional principal amount shall be convertible into Common Stock in
accordance with the terms of this Note. The Borrower agrees that the right to convert is a valuable right to the Holder.
The damages resulting from a failure, attempt to frustrate, interference with such conversion right are difficult if not
impossible to qualify. Accordingly, the parties acknowledge that the liquidated damages provision contained in this
Section 1.4(h) are justified. 
 

Rescindment of a Notice of Conversion. If (i) the Borrower fails to provide any of the shares
of the Borrower’s Common Stock requested in the Notice of Conversion within three (3) business days from the date of
receipt of the Note of Conversion, (ii) the Holder is unable to procure a legal opinion required to have the shares of the
Borrower’s Common Stock issued unrestricted and/or deposited to sell for any reason related to the Borrower’s standing,
(iii) the Holder is unable to deposit the shares of the Borrower’s Common Stock requested in the Notice of Conversion for
any reason related to the Borrower’s standing, (iv) at any time after a missed Deadline, at the Holder’s sole discretion, or
(v) if OTC Markets changes the Borrower's designation to ‘Limited Information’ (Yield), ‘No Information’ (Stop Sign),
‘Caveat Emptor’ (Skull & Crossbones), ‘OTC’, ‘Other OTC’ or ‘Grey Market’ (Exclamation Mark Sign) or other trading
restriction on the day of or any day after the Conversion Date, the Holder maintains the option and sole discretion to
rescind the Notice of Conversion (“Rescindment”) with a “Notice of Rescindment.” 
 

Concerning the Shares. The shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note may
not be sold or transferred unless (i) such shares are sold pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Act or
(ii) the Borrower or its transfer agent shall have been furnished with an opinion of counsel (which opinion shall be in
form, substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions) to the effect that the shares to
be sold or transferred may be sold or transferred pursuant to an exemption from such registration or (iii) such shares are
sold or transferred pursuant to Rule 144 under the Act (or a successor rule) (“Rule 144”) or (iv) such shares are
transferred to an “affiliate” (as defined in Rule 144) of the Borrower who agrees to sell or otherwise transfer the shares
only in accordance with this Section 1.5 and who is an Accredited Investor (as defined in the Purchase Agreement).
Except as otherwise provided in the Purchase Agreement (and subject to the removal provisions set forth below), until
such time as the shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note have been registered under the Act or
otherwise may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 without any restriction as to the number of securities as of a particular date
that can then be immediately sold, each certificate for shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note
that has not been so included in an effective registration statement or that has not been sold pursuant to an effective
registration statement or an exemption that permits removal of the legend, shall bear a legend substantially in the
following form, as appropriate: 
 

“NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS
CERTIFICATE NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE EXERCISABLE
HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR
APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE,
SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE
REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933,
AS AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL (WHICH COUNSEL SHALL BE SELECTED BY
THE HOLDER), IN A GENERALLY ACCEPTABLE FORM, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT
REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II) UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR RULE 144A
UNDER SAID ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE SECURITIES MAY BE
PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR
FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.”
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The legend set forth above shall be removed and the Borrower shall issue to the Holder a new
certificate therefore free of any transfer legend if (i) the Borrower or its transfer agent shall have received an opinion of
counsel, in form, substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions, to the effect that a
public sale or transfer of such Common Stock may be made without registration under the Act, which opinion shall be
reasonably accepted by the Borrower so that the sale or transfer is effected or (ii) in the case of the Common Stock
issuable upon conversion of this Note, such security is registered for sale by the Holder under an effective registration
statement filed under the Act or otherwise may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 without any restriction as to the number of
securities as of a particular date that can then be immediately sold. In the event that the Borrower does not accept the
opinion of counsel (in form, substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions)
provided by the Buyer with respect to the transfer of Securities pursuant to an exemption from registration, such as
Rule 144 or Regulation S, at the Deadline, it will be considered an Event of Default pursuant to Section 3.2 of the Note.

 
Effect of Certain Events . 

 
Effect of Merger, Consolidation, Etc. At the option of the Holder, the sale, conveyance or

disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Borrower, the effectuation by the Borrower of a transaction or
series of related transactions in which more than 50% of the voting power of the Borrower is disposed of, or the
consolidation, merger or other business combination of the Borrower with or into any other Person (as defined below) or
Persons when the Borrower is not the survivor shall either: (i) be deemed to be an Event of Default (as defined in Article
III) pursuant to which the Borrower shall be required to pay to the Holder upon the consummation of and as a condition to
such transaction an amount equal to the Default Amount (as defined in Article III) or (ii) be treated pursuant to Section
1.6(b) hereof. “Person” shall mean any individual, corporation, limited liability company, partnership, association, trust or
other entity or organization. 
 

Adjustment Due to Merger, Consolidation, Etc. If, at any time when this Note is issued and
outstanding and prior to conversion of all of the Notes, there shall be any merger, consolidation, exchange of shares,
recapitalization, reorganization, or other similar event, as a result of which shares of Common Stock of the Borrower shall
be changed into the same or a different number of shares of another class or classes of stock or securities of the
Borrower or another entity, or in case of any sale or conveyance of all or substantially all of the assets of the Borrower
other than in connection with a plan of complete liquidation of the Borrower, then the Holder of this Note shall thereafter
have the right to receive upon conversion of this Note, upon the basis and upon the terms and conditions specified
herein and in lieu of the shares of Common Stock immediately theretofore issuable upon conversion, such stock,
securities or assets which the Holder would have been entitled to receive in such transaction had this Note been
converted in full immediately prior to such transaction (without regard to any limitations on conversion set forth herein),
and in any such case appropriate provisions shall be made with respect to the rights and interests of the Holder of this
Note to the end that the provisions hereof (including, without limitation, provisions for adjustment of the Conversion Price
and of the number of shares issuable upon conversion of the Note) shall thereafter be applicable, as nearly as may be
practicable in relation to any securities or assets thereafter deliverable upon the conversion hereof. The Borrower shall
not affect any transaction described in this Section 1.6(b) unless (a) it first gives, to the extent practicable, thirty (30)
days prior written notice (but in any event at least fifteen (15) days prior written notice) of the record date of the special
meeting of shareholders to approve, or if there is no such record date, the consummation of, such merger, consolidation,
exchange of shares, recapitalization, reorganization or other similar event or sale of assets (during which time the Holder
shall be entitled to convert this Note) and (b) the resulting successor or acquiring entity (if not the Borrower) assumes by
written instrument the obligations of this Section 1.6(b). The above provisions shall similarly apply to successive
consolidations, mergers, sales, transfers or share exchanges. 
 

Adjustment Due to Distribution. If the Borrower shall declare or make any distribution of its
assets (or rights to acquire its assets) to holders of Common Stock as a dividend, stock repurchase, by way of return of
capital or otherwise (including any dividend or distribution to the Borrower’s shareholders in cash or shares (or rights to
acquire shares) of capital stock of a subsidiary (i.e., a spin-off)) (a “Distribution”), then the Holder of this Note shall be
entitled, upon any conversion of this Note after the date of record for determining shareholders entitled to such
Distribution, to receive the amount of such assets which would have been payable to the Holder with respect to the
shares of Common Stock issuable upon such conversion had such Holder been the holder of such shares of Common
Stock on the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to such Distribution. 
 

Intentionally Omitted 
 

Purchase Rights. If, at any time when any Notes are issued and outstanding, the Borrower
issues any convertible securities or rights to purchase stock, warrants, securities or other property (the “Purchase
Rights”) pro rata to the record holders of any class of Common Stock, then the Holder of this Note will be entitled to
acquire, upon the terms applicable to such Purchase Rights, the aggregate Purchase Rights which such Holder could
have acquired if such Holder had held the number of shares of Common Stock acquirable upon complete conversion of
this Note (without regard to any limitations on conversion contained herein) immediately before the date on which a
record is taken for the grant, issuance or sale of such Purchase Rights or, if no such record is taken, the date as of which
the record holders of Common Stock are to be determined for the grant, issue or sale of such Purchase Rights. 
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Notice of Adjustments. Upon the occurrence of each adjustment or readjustment of the
Conversion Price as a result of the events described in this Section 1.6, the Borrower, at its expense, shall promptly
compute such adjustment or readjustment and prepare and furnish to the Holder a certificate setting forth such
adjustment or readjustment and showing in detail the facts upon which such adjustment or readjustment is based. The
Borrower shall, upon the written request at any time of the Holder, furnish to such Holder a like certificate setting forth (i)
such adjustment or readjustment, (ii) the Conversion Price at the time in effect and (iii) the number of shares of Common
Stock and the amount, if any, of other securities or property which at the time would be received upon conversion of the
Note. 
 

[Intentionally Omitted]. 
 

Status as Shareholder. Upon submission of a Notice of Conversion by a Holder, (i) the shares
covered thereby (other than the shares, if any, which cannot be issued because their issuance would exceed such
Holder’s allocated portion of the Reserved Amount or Maximum Share Amount) shall be deemed converted into shares of
Common Stock and (ii) the Holder’s rights as a Holder of such converted portion of this Note shall cease and terminate,
excepting only the right to receive certificates for such shares of Common Stock and to any remedies provided herein or
otherwise available at law or in equity to such Holder because of a failure by the Borrower to comply with the terms of this
Note. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a Holder has not received certificates for all shares of Common Stock prior to the
tenth (10th) business day after the expiration of the Deadline with respect to a conversion of any portion of this Note for
any reason, then (unless the Holder otherwise elects to retain its status as a holder of Common Stock by so notifying the
Borrower) the Holder shall regain the rights of a Holder of this Note with respect to such unconverted portions of this Note
and the Borrower shall, as soon as practicable, return such unconverted Note to the Holder or, if the Note has not been
surrendered, adjust its records to reflect that such portion of this Note has not been converted. In all cases, the Holder
shall retain all of its rights and remedies (including, without limitation, (i) the right to receive Conversion Default Payments
pursuant to Section 1.3 to the extent required thereby for such Conversion Default and any subsequent Conversion Default
and (ii) the right to have the Conversion Price with respect to subsequent conversions determined in accordance with
Section 1.3) for the Borrower’s failure to convert this Note. 
 

Prepayment. Subject to the terms of this Note, and provided that an Event of Default has not
occurred under this Note, the Borrower may prepay the amounts outstanding hereunder pursuant to the following terms
and conditions: 
 

At any time during the period beginning on the Issue Date and ending on the date which is
sixty (60) calendar days following the Issue Date, the Borrower shall have the right, exercisable on not less than three
(3) Trading Days prior written notice to the Holder of the Note to prepay the outstanding Note (principal and accrued
interest), in full by making a payment to the Holder of an amount in cash equal to 115%, multiplied by the sum of: (w) the
then outstanding principal amount of this Note plus (x) accrued and unpaid interest on the unpaid principal amount of this
Note plus (y) Default Interest, if any. 

 
At any time during the period beginning the day which is sixty one (61) calendar days

following the Issue Date and ending on the date which is one hundred twenty (120) calendar days following the Issue
Date, the Borrower shall have the right, exercisable on not less than three (3) Trading Days prior written notice to the
Holder of the Note to prepay the outstanding Note (principal and accrued interest), in full by making a payment to the
Holder of an amount in cash equal to 125%, multiplied by the sum of: (w) the then outstanding principal amount of this
Note plus (x) accrued and unpaid interest on the unpaid principal amount of this Note plus (y) Default Interest, if any. 
 

At any time during the period beginning the day which is one hundred twenty one (121)
calendar days following the Issue Date and ending on the date which is one hundred eighty (180) calendar days following
the Issue Date, the Borrower shall have the right, exercisable on not less than three (3) Trading Days prior written notice
to the Holder of the Note to prepay the outstanding Note (principal and accrued interest), in full by making a payment to
the Holder of an amount in cash equal to 135%, multiplied by the sum of: (w) the then outstanding principal amount of
this Note plus (x) accrued and unpaid interest on the unpaid principal amount of this Note plus (y) Default Interest, if any. 
 

After the expiration of one hundred eighty (180) calendar days following the date of the
Note, the Borrower shall have no right of prepayment. 
 

Any notice of prepayment hereunder (an “Optional Prepayment Notice”) shall be delivered to the
Holder of the Note at its registered addresses by physical mail and shall state: (1) that the Borrower is exercising its right
to prepay the Note, and (2) the date of prepayment which shall be not more than three (3) Trading Days from the date of
the Optional Prepayment Notice. On the date fixed for prepayment (the “Optional Prepayment Date”), the Borrower shall
make payment of the applicable prepayment amount to or upon the order of the Holder as specified by the Holder in
writing to the Borrower. If the Borrower delivers an Optional Prepayment Notice and fails to pay the applicable prepayment
amount due to the Holder of the Note within two (2) business days following the Optional Prepayment Date, the Borrower
shall forever forfeit its right to prepay the Note pursuant to Section 1.9. 

7

(f)

1.6

1.7

1.8

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

1.9

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 
 

ARTICLE II. CERTAIN COVENANTS
 

Distributions on Capital Stock. So long as the Borrower shall have any obligation under this Note,
the Borrower shall not without the Holder’s written consent (a) pay, declare or set apart for such payment, any dividend or
other distribution (whether in cash, property or other securities) on shares of capital stock other than dividends on shares
of Common Stock solely in the form of additional shares of Common Stock or (b) directly or indirectly or through any
subsidiary make any other payment or distribution in respect of its capital stock except for distributions pursuant to any
shareholders’ rights plan which is approved by a majority of the Borrower’s disinterested directors. 
 

Intentionally Omitted. 
 

Intentionally Omitted. 
 

Sale of Assets. So long as the Borrower shall have any obligation under this Note, the Borrower
shall not, without the Holder’s written consent, sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the majority of its assets outside the
ordinary course of business unless such disposition of any assets is conditioned on a specified use of the proceeds
towards the full repayment of this Note. 
 

Advances and Loans. So long as the Borrower shall have any obligation under this Note, the
Borrower shall not, without the Holder’s written consent, lend money, give credit or make advances to any person, firm,
joint venture or corporation, including, without limitation, officers, directors, employees, subsidiaries and affiliates of the
Borrower, except loans, credits or advances (a) in existence or committed on the date hereof and which the Borrower has
informed Holder in writing prior to the date hereof, (b) made in the ordinary course of business or (c) not in excess of
$100,000. 
 

Preservation of Existence, etc. The Borrower shall maintain and preserve, and cause each of its
Subsidiaries to maintain and preserve, its existence, rights and privileges, and become or remain, and cause each of its
Subsidiaries (other than dormant Subsidiaries that have no or minimum assets) to become or remain, duly qualified and in
good standing in each jurisdiction in which the character of the properties owned or leased by it or in which the transaction
of its business makes such qualification necessary. 
 

Non-circumvention. The Borrower hereby covenants and agrees that the Borrower will not, by
amendment of its Certificate or Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, or through any reorganization, transfer of assets,
consolidation, merger, scheme of arrangement, dissolution, issue or sale of securities, or any other voluntary action, avoid
or seek to avoid the observance or performance of any of the terms of this Note, and will at all times in good faith carry
out all the provisions of this Note and take all action as may be required to protect the rights of the Holder. 
 

ARTICLE III. EVENTS OF DEFAULT
 

If any of the following events of default (each, an “Event of Default”) shall occur:
 

Failure to Pay Principal or Interest. The Borrower fails to pay the principal hereof or interest
thereon when due on this Note, whether at maturity, upon acceleration or otherwise, and shall remain uncured after five
(5) days of written notice to Borrower. 
 

Conversion and the Shares . The Borrower (i) fails to issue shares of Common Stock to the Holder
(or announces or threatens in writing that it will not honor its obligation to do so) upon exercise by the Holder of the
conversion rights of the Holder in accordance with the terms of this Note, (ii) fails to transfer or cause its transfer agent to
transfer (issue) (electronically or in certificated form) any certificate for shares of Common Stock issued to the Holder
upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to this Note as and when required by this Note, (iii) directs its transfer agent not
to transfer or delays, impairs, and/or hinders its transfer agent in transferring (or issuing) (electronically or in certificated
form) any certificate for shares of Common Stock to be issued to the Holder upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to
this Note as and when required by this Note, (iv) fails to remove (or directs its transfer agent not to remove or impairs,
delays, and/or hinders its transfer agent from removing) any restrictive legend (or to withdraw any stop transfer
instructions in respect thereof) on any certificate for any shares of Common Stock issued to the Holder upon conversion of
or otherwise pursuant to this Note as and when required by this Note (or makes any written announcement, statement or
threat that it does not intend to honor the obligations described in this paragraph) and any such failure shall continue
uncured (or any written announcement, statement or threat not to honor its obligations shall not be rescinded in writing) for
three (3) business days after the Holder shall have delivered a Notice of Conversion, (v) fails to remain current in its
obligations to its transfer agent, (vi) causes a conversion of this Note is delayed, hindered or frustrated due to a balance
owed by the Borrower to its transfer agent, (vii) fails to repay Holder, within forty eight (48) hours of a demand from the
Holder, any amount of funds advanced by Holder to Borrower’s transfer agent in order to process a conversion, and/or
(viii) fails to reserve sufficient amount of shares of common stock to satisfy the Reserved Amount at all times. 
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Intentionally Omitted 
 

Breach of Covenants. The Borrower breaches any material covenant or other material term or
condition contained in this Note and any collateral documents including but not limited to the Purchase Agreement and
such breach continues for a period of ten (10) days after written notice thereof to the Borrower from the Holder. 
 

Breach of Representations and Warranties . Any representation or warranty of the Borrower made
herein or in any agreement, statement or certificate given in writing pursuant hereto or in connection herewith (including,
without limitation, the Purchase Agreement), shall be false or misleading in any material respect when made and the
breach of which has (or with the passage of time will have) a material adverse effect on the rights of the Holder with
respect to this Note or the Purchase Agreement. 
 

Receiver or Trustee. The Borrower or any subsidiary of the Borrower shall make an assignment
for the benefit of creditors or commence proceedings for its dissolution, or apply for or consent to the appointment of a
receiver or trustee for it or for a substantial part of its property or business, or such a receiver or trustee shall otherwise be
appointed for the Borrower or for a substantial part of its property or business without its consent and shall not be
discharged within sixty (60) days after such appointment. 
 

Judgments. Any money judgment, writ or similar process shall be entered or filed against the
Borrower or any subsidiary of the Borrower or any of its property or other assets for more than $100,000, and shall remain
unvacated, unbonded or unstayed for a period of twenty 

(20) days unless otherwise consented to by the Holder, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld.
 

Bankruptcy. Bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or liquidation proceedings or other
proceedings, voluntary or involuntary, for relief under any bankruptcy law or any law for the relief of debtors shall be
instituted by or against the Borrower or any subsidiary of the Borrower, or the Borrower admits in writing its inability to pay
its debts generally as they mature, or have filed against it an involuntary petition for bankruptcy relief, all under federal or
state laws 

as applicable or the Borrower admits in writing its inability to pay its debts generally as they mature, or have filed
against it an involuntary petition for bankruptcy relief, all under international, federal or state laws as applicable.

 
Delisting of Common Stock. The Borrower shall fail to maintain the listing of the Common Stock

on at least one of the OTC Pink, OTCQB, Nasdaq National Market, Nasdaq Small Cap Market, New York Stock
Exchange, NYSE MKT, or an equivalent replacement exchange 
 

Failure to Comply with the Exchange Act . The Borrower shall fail to comply with the reporting
requirements of the Exchange Act (including but not limited to becoming delinquent in its filings) for a period of ten (10)
consecutive days; and/or the Borrower shall cease to be subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act. 
 

Liquidation. Any dissolution, liquidation, or winding up of Borrower or any substantial portion of its
business. 
 

Cessation of Operations. Any cessation of operations by Borrower or Borrower admits it is
otherwise generally unable to pay its debts as such debts become due, provided, however, that any disclosure of the
Borrower’s ability to continue as a “going concern” shall not be an admission that the Borrower cannot pay its debts as
they become due. 
 

Maintenance of Assets. The failure by Borrower to maintain a majority of its material intellectual
property rights, personal, real property or other assets which are necessary to conduct its business (whether now or in the
future), or any disposition or conveyance of any material asset of the Borrower. 
 

Financial Statement Restatement. The restatement of any financial statements filed by the
Borrower with the SEC for any date or period from two years prior to the Issue Date of this Note and until this Note is no
longer outstanding, if the result of such restatement would, by comparison to the unrestated financial statement, have
constituted a material adverse effect on the rights of the Holder with respect to this Note or the Purchase Agreement. 
 

Intentionally Omitted. 
 

Replacement of Transfer Agent. In the event that the Borrower proposes to replace its transfer
agent, the Borrower fails to provide, prior to the effective date of such replacement, a fully executed Irrevocable Transfer
Agent Instructions in a form as initially delivered pursuant to the Purchase Agreement (including but not limited to the
provision to irrevocably reserve shares of Common Stock in the Reserved Amount) signed by the successor transfer
agent to Borrower and the Borrower. 
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Cessation of Trading. Any cessation of trading of the Common Stock on at least one of the OTC
Pink, OTCQB, Nasdaq National Market, Nasdaq Small Cap Market, New York Stock Exchange, NYSE MKT, or an
equivalent replacement exchange, and such cessation of trading shall continue for a period of five consecutive (5) Trading
Days. 

 
Cross-Default. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Note or the other related

or companion documents, a breach or default by the Borrower of any covenant or other term or condition contained in any
of the Other Agreements (as defined herein), after the passage of all applicable notice and cure or grace periods, shall, at
the option of the Holder, be considered a default under this Note and the Other Agreements, in which event the Holder
shall be entitled (but in no event required) to apply all rights and remedies of the Holder under the terms of this Note and
the Other Agreements by reason of a default under said Other Agreement or hereunder. “Other Agreements” means,
collectively, all agreements and instruments between, among or by: (1) the Borrower, and, or for the benefit of, (2) the
Holder (and any affiliate of the Holder). Each of the loan transactions will be cross-defaulted with each other loan
transaction and with all other existing and future debt of Borrower to the Holder. 
 

Bid Price. The Borrower shall lose the “bid” price for its Common Stock ($0.0001 on the “Ask” with
zero market makers on the “Bid” per Level 2) and/or a market (including the OTC Pink, OTCQB or an equivalent
replacement exchange). 
 

OTC Markets Designation . OTC Markets changes the Borrower’s designation to ‘No Information’
(Stop Sign), ‘Caveat Emptor’ (Skull and Crossbones), or ‘OTC’, ‘Other OTC’ or ‘Grey Market’ (Exclamation Mark Sign). 
 

Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default specified in Sections 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5, 3.6, 3.7, 3.8, 3.9, 3.10, 3.11,
3.12, 3.13, 3.14, 3.15, 3.16. 3.17, 3.18, 3.19, and/or 3.20, exercisable through the delivery of written notice to the
Borrower by such Holders (the “Default Notice”), the Note shall become immediately due and payable and the Borrower
shall pay to the Holder, in full satisfaction of its obligations hereunder, an amount equal to (i) 135% times the sum of (w)
the then outstanding principal amount of this Note plus (x) accrued and unpaid interest on the unpaid principal amount of
this Note to the date of payment (the “Mandatory Prepayment Date”) plus (y) Default Interest, if any, on the amounts
referred to in clauses (w) and/or (x) plus (z) any amounts owed to the Holder pursuant to Sections 1.3 and 1.4(g) hereof
(the then outstanding principal amount of this Note to the date of payment plus the amounts referred to in clauses (x), (y)
and (z) shall collectively be known as the “Default Sum”) and all other amounts payable hereunder shall immediately
become due and payable, all without demand, presentment or notice, all of which hereby are expressly waived, together
with all costs, including, without limitation, legal fees and expenses, of collection, and the Holder shall be entitled to
exercise all other rights and remedies available at law or in equity.

 
The Holder shall have the right at any time, to require the Borrower, to immediately issue, in lieu of the Default Sum, the
number of shares of Common Stock of the Borrower equal to the Default Sum divided by the Conversion Price then in
effect, pursuant to the terms of this Note (including but not limited to any beneficial ownership limitations contained
herein). This requirement by the Borrower shall automatically apply upon the occurrence of an Event of Default without
the need for any party to give any notice or take any other action.

 
If the Holder shall commence an action or proceeding to enforce any provisions of this Note, including, without
limitation, engaging an attorney, then if the Holder prevails in such action, the Holder shall be reimbursed by the
Borrower for its attorneys' fees and other costs and expenses incurred in the investigation, preparation and prosecution
of such action or proceeding.

 
ARTICLE IV. MISCELLANEOUS

 
Failure or Indulgence Not Waiver . No failure or delay on the part of the Holder in the exercise of

any power, right or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any
such power, right or privilege preclude other or further exercise thereof or of any other right, power or privileges. All rights
and remedies existing hereunder are cumulative to, and not exclusive of, any rights or remedies otherwise available. 
 

Notices. All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals, and other communications required
or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and, unless otherwise specified herein, shall be (i) personally served, (ii)
deposited in the mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, (iii) delivered by reputable air
courier service with charges prepaid, or (iv) transmitted by hand delivery, telegram, electronic mail, or facsimile, addressed
as set forth below or to such other address as such party shall have specified most recently by written notice. Any notice
or other communication required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be deemed effective (a) upon hand delivery or
delivery by electronic mail or facsimile, with accurate confirmation generated by the transmitting facsimile machine, at the
address or number designated below (if delivered on a business day during normal business hours where such notice is
to be received), or the first business day following such delivery (if delivered other than on a business day during normal
business hours where such notice is to be received) or (b) on the second business day following the date of mailing by
express courier service, fully prepaid, addressed to such address, or upon actual receipt of such mailing, whichever shall
first occur. The addresses for such communications shall be: 
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If to the Borrower, to:
 

American Battery Metals Corporation
930 Tahoe Blvd., Suite 802-16 Incline Village, NV
89451
Attn: Douglas Cole
E-mail: doug@batterymetals.com
 

If to the Holder:
 
Auctus Fund, LLC
545 Boylston Street, 2nd Floor Boston, MA
02116
Attn: Lou Posner
Facsimile: (617) 532-6420
 

With a copy to (which copy shall not constitute notice):
 

Chad Friend, Esq., LL.M.
Anthony L.G., PLLC
625 N. Flagler Drive, Suite 600 West Palm Beach, FL 33401
E-mail: CFriend@AnthonyPLLC.com

 
Amendments. This Note and any provision hereof may only be amended by an instrument in

writing signed by the Borrower and the Holder. The term “Note” and all reference thereto, as used throughout this
instrument, shall mean this instrument (and the other Notes issued pursuant to the Purchase Agreement) as originally
executed, or if later amended or supplemented, then as so amended or supplemented. 
 

Assignability. This Note shall be binding upon the Borrower and its successors and assigns, and
shall inure to be the benefit of the Holder and its successors and assigns. Neither the Borrower nor the Holder shall assign
this Note or any rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the other. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the Holder may assign its rights hereunder to any “accredited investor” (as defined in Rule 501(a) of the 1933
Act) in a private transaction from the Holder or to any of its “affiliates”, as that term is defined under the 1934 Act, without
the consent of the Borrower. Notwithstanding anything in this Note to the contrary, this Note may be pledged as collateral
in connection with a bona fide margin account or other lending arrangement. The Holder and any assignee, by acceptance
of this Note, acknowledge and agree that following conversion of a portion of this Note, the unpaid and unconverted
principal amount of this Note represented by this Note may be less than the amount stated on the face hereof. 
 

Cost of Collection. If default is made in the payment of this Note, the Borrower shall pay the
Holder hereof reasonable costs of collection, including reasonable attorneys’ fees. 
 

Governing Law. This Note shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Nevada without regard to principles of conflicts of laws. Any action brought by either party against the other
concerning the transactions contemplated by this Note shall be brought only in the state courts located in the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts or federal courts located in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. The parties to this
Note hereby irrevocably waive any objection to jurisdiction and venue of any action instituted hereunder and shall not
assert any defense based on lack of jurisdiction or venue or based upon forum non conveniens . THE BORROWER
HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO, AND AGREES NOT TO REQUEST, A JURY TRIAL
FOR THE ADJUDICATION OF ANY DISPUTE HEREUNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING OUT OF THIS
NOTE OR ANY TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED HEREBY. The prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the
other party its reasonable attorney's fees and costs. In the event that any provision of this Note or any other agreement
delivered in connection herewith is invalid or unenforceable under any applicable statute or rule of law, then such
provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent that it may conflict therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform
with such statute or rule of law. Any such provision which may prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not
affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of any agreement. Each party hereby irrevocably waives personal
service of process and consents to process being served in any suit, action or proceeding in connection with this
Agreement or any other Transaction Document by mailing a copy thereof via registered or certified mail or overnight
delivery (with evidence of delivery) to such party at the address in effect for notices to it under this Agreement and agrees
that such service shall constitute good and sufficient service of process and notice thereof. Nothing contained herein shall
be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in any other manner permitted by law. 
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Certain Amounts. Whenever pursuant to this Note the Borrower is required to pay an amount in
excess of the outstanding principal amount (or the portion thereof required to be paid at that time) plus accrued and unpaid
interest plus Default Interest on such interest, the Borrower and the Holder agree that the actual damages to the Holder
from the receipt of cash payment on this Note may be difficult to determine and the amount to be so paid by the Borrower
represents stipulated damages and not a penalty and is intended to compensate the Holder in part for loss of the
opportunity to convert this Note and to earn a return from the sale of shares of Common Stock acquired upon conversion
of this Note at a price in excess of the price paid for such shares pursuant to this Note. The Borrower and the Holder
hereby agree that such amount of stipulated damages is not plainly disproportionate to the possible loss to the Holder
from the receipt of a cash payment without the opportunity to convert this Note into shares of Common Stock. 
 

Purchase Agreement. By its acceptance of this Note, each party agrees to be bound by the
applicable terms of the Purchase Agreement. 
 

Notice of Corporate Events. Except as otherwise provided below, the Holder of this Note shall
have no rights as a Holder of Common Stock unless and only to the extent that it converts this Note into Common Stock.
The Borrower shall provide the Holder with prior notification of any meeting of the Borrower’s shareholders (and copies of
proxy materials and other information sent to shareholders) unless such information is provided in a public filing. In the
event of any taking by the Borrower of a record of its shareholders for the purpose of determining shareholders who are
entitled to receive payment of any dividend or other distribution, any right to subscribe for, purchase or otherwise acquire
(including by way of merger, consolidation, reclassification or recapitalization) any share of any class or any other
securities or property, or to receive any other right, or for the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to vote
in connection with any proposed sale, lease or conveyance of all or substantially all of the assets of the Borrower or any
proposed liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Borrower, the Borrower shall mail a notice to the Holder, at least
twenty (20) days prior to the record date specified therein (or thirty (30) days prior to the consummation of the transaction
or event, whichever is earlier), of the date on which any such record is to be taken for the purpose of such dividend,
distribution, right or other event, and a brief statement regarding the amount and character of such dividend, distribution,
right or other event to the extent known at such time. The Borrower shall make a public announcement of any event
requiring notification to the Holder hereunder substantially simultaneously with the notification to the Holder in accordance
with the terms of this Section 4.9 including, but not limited to, name changes, recapitalizations, etc. as soon as possible
under law. 

 
Usury. If it shall be found that any interest or other amount deemed interest due hereunder

violates the applicable law governing usury, the applicable provision shall automatically be revised to equal the maximum
rate of interest or other amount deemed interest permitted under applicable law. The Borrower covenants (to the extent
that it may lawfully do so) that it will not seek to claim or take advantage of any law that would prohibit or forgive the
Borrower from paying all or a portion of the principal or interest on this Note. 
 

Remedies. The Borrower acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder will cause
irreparable harm to the Holder, by vitiating the intent and purpose of the transaction contemplated hereby. Accordingly,
the Borrower acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its obligations under this Note will be inadequate and
agrees, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Borrower of the provisions of this Note, that the Holder shall
be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies at law or in equity, and in addition to the penalties assessable
herein, to an injunction or injunctions restraining, preventing or curing any breach of this Note and to enforce specifically
the terms and provisions thereof, without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond or other security
being required. No provision of this Note shall alter or impair the obligation of the Borrower, which is absolute and
unconditional, to pay the principal of, and interest on, this Note at the time, place, and rate, and in the form, herein
prescribed. 
 

Severability. In the event that any provision of this Note is invalid or unenforceable under any
applicable statute or rule of law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent that it may conflict
therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any provision hereof which may prove
invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision hereof. 
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Dispute Resolution. In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the Conversion Price,
Conversion Amount, any prepayment amount or Default Amount, Default Sum, Closing or Maturity Date, the closing bid
price, or fair market value (as the case may be) or the arithmetic calculation of the Conversion Price or the applicable
prepayment amount(s) (as the case may be), the Borrower or the Holder shall submit the disputed determinations or
arithmetic calculations via facsimile (i) within three (3) Business Days after receipt of the applicable notice giving rise to
such dispute to the Borrower or the Holder or (ii) if no notice gave rise to such dispute, at any time after the Holder
learned of the circumstances giving rise to such dispute. If the Holder and the Borrower are unable to agree upon such
determination or calculation within three (3) Business Days of such disputed determination or arithmetic calculation (as the
case may be) being submitted to the Borrower or the Holder, then the Borrower shall, within two (2) Business Days, submit
via facsimile (a) the disputed determination of the Conversion Price, the closing bid price, the or fair market value (as the
case may be) to an independent, reputable investment bank selected by the Borrower and approved by the Holder or (b)
the disputed arithmetic calculation of the Conversion Price, Conversion Amount, any prepayment amount or Default
Amount, Default Sum to an independent, outside accountant selected by the Holder that is reasonably acceptable to the
Borrower. The Borrower shall cause at its expense the investment bank or the accountant to perform the determinations
or calculations and notify the Borrower and the Holder of the results no later than ten (10) Business Days from the time it
receives such disputed determinations or calculations. Such investment bank’s or accountant’s determination or
calculation shall be binding upon all parties absent demonstrable error. 
 

[signature page follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower has caused this Note to be signed in its name by its duly authorized officer
as of the date first above written.

 
 

AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
 

By: /s/ Douglas D Cole
Name: Douglas Cole
Title: Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT A
NOTICE OF CONVERSION

 
The undersigned hereby elects to convert $________________________________principal amount of

the Note (defined below) together with $_________________________________________of accrued and unpaid
interest thereto, totaling $____________________________________________into that number of shares of Common
Stock to be issued pursuant to the conversion of the Note (“Common Stock”) as set forth below, of American Battery
Metals Corporation, a Nevada corporation (the “Borrower”), according to the conditions of the convertible note of the
Borrower dated as of April 10, 2020 (the “Note”), as of the date written below. No fee will be charged to the Holder for
any conversion, except for transfer taxes, if any.

 
Box Checked as to applicable instructions:

 
[  ] The Borrower shall electronically transmit the Common Stock issuable pursuant to this Notice of Conversion

to the account of the undersigned or its nominee with DTC through its Deposit Withdrawal At
Custodian system (“DWAC Transfer”).

 
Name of DTC Prime Broker:
Account Number:

 
[   ] The undersigned hereby requests that the Borrower issue a certificate or certificates for the number of

shares of Common Stock set forth below (which numbers are based on the Holder’s calculation
attached hereto) in the name(s) specified immediately below or, if additional space is necessary, on an
attachment hereto:

 
Name: [NAME]
 
Address: [ADDRESS]

 

Date of conversion   

Applicable Conversion Price: $  
Number of shares of common stock to be issued pursuant to conversion of the
Notes:   
Amount of Principal Balance due remaining under the Note after this
conversion: $  

Accrued and unpaid interest remaining: $  
 

[HOLDER]
 
 

By: ________________________________
Name: [NAME]
Title: [TITLE]
Date: [DATE]
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Exhibit 10.7

 
SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT

 
This SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), dated as of April 21, 2020, by and between

AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION, a Nevada corporation, with its address at 930 Tahoe Blvd. Suite
802‐16, Incline Village, NV 89451 (the “Company”), and POWER UP LENDING GROUP LTD. , a Virginia corporation,
with its address at 111 Great Neck Road, Suite 216, Great Neck, NY 11021 (the “Buyer”).

 
WHEREAS:

 
The Company and the Buyer are executing and delivering this Agreement in reliance upon the

exemption from securities registration afforded by the rules and regulations as promulgated by the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”); and 
 

Buyer desires to purchase and the Company desires to issue and sell, upon the terms and conditions
set forth in this Agreement a convertible note of the Company, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, in the aggregate
principal amount of $43,000.00 (together with any note(s) issued in replacement thereof or as a dividend thereon or
otherwise with respect thereto in accordance with the terms thereof, the “Note”), convertible into shares of common stock,
$0.001 par value per share, of the Company (the “Common Stock”), upon the terms and subject to the limitations and
conditions set forth in such Note. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the Company and the Buyer severally (and not jointly) hereby agree as follows:
 

PURCHASE AND SALE OF NOTE.  
 

Purchase of Note. On the Closing Date (as defined below), the Company shall issue
and sell to the Buyer and the Buyer agrees to purchase from the Company such principal amount of Note as is set forth
immediately below the Buyer’s name on the signature pages hereto. 
 

Form of Payment. On the Closing Date (as defined below), (i) the Buyer shall pay the
purchase price for the Note to be issued and sold to it at the Closing (as defined below) (the “Purchase Price”) by wire
transfer of immediately available funds to the Company, in accordance with the Company’s written wiring instructions,
against delivery of the Note in the principal amount equal to the Purchase Price as is set forth immediately below the
Buyer’s name on the signature pages hereto, and 

the Company shall deliver such duly executed Note on behalf of the Company, to the Buyer, against delivery of
such Purchase Price. 
 

Closing Date. Subject to the satisfaction (or written waiver) of the conditions thereto set
forth in Section 6 and Section 7 below, the date and time of the issuance and sale of the Note pursuant to this Agreement
(the “Closing Date”) shall be 12:00 noon, Eastern Standard Time on or about April 22, 2020, or such other mutually
agreed upon time. The closing of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the “Closing”) shall occur on the
Closing Date at such location as may be agreed to by the parties. 
 

BUYER’S REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES.  
 
The Buyer represents and warrants to the Company that:

 
Investment Purpose. As of the date hereof, the Buyer is purchasing the Note and the

shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to the Note (such shares of Common Stock
being collectively referred to herein as the “Conversion Shares” and, collectively with the Note, the “Securities”) for its own
account and not with a present view towards the public sale or distribution thereof, except pursuant to sales registered or
exempted from registration under the 1933 Act. 
 

Accredited Investor Status. The Buyer is an “accredited investor” as that term is defined
in Rule 501(a) of Regulation D (an “Accredited Investor”). 
 

Reliance on Exemptions. The Buyer understands that the Securities are being offered
and sold to it in reliance upon specific exemptions from the registration requirements of United States federal and state
securities laws and that the Company is relying upon the truth and accuracy of, and the Buyer’s compliance with, the
representations, warranties, agreements, acknowledgments and understandings of the Buyer set forth herein in order to
determine the availability of such exemptions and the eligibility of the Buyer to acquire the Securities. 
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Information. The Company has not disclosed to the Buyer any material nonpublic
information and will not disclose such information unless such information is disclosed to the public prior to or promptly
following such disclosure to the Buyer. 
 

Legends. The Buyer understands that the Note and, until such time as the Conversion
Shares have been registered under the 1933 Act; or may be sold pursuant to an applicable exemption from registration,
the Conversion Shares may bear a restrictive legend in substantially the following form: 
 

"THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS INSTRUMENT HAVE NOT BEEN
REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE
"SECURITIES ACT"), OR UNDER ANY STATE SECURITIES LAWS, AND MAY NOT
BE PLEDGED, SOLD, ASSIGNED, HYPOTHECATED OR OTHERWISE
TRANSFERRED UNLESS (1) A REGISTRATION STATEMENT WITH RESPECT
THERETO IS EFFECTIVE UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND ANY APPLICABLE
STATE SECURITIES LAWS OR (2) THE ISSUER OF SUCH SECURITIES
RECEIVES AN OPINION OF COUNSEL TO THE HOLDER OF SUCH SECURITIES,
WHICH COUNSEL AND OPINION ARE REASONABLY ACCEPTABLE TO THE
ISSUER’S TRANSFER AGENT, THAT SUCH SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED,
SOLD, ASSIGNED, HYPOTHECATED OR OTHERWISE

 
TRANSFERRED WITHOUT AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER
THE SECURITIES ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS."

 
The legend set forth above shall be removed and the Company shall issue a certificate without such legend to

the holder of any Security upon which it is stamped, if, unless otherwise required by applicable state securities laws, (a)
such Security is registered for sale under an effective registration statement filed under the 1933 Act or otherwise may
be sold pursuant to an exemption from registration without any restriction as to the number of securities as of a
particular date that can then be immediately sold, or (b) such holder provides the Company with an opinion of counsel,
in form, substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions, to the effect that a public
sale or transfer of such Security may be made without registration under the 1933 Act, which opinion shall be accepted
by the Company so that the sale or transfer is effected. The Buyer agrees to sell all Securities, including those
represented by a certificate(s) from which the legend has been removed, in compliance with applicable prospectus
delivery requirements, if any. In the event that the Company does not accept the opinion of counsel provided by the
Buyer with respect to the transfer of Securities pursuant to an exemption from registration, such as Rule 144, at the
Deadline, it will be considered an Event of Default pursuant to Section 3.2 of the Note; provided such opinion complies
with the Irrevocable Transfer Agent Instructions (as defined herein).

 
Authorization; Enforcement. This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized. This

Agreement has been duly executed and delivered on behalf of the Buyer, and this Agreement constitutes a valid and
binding agreement of the Buyer enforceable in accordance with its terms. 
 

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY .  
 
The Company represents and warrants to the Buyer that:

 
Organization and Qualification . The Company and each of its Subsidiaries (as defined

below), if any, is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction in
which it is incorporated, with full power and authority (corporate and other) to own, lease, use and operate its properties
and to carry on its business as and where now owned, leased, used, operated and conducted. “Subsidiaries” means any
corporation or other organization, whether incorporated or unincorporated, in which the Company owns, directly or
indirectly, any equity or other ownership interest. 
 

Authorization; Enforcement. (i) The Company has all requisite corporate power and
authority to enter into and perform this Agreement, the Note and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby
and thereby and to issue the Securities, in accordance with the terms hereof and thereof, (ii) the execution and delivery of
this Agreement, the Note by the Company and the consummation by it of the transactions contemplated hereby and
thereby (including without limitation, the issuance of the Note and the issuance and reservation for issuance of the
Conversion Shares issuable upon conversion or exercise thereof) have been duly authorized by the Company’s Board of
Directors and no further consent or authorization of the Company, its Board of Directors, or its shareholders is required,
this Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the Company by its authorized representative, and such
authorized representative is the true and official representative with authority to sign this Agreement and the other
documents executed in connection herewith and bind the Company accordingly, and (iv) this Agreement constitutes, and
upon execution and delivery by the Company of the Note, each of such instruments will constitute, a legal, valid and
binding obligation of the Company enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms. 
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Capitalization. As of the date hereof, the authorized common stock of the Company
consists of 1,200,000,000 authorized shares of Common Stock, $0.001 par value per share, of which 265,533,805 shares
are issued and outstanding; and 11,400,291 shares are reserved for issuance upon conversion of the Note. All of such
outstanding shares of capital stock are, or upon issuance will be, duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and non‐
assessable. . 
 

Issuance of Shares. The Conversion Shares are duly authorized and reserved for
issuance and, upon conversion of the Note in accordance with its terms, will be validly issued, fully paid and non‐
assessable, and free from all taxes, liens, claims and encumbrances with respect to the issue thereof and shall not be
subject to preemptive rights or other similar rights of shareholders of the Company and will not impose personal liability
upon the holder thereof. 
 

No Conflicts. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the Note
by the Company and the consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby (including,
without limitation, the issuance and reservation for issuance of the Conversion Shares) will not (i) conflict with or result in
a violation of any provision of the Certificate of Incorporation or By‐laws, or (ii) violate or conflict with, or result in a breach
of any provision of, or constitute a default (or an event which with notice or lapse of time or both could become a default)
under, or give to others any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation of, any agreement, indenture,
patent, patent license or instrument to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party, or (iii) result in a violation of
any law, rule, regulation, order, judgment or decree (including federal and state securities laws and regulations and
regulations of any self‐regulatory organizations to which the Company or its securities are subject) applicable to the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries or by which any property or asset of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is bound
or affected (except for such conflicts, defaults, terminations, amendments, accelerations, cancellations and violations as
would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect). The businesses of the Company and its
Subsidiaries, if any, are not being conducted, and shall not be conducted so long as the Buyer owns any of the Securities,
in violation of any law, ordinance or regulation of any governmental entity. “Material Adverse Effect” means any material
adverse effect on the business, operations, assets, financial condition or prospects of the Company or its Subsidiaries, if
any, taken as a whole, or on the transactions contemplated hereby or by the agreements or instruments to be entered into
in connection herewith. 
 

SEC Documents; Financial Statements. The Company has filed all reports, schedules,
forms, statements and other documents required to be filed by it with the SEC pursuant to the reporting requirements of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “1934 Act”) (all of the foregoing filed prior to the date hereof and all
exhibits included therein and financial statements and schedules thereto and documents (other than exhibits to such
documents) incorporated by reference therein, being hereinafter referred to herein as the “SEC Documents”). Upon written
request the Company will deliver to the Buyer true and complete copies of the SEC Documents, except for such exhibits
and incorporated documents. As of their respective dates or if amended, as of the dates of the amendments, the SEC
Documents complied in all material respects with the requirements of the 1934 Act and the rules and regulations of the
SEC promulgated thereunder applicable to the SEC Documents, and none of the SEC Documents, at the time they were
filed with the SEC, contained any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to state a material fact required to be
stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were
made, not misleading. None of the statements made in any such SEC Documents is, or has been, required to be
amended or updated under applicable law (except for such statements as have been amended or updated in subsequent
filings prior the date hereof). As of their respective dates or if amended, as of the dates of the amendments, the financial
statements of the Company included in the SEC Documents complied as to form in all material respects with applicable
accounting requirements and the published rules and regulations of the SEC with respect thereto. Such financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles, consistently
applied, during the periods involved and fairly present in all material respects the consolidated financial position of the
Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries as of the dates thereof and the consolidated results of their operations and
cash flows for the periods then ended (subject, in the case of unaudited statements, to normal year‐end audit
adjustments). The Company is subject to the reporting requirements of the 1934 Act. 
 

Absence of Certain Changes. Since December 31, 2019, except as set forth in the SEC
Documents, there has been no material adverse change and no material adverse development in the assets, liabilities,
business, properties, operations, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or 1934 Act reporting status of the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries. 
 

Absence of Litigation. Except as set forth in the SEC Documents, there is no action,
suit, claim, proceeding, inquiry or investigation before or by any court, public board, government agency, self‐regulatory
organization or body pending or, to the knowledge of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, threatened against or
affecting the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or their officers or directors in their capacity as such, that could have a
Material Adverse Effect. The Company and its Subsidiaries are unaware of any facts or circumstances which might give
rise to any of the foregoing. 
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No Integrated Offering. Neither the Company, nor any of its affiliates, nor any person
acting on its or their behalf, has directly or indirectly made any offers or sales in any security or solicited any offers to buy
any security under circumstances that would require registration under the 1933 Act of the issuance of the Securities to
the Buyer. The issuance of the Securities to the Buyer will not be integrated with any other issuance of the Company’s
securities (past, current or future) for purposes of any shareholder approval provisions applicable to the Company or its
securities. 
 

No Brokers. The Company has taken no action which would give rise to any claim by
any person for brokerage commissions, transaction fees or similar payments relating to this Agreement or the transactions
contemplated hereby. 
 

No Investment Company. The Company is not, and upon the issuance and sale of the
Securities as contemplated by this Agreement will not be an “investment company” required to be registered under the
Investment Company Act of 1940 (an “Investment Company”). The Company is not controlled by an Investment
Company. 
 

Breach of Representations and Warranties by the Company . If the Company breaches
any of the representations or warranties set forth in this Section 3, and in addition to any other remedies available to the
Buyer pursuant to this Agreement, it will be considered an Event of default under Section 3.4 of the Note. 
 

COVENANTS. 
 

Best Efforts. The Company shall use its best efforts to satisfy timely each of the
conditions described in Section 7 of this Agreement. 
 

Form D; Blue Sky Laws. The Company agrees to timely make any filings required by
federal and state laws as a result of the closing of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 
 

Use of Proceeds. The Company shall use the proceeds for general working capital
purposes. 
 

Expenses. At the Closing, the Company’s obligation with respect to the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement is to reimburse Buyer’ expenses shall be $3,000.00 for Buyer’s legal fees and due
diligence fee. 
 

Corporate Existence. So long as the Buyer beneficially owns any Note, the Company
shall maintain its corporate existence and shall not sell all or substantially all of the Company’s assets, except with the
prior written consent of the Buyer. 
 

Breach of Covenants. If the Company breaches any of the covenants set forth in this
Section 4, and in addition to any other remedies available to the Buyer pursuant to this Agreement, it will be considered
an event of default under Section 3.4 of the Note. 
 

Failure to Comply with the 1934 Act . So long as the Buyer beneficially owns the Note,
the Company shall comply with the reporting requirements of the 1934 Act; and the Company shall continue to be subject
to the reporting requirements of the 1934 Act. 
 

Trading Activities. Neither the Buyer nor its affiliates has an open short position in the
common stock of the Company and the Buyer agrees that it shall not, and that it will cause its affiliates not to, engage in
any short sales of or hedging transactions with respect to the common stock of the Company. 
 

Right of First Refusal. Unless it shall have first delivered to the Buyer, at least forty eight
(48) hours prior to the closing of such Future Offering (as defined herein), written notice describing the proposed Future
Offering (“ROFR Notice”), including the terms and conditions thereof, identity of the proposed purchaser and proposed
definitive documentation to be entered into in connection therewith, and providing the Buyer an option during the forty
eight (48) hour period following delivery of such notice to purchase the securities being offered in the Future Offering on
the same terms as contemplated by such Future Offering (the limitations referred to in this sentence and the preceding
sentence are collectively referred to as the “Right of First Refusal”), the Company will not conduct any equity (or debt with
an equity component) financing in an amount less than $150,000 (“Future Offering(s)”) during the period beginning on the
Closing Date and ending nine (9) months following the Closing Date. In the event the terms and conditions of a proposed
Future Offering are amended in any respect after delivery of the notice to the Buyer concerning the proposed Future
Offering, the Company shall deliver a new notice to the Buyer describing the amended terms and conditions of the
proposed Future Offering and the Buyer thereafter shall have an option during the forty eight (48) hour period following
delivery of such new notice to purchase the securities being offered on the same terms as contemplated by such proposed
Future Offering, as amended. 
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TRANSFER AGENT INSTRUCTIONS.  
 
The Company shall issue irrevocable instructions to its transfer agent to issue certificates, registered in

the name of the Buyer or its nominee, for the Conversion Shares in such amounts as specified from time to time by the
Buyer to the Company upon conversion of the Note in accordance with the terms thereof (the “Irrevocable Transfer Agent
Instructions”). In the event that the Company proposes to replace its transfer agent, the Company shall provide, prior to
the effective date of such replacement, a fully executed Irrevocable Transfer Agent Instructions in a form as initially
delivered pursuant to this Agreement (including but not limited to the provision to irrevocably reserve shares of Common
Stock in the Reserved Amount as such term is defined in the Note) signed by the successor transfer agent to Company
and the Company. Prior to registration of the Conversion Shares under the 1933 Act or the date on which the Conversion
Shares may be sold pursuant to an exemption from registration, all such certificates shall bear the restrictive legend
specified in Section 2(e) of this Agreement. The Company warrants that: (i) no instruction other than the Irrevocable
Transfer Agent Instructions referred to in this Section 5, will be given by the Company to its transfer agent and that the
Securities shall otherwise be freely transferable on the books and records of the Company as and to the extent provided in
this Agreement and the Note; (ii) it will not direct its transfer agent not to transfer or delay, impair, and/or hinder its
transfer agent in transferring (or issuing)(electronically or in certificated form) any certificate for Conversion Shares to be
issued to the Buyer upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to the Note as and when required by the Note and this
Agreement; and (iii) it will not fail to remove (or directs its transfer agent not to remove or impairs, delays, and/or hinders
its transfer agent from removing) any restrictive legend (or to withdraw any stop transfer instructions in respect thereof) on
any certificate for any Conversion Shares issued to the Buyer upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to the Note as and
when required by the Note and/or this Agreement. If the Buyer provides the Company and the Company’s transfer agent,
at the cost of the Buyer, with an opinion of counsel in form, substance and scope customary for opinions in comparable
transactions, to the effect that a public sale or transfer of such Securities may be made without registration under the 1933
Act, the Company shall permit the transfer, and, in the case of the Conversion Shares, promptly instruct its transfer agent
to issue one or more certificates, free from restrictive legend, in such name and in such denominations as specified by the
Buyer. The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder will cause irreparable harm to the
Buyer, by vitiating the intent and purpose of the transactions contemplated hereby. Accordingly, the Company
acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its obligations under this Section 5 may be inadequate and agrees, in
the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Company of the provisions of this Section, that the Buyer shall be
entitled, in addition to all other available remedies, to an injunction restraining any breach and requiring immediate
transfer, without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond or other security being required.
 

CONDITIONS TO THE COMPANY’S OBLIGATION TO SELL.  
 
The obligation of the Company hereunder to issue and sell the Note to the Buyer at the Closing is

subject to the satisfaction, at or before the Closing Date of each of the following conditions thereto, provided that these
conditions are for the Company’s sole benefit and may be waived by the Company at any time in its sole discretion:
 

The Buyer shall have executed this Agreement and delivered the same to the
Company. 
 

The Buyer shall have delivered the Purchase Price in accordance with Section 1(b)
above. 
 

The representations and warranties of the Buyer shall be true and correct in all material
respects as of the date when made and as of the Closing Date as though made at that time (except for representations
and warranties that speak as of a specific date), and the Buyer shall have performed, satisfied and complied in all material
respects with the covenants, agreements and conditions required by this Agreement to be performed, satisfied or
complied with by the Buyer at or prior to the Closing Date. 
 

No litigation, statute, rule, regulation, executive order, decree, ruling or injunction shall
have been enacted, entered, promulgated or endorsed by or in any court or governmental authority of competent
jurisdiction or any self‐regulatory organization having authority over the matters contemplated hereby which prohibits the
consummation of any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 
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CONDITIONS TO THE BUYER’S OBLIGATION TO PURCHASE . 
 
The obligation of the Buyer hereunder to purchase the Note at the Closing is subject to the satisfaction,
at or before the Closing Date of each of the following conditions, provided that these conditions are for
the Buyer’s sole benefit and may be waived by the Buyer at any time in its sole discretion:

 
The Company shall have executed this Agreement and delivered the same to the

Buyer. 
 

The Company shall have delivered to the Buyer the duly executed Note (in such
denominations as the Buyer shall request) in accordance with Section 1(b) above. 
 

The Irrevocable Transfer Agent Instructions, in form and substance satisfactory to the
Buyer, shall have been delivered to and acknowledged in writing by the Company’s Transfer Agent. 
 

The representations and warranties of the Company shall be true and correct in all
material respects as of the date when made and as of the Closing Date as though made at such time (except for
representations and warranties that speak as of a specific date) and the Company shall have performed, satisfied and
complied in all material respects with the covenants, agreements and conditions required by this Agreement to be
performed, satisfied or complied with by the Company at or prior to the Closing Date. The Buyer shall have received a
certificate or certificates, executed by the chief executive officer of the Company, dated as of the Closing Date, to the
foregoing effect and as to such other matters as may be reasonably requested by the Buyer including, but not limited to
certificates with respect to the Board of Directors’ resolutions relating to the transactions contemplated hereby. 
 

No litigation, statute, rule, regulation, executive order, decree, ruling or injunction shall
have been enacted, entered, promulgated or endorsed by or in any court or governmental authority of competent
jurisdiction or any self‐regulatory organization having authority over the matters contemplated hereby which prohibits the
consummation of any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 
 

No event shall have occurred which could reasonably be expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect on the Company including but not limited to a change in the 1934 Act reporting status of the Company or
the failure of the Company to be timely in its 1934 Act reporting obligations. 
 

The Conversion Shares shall have been authorized for quotation on an exchange or
electronic quotation system and trading in the Common Stock on such exchange or electronic quotation system shall not
have been suspended by the SEC or an exchange or electronic quotation system. 
 

The Buyer shall have received an officer’s certificate described in Section 3(d) above,
dated as of the Closing Date. 
 
 

GOVERNING LAW; MISCELLANEOUS. 
 

Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of the State of Virginia without regard to principles of conflicts of laws. Any action brought by either party
against the other concerning the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be brought only in the state courts of
New York or in the federal courts located in New York and the county of Nassau. The parties to this Agreement hereby
irrevocably waive any objection to jurisdiction and venue of any action instituted hereunder and shall not assert any
defense based on lack of jurisdiction or venue or based upon forum non conveniens . The Company and Buyer waive trial
by jury. The prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party its reasonable attorney's fees and costs. In
the event that any provision of this Agreement or any other agreement delivered in connection herewith is invalid or
unenforceable under any applicable statute or rule of law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent
that it may conflict therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any such provision
which may prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision
of any agreement. Each party hereby irrevocably waives personal service of process and consents to process being
served in any suit, action or proceeding in connection with this Agreement, the Note or any related document or
agreement by mailing a copy thereof via registered or certified mail or overnight delivery (with evidence of delivery) to
such party at the address in effect for notices to it under this Agreement and agrees that such service shall constitute good
and sufficient service of process and notice thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any
right to serve process in any other manner permitted by law. 
 

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original but all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement and shall become effective
when counterparts have been signed by each party and delivered to the other party. 
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Headings. The headings of this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and
shall not form part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Agreement. 
 

Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or
unenforceable under any applicable statute or rule of law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent
that it may conflict therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any provision
hereof which may prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other
provision hereof. 
 

Entire Agreement; Amendments. This Agreement and the instruments referenced
herein contain the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the matters covered herein and therein and, except
as specifically set forth herein or therein, neither the Company nor the Buyer makes any representation, warranty,
covenant or undertaking with respect to such matters. No provision of this Agreement may be waived or amended other
than by an instrument in writing signed by the majority in interest of the Buyer. 
 

Notices. All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals, and other
communications required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and, unless otherwise specified herein, shall be (i)
personally served, (ii) deposited in the mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, (iii)
delivered by reputable air courier service with charges prepaid, or (iv) transmitted by hand delivery, telegram, or facsimile,
addressed as set forth below or to such other address as such party shall have specified most recently by written notice.
Any notice or other communication required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be deemed effective (a) upon hand
delivery or delivery by facsimile, with accurate confirmation generated by the transmitting facsimile machine, at the
address or number designated below (if delivered on a business day during normal business hours where such notice is
to be received), or the first business day following such delivery (if delivered other than on a business day during normal
business hours where such notice is to be received) or (b) on the second business day following the date of mailing by
express courier service, fully prepaid, addressed to such address, or upon actual receipt of such mailing, whichever shall
first occur. The addresses for such communications shall be as set forth in the heading of this Agreement with a copy by
fax only to (which copy shall not constitute notice) to Naidich Wurman LLP, 111 Great Neck Road, Suite 214, Great Neck,
NY 11021, Attn: Allison Naidich, facsimile: 516‐466‐3555, e‐mail: allison@nwlaw.com. Each party shall provide notice to
the other party of any change in address. 
 

Successors and Assigns . This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit
of the parties and their successors and assigns. Neither the Company nor the Buyer shall assign this Agreement or any
rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the other. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Buyer may
assign its rights hereunder to any person that purchases Securities in a private transaction from the Buyer or to any of its
“affiliates,” as that term is defined under the 1934 Act, without the consent of the Company. 
 

Survival. The representations and warranties of the Company and the agreements and
covenants set forth in this Agreement shall survive the closing hereunder notwithstanding any due diligence investigation
conducted by or on behalf of the Buyer. The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Buyer and all of its
officers, directors, employees and agents for loss or damage arising as a result of or related to any breach or alleged
breach by the Company of any of its representations, warranties and covenants set forth in this Agreement or any of its
covenants and obligations under this Agreement, including advancement of expenses as they are incurred. 
 

Further Assurances. Each party shall do and perform, or cause to be done and
performed, all such further acts and things, and shall execute and deliver all such other agreements, certificates,
instruments and documents, as the other party may reasonably request in order to carry out the intent and accomplish the
purposes of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby. 
 

No Strict Construction. The language used in this Agreement will be deemed to be the
language chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rules of strict construction will be applied against
any party. 
 

Remedies. The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder
will cause irreparable harm to the Buyer by vitiating the intent and purpose of the transaction contemplated hereby.
Accordingly, the Company acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its obligations under this Agreement will
be inadequate and agrees, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Company of the provisions of this
Agreement, that the Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies at law or in equity, and in addition to
the penalties assessable herein, to an injunction or injunctions restraining, preventing or curing any breach of this
Agreement and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions hereof, without the necessity of showing economic loss
and without any bond or other security being required. 
 
 
 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Buyer and the Company have caused this Agreement to be duly
executed as of the date first above written.

 
 

AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
 

By: /s/ Douglas D Cole
Douglas D Cole
Chief Executive Officer

 
 
POWER UP LENDING GROUP LTD.
 

 

By: /s/ Curt Kramer
Name: Curt Kramer
Title: Chief Executive Officer
 
AGGREGATE SUBSCRIPTION AMOUNT:
Aggregate Principal Amount of Note: $43,000.00
Aggregate Purchase Price: $43,000.00
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Exhibit 10.8

 
NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE
SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE CONVERTIBLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES
MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN
EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL (WHICH COUNSEL SHALL BE SELECTED BY THE HOLDER), IN
A GENERALLY ACCEPTABLE FORM, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT.
NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA
FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.

 
 

 
CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTE

 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION, a Nevada corporation (hereinafter

called the “Borrower”), hereby promises to pay to the order of POWER UP LENDING GROUP LTD. , a Virginia
corporation, or registered assigns (the “Holder”) the sum of $43,000.00 together with any interest as set forth herein, on
April 21, 2021 (the “Maturity Date”), and to pay interest on the unpaid principal balance hereof at the rate of ten percent
(10%)(the “Interest Rate”) per annum from the date hereof (the “Issue Date”) until the same becomes due and payable,
whether at maturity or upon acceleration or by prepayment or otherwise. This Note may not be prepaid in whole or in part
except as otherwise explicitly set forth herein. Any amount of principal or interest on this Note which is not paid when due
shall bear interest at the rate of twenty two percent (22%) per annum from the due date thereof until the same is paid
(“Default Interest”). Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 365 day year and the actual number of days elapsed.
Interest shall commence accruing on the Issue Date and shall be payable upon the earlier of prepayment, acceleration,
each conversion and the Maturity Date. All payments due hereunder (to the extent not converted into common stock,
$0.001 par value per share (the “Common Stock”) in accordance with the terms hereof) shall be made in lawful money of
the United States of America. All payments shall be made at such address as the Holder shall hereafter give to the
Borrower by written notice made in accordance with the provisions of this Note. Each capitalized term used herein, and
not otherwise defined, shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in that certain Securities Purchase Agreement dated the
date hereof, pursuant to which this Note was originally issued (the “Purchase Agreement”).
 

This Note is free from all taxes, liens, claims and encumbrances with respect to the issue thereof and shall not
be subject to preemptive rights or other similar rights of shareholders of the Borrower and will not impose personal
liability upon the holder thereof.

 
The following terms shall apply to this Note:
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ARTICLE I. CONVERSION RIGHTS
 

Conversion Right. The Holder shall have the right from time to time, and at any time during the
period beginning on the date which is one hundred eighty (180) days following the date of this Note and ending on the
later of: (i) the Maturity Date and (ii) the date of payment of the Default Amount (as defined in Article III), each in respect
of the remaining outstanding amount of this Note to convert all or any part of the outstanding and unpaid amount of this
Note into fully paid and non‐ assessable shares of Common Stock, as such Common Stock exists on the Issue Date, or
any shares of capital stock or other securities of the Borrower into which such Common Stock shall hereafter be changed
or reclassified at the conversion price (the “Conversion Price”) determined as provided herein (a “Conversion”); provided,
however, that in no event shall the Holder be entitled to convert any portion of this Note in excess of that portion of this
Note upon conversion of which the sum of (1) the number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by the Holder
and its affiliates (other than shares of Common Stock which may be deemed beneficially owned through the ownership of
the unconverted portion of the Notes or the unexercised or unconverted portion of any other security of the Borrower
subject to a limitation on conversion or exercise analogous to the limitations contained herein) and (2) the number of
shares of Common Stock issuable upon the conversion of the portion of this Note with respect to which the determination
of this proviso is being made, would result in beneficial ownership by the Holder and its affiliates of more than 4.99% of
the outstanding shares of Common Stock. For purposes of the proviso to the immediately preceding sentence, beneficial
ownership shall be determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(the “Exchange Act”), and Regulations 13D‐G thereunder, except as otherwise provided in clause (1) of such proviso.
The beneficial ownership limitations on conversion as set forth in the section may NOT be waived by the Holder . The
number of shares of Common Stock to be issued upon each conversion of this Note shall be determined by dividing the
Conversion Amount (as defined below) by the applicable Conversion Price then in effect on the date specified in the
notice of conversion, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Notice of Conversion”), delivered to the Borrower by
the Holder in accordance with Section 1.4 below; provided that the Notice of Conversion is submitted by facsimile or e‐
mail (or by other means resulting in, or reasonably expected to result in, notice) to the Borrower before 6:00 p.m., New
York, New York time on such conversion date (the “Conversion Date”); however, if the Notice of Conversion is sent after
6:00pm, New York, New York time the Conversion Date shall be the next business day. The term “Conversion Amount”
means, with respect to any conversion of this Note, the sum of (1) the principal amount of this Note to be converted in
such conversion plus (2) at the Holder’s option, accrued and unpaid interest, if any, on such principal amount at the
interest rates provided in this Note to the Conversion Date, plus (3) at the Holder’s option, Default Interest, if any, on the
amounts referred to in the immediately preceding clauses (1) and/or (2) plus (4) at the Holder’s option, any amounts
owed to the Holder pursuant to Sections 1.4 hereof. 
 

Conversion Price. The conversion price (the “Conversion Price”) shall equal the Variable
Conversion Price (as defined herein) (subject to equitable adjustments by the Borrower relating to the Borrower’s
securities or the securities of any subsidiary of the Borrower, combinations, recapitalization, reclassifications,
extraordinary distributions and similar events). The "Variable Conversion Price" shall mean 61% multiplied by the Market
Price (as defined herein) (representing a discount rate of 39%). “Market Price” means the lowest Trading Price (as
defined below) for the Common Stock during the ten (10) Trading Day period ending on the latest complete Trading Day
prior to the Conversion Date. “Trading Price” means, for any security as of any date, the closing bid price on the OTCQB,
OTCQX, Pink Sheets electronic quotation system or applicable trading market (the “OTC”) as reported by a reliable
reporting service (“Reporting Service”) designated by the Holder (i.e. Bloomberg) or, if the OTC is not the principal
trading market for such security, the closing bid price of such security on the principal securities exchange or trading
market where such security is listed or traded or, if no closing bid price of such security is available in any of the
foregoing manners, the average of the closing bid prices of any market makers for such security that are listed in the
“pink sheets”. If the Trading Price cannot be calculated for such security on such date in the manner provided above, the
Trading Price shall be the fair market value as reasonably determined by the Borrower. “Trading Day” shall mean any
day on which the Common Stock is tradable for any period on the OTC, or on the principal securities exchange or other
securities market on which the Common Stock is then being traded. 
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Authorized Shares. The Borrower covenants that during the period that this Note is
outstanding, the Borrower will reserve from its authorized and unissued Common Stock a sufficient number of shares,
free from preemptive rights, to provide for the issuance of Common Stock upon the full conversion of this Note issued
pursuant to the Purchase Agreement. The Borrower is required at all times to have authorized and reserved six times the
number of shares that would be issuable upon full conversion of the Note (assuming that the 4.99% limitation set forth in
Section 1.1 is not in effect)(based on the respective Conversion Price of the Note (as defined in Section 1.2) in effect
from time to time, initially 11,400,291)(the “Reserved Amount”). The Reserved Amount shall be increased (or decreased
with the written consent of the Holder) from time to time in accordance with the Borrower’s obligations hereunder. The
Borrower represents that upon issuance, such shares will be duly and validly issued, fully paid and non‐assessable. In
addition, if the Borrower shall issue any securities or make any change to its capital structure which would change the
number of shares of Common Stock into which the Notes shall be convertible at the then current Conversion Price, the
Borrower shall at the same time make proper provision so that thereafter there shall be a sufficient number of shares of
Common Stock authorized and reserved, free from preemptive rights, for conversion of the outstanding Note. The
Borrower (i) acknowledges that it has irrevocably instructed its transfer agent to issue certificates for the Common Stock
issuable upon conversion of this Note, and (ii) agrees that its issuance of this Note shall constitute full authority to its
officers and agents who are charged with the duty of executing stock certificates to execute and issue the necessary
certificates for shares of Common Stock in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Note. 
 

If, at any time the Borrower does not maintain the Reserved Amount it will be considered an Event of
Default under Section 3.2 of the Note.

 
Method of Conversion. 

 
Mechanics of Conversion. As set forth in Section 1.1 hereof, from time to time, and at

any time during the period beginning on the date which is one hundred eighty (180) days following the date of this Note
and ending on the later of: (i) the Maturity Date and (ii) the date of payment of the Default Amount, this Note may be
converted by the Holder in whole or in part at any time from time to time after the Issue Date, by (A) submitting to the
Borrower a Notice of Conversion (by facsimile, e‐mail or other reasonable means of communication dispatched on the
Conversion Date prior to 6:00 p.m., New York, New York time) and (B) subject to Section 1.4(b), surrendering this Note
at the principal office of the Borrower (upon payment in full of any amounts owed hereunder). 
 

Surrender of Note Upon Conversion. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth
herein, upon conversion of this Note in accordance with the terms hereof, the Holder shall not be required to physically
surrender this Note to the Borrower unless the entire unpaid principal amount of this Note is so converted. The Holder
and the Borrower shall maintain records showing the principal amount so converted and the dates of such conversions or
shall use such other method, reasonably satisfactory to the Holder and the Borrower, so as not to require physical
surrender of this Note upon each such conversion. 
 

Delivery of Common Stock Upon Conversion . Upon receipt by the Borrower from the
Holder of a facsimile transmission or e‐mail (or other reasonable means of communication) of a Notice of Conversion
meeting the requirements for conversion as provided in this Section 1.4, the Borrower shall issue and deliver or cause to
be issued and delivered to or upon the order of the Holder certificates for the Common Stock issuable upon such
conversion within two (2) business days after such receipt (the “Deadline”) (and, solely in the case of conversion of the
entire unpaid principal amount hereof, surrender of this Note) in accordance with the terms hereof and the Purchase
Agreement. Upon receipt by the Borrower of a Notice of Conversion, the Holder shall be deemed to be the holder of
record of the Common Stock issuable upon such conversion, the outstanding principal amount and the amount of
accrued and unpaid interest on this Note shall be reduced to reflect such conversion, and, unless the Borrower defaults
on its obligations hereunder, all rights with respect to the portion of this Note being so converted shall forthwith terminate
except the right to receive the Common Stock or other securities, cash or other assets, as herein provided, on such
conversion. If the Holder shall have given a Notice of Conversion as provided herein, the Borrower’s obligation to issue
and deliver the certificates for Common Stock shall be absolute and unconditional, irrespective of the absence of any
action by the Holder to enforce the same, any waiver or consent with respect to any provision thereof, the recovery of
any judgment against any person or any action to enforce the same, any failure or delay in the enforcement of any other
obligation of the Borrower to the holder of record, or any setoff, counterclaim, recoupment, limitation or termination, or
any breach or alleged breach by the Holder of any obligation to the Borrower, and irrespective of any other circumstance
which might otherwise limit such obligation of the Borrower to the Holder in connection with such conversion. 
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Delivery of Common Stock by Electronic Transfer . In lieu of delivering physical
certificates representing the Common Stock issuable upon conversion, provided the Borrower is participating in the
Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) Fast Automated Securities Transfer (“FAST”) program, upon request of the Holder
and its compliance with the provisions set forth herein, the Borrower shall use its best efforts to cause its transfer agent
to electronically transmit the Common Stock issuable upon conversion to the Holder by crediting the account of Holder’s
Prime Broker with DTC through its Deposit and Withdrawal at Custodian (“DWAC”) system. 
 

Failure to Deliver Common Stock Prior to Deadline . Without in any way limiting the
Holder’s right to pursue other remedies, including actual damages and/or equitable relief, the parties agree that if delivery
of the Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note is not delivered by the Deadline due to action and/or inaction
of the Borrower, the Borrower shall pay to the Holder $2,000 per day in cash, for each day beyond the Deadline that the
Borrower fails to deliver such Common Stock (the “Fail to Deliver Fee”); provided; however that the Fail to Deliver Fee
shall not be due if the failure is a result of a third party (i.e., transfer agent; and not the result of any failure to pay such
transfer agent) despite the best efforts of the Borrower to effect delivery of such Common Stock. Such cash amount shall
be paid to Holder by the fifth day of the month following the month in which it has accrued or, at the option of the Holder
(by written notice to the Borrower by the first day of the month following the month in which it has accrued), shall be
added to the principal amount of this Note, in which event interest shall accrue thereon in accordance with the terms of
this Note and such additional principal amount shall be convertible into Common Stock in accordance with the terms of
this Note. The Borrower agrees that the right to convert is a valuable right to the Holder. The damages resulting from a
failure, attempt to frustrate, interference with such conversion right are difficult if not impossible to qualify. Accordingly,
the parties acknowledge that the liquidated damages provision contained in this Section 1.4(e) are justified. 
 

Concerning the Shares. The shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note
may not be sold or transferred unless: (i) such shares are sold pursuant to an effective registration statement under the
Act or (ii) the Borrower or its transfer agent shall have been furnished with an opinion of counsel (which opinion shall be
in form, substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions) to the effect that the shares
to be sold or transferred may be sold or transferred pursuant to an exemption from such registration (such as Rule 144 or
a successor rule) (“Rule 144”); or (iii) such shares are transferred to an “affiliate” (as defined in Rule 144) of the Borrower
who agrees to sell or otherwise transfer the shares only in accordance with this Section 1.5 and who is an Accredited
Investor (as defined in the Purchase Agreement). 
 

Any restrictive legend on certificates representing shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of
this Note shall be removed and the Borrower shall issue to the Holder a new certificate therefore free of any transfer
legend if the Borrower or its transfer agent shall have received an opinion of counsel from Holder’s counsel, in form,
substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions, to the effect that (i) a public sale or
transfer of such Common Stock may be made without registration under the Act, which opinion shall be accepted by the
Company so that the sale or transfer is effected; or (ii) in the case of the Common Stock issuable upon conversion of
this Note, such security is registered for sale by the Holder under an effective registration statement filed under the Act;
or otherwise may be sold pursuant to an exemption from registration. In the event that the Company does not
reasonably accept the opinion of counsel provided by the Holder with respect to the transfer of Securities pursuant to an
exemption from registration (such as Rule 144), at the Deadline, it will be considered an Event of Default pursuant to
Section 3.2 of the Note.

 
Effect of Certain Events . 

 
Effect of Merger, Consolidation, Etc. At the option of the Holder, the sale, conveyance

or disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Borrower, the effectuation by the Borrower of a transaction or
series of related transactions in which more than 50% of the voting power of the Borrower is disposed of, or the
consolidation, merger or other business combination of the Borrower with or into any other Person (as defined below) or
Persons when the Borrower is not the survivor shall be deemed to be an Event of Default (as defined in Article III)
pursuant to which the Borrower shall be required to pay to the Holder upon the consummation of and as a condition to
such transaction an amount equal to the Default Amount (as defined in Article III). “Person” shall mean any individual,
corporation, limited liability company, partnership, association, trust or other entity or organization. 
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Adjustment Due to Merger, Consolidation, Etc. If, at any time when this Note is issued
and outstanding and prior to conversion of all of the Note, there shall be any merger, consolidation, exchange of shares,
recapitalization, reorganization, or other similar event, as a result of which shares of Common Stock of the Borrower shall
be changed into the same or a different number of shares of another class or classes of stock or securities of the
Borrower or another entity, or in case of any sale or conveyance of all or substantially all of the assets of the Borrower
other than in connection with a plan of complete liquidation of the Borrower, then the Holder of this Note shall thereafter
have the right to receive upon conversion of this Note, upon the basis and upon the terms and conditions specified
herein and in lieu of the shares of Common Stock immediately theretofore issuable upon conversion, such stock,
securities or assets which the Holder would have been entitled to receive in such transaction had this Note been
converted in full immediately prior to such transaction (without regard to any limitations on conversion set forth herein),
and in any such case appropriate provisions shall be made with respect to the rights and interests of the Holder of this
Note to the end that the provisions hereof (including, without limitation, provisions for adjustment of the Conversion Price
and of the number of shares issuable upon conversion of the Note) shall thereafter be applicable, as nearly as may be
practicable in relation to any securities or assets thereafter deliverable upon the conversion hereof. The Borrower shall
not affect any transaction described in this Section 1.6(b) unless (a) it first gives, to the extent practicable, ten (10) days
prior written notice (but in any event at least five (5) days prior written notice) of the record date of the special meeting of
shareholders to approve, or if there is no such record date, the consummation of, such merger, consolidation, exchange
of shares, recapitalization, reorganization or other similar event or sale of assets (during which time the Holder shall be
entitled to convert this Note) and (b) the resulting successor or acquiring entity (if not the Borrower) assumes by written
instrument the obligations of this Note. The above provisions shall similarly apply to successive consolidations, mergers,
sales, transfers or share exchanges. 
 

Adjustment Due to Distribution. If the Borrower shall declare or make any distribution of
its assets (or rights to acquire its assets) to holders of Common Stock as a dividend, stock repurchase, by way of return
of capital or otherwise (including any dividend or distribution to the Borrower’s shareholders in cash or shares (or rights to
acquire shares) of capital stock of a subsidiary (i.e., a spin‐off)) (a “Distribution”), then the Holder of this Note shall be
entitled, upon any conversion of this Note after the date of record for determining shareholders entitled to such
Distribution, to receive the amount of such assets which would have been payable to the Holder with respect to the
shares of Common Stock issuable upon such conversion had such Holder been the holder of such shares of Common
Stock on the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to such Distribution. 
 

Prepayment. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Note, at any time
during the periods set forth on the table immediately following this paragraph (the “Prepayment Periods”), the Borrower
shall have the right, exercisable on not more than three (3) Trading Days prior written notice to the Holder of the Note to
prepay the outstanding Note (principal and accrued interest), in full, in accordance with this Section 1.7. Any notice of
prepayment hereunder (an “Optional Prepayment Notice”) shall be delivered to the Holder of the Note at its registered
addresses and shall state: (1) that the Borrower is exercising its right to prepay the Note, and (2) the date of prepayment
which shall be not more than three (3) Trading Days from the date of the Optional Prepayment Notice. On the date fixed
for prepayment (the “Optional Prepayment Date”), the Borrower shall make payment of the Optional Prepayment Amount
(as defined below) to Holder, or upon the direction of the Holder as specified by the Holder in a writing to the Borrower
(which direction shall to be sent to Borrower by the Holder at least one (1) business day prior to the Optional Prepayment
Date). If the Borrower exercises its right to prepay the Note, the Borrower shall make payment to the Holder of an amount
in cash equal to the percentage (“Prepayment Percentage”) as set forth in the table immediately following this paragraph
opposite the applicable Prepayment Period, multiplied by the sum of: (w) the then outstanding principal amount of this
Note plus (x) accrued and unpaid interest on the unpaid principal amount of this Note to the Optional Prepayment Date
plus (y) Default Interest, if any, on the amounts referred to in clauses (w) and (x) plus (z) any amounts owed to the
Holder pursuant to Section 1.4 hereof (the “Optional Prepayment Amount”). If the Borrower delivers an Optional
Prepayment Notice and fails to pay the Optional Prepayment Amount due to the Holder of the Note within two (2)
business days following the Optional Prepayment Date, the Borrower shall forever forfeit its right to prepay the Note
pursuant to this Section 1.7. 
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Prepayment Period
Prepayment
Percentage

The period beginning on the Issue Date and ending on
the date which is thirty (30) days following the Issue Date. 

112%

The period beginning on the date which is thirty‐one
(31) days following the Issue Date and ending on the date which is
sixty (60) days following the Issue Date. 

117%
 

The period beginning on the date which is sixty‐one
(61) days following the Issue Date and ending on the date which is
ninety (90) days following the Issue Date. 

122%

The period beginning on the date that is ninety‐one
(91) day from the Issue Date and ending one hundred twenty (120)
days following the Issue Date. 

127%

The period beginning on the date that is one hundred
twenty‐one (121) day from the Issue Date and ending one hundred
fifty (150) days following the Issue Date. 

130%

The period beginning on the date that is one hundred
fifty‐one (151) day from the Issue Date and ending one hundred
eighty (180) days following the Issue Date. 

135%

 
After the expiration of one hundred eighty (180) days following the Issue Date, the Borrower shall have

no right of prepayment.
 

ARTICLE II. CERTAIN COVENANTS
 

2.1 Sale of Assets. So long as the Borrower shall have any obligation under this Note, the Borrower
shall not, without the Holder’s written consent, sell, lease or otherwise dispose of any significant portion of its assets
outside the ordinary course of business. Any consent to the disposition of any assets may be conditioned on a specified
use of the proceeds of disposition.

 
ARTICLE III. EVENTS OF DEFAULT

 
If any of the following events of default (each, an “Event of Default”) shall occur:

 
Failure to Pay Principal and Interest. The Borrower fails to pay the principal hereof or interest

thereon when due on this Note, whether at maturity or upon acceleration and such breach continues for a period of five
(5) days after written notice from the Holder. 
 

Conversion and the Shares . The Borrower fails to issue shares of Common Stock to the Holder
(or announces or threatens in writing that it will not honor its obligation to do so) upon exercise by the Holder of the
conversion rights of the Holder in accordance with the terms of this Note, fails to transfer or cause its transfer agent to
transfer (issue) (electronically or in certificated form) any certificate for shares of Common Stock issued to the Holder
upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to this Note as and when required by this Note, the Borrower directs its transfer
agent not to transfer or delays, impairs, and/or hinders its transfer agent in transferring (or issuing) (electronically or in
certificated form) any certificate for shares of Common Stock to be issued to the Holder upon conversion of or otherwise
pursuant to this Note as and when required by this Note, or fails to remove (or directs its transfer agent not to remove or
impairs, delays, and/or hinders its transfer agent from removing) any restrictive legend (or to withdraw any stop transfer
instructions in respect thereof) on any certificate for any shares of Common Stock issued to the Holder upon conversion
of or otherwise pursuant to this Note as and when required by this Note (or makes any written announcement, statement
or threat that it does not intend to honor the obligations described in this paragraph) and any such failure shall continue
uncured (or any written announcement, statement or threat not to honor its obligations shall not be rescinded in writing)
for two (2) business days after the Holder shall have delivered a Notice of Conversion. It is an obligation of the Borrower
to remain current in its obligations to its transfer agent. It shall be an event of default of this Note, if a conversion of this
Note is delayed, hindered or frustrated due to a balance owed by the Borrower to its transfer agent. If at the option of the
Holder, the Holder advances any funds to the Borrower’s transfer agent in order to process a conversion, such advanced
funds shall be paid by the Borrower to the Holder within forty‐eight (48) hours of a demand from the Holder. 
 

Breach of Covenants. The Borrower breaches any material covenant or other material term or
condition contained in this Note and any collateral documents including but not limited to the Purchase Agreement and
such breach continues for a period of twenty (20) days after written notice thereof to the Borrower from the Holder. 
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Breach of Representations and Warranties . Any representation or warranty of the Borrower
made herein or in any agreement, statement or certificate given in writing pursuant hereto or in connection herewith
(including, without limitation, the Purchase Agreement), shall be false or misleading in any material respect when made
and the breach of which has (or with the passage of time will have) a material adverse effect on the rights of the Holder
with respect to this Note or the Purchase Agreement. 
 

Receiver or Trustee. The Borrower or any subsidiary of the Borrower shall make an
assignment for the benefit of creditors, or apply for or consent to the appointment of a receiver or trustee for it or for a
substantial part of its property or business, or such a receiver or trustee shall otherwise be appointed. 
 

Bankruptcy. Bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or liquidation proceedings or other
proceedings, voluntary or involuntary, for relief under any bankruptcy law or any law for the relief of debtors shall be
instituted by or against the Borrower or any subsidiary of the Borrower. 
 

Delisting of Common Stock. The Borrower shall fail to maintain the listing of the Common Stock
on at least one of the OTC (which specifically includes the quotation platforms maintained by the OTC Markets Group) or
an equivalent replacement exchange, the Nasdaq National Market, the Nasdaq SmallCap Market, the New York Stock
Exchange, or the American Stock Exchange. 
 

Failure to Comply with the Exchange Act . The Borrower shall fail to comply with the reporting
requirements of the Exchange Act; and/or the Borrower shall cease to be subject to the reporting requirements of the
Exchange Act. 
 

Liquidation. Any dissolution, liquidation, or winding up of Borrower or any substantial portion of
its business. 
 

Cessation of Operations. Any cessation of operations by Borrower or Borrower admits it is
otherwise generally unable to pay its debts as such debts become due, provided, however, that any disclosure of the
Borrower’s ability to continue as a “going concern” shall not be an admission that the Borrower cannot pay its debts as
they become due. 
 

The restatement of any financial statements filed by the
Borrower with the SEC at any time after 180 days after the Issuance Date for any date or period until this Note is no
longer outstanding, if the result of such restatement would, by comparison to the un‐restated financial statement, have
constituted a material adverse effect on the rights of the Holder with respect to this Note or the Purchase Agreement. 

 
Replacement of Transfer Agent. In the event that the Borrower proposes to replace its transfer

agent, the Borrower fails to provide, prior to the effective date of such replacement, a fully executed Irrevocable Transfer
Agent Instructions in a form as initially delivered pursuant to the Purchase Agreement (including but not limited to the
provision to irrevocably reserve shares of Common Stock in the Reserved Amount) signed by the successor transfer
agent to Borrower and the Borrower. 
 

Cross‐Default. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Note or the other
related or companion documents, a breach or default by the Borrower of any covenant or other term or condition
contained in any of the Other Agreements, after the passage of all applicable notice and cure or grace periods, shall, at
the option of the Holder, be considered a default under this Note and the Other Agreements, in which event the Holder
shall be entitled (but in no event required) to apply all rights and remedies of the Holder under the terms of this Note and
the Other Agreements by reason of a default under said Other Agreement or hereunder. “Other Agreements” means,
collectively, all agreements and instruments between, among or by: (1) the Borrower, and, or for the benefit of, (2) the
Holder and any affiliate of the Holder, including, without limitation, promissory notes; provided, however, the term “Other
Agreements” shall not include the related or companion documents to this Note. Each of the loan transactions will be
cross‐defaulted with each other loan transaction and with all other existing and future debt of Borrower to the Holder. 
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Upon the occurrence and during the continuation of any Event of Default specified in Section 3.1 (solely
with respect to failure to pay the principal hereof or interest thereon when due at the Maturity Date), the Note shall
become immediately due and payable and the Borrower shall pay to the Holder, in full satisfaction of its obligations
hereunder, an amount equal to the Default Amount (as defined herein). UPON THE OCCURRENCE AND DURING THE
CONTINUATION OF ANY EVENT OF DEFAULT SPECIFIED IN SECTION 3.2, THE NOTE SHALL BECOME
IMMEDIATELY DUE AND PAYABLE AND THE BORROWER SHALL PAY TO THE HOLDER, IN FULL SATISFACTION
OF ITS OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER, AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO: (Y) THE DEFAULT AMOUNT (AS DEFINED
HEREIN); MULTIPLIED BY (Z) TWO (2). Upon the occurrence and during the continuation of any Event of Default
specified in Sections 3.1 (solely with respect to failure to pay the principal hereof or interest thereon when due on this
Note or upon acceleration), 3.3, 3.4, 3.7, 3.8, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 3.13, and/or 3.14 exercisable through the delivery of
written notice to the Borrower by such Holders (the “Default Notice”), and upon the occurrence of an Event of Default
specified the remaining sections of Articles III (other than failure to pay the principal hereof or interest thereon at the
Maturity Date specified in Section 3,1 hereof), the Note shall become immediately due and payable and the Borrower
shall pay to the Holder, in full satisfaction of its obligations hereunder, an amount equal to the greater of (i) 150% times
the sum of (w) the then outstanding principal amount of this Note plus (x) accrued and unpaid interest on the unpaid
principal amount of this Note to the date of payment (the “Mandatory Prepayment Date”) plus (y) Default Interest, if any,
on the amounts referred to in clauses (w) and/or (x) plus (z) any amounts owed to the Holder pursuant to Section 1.4(e)
hereof (the then outstanding principal amount of this Note to the date of payment plus the amounts referred to in clauses
(x), (y) and (z) shall collectively be known as the “Default Amount”) and all other amounts payable hereunder shall
immediately become due and payable, all without demand, presentment or notice, all of which hereby are expressly
waived, together with all costs, including, without limitation, legal fees and expenses, of collection, and the Holder shall
be entitled to exercise all other rights and remedies available at law or in equity.

 
If the Borrower fails to pay the Default Amount within five (5) business days of written notice that such

amount is due and payable, then the Holder shall have the right at any time, so long as the Borrower remains in default
(and so long and to the extent that there are sufficient authorized shares), to require the Borrower, upon written notice, to
immediately issue, in lieu of the Default Amount, the number of shares of Common Stock of the Borrower equal to the
Default Amount divided by the Conversion Price then in effect.

 
ARTICLE IV. MISCELLANEOUS

 
Failure or Indulgence Not Waiver . No failure or delay on the part of the Holder in the exercise

of any power, right or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any
such power, right or privilege preclude other or further exercise thereof or of any other right, power or privileges. All
rights and remedies existing hereunder are cumulative to, and not exclusive of, any rights or remedies otherwise
available. 
 

Notices. All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals, and other communications
required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and, unless otherwise specified herein, shall be (i) personally served,
(ii) deposited in the mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, (iii) delivered by reputable air
courier service with charges prepaid, or (iv) transmitted by hand delivery, telegram, or facsimile, addressed as set forth
below or to such other address as such party shall have specified most recently by written notice. Any notice or other
communication required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be deemed effective (a) upon hand delivery or delivery
by facsimile, with accurate confirmation generated by the transmitting facsimile machine, at the address or number
designated below (if delivered on a business day during normal business hours where such notice is to be received), or
the first business day following such delivery (if delivered other than on a business day during normal business hours
where such notice is to be received) or (b) on the second business day following the date of mailing by express courier
service, fully prepaid, addressed to such address, or upon actual receipt of such mailing, whichever shall first occur. The
addresses for such communications shall be: 
 

If to the Borrower, to:
 

AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
930 Tahoe Blvd. Suite 802‐16 Incline Village, NV 89451
Attn: Douglas D Cole,
Chief Executive Officer
Fax:
Email: dougcole@mac.com
 

If to the Holder:
 
POWER UP LENDING GROUP LTD.
111 Great Neck Road, Suite 214 Great Neck, NY 11021
Attn: Curt Kramer, Chief Executive Officer
e‐mail: info@poweruplending.com
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With a copy by fax only to (which copy shall not constitute notice):
 

Naidich Wurman LLP
111 Great Neck Road, Suite 216
Great Neck, NY 11021
Attn: Allison Naidich
facsimile: 516‐466‐3555 e‐mail:
allison@nwlaw.com

 
Amendments. This Note and any provision hereof may only be amended by an instrument in

writing signed by the Borrower and the Holder. The term “Note” and all reference thereto, as used throughout this
instrument, shall mean this instrument (and the other Notes issued pursuant to the Purchase Agreement) as originally
executed, or if later amended or supplemented, then as so amended or supplemented. 
 

Most Favored Nation . During the period where any monies are owed to the Holder pursuant to
this Note, if the Borrower engages in any future financing transactions with a third party investor, the Borrower will
provide the Holder with written notice (the “MFN Notice”) thereof promptly but in no event less than 10 days prior to
closing any financing transactions. Included with the MFN Notice shall be a copy of all documentation relating to such
financing transaction and shall include, upon written request of the Holder, any additional information related to such
subsequent investment as may be reasonably requested by the Holder. In the event the Holder determines that the
terms of the subsequent investment are preferable to the terms of the securities of the Borrower issued to the Holder
pursuant to the terms of the Purchase Agreement, the Holder will notify the Borrower in writing. Promptly after receipt of
such written notice from the Holder, the Borrower agrees to amend and restate the Securities (which may include the
conversion terms of this Note), to be identical to the instruments evidencing the subsequent investment. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, this Section 4.4 shall not apply in respect of (i) an Exempt Issuance, or (ii) an underwritten public offering
of Common Stock. “Exempt Issuance” means the issuance of: (a) shares of Common Stock or options to employees,
officers, consultants, advisors or directors of the Borrower pursuant to any stock or option plan duly adopted for such
purpose by a majority of the members of the Board of Directors or a majority of the members of a committee of directors
established for such purpose, (b) securities upon the exercise or exchange of or conversion of this Note and/or other
securities exercisable or exchangeable for or convertible into shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding on the
date hereof, and (c) securities issued pursuant to acquisitions or strategic transactions approved by a majority of the
disinterested directors of the Borrower, provided that any such issuance shall only be to a Person which is, itself or
through its subsidiaries, an operating company in a business synergistic with the business of the Borrower and in which
the Borrower receives benefits in addition to the investment of funds, but shall not include a transaction in which the
Borrower is issuing securities primarily for the purpose of raising capital or to an entity whose primary business is
investing in securities. 
 

Assignability. This Note shall be binding upon the Borrower and its successors and assigns,
and shall inure to be the benefit of the Holder and its successors and assigns. Each transferee of this Note must be an
“accredited investor” (as defined in Rule 501(a) of the Securities and Exchange Commission). Notwithstanding anything
in this Note to the contrary, this Note may be pledged as collateral in connection with a bona fide margin account or
other lending arrangement; and may be assigned by the Holder without the consent of the Borrower. 
 

Cost of Collection. If default is made in the payment of this Note, the Borrower shall pay the
Holder hereof costs of collection, including reasonable attorneys’ fees. 
 

Governing Law. This Note shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of
the State of Virginia without regard to principles of conflicts of laws. Any action brought by either party against the other
concerning the transactions contemplated by this Note shall be brought only in the state courts of New York or in the
federal courts located in the Eastern District of New York. The parties to this Note hereby irrevocably waive any objection
to jurisdiction and venue of any action instituted hereunder and shall not assert any defense based on lack of jurisdiction
or venue or based upon forum non conveniens . The Borrower and Holder waive trial by jury. The prevailing party shall be
entitled to recover from the other party its reasonable attorney's fees and costs. In the event that any provision of this
Note or any other agreement delivered in connection herewith is invalid or unenforceable under any applicable statute or
rule of law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent that it may conflict therewith and shall be
deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any such provision which may prove invalid or
unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of any agreement. Each
party hereby irrevocably waives personal service of process and consents to process being served in any suit, action or
proceeding in connection with this Note, any agreement or any other document delivered in connection with this Note by
mailing a copy thereof via registered or certified mail or overnight delivery (with evidence of delivery) to such party at the
address in effect for notices to it under this Note and agrees that such service shall constitute good and sufficient service
of process and notice thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in
any other manner permitted by law. 
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Purchase Agreement. By its acceptance of this Note, each party agrees to be bound by the
applicable terms of the Purchase Agreement. 
 

Remedies. The Borrower acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder will
cause irreparable harm to the Holder, by vitiating the intent and purpose of the transaction contemplated hereby.
Accordingly, the Borrower acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its obligations under this Note will be
inadequate and agrees, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Borrower of the provisions of this Note, that
the Holder shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies at law or in equity, and in addition to the penalties
assessable herein, to an injunction or injunctions restraining, preventing or curing any breach of this Note and to enforce
specifically the terms and provisions thereof, without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond or
other security being required. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower has caused this Note to be signed in its name by its duly authorized officer
this on April 21, 2020

 
AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION

 
 
By: /s/ Douglas D Cole
Douglas D Cole
Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT A ‐‐ NOTICE OF CONVERSION
 
Tomorrow

 
The undersigned hereby elects to convert $______________________principal amount of the Note (defined

below) into that number of shares of Common Stock to be issued pursuant to the conversion of the Note (“Common
Stock”) as set forth below, of AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION, a Nevada corporation (the “Borrower”)
according to the conditions of the convertible note of the Borrower dated as of April 21, 2020 (the “Note”), as of the date
written below. No fee will be charged to the Holder for any conversion, except for transfer taxes, if any.

 
Box Checked as to applicable instructions:

 
The Borrower shall electronically transmit the Common Stock issuable pursuant to this Notice of
Conversion to the account of the undersigned or its nominee with DTC through its Deposit Withdrawal
Agent Commission system (“DWAC Transfer”). 

 
Name of DTC Prime Broker:
Account Number:

 
[   ] The undersigned hereby requests that the Borrower issue a certificate or certificates for the number of

shares of Common Stock set forth below (which numbers are based on the Holder’s calculation
attached hereto) in the name(s) specified immediately below or, if additional space is necessary, on an
attachment hereto:

 
POWER UP LENDING GROUP LTD.
111 Great Neck Road, Suite 214 Great Neck,
NY 11021 Attention: Certificate Delivery
e‐mail: info@poweruplendinggroup.com

 

Date of conversion   

Applicable Conversion Price: $  
Number of shares of common stock to be issued pursuant to conversion of the
Notes:   
Amount of Principal Balance due remaining under the Note after this
conversion:   

 
 

POWER UP LENDING GROUP LTD.
 

By: /s/ Curt Kramer
Name: Curt Kramer
Title: Chief Executive Officer
Date: ___________________
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Exhibit 10.9

 
SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), dated as of April 22, 2020, by and between
«Company_Name», a Nevada corporation, with headquarters located at 930 Tahoe Blvd., Suite 802-16, Incline Village,
NV 89451 (the “Company”) and BLACK ICE ADVISORS, LLC, a limited liability company, with its address at 3763
Rosecroft Ct., San Diego, CA 92130 (the “Buyer”).

 
WHEREAS:

 
The Company and the Buyer are executing and delivering this Agreement in reliance upon the exemption

from securities registration afforded by the rules and regulations as promulgated by the United States Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”); 

 
Buyer desires to purchase and the Company desires to issue and sell, upon the terms and conditions set

forth in this Agreement a 10% convertible note of the Company, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A in the aggregate
principal amount of $115,500.00 (together with any note(s) issued in replacement thereof or as a dividend thereon or
otherwise with respect thereto in accordance with the terms thereof, the “Note”), convertible into shares of common stock,
of the Company (the “Common Stock”), upon the terms and subject to the limitations and conditions set forth in such
Note. The Note shall contain an original issue discount of $10,500.00 such that the purchase price of the Note shall be
$105,000.00. 

 
The Buyer wishes to purchase, upon the terms and conditions stated in this Agreement, such principal

amount of Note as is set forth immediately below its name on the signature pages hereto; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the Company and the Buyer severally (and not jointly) hereby agree as follows:
 

PURCHASE AND SALE OF NOTE.  
 

Purchase of Note. On the Closing Date (as defined below), the Company shall issue and
sell to the Buyer and the Buyer agrees to purchase from the Company such principal amount of Note as is set forth
immediately below the Buyer’s name on the signature pages hereto. 

 
Form of Payment. On the Closing Date (as defined below), (i) the Buyer shall pay the

purchase price for the Note to be issued and sold to it at the Closing (as defined below) (the “Purchase Price”) by wire
transfer of immediately available funds to the Company, in accordance with the Company’s written wiring instructions,
against delivery of the Note in the principal amount equal to the Purchase Price as is set forth immediately below the
Buyer’s name on the signature pages hereto, and (ii) the Company shall deliver such duly executed Note on behalf of the
Company, to the Buyer, against delivery of such Purchase Price.  

 
Closing Date. The date and time of the first issuance and sale of the Note pursuant to this

Agreement (the “Closing Date”) shall be on or about April 22, 2020, or such other mutually agreed upon time. The closing
of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the “Closing”) shall occur on the Closing Date at such location as
may be agreed to by the parties.  

 
BUYER’S REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES.  

 
The Buyer represents and warrants to the Company that:
 

Investment Purpose. As of the date hereof, the Buyer is purchasing the Note and the
shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to the Note, such shares of Common Stock
being collectively referred to herein as the “Conversion Shares” and, collectively with the Note, the “Securities”) for its own
account and not with a present view towards the public sale or distribution thereof, except pursuant to sales registered or
exempted from registration under the 1933 Act; provided, however, that by making the representations herein, the Buyer
does not agree to hold any of the Securities for any minimum or other specific term and reserves the right to dispose of
the Securities at any time in accordance with or pursuant to a registration statement or an exemption under the 1933 Act. 

 
Accredited Investor Status. The Buyer is an “accredited investor” as that term is defined in

Rule 501(a) of Regulation D (an “Accredited Investor”). 
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Reliance on Exemptions. The Buyer understands that the Securities are being offered
and sold to it in reliance upon specific exemptions from the registration requirements of United States federal and state
securities laws and that the Company is relying upon the truth and accuracy of, and the Buyer’s compliance with, the
representations, warranties, agreements, acknowledgments and understandings of the Buyer set forth herein in order to
determine the availability of such exemptions and the eligibility of the Buyer to acquire the Securities. 

 
Information. The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been, and for so long as the Note

remain outstanding will continue to be, furnished with all materials relating to the business, finances and operations of the
Company and materials relating to the offer and sale of the Securities which have been requested by the Buyer or its
advisors. The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been, and for so long as the Note remain outstanding will continue to be,
afforded the opportunity to ask questions of the Company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company has not disclosed
to the Buyer any material nonpublic information and will not disclose such information unless such information is disclosed
to the public prior to or promptly following such disclosure to the Buyer. Neither such inquiries nor any other due diligence
investigation conducted by Buyer or any of its advisors or representatives shall modify, amend or affect Buyer’s right to
rely on the Company’s representations and warranties contained in Section 3 below. The Buyer understands that its
investment in the Securities involves a significant degree of risk. The Buyer is not aware of any facts that may constitute a
breach of any of the Company's representations and warranties made herein. 

 
Governmental Review. The Buyer understands that no United States federal or state

agency or any other government or governmental agency has passed upon or made any recommendation or
endorsement of the Securities. 

 
Transfer or Re-sale. The Buyer understands that (i) the sale or re-sale of the Securities

has not been and is not being registered under the 1933 Act or any applicable state securities laws, and the Securities
may not be transferred unless (a) the Securities are sold pursuant to an effective registration statement under the 1933
Act, (b) the Buyer shall have delivered to the Company, at the cost of the Buyer, an opinion of counsel that shall be in
form, substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions to the effect that the Securities
to be sold or transferred may be sold or transferred pursuant to an exemption from such registration, which opinion shall
be accepted by the Company, (c) the Securities are sold or transferred to an “affiliate” (as defined in Rule 144 promulgated
under the 1933 Act (or a successor rule) (“Rule 144”) of the Buyer who agrees to sell or otherwise transfer the Securities
only in accordance with this Section 2(f) and who is an Accredited Investor, (d) the Securities are sold pursuant to Rule
144, or (e) the Securities are sold pursuant to Regulation S under the 1933 Act (or a successor rule) (“Regulation S”), and
the Buyer shall have delivered to the Company, at the cost of the Buyer, an opinion of counsel that shall be in form,
substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in corporate transactions, which opinion shall be accepted by the
Company; (ii) any sale of such Securities made in reliance on Rule 144 may be made only in accordance with the terms
of said Rule and further, if said Rule is not applicable, any re-sale of such Securities under circumstances in which the
seller (or the person through whom the sale is made) may be deemed to be an underwriter (as that term is defined in the
1933 Act) may require compliance with some other exemption under the 1933 Act or the rules and regulations of the SEC
thereunder; and (iii) neither the Company nor any other person is under any obligation to register such Securities under
the 1933 Act or any state securities laws or to comply with the terms and conditions of any exemption thereunder (in each
case). Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything else contained herein to the contrary, the Securities may be pledged as
collateral in connection with a bona fide margin account or other lending arrangement.  

 
Legends. The Buyer understands that the Note and, until such time as the Conversion

Shares have been registered under the 1933 Act may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 or Regulation S without any restriction
as to the number of securities as of a particular date that can then be immediately sold, the Conversion Shares may bear
a restrictive legend in substantially the following form (and a stop-transfer order may be placed against transfer of the
certificates for such Securities): 

 
“NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY
THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE
EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933,
AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES
MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED (I) IN
THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE
SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR (B) AN
OPINION OF COUNSEL (WHICH COUNSEL SHALL BE SELECTED BY THE
HOLDER), IN A GENERALLY ACCEPTABLE FORM, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT
REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II) UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR
RULE 144A UNDER SAID ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE
SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN
ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE
SECURITIES.”

2

c.

d.

e.

f.

g.

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 
 

The legend set forth above shall be removed and the Company shall issue a certificate without such legend to the
holder of any Security upon which it is stamped, if, unless otherwise required by applicable state securities laws, (a) such
Security is registered for sale under an effective registration statement filed under the 1933 Act or otherwise may be sold
pursuant to Rule 144 or Regulation S without any restriction as to the number of securities as of a particular date that can
then be immediately sold, or (b) such holder provides the Company with an opinion of counsel, in form, substance and
scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions, to the effect that a public sale or transfer of such
Security may be made without registration under the 1933 Act, which opinion shall be accepted by the Company so that
the sale or transfer is effected. The Buyer agrees to sell all Securities, including those represented by a certificate(s) from
which the legend has been removed, in compliance with applicable prospectus delivery requirements, if any. In the event
that the Company does not accept the opinion of counsel provided by the Buyer with respect to the transfer of Securities
pursuant to an exemption from registration, such as Rule 144 or Regulation S, within 2 business days, it will be considered
an Event of Default under the Note.

 
Authorization; Enforcement. This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized. This

Agreement has been duly executed and delivered on behalf of the Buyer, and this Agreement constitutes a valid and
binding agreement of the Buyer enforceable in accordance with its terms. 

 
Residency. The Buyer is a resident of the jurisdiction set forth immediately below the

Buyer’s name on the signature pages hereto.  
 

No Short Sales. Buyer/Holder, its successors and assigns, agree that so long as the Note
remains outstanding, the Buyer/Holder shall not enter into or effect “short sales” of the Common Stock or hedging
transaction which establishes a short position with respect to the Common Stock of the Company. The Company
acknowledges and agrees that upon delivery of a Conversion Notice by the Buyer/Holder, the Buyer/Holder immediately
owns the shares of Common Stock described in the Conversion Notice and any sale of those shares issuable under such
Conversion Notice would not be considered short sales. 

 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY .  

 
The Company represents and warrants to the Buyer that:
 

Organization and Qualification . The Company and each of its subsidiaries, if any, is a
corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction in which it is
incorporated, with full power and authority (corporate and other) to own, lease, use and operate its properties and to carry
on its business as and where now owned, leased, used, operated and conducted. 

 
Authorization; Enforcement. (i) The Company has all requisite corporate power and

authority to enter into and perform this Agreement, the Note and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby
and thereby and to issue the Securities, in accordance with the terms hereof and thereof, (ii) the execution and delivery of
this Agreement, the Note by the Company and the consummation by it of the transactions contemplated hereby and
thereby (including without limitation, the issuance of the Note and the issuance and reservation for issuance of the
Conversion Shares issuable upon conversion or exercise thereof) have been duly authorized by the Company’s Board of
Directors and no further consent or authorization of the Company, its Board of Directors, or its shareholders is required,
(iii) this Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the Company by its authorized representative, and such
authorized representative is the true and official representative with authority to sign this Agreement and the other
documents executed in connection herewith and bind the Company accordingly, and (iv) this Agreement constitutes, and
upon execution and delivery by the Company of the Note, each of such instruments will constitute, a legal, valid and
binding obligation of the Company enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms. 

 
Issuance of Shares. The Conversion Shares are duly authorized and reserved for

issuance and, upon conversion of the Note in accordance with its respective terms, will be validly issued, fully paid and
non-assessable, and free from all taxes, liens, claims and encumbrances with respect to the issue thereof and shall not be
subject to preemptive rights or other similar rights of shareholders of the Company and will not impose personal liability
upon the holder thereof. 

 
Acknowledgment of Dilution. The Company understands and acknowledges the

potentially dilutive effect to the Common Stock upon the issuance of the Conversion Shares upon conversion of the Note.
The Company further acknowledges that its obligation to issue Conversion Shares upon conversion of the Note in
accordance with this Agreement, the Note is absolute and unconditional regardless of the dilutive effect that such issuance
may have on the ownership interests of other shareholders of the Company. 
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No Conflicts. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, the Note by the
Company and the consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby (including,
without limitation, the issuance and reservation for issuance of the Conversion Shares) will not (i) conflict with or result in
a violation of any provision of the Certificate of Incorporation or By-laws, or (ii) violate or conflict with, or result in a breach
of any provision of, or constitute a default (or an event which with notice or lapse of time or both could become a default)
under, or give to others any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation of, any agreement, indenture,
patent, patent license or instrument to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries is a party, or (iii) result in a violation of
any law, rule, regulation, order, judgment or decree (including federal and state securities laws and regulations and
regulations of any self-regulatory organizations to which the Company or its securities are subject) applicable to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or by which any property or asset of the Company or any of its subsidiaries is bound or
affected (except for such conflicts, defaults, terminations, amendments, accelerations, cancellations and violations as
would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect). All consents, authorizations, orders, filings and
registrations which the Company is required to obtain pursuant to the preceding sentence have been obtained or effected
on or prior to the date hereof. The Company is not in violation of the listing requirements of the OTC marketplace (the
“OTC MARKETS”) and does not reasonably anticipate that the Common Stock will be delisted by the OTC Markets in the
foreseeable future, nor are the Company’s securities “chilled” by DTC. The Company and its subsidiaries are unaware of
any facts or circumstances which might give rise to any of the foregoing.  

 
Absence of Litigation. Except as disclosed in the Company’s public filings, there is no

action, suit, claim, proceeding, inquiry or investigation before or by any court, public board, government agency, self-
regulatory organization or body pending or, to the knowledge of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, threatened against
or affecting the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or their officers or directors in their capacity as such, that could have a
material adverse effect. Schedule 3(f) contains a complete list and summary description of any pending or, to the
knowledge of the Company, threatened proceeding against or affecting the Company or any of its subsidiaries, without
regard to whether it would have a material adverse effect. The Company and its subsidiaries are unaware of any facts or
circumstances which might give rise to any of the foregoing. 

 
Acknowledgment Regarding Buyer’ Purchase of Securities. The Company acknowledges

and agrees that the Buyer is acting solely in the capacity of arm’s length purchasers with respect to this Agreement and
the transactions contemplated hereby. The Company further acknowledges that the Buyer is not acting as a financial
advisor or fiduciary of the Company (or in any similar capacity) with respect to this Agreement and the transactions
contemplated hereby and any statement made by the Buyer or any of its respective representatives or agents in
connection with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby is not advice or a recommendation and is
merely incidental to the Buyer’ purchase of the Securities. The Company further represents to the Buyer that the
Company’s decision to enter into this Agreement has been based solely on the independent evaluation of the Company
and its representatives. 

 
No Integrated Offering. Neither the Company, nor any of its affiliates, nor any person

acting on its or their behalf, has directly or indirectly made any offers or sales in any security or solicited any offers to buy
any security under circumstances that would require registration under the 1933 Act of the issuance of the Securities to
the Buyer. The issuance of the Securities to the Buyer will not be integrated with any other issuance of the Company’s
securities (past, current or future) for purposes of any shareholder approval provisions applicable to the Company or its
securities. 

 
Title to Property. The Company and its subsidiaries have good and marketable title in fee

simple to all real property and good and marketable title to all personal property owned by them which is material to the
business of the Company and its subsidiaries, in each case free and clear of all liens, encumbrances and defects except
such as are described in Schedule 3(i) or such as would not have a material adverse effect. Any real property and facilities
held under lease by the Company and its subsidiaries are held by them under valid, subsisting and enforceable leases
with such exceptions as would not have a material adverse effect. 

 
Bad Actor. No officer or director of the Company would be disqualified under Rule 506(d)

of the Securities Act as amended on the basis of being a "bad actor" as that term is established in the September 19,
2013 Small Entity Compliance Guide published by the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

 
Breach of Representations and Warranties by the Company . If the Company breaches

any of the representations or warranties set forth in this Section 3, and in addition to any other remedies available to the
Buyer pursuant to this Agreement, it will be considered an Event of default under the Note. 
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COVENANTS. 
 

Expenses. At the Closing, the Company shall reimburse Buyer for expenses incurred by
them in connection with the negotiation, preparation, execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the other
agreements to be executed in connection herewith (“Documents”), including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ and
consultants’ fees and expenses, transfer agent fees, fees for stock quotation services, fees relating to any amendments or
modifications of the Documents or any consents or waivers of provisions in the Documents, fees for the preparation of
opinions of counsel, escrow fees, and costs of restructuring the transactions contemplated by the Documents. When
possible, the Company must pay these fees directly, otherwise the Company must make immediate payment for
reimbursement to the Buyer for all fees and expenses immediately upon written notice by the Buyer or the submission of
an invoice by the Buyer.  

 
Listing. The Company shall promptly secure the listing of the Conversion Shares upon

each national securities exchange or automated quotation system, if any, upon which shares of Common Stock are then
listed (subject to official notice of issuance) and, so long as the Buyer owns any of the Securities, shall maintain, so long
as any other shares of Common Stock shall be so listed, such listing of all Conversion Shares from time to time issuable
upon conversion of the Note. The Company will obtain and, so long as the Buyer owns any of the Securities, maintain the
listing and trading of its Common Stock on the OTC MARKETS or any equivalent replacement market, the Nasdaq stock
market (“Nasdaq”) or the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) and will comply in all respects with the Company’s
reporting, filing and other obligations under the bylaws or rules of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”)
and such exchanges, as applicable. The Company shall promptly provide to the Buyer copies of any notices it receives
from the OTC MARKETS and any other markets on which the Common Stock is then listed regarding the continued
eligibility of the Common Stock for listing on such markets. 

 
Corporate Existence. So long as the Buyer beneficially owns any Note, the Company

shall maintain its corporate existence and shall not sell all or substantially all of the Company’s assets, except in the event
of a merger or consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets, where the surviving or successor
entity in such transaction (i) assumes the Company’s obligations hereunder and under the agreements and instruments
entered into in connection herewith and (ii) is a publicly traded corporation whose Common Stock is listed for trading on
the OTC MARKETS, Nasdaq or NYSE. 

 
No Integration. The Company shall not make any offers or sales of any security (other

than the Securities) under circumstances that would require registration of the Securities being offered or sold hereunder
under the 1933 Act or cause the offering of the Securities to be integrated with any other offering of securities by the
Company for the purpose of any stockholder approval provision applicable to the Company or its securities. 

 
Filings. The Company shall include all of the Notes in its next scheduled SEC filing

whether that shall be a 10Q or a10K. 
 

Breach of Covenants. If the Company breaches any of the covenants set forth in this
Section 4, and in addition to any other remedies available to the Buyer pursuant to this Agreement, it will be considered
an event of default under the Note. 
 

GOVERNING LAW; MISCELLANEOUS. 
 

Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
the laws of the State of New York without regard to principles of conflicts of laws. Any action brought by either party
against the other concerning the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be brought only in the state courts of
New York or in the federal courts located in the state and county of New York. The parties to this Agreement hereby
irrevocably waive any objection to jurisdiction and venue of any action instituted hereunder and shall not assert any
defense based on lack of jurisdiction or venue or based upon forum non conveniens . The Company and Buyer waive trial
by jury. The prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party its reasonable attorney's fees and costs. In
the event that any provision of this Agreement or any other agreement delivered in connection herewith is invalid or
unenforceable under any applicable statute or rule of law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent
that it may conflict therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any such provision
which may prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision
of any agreement. Each party hereby irrevocably waives personal service of process and consents to process being
served in any suit, action or proceeding in connection with this Agreement or any other Transaction Document by mailing
a copy thereof via registered or certified mail or overnight delivery (with evidence of delivery) to such party at the address
in effect for notices to it under this Agreement and agrees that such service shall constitute good and sufficient service of
process and notice thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in any
other manner permitted by law. 
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Counterparts; Signatures by Facsimile. This Agreement may be executed in one or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement and
shall become effective when counterparts have been signed by each party and delivered to the other party. This
Agreement, once executed by a party, may be delivered to the other party hereto by facsimile transmission of a copy of
this Agreement bearing the signature of the party so delivering this Agreement. 

 
Headings. The headings of this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and

shall not form part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Agreement. 
 

Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable
under any applicable statute or rule of law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent that it may
conflict therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any provision hereof which
may prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision
hereof. 

 
Entire Agreement; Amendments. This Agreement and the instruments referenced herein

contain the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the matters covered herein and therein and, except as
specifically set forth herein or therein, neither the Company nor the Buyer makes any representation, warranty, covenant
or undertaking with respect to such matters. No provision of this Agreement may be waived or amended other than by an
instrument in writing signed by the majority in interest of the Buyer. 

 
Notices. All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals, and other communications

required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and, unless otherwise specified herein, shall be (i) personally served,
(ii) deposited in the mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, (iii) delivered by reputable air
courier service with charges prepaid, (iv) via electronic mail or (v) transmitted by hand delivery, telegram, or facsimile,
addressed as set forth below or to such other address as such party shall have specified most recently by written notice.
Any notice or other communication required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be deemed effective (a) upon hand
delivery or delivery by facsimile, with accurate confirmation generated by the transmitting facsimile machine, at the
address or number designated below (if delivered on a business day during normal business hours where such notice is
to be received) or delivery via electronic mail, or the first business day following such delivery (if delivered other than on a
business day during normal business hours where such notice is to be received) or (b) on the second business day
following the date of mailing by express courier service, fully prepaid, addressed to such address, or upon actual receipt of
such mailing, whichever shall first occur. The addresses for such communications shall be:  

 
If to the Company, to:

 
American Battery Metals Corporation
930 Tahoe Blvd., Suite 802-16
Incline Village, NV 89451
Attn: Douglas D Cole, CEO
 

If to the Buyer: 
 

BLACK ICE ADVISORS, LLC 
3763 Rosecroft Ct.
San Diego, CA 92130
Attn: Brent Fouch, Manager

 
Each party shall provide notice to the other party of any change in address.
 

Successors and Assigns . This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit
of the parties and their successors and assigns. Neither the Company nor the Buyer shall assign this Agreement or any
rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the other. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Buyer may
assign its rights hereunder to any “qualified person”, any “permitted assigns”, or “prospective transferee” that acquires or
purchases Note Securities in a private transaction from the Buyer or to any of its “affiliates,” as that term is defined under
the 1934 Act, with the prior written consent of the Company, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, and with
Buyer’s Opinion of Counsel. A qualified person is an “accredited investor” transferee, assignee, or purchaser of the Note
who succeeds to the Holder’s right, title and interest to all or a portion of the Note accompanied with an Opinion of Counsel
as provided for in Section 2(f). 

 
Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is intended for the benefit of the parties hereto

and their respective permitted successors and assigns, and is not for the benefit of, nor may any provision hereof be
enforced by, any other person. 
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Survival. The representations and warranties of the Company and the agreements and
covenants set forth in this Agreement shall survive the closing hereunder notwithstanding any due diligence investigation
conducted by or on behalf of the Buyer. The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Buyer and all their
officers, directors, employees and agents for loss or damage arising as a result of or related to any breach or alleged
breach by the Company of any of its representations, warranties and covenants set forth in this Agreement or any of its
covenants and obligations under this Agreement, including advancement of expenses as they are incurred. 

 
Further Assurances. Each party shall do and perform, or cause to be done and

performed, all such further acts and things, and shall execute and deliver all such other agreements, certificates,
instruments and documents, as the other party may reasonably request in order to carry out the intent and accomplish the
purposes of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby. 

 
No Strict Construction. The language used in this Agreement will be deemed to be the

language chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rules of strict construction will be applied against
any party. 

 
Remedies. The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder

will cause irreparable harm to the Buyer by vitiating the intent and purpose of the transaction contemplated hereby.
Accordingly, the Company acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its obligations under this Agreement will
be inadequate and agrees, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Company of the provisions of this
Agreement, that the Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies at law or in equity, and in addition to
the penalties assessable herein, to an injunction or injunctions restraining, preventing or curing any breach of this
Agreement and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions hereof, without the necessity of showing economic loss
and without any bond or other security being required.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Buyer and the Company have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as
of the date first above written.
 
«Company_Name»

 
By: /s/ Douglas D Cole
Name: Douglas D Cole
Title: CEO
 
 
BLACK ICE ADVISORS, LLC.
 
By: /s/ Brent Fouch
Name: Brent Fouch
Title: Manager
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AGGREGATE SUBSCRIPTION AMOUNT:
 

$115,500.00 
 

Aggregate Purchase Price:
 
Note: $115,500.00 less $10,500.00 in original issue discount, less $5,000.00 in legal fees.
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EXHIBIT A
144 NOTE - $115,500.00
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Exhibit 10.10

 
THIS NOTE AND THE COMMON STOCK ISSUABLE UPON CONVERSION OF
THIS NOTE HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGISTERED WITH THE
UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR THE
SECURITIES COMMISSION OF ANY STATE PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION
FROM REGISTRATION PROVIDED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933,
AS AMENDED, AND THE RULES AND REGULATIONS PROMULGATED
THEREUNDER (THE "1933 ACT”)
 

           US $115,500.00
 

AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
10% CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE NOTE

DUE APRIL 22, 2021
 
 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, American Battery Metals Corporation (the “Company”) promises to pay to the order of
BLACK ICE ADVISORS, LLC and its authorized successors and Permitted Assigns, defined below, ("Holder"), the
aggregate principal face amount of One Hundred Fifteen Thousand Five Hundred Dollars exactly (U.S. $115,500.00) on
April 22, 2021 ("Maturity Date") and to pay interest on the principal amount outstanding hereunder at the rate of 10% per
annum commencing on April 22, 2020 (“Issuance Date”). This Note shall contain a $10,500 original issue discount such
that the purchase price shall be $105,000. The interest will be paid to the Holder in whose name this Note is registered on
the records of the Company regarding registration and transfers of this Note. The principal of, and interest on, this Note
are payable at 3763 Rosecroft Ct., San Diego, CA 92130, initially, and if changed, last appearing on the records of the
Company as designated in writing by the Holder hereof from time to time. The Company will pay each interest payment
and the outstanding principal due upon this Note before or on the Maturity Date, less any amounts required by law to be
deducted or withheld, to the Holder of this Note by check or wire transfer addressed to such Holder at the last address
appearing on the records of the Company. The forwarding of such check or wire transfer shall constitute a payment of
outstanding principal hereunder and shall satisfy and discharge the liability for principal on this Note to the extent of the
sum represented by such check or wire transfer. Interest shall be payable in Common Stock (as defined below) pursuant
to paragraph 4(b) herein. Permitted Assigns means any Holder assignment, transfer or sale of all or a portion of this Note
accompanied by an Opinion of Counsel as provided for in Section 2(f) of the Securities Purchase Agreement. 
 

This Note is subject to the following additional provisions: 
 

This Note is exchangeable for an equal aggregate principal amount of Notes of different
authorized denominations, as requested by the Holder surrendering the same. No service charge will be made for such
registration or transfer or exchange, except that Holder shall pay any tax or other governmental charges payable in
connection therewith. To the extent that Holder subsequently transfers, assigns, sells or exchanges any of the multiple
lesser denomination notes, Holder acknowledges that it will provide the Company with Opinions of Counsel as provided
for in Section 2(f) of the Securities Purchase Agreement. 
 

The Company shall be entitled to withhold from all payments any amounts required to be withheld
under applicable laws. 
 

This Note may be transferred or exchanged only in compliance with the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended ("Act"), applicable state securities laws and Sections 2(f) and 5(f) of the Securities Purchase Agreement. Any
attempted transfer to a non-qualifying party shall be treated by the Company as void. Prior to due presentment for transfer
of this Note, the Company and any agent of the Company may treat the person in whose name this Note is duly
registered on the Company's records as the owner hereof for all other purposes, whether or not this Note be overdue, and
neither the Company nor any such agent shall be affected or bound by notice to the contrary. Any Holder of this Note
electing to exercise the right of conversion set forth in Section 4(a) hereof, in addition to the requirements set forth in
Section 4(a), and any prequalified prospective transferee of this Note, also is required to give the Company written
confirmation that this Note is being converted ("Notice of Conversion") in the form annexed hereto as Exhibit A. The date
of receipt (including receipt by telecopy) of such Notice of Conversion shall be the Conversion Date. All notices of
conversion will be accompanied by an Opinion of Counsel. 
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The Holder of this Note is entitled, at its option, at any time, to convert all or any amount
of the principal face amount of this Note then outstanding into shares of the Company's common stock (the "Common
Stock") at a price (" Conversion Price") for each share of Common Stock equal to 60% of the lowest closing bid price of
the Common Stock as reported on the National Quotations Bureau OTC Market exchange which the Company’s shares
are traded or any exchange upon which the Common Stock may be traded in the future ("Exchange"), for the fifteen prior
trading days including the day upon which a Notice of Conversion is received by the Company (provided such Notice of
Conversion is delivered together with an Opinion of Counsel, by fax or other electronic method of communication to the
Company after 4 P.M. Eastern Standard or Daylight Savings Time if the Holder wishes to include the same day closing
price). If the shares have not been delivered within 2 business days, the Notice of Conversion may be rescinded. Such
conversion shall be effectuated by the Company delivering the shares of Common Stock to the Holder within 2 business
days of receipt by the Company of the Notice of Conversion. Accrued, but unpaid interest shall be subject to conversion.
No fractional shares or scrip representing fractions of shares will be issued on conversion, but the number of shares
issuable shall be rounded to the nearest whole share. To the extent the Conversion Price of the Company’s Common
Stock closes below the par value per share, the Company will take all steps necessary to solicit the consent of the
stockholders to reduce the par value to the lowest value possible under law. The Company agrees to honor all
conversions submitted pending this increase. In the event the Company experiences a DTC “Chill” on its shares, the
conversion price shall be decreased to 50% instead of 60% while that “Chill” is in effect. In no event shall the Holder be
allowed to effect a conversion if such conversion, along with all other shares of Company Common Stock beneficially
owned by the Holder and its affiliates would exceed 4.99% of the outstanding shares of the Common Stock of the
Company (which may be increased up to 9.9% upon 60 days’ prior written notice by the Holder). The conversion discount,
look back period and other terms will be adjusted on a ratchet basis if the Company offers a more favorable conversion
discount, interest rate, (whether through a straight discount or in combination with an original issue discount), look back
period or other more favorable term to another party for any financings while this Note is in effect. 
 

Interest on any unpaid principal balance of this Note shall be paid at the rate of 10% per annum.
Interest shall be paid by the Company in Common Stock ("Interest Shares"). Holder may, at any time commencing six
months after the date of funding to the Company by the Holder, send in a Notice of Conversion to the Company for
Interest Shares based on the formula provided in Section 4(a) above. The dollar amount converted into Interest Shares
shall be all or a portion of the accrued interest calculated on the unpaid principal balance of this Note to the date of such
notice.  
 

The Notes may be prepaid with the following penalties:  
 

PREPAY DATE PREPAY AMOUNT
≤ 30 days 115% of principal plus accrued interest
31- 60 days 120% of principal plus accrued interest
61- 90 days 125% of principal plus accrued interest
91- 120 days 130% of principal plus accrued interest
121- 150 days 135% of principal plus accrued interest
151- 180 days 140% of principal plus accrued interest

 
This Note may not be prepaid after the 180 th day. Such redemption must be closed and funded within 3 days of giving
notice of redemption of the right to redeem shall be null and void. Any partial prepayment shall be allocated in accordance
with the chart above with respect to principal, premium and interest.
 

Upon (i) a transfer of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company to any person in a
single transaction or series of related transactions, (ii) a reclassification, capital reorganization (excluding an increase in
authorized capital) or other change or exchange of outstanding shares of the Common Stock, other than a forward or
reverse stock split or stock dividend, or (iii) any consolidation or merger of the Company with or into another person or
entity in which the Company is not the surviving entity (other than a merger which is effected solely to change the
jurisdiction of incorporation of the Company and results in a reclassification, conversion or exchange of outstanding shares
of Common Stock solely into shares of Common Stock) (each of items (i), (ii) and (iii) being referred to as a "Sale Event"),
then, in each case, the Company shall, upon request of the Holder, redeem this Note in cash for 150% of the principal
amount, plus accrued but unpaid interest through the date of redemption, or at the election of the Holder, such Holder may
convert the unpaid principal amount of this Note (together with the amount of accrued but unpaid interest) into shares of
Common Stock immediately prior to such Sale Event at the Conversion Price. 
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In case of any Sale Event (not to include a sale of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets)
in connection with which this Note is not redeemed or converted, the Company shall cause effective provision to be made
so that the Holder of this Note shall have the right thereafter, by converting this Note, to purchase or convert this Note into
the kind and number of shares of stock or other securities or property (including cash) receivable upon such
reclassification, capital reorganization or other change, consolidation or merger by a holder of the number of shares of
Common Stock that could have been purchased upon exercise of the Note and at the same Conversion Price, as defined
in this Note, immediately prior to such Sale Event. The foregoing provisions shall similarly apply to successive Sale
Events. If the consideration received by the holders of Common Stock is other than cash, the value shall be as
determined by the Board of Directors of the Company or successor person or entity acting in good faith. 
 

No provision of this Note shall alter or impair the obligation of the Company, which is absolute and
unconditional, to pay the principal of, and interest on, this Note at the time, place, and rate, and in the form, herein
prescribed. 
 

The Company hereby expressly waives demand and presentment for payment, notice of non-
payment, protest, notice of protest, notice of dishonor, notice of acceleration or intent to accelerate, and diligence in taking
any action to collect amounts called for hereunder and shall be directly and primarily liable for the payment of all sums
owing and to be owing hereto. 
 

The Company agrees to pay all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees and
expenses, which may be incurred by the Holder in collecting any amount due under this Note. 
 

If one or more of the following described "Events of Default" shall occur: 
 

The Company shall default in the payment of principal or interest on this Note or any other note
issued to the Holder by the Company; or 
 

Any of the representations or warranties made by the Company herein or in any certificate or
financial or other written statements heretofore or hereafter furnished by or on behalf of the Company in connection with
the execution and delivery of this Note, or the Securities Purchase Agreement under which this note was issued shall be
false or misleading in any respect; or 
 

The Company shall fail to perform or observe, in any respect, any covenant, term, provision,
condition, agreement or obligation of the Company under this Note or any other note issued to the Holder; or 
 

The Company shall (1) become insolvent (which does not include a “going concern opinion); (2)
admit in writing its inability to pay its debts generally as they mature; (3) make an assignment for the benefit of creditors or
commence proceedings for its dissolution; (4) apply for or consent to the appointment of a trustee, liquidator or receiver for
its or for a substantial part of its property or business; (5) file a petition for bankruptcy relief, consent to the filing of such
petition or have filed against it an involuntary petition for bankruptcy relief, all under federal or state laws as applicable; or 
 

A trustee, liquidator or receiver shall be appointed for the Company or for a substantial part of its
property or business without its consent and shall not be discharged within sixty (60) days after such appointment; or 
 

Any governmental agency or any court of competent jurisdiction at the instance of any
governmental agency shall assume custody or control of the whole or any substantial portion of the properties or assets of
the Company; or 
 

One or more money judgments, writs or warrants of attachment, or similar process, in excess of
one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) in the aggregate, shall be entered or filed against the Company or any of its
properties or other assets and shall remain unpaid, unvacated, unbonded or unstayed for a period of fifteen (15) days or in
any event later than five (5) days prior to the date of any proposed sale thereunder; or 
 

Defaulted on or breached any term of any other note of similar debt instrument into which the
Company has entered and failed to cure such default within the appropriate grace period; or 
 

The Company shall have its Common Stock delisted from an exchange (including the OTC
Markets exchange) or, if the Common Stock trades on an exchange, then trading in the Common Stock shall be
suspended for more than 10 consecutive days or ceases to file its 1934 act reports with the SEC;  
 

If a majority of the members of the Board of Directors of the Company on the date hereof are no
longer serving as members of the Board; 
 

The Company shall not deliver to the Holder the Common Stock pursuant to paragraph 4 herein
without restrictive legend within 2 business days of its receipt of a Notice of Conversion which includes an Opinion of
Counsel expressing an opinion which supports the removal of a restrictive legend; or 
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The Company shall not replenish the reserve set forth in Section 12, within 3 business days of the
request of the Holder. 
 

The Company shall be delinquent in its periodic report filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission; or 
 

The Company shall cause to lose the “bid” price for its stock in a market (including the OTC
marketplace or other exchange). 
 
Then, or at any time thereafter, unless cured within 5 days, and in each and every such case, unless such Event of
Default shall have been waived in writing by the Holder (which waiver shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any
subsequent default) at the option of the Holder and in the Holder's sole discretion, the Holder may consider this Note
immediately due and payable, without presentment, demand, protest or (further) notice of any kind (other than notice of
acceleration), all of which are hereby expressly waived, anything herein or in any note or other instruments contained to
the contrary notwithstanding, and the Holder may immediately, and without expiration of any period of grace, enforce any
and all of the Holder's rights and remedies provided herein or any other rights or remedies afforded by law. Upon an
Event of Default, interest shall accrue at a default interest rate of 24% per annum or, if such rate is usurious or not
permitted by current law, then at the highest rate of interest permitted by law. In the event of a breach of Section 8(k) the
penalty shall be $250 per day the shares are not issued beginning on the 4th day after the conversion notice was
delivered to the Company. This penalty shall increase to $500 per day beginning on the 10th day. The penalty for a breach
of Section 8(n) shall be an increase of the outstanding principal amounts by 20%. If this Note is not paid at maturity, the
outstanding principal due under this Note shall increase by 10%. Further, if a breach of Section 8(m) occurs or is
continuing after the 6 month anniversary of the Note, then the Holder shall be entitled to use the lowest closing bid price
during the delinquency period as a base price for the conversion. For example, if the lowest closing bid price during the
delinquency period is $0.01 per share and the conversion discount is 50% the Holder may elect to convert future
conversions at $0.005 per share
 
If the Holder shall commence an action or proceeding to enforce any provisions of this Note, including, without limitation,
engaging an attorney, then if the Holder prevails in such action, the Holder shall be reimbursed by the Company for its
attorneys’ fees and other costs and expenses incurred in the investigation, preparation and prosecution of such action or
proceeding.

 
Make-Whole for Failure to Deliver Loss. At the Holder’s election, if the Company fails for any reason to deliver to the
Holder the conversion shares by the by the 3rd business day following the delivery of a Notice of Conversion to the
Company and if the Holder incurs a Failure to Deliver Loss, then at any time the Holder may provide the Company written
notice indicating the amounts payable to the Holder in respect of the Failure to Deliver Loss and the Company must make
the Holder whole as follows:
 
Failure to Deliver Loss = [(Highest VWAP for the 30 trading days on or after the day of exercise) x (Number of conversion
shares)]
 
The Company must pay the Failure to Deliver Loss by cash payment, and any such cash payment must be made by the
third business day from the time of the Holder’s written notice to the Company.
 

In case any provision of this Note is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be excessive in
scope or otherwise invalid or unenforceable, such provision shall be adjusted rather than voided, if possible, so that it is
enforceable to the maximum extent possible, and the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Note
will not in any way be affected or impaired thereby. 
 

Neither this Note nor any term hereof may be amended, waived, discharged or terminated other
than by a written instrument signed by the Company and the Holder. 
 

The Company represents that it is not a “shell” issuer and that if it previously has been a “shell”
issuer that at least 12 months have passed since the Company has reported Form 10 type information indicating it is no
longer a “shell” issuer.  
 

The Company shall issue irrevocable transfer agent instructions reserving 18,780,000 shares of
its Common Stock for conversions under this Note (the “Share Reserve”). Upon full conversion of this Note, any shares
remaining in the Share Reserve shall be cancelled. The Company shall pay all transfer agent costs associated with
issuing and delivering the share certificates to Holder. If such amounts are to be paid by the Holder, it may deduct such
amounts from the principal amount being converted. The company should at all times reserve a minimum of four times the
amount of shares required if the note would be fully converted. The Holder may reasonably request increases from time to
time to reserve such amounts. The Company will instruct its transfer agent to provide the outstanding share information to
the Holder in connection with its conversions. 
 

The Company will give the Holder direct notice of any corporate actions, including but not limited
to name changes, stock splits, recapitalizations etc. This notice shall be given to the Holder as soon as possible under law.
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If it shall be found that any interest or other amount deemed interest due hereunder violates the
applicable law governing usury, the applicable provision shall automatically be revised to equal the maximum rate of
interest or other amount deemed interest permitted under applicable law. The Company covenants (to the extent that it
may lawfully do so) that it will not seek to claim or take advantage of any law that would prohibit or forgive the Company
from paying all or a portion of the principal or interest on this Note. 
 

This Note shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of New York
applicable to contracts made and wholly to be performed within the State of New York and shall be binding upon the
successors and assigns of each party hereto. The Holder and the Company hereby mutually waive trial by jury and
consent to exclusive jurisdiction and venue in the courts of the State of New York or in the Federal courts sitting in the
county or city of New York. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, and the facsimile transmission of an
executed counterpart to this Agreement shall be effective as an original. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Note to be duly executed by an officer thereunto
duly authorized. 
 
 
Dated: ________________

 
 
 

AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
 
By: /s/ Douglas D. Cole
Title: CEO
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EXHIBIT A
 

 
NOTICE OF CONVERSION

 
(To be Executed by the Registered Holder in order to Convert the Note)

 
The undersigned hereby irrevocably elects to convert $____________ of the above Note into _________

Shares of Common Stock of American Battery Metals Corporation (“Shares”) according to the conditions set forth in such
Note, as of the date written below. 
 

If Shares are to be issued in the name of a person other than the undersigned, the undersigned will pay
all transfer and other taxes and charges payable with respect thereto. 

 
Date of Conversion: ______________________________________________________________
Applicable Conversion Price: _______________________________________________________
Signature: ______________________________________________________________________

[Print Name of Holder and Title of Signer] 
Address: _______________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SSN or EIN: _____________________________________________________________________
Shares are to be registered in the following name: ________________________________________
 
Name:___________________________________________________________________________
Address: _________________________________________________________________________
Tel: ________________________________________
Fax: ________________________________________
SSN or EIN: _________________________________
 
Shares are to be sent or delivered to the following account:
 
Account Name: __________________________________________________________________
Address: ________________________________________________________________________
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Exhibit 10.11
 

SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT
 

This SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), dated as of April 23, 2020, by and between
American Battery Metals Corporation., a Nevada corporation, with headquarters located at 930 Tahoe Blvd., Suite 802-
16, Incline Village, NV 89451 (the “Company”) and EFRAT INVESTMENTS, LLC, with its address at 54 Lenox Ave.
Clifton, NJ 07012 (the “Buyer”).

 
WHEREAS:

 
The Company and the Buyer are executing and delivering this Agreement in reliance upon the exemption

from securities registration afforded by the rules and regulations as promulgated by the United States Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”); 

 
Buyer desires to purchase and the Company desires to issue and sell, upon the terms and conditions set

forth in this Agreement a 10% convertible note of the Company, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A in the aggregate
principal amount of $125,000.00 (together with any note(s) issued in replacement thereof or as a dividend thereon or
otherwise with respect thereto in accordance with the terms thereof, the “Note”), convertible into shares of common stock,
of the Company (the “Common Stock”), upon the terms and subject to the limitations and conditions set forth in such
Note. The Note shall contain an original issue discount of $12,500.00 such that the purchase price of the Note shall be
$112,500.00. 

 
The Buyer wishes to purchase, upon the terms and conditions stated in this Agreement, such principal

amount of Note as is set forth immediately below its name on the signature pages hereto; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the Company and the Buyer severally (and not jointly) hereby agree as follows:
 

Purchase and Sale of Note.  
 

Purchase of Note. On the Closing Date (as defined below), the Company shall issue and
sell to the Buyer and the Buyer agrees to purchase from the Company such principal amount of Note as is set forth
immediately below the Buyer’s name on the signature pages hereto. 

 
Form of Payment. On the Closing Date (as defined below), (i) the Buyer shall pay the

purchase price for the Note to be issued and sold to it at the Closing (as defined below) (the “Purchase Price”) by wire
transfer of immediately available funds to the Company, in accordance with the Company’s written wiring instructions,
against delivery of the Note in the principal amount equal to the Purchase Price as is set forth immediately below the
Buyer’s name on the signature pages hereto, and (ii) the Company shall deliver such duly executed Note on behalf of the
Company, to the Buyer, against delivery of such Purchase Price.  

 
Closing Date. The date and time of the first issuance and sale of the Note pursuant to this

Agreement (the “Closing Date”) shall be on or about April 23, 2020, or such other mutually agreed upon time. The closing
of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the “Closing”) shall occur on the Closing Date at such location as
may be agreed to by the parties.  
 

Buyer’s Representations and Warranties.  The Buyer represents and warrants to the Company
that: 
 

Investment Purpose. As of the date hereof, the Buyer is purchasing the Note and the
shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to the Note, such shares of Common Stock
being collectively referred to herein as the “Conversion Shares” and, collectively with the Note, the “Securities”) for its own
account and not with a present view towards the public sale or distribution thereof, except pursuant to sales registered or
exempted from registration under the 1933 Act; provided, however, that by making the representations herein, the Buyer
does not agree to hold any of the Securities for any minimum or other specific term and reserves the right to dispose of
the Securities at any time in accordance with or pursuant to a registration statement or an exemption under the 1933 Act. 

 
Accredited Investor Status. The Buyer is an “accredited investor” as that term is defined in

Rule 501(a) of Regulation D (an “Accredited Investor”). 
 

Reliance on Exemptions. The Buyer understands that the Securities are being offered
and sold to it in reliance upon specific exemptions from the registration requirements of United States federal and state
securities laws and that the Company is relying upon the truth and accuracy of, and the Buyer’s compliance with, the
representations, warranties, agreements, acknowledgments and understandings of the Buyer set forth herein in order to
determine the availability of such exemptions and the eligibility of the Buyer to acquire the Securities. 
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Information. The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been, and for so long as the Note
remain outstanding will continue to be, furnished with all materials relating to the business, finances and operations of the
Company and materials relating to the offer and sale of the Securities which have been requested by the Buyer or its
advisors. The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been, and for so long as the Note remain outstanding will continue to be,
afforded the opportunity to ask questions of the Company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company has not disclosed
to the Buyer any material nonpublic information and will not disclose such information unless such information is disclosed
to the public prior to or promptly following such disclosure to the Buyer. Neither such inquiries nor any other due diligence
investigation conducted by Buyer or any of its advisors or representatives shall modify, amend or affect Buyer’s right to
rely on the Company’s representations and warranties contained in Section 3 below. The Buyer understands that its
investment in the Securities involves a significant degree of risk. The Buyer is not aware of any facts that may constitute a
breach of any of the Company's representations and warranties made herein. 

 
Governmental Review. The Buyer understands that no United States federal or state

agency or any other government or governmental agency has passed upon or made any recommendation or
endorsement of the Securities. 

 
Transfer or Re-sale. The Buyer understands that (i) the sale or re-sale of the Securities

has not been and is not being registered under the 1933 Act or any applicable state securities laws, and the Securities
may not be transferred unless (a) the Securities are sold pursuant to an effective registration statement under the 1933
Act, (b) the Buyer shall have delivered to the Company, at the cost of the Buyer, an opinion of counsel that shall be in
form, substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions to the effect that the Securities
to be sold or transferred may be sold or transferred pursuant to an exemption from such registration, which opinion shall
be accepted by the Company, (c) the Securities are sold or transferred to an “affiliate” (as defined in Rule 144 promulgated
under the 1933 Act (or a successor rule) (“Rule 144”) of the Buyer who agrees to sell or otherwise transfer the Securities
only in accordance with this Section 2(f) and who is an Accredited Investor, (d) the Securities are sold pursuant to Rule
144, or (e) the Securities are sold pursuant to Regulation S under the 1933 Act (or a successor rule) (“Regulation S”), and
the Buyer shall have delivered to the Company, at the cost of the Buyer, an opinion of counsel that shall be in form,
substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in corporate transactions, which opinion shall be accepted by the
Company; (ii) any sale of such Securities made in reliance on Rule 144 may be made only in accordance with the terms
of said Rule and further, if said Rule is not applicable, any re-sale of such Securities under circumstances in which the
seller (or the person through whom the sale is made) may be deemed to be an underwriter (as that term is defined in the
1933 Act) may require compliance with some other exemption under the 1933 Act or the rules and regulations of the SEC
thereunder; and (iii) neither the Company nor any other person is under any obligation to register such Securities under
the 1933 Act or any state securities laws or to comply with the terms and conditions of any exemption thereunder (in each
case). Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything else contained herein to the contrary, the Securities may be pledged as
collateral in connection with a bona fide margin account or other lending arrangement.  

 
Legends. The Buyer understands that the Note and, until such time as the Conversion

Shares have been registered under the 1933 Act may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 or Regulation S without any restriction
as to the number of securities as of a particular date that can then be immediately sold, the Conversion Shares may bear
a restrictive legend in substantially the following form (and a stop-transfer order may be placed against transfer of the
certificates for such Securities): 

 
“NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY
THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE
EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933,
AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES
MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED (I) IN
THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE
SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR (B) AN
OPINION OF COUNSEL (WHICH COUNSEL SHALL BE SELECTED BY THE
HOLDER), IN A GENERALLY ACCEPTABLE FORM, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT
REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II) UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR
RULE 144A UNDER SAID ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE
SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN
ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE
SECURITIES.”
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The legend set forth above shall be removed and the Company shall issue a certificate without such legend to the
holder of any Security upon which it is stamped, if, unless otherwise required by applicable state securities laws, (a) such
Security is registered for sale under an effective registration statement filed under the 1933 Act or otherwise may be sold
pursuant to Rule 144 or Regulation S without any restriction as to the number of securities as of a particular date that can
then be immediately sold, or (b) such holder provides the Company with an opinion of counsel, in form, substance and
scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions, to the effect that a public sale or transfer of such
Security may be made without registration under the 1933 Act, which opinion shall be accepted by the Company so that
the sale or transfer is effected. The Buyer agrees to sell all Securities, including those represented by a certificate(s) from
which the legend has been removed, in compliance with applicable prospectus delivery requirements, if any. In the event
that the Company does not accept the opinion of counsel provided by the Buyer with respect to the transfer of Securities
pursuant to an exemption from registration, such as Rule 144 or Regulation S, within 2 business days, it will be considered
an Event of Default under the Note.

 
Authorization; Enforcement. This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized. This

Agreement has been duly executed and delivered on behalf of the Buyer, and this Agreement constitutes a valid and
binding agreement of the Buyer enforceable in accordance with its terms. 

 
Residency. The Buyer is a resident of the jurisdiction set forth immediately below the

Buyer’s name on the signature pages hereto.  
 

No Short Sales. Buyer/Holder, its successors and assigns, agree that so long as the Note
remains outstanding, the Buyer/Holder shall not enter into or effect “short sales” of the Common Stock or hedging
transaction which establishes a short position with respect to the Common Stock of the Company. The Company
acknowledges and agrees that upon delivery of a Conversion Notice by the Buyer/Holder, the Buyer/Holder immediately
owns the shares of Common Stock described in the Conversion Notice and any sale of those shares issuable under such
Conversion Notice would not be considered short sales. 

 
Representations and Warranties of the Company . The Company represents and warrants to the

Buyer that: 
 

Organization and Qualification . The Company and each of its subsidiaries, if any, is a
corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction in which it is
incorporated, with full power and authority (corporate and other) to own, lease, use and operate its properties and to carry
on its business as and where now owned, leased, used, operated and conducted. 

 
Authorization; Enforcement. (i) The Company has all requisite corporate power and

authority to enter into and perform this Agreement, the Note and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby
and thereby and to issue the Securities, in accordance with the terms hereof and thereof, (ii) the execution and delivery of
this Agreement, the Note by the Company and the consummation by it of the transactions contemplated hereby and
thereby (including without limitation, the issuance of the Note and the issuance and reservation for issuance of the
Conversion Shares issuable upon conversion or exercise thereof) have been duly authorized by the Company’s Board of
Directors and no further consent or authorization of the Company, its Board of Directors, or its shareholders is required,
(iii) this Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the Company by its authorized representative, and such
authorized representative is the true and official representative with authority to sign this Agreement and the other
documents executed in connection herewith and bind the Company accordingly, and (iv) this Agreement constitutes, and
upon execution and delivery by the Company of the Note, each of such instruments will constitute, a legal, valid and
binding obligation of the Company enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms. 

 
Issuance of Shares. The Conversion Shares are duly authorized and reserved for

issuance and, upon conversion of the Note in accordance with its respective terms, will be validly issued, fully paid and
non-assessable, and free from all taxes, liens, claims and encumbrances with respect to the issue thereof and shall not be
subject to preemptive rights or other similar rights of shareholders of the Company and will not impose personal liability
upon the holder thereof. 

 
Acknowledgment of Dilution. The Company understands and acknowledges the

potentially dilutive effect to the Common Stock upon the issuance of the Conversion Shares upon conversion of the Note.
The Company further acknowledges that its obligation to issue Conversion Shares upon conversion of the Note in
accordance with this Agreement, the Note is absolute and unconditional regardless of the dilutive effect that such issuance
may have on the ownership interests of other shareholders of the Company. 
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No Conflicts. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, the Note by the
Company and the consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby (including,
without limitation, the issuance and reservation for issuance of the Conversion Shares) will not (i) conflict with or result in
a violation of any provision of the Certificate of Incorporation or By-laws, or (ii) violate or conflict with, or result in a breach
of any provision of, or constitute a default (or an event which with notice or lapse of time or both could become a default)
under, or give to others any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation of, any agreement, indenture,
patent, patent license or instrument to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries is a party, or (iii) result in a violation of
any law, rule, regulation, order, judgment or decree (including federal and state securities laws and regulations and
regulations of any self-regulatory organizations to which the Company or its securities are subject) applicable to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or by which any property or asset of the Company or any of its subsidiaries is bound or
affected (except for such conflicts, defaults, terminations, amendments, accelerations, cancellations and violations as
would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect). All consents, authorizations, orders, filings and
registrations which the Company is required to obtain pursuant to the preceding sentence have been obtained or effected
on or prior to the date hereof. The Company is not in violation of the listing requirements of the OTC marketplace (the
“OTC MARKETS”) and does not reasonably anticipate that the Common Stock will be delisted by the OTC Markets in the
foreseeable future, nor are the Company’s securities “chilled” by DTC. The Company and its subsidiaries are unaware of
any facts or circumstances which might give rise to any of the foregoing.  

 
Absence of Litigation. Except as disclosed in the Company’s public filings, there is no

action, suit, claim, proceeding, inquiry or investigation before or by any court, public board, government agency, self-
regulatory organization or body pending or, to the knowledge of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, threatened against
or affecting the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or their officers or directors in their capacity as such, that could have a
material adverse effect. Schedule 3(f) contains a complete list and summary description of any pending or, to the
knowledge of the Company, threatened proceeding against or affecting the Company or any of its subsidiaries, without
regard to whether it would have a material adverse effect. The Company and its subsidiaries are unaware of any facts or
circumstances which might give rise to any of the foregoing. 

 
Acknowledgment Regarding Buyer’ Purchase of Securities. The Company acknowledges

and agrees that the Buyer is acting solely in the capacity of arm’s length purchasers with respect to this Agreement and
the transactions contemplated hereby. The Company further acknowledges that the Buyer is not acting as a financial
advisor or fiduciary of the Company (or in any similar capacity) with respect to this Agreement and the transactions
contemplated hereby and any statement made by the Buyer or any of its respective representatives or agents in
connection with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby is not advice or a recommendation and is
merely incidental to the Buyer’ purchase of the Securities. The Company further represents to the Buyer that the
Company’s decision to enter into this Agreement has been based solely on the independent evaluation of the Company
and its representatives. 

 
No Integrated Offering. Neither the Company, nor any of its affiliates, nor any person

acting on its or their behalf, has directly or indirectly made any offers or sales in any security or solicited any offers to buy
any security under circumstances that would require registration under the 1933 Act of the issuance of the Securities to
the Buyer. The issuance of the Securities to the Buyer will not be integrated with any other issuance of the Company’s
securities (past, current or future) for purposes of any shareholder approval provisions applicable to the Company or its
securities. 

 
Title to Property. The Company and its subsidiaries have good and marketable title in fee

simple to all real property and good and marketable title to all personal property owned by them which is material to the
business of the Company and its subsidiaries, in each case free and clear of all liens, encumbrances and defects except
such as are described in Schedule 3(i) or such as would not have a material adverse effect. Any real property and facilities
held under lease by the Company and its subsidiaries are held by them under valid, subsisting and enforceable leases
with such exceptions as would not have a material adverse effect. 

 
Bad Actor. No officer or director of the Company would be disqualified under Rule 506(d)

of the Securities Act as amended on the basis of being a "bad actor" as that term is established in the September 19,
2013 Small Entity Compliance Guide published by the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

 
Breach of Representations and Warranties by the Company . If the Company breaches

any of the representations or warranties set forth in this Section 3, and in addition to any other remedies available to the
Buyer pursuant to this Agreement, it will be considered an Event of default under the Note. 
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COVENANTS. 
 

Expenses. At the Closing, the Company shall reimburse Buyer for expenses incurred by
them in connection with the negotiation, preparation, execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the other
agreements to be executed in connection herewith (“Documents”), including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ and
consultants’ fees and expenses, transfer agent fees, fees for stock quotation services, fees relating to any amendments or
modifications of the Documents or any consents or waivers of provisions in the Documents, fees for the preparation of
opinions of counsel, escrow fees, and costs of restructuring the transactions contemplated by the Documents. When
possible, the Company must pay these fees directly, otherwise the Company must make immediate payment for
reimbursement to the Buyer for all fees and expenses immediately upon written notice by the Buyer or the submission of
an invoice by the Buyer.  

 
Listing. The Company shall promptly secure the listing of the Conversion Shares upon

each national securities exchange or automated quotation system, if any, upon which shares of Common Stock are then
listed (subject to official notice of issuance) and, so long as the Buyer owns any of the Securities, shall maintain, so long
as any other shares of Common Stock shall be so listed, such listing of all Conversion Shares from time to time issuable
upon conversion of the Note. The Company will obtain and, so long as the Buyer owns any of the Securities, maintain the
listing and trading of its Common Stock on the OTC MARKETS or any equivalent replacement market, the Nasdaq stock
market (“Nasdaq”) or the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) and will comply in all respects with the Company’s
reporting, filing and other obligations under the bylaws or rules of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”)
and such exchanges, as applicable. The Company shall promptly provide to the Buyer copies of any notices it receives
from the OTC MARKETS and any other markets on which the Common Stock is then listed regarding the continued
eligibility of the Common Stock for listing on such markets. 

 
Corporate Existence. So long as the Buyer beneficially owns any Note, the Company

shall maintain its corporate existence and shall not sell all or substantially all of the Company’s assets, except in the event
of a merger or consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets, where the surviving or successor
entity in such transaction (i) assumes the Company’s obligations hereunder and under the agreements and instruments
entered into in connection herewith and (ii) is a publicly traded corporation whose Common Stock is listed for trading on
the OTC MARKETS, Nasdaq or NYSE. 

 
No Integration. The Company shall not make any offers or sales of any security (other

than the Securities) under circumstances that would require registration of the Securities being offered or sold hereunder
under the 1933 Act or cause the offering of the Securities to be integrated with any other offering of securities by the
Company for the purpose of any stockholder approval provision applicable to the Company or its securities. 

 
Filings. The Company shall include all of the Notes in its next scheduled SEC filing

whether that shall be a 10Q or a10K. 
 

Breach of Covenants. If the Company breaches any of the covenants set forth in this
Section 4, and in addition to any other remedies available to the Buyer pursuant to this Agreement, it will be considered
an event of default under the Note. 
 

Governing Law; Miscellaneous. 
 

Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
the laws of the State of New York without regard to principles of conflicts of laws. Any action brought by either party
against the other concerning the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be brought only in the state courts of
New York or in the federal courts located in the state and county of New York. The parties to this Agreement hereby
irrevocably waive any objection to jurisdiction and venue of any action instituted hereunder and shall not assert any
defense based on lack of jurisdiction or venue or based upon forum non conveniens . The Company and Buyer waive trial
by jury. The prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party its reasonable attorney's fees and costs. In
the event that any provision of this Agreement or any other agreement delivered in connection herewith is invalid or
unenforceable under any applicable statute or rule of law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent
that it may conflict therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any such provision
which may prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision
of any agreement. Each party hereby irrevocably waives personal service of process and consents to process being
served in any suit, action or proceeding in connection with this Agreement or any other Transaction Document by mailing
a copy thereof via registered or certified mail or overnight delivery (with evidence of delivery) to such party at the address
in effect for notices to it under this Agreement and agrees that such service shall constitute good and sufficient service of
process and notice thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in any
other manner permitted by law. 
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Counterparts; Signatures by Facsimile. This Agreement may be executed in one or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement and
shall become effective when counterparts have been signed by each party and delivered to the other party. This
Agreement, once executed by a party, may be delivered to the other party hereto by facsimile transmission of a copy of
this Agreement bearing the signature of the party so delivering this Agreement. 

 
Headings. The headings of this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and

shall not form part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Agreement. 
 

Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable
under any applicable statute or rule of law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent that it may
conflict therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any provision hereof which
may prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision
hereof. 

 
Entire Agreement; Amendments. This Agreement and the instruments referenced herein

contain the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the matters covered herein and therein and, except as
specifically set forth herein or therein, neither the Company nor the Buyer makes any representation, warranty, covenant
or undertaking with respect to such matters. No provision of this Agreement may be waived or amended other than by an
instrument in writing signed by the majority in interest of the Buyer. 

 
Notices. All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals, and other communications

required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and, unless otherwise specified herein, shall be (i) personally served,
(ii) deposited in the mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, (iii) delivered by reputable air
courier service with charges prepaid, (iv) via electronic mail or (v) transmitted by hand delivery, telegram, or facsimile,
addressed as set forth below or to such other address as such party shall have specified most recently by written notice.
Any notice or other communication required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be deemed effective (a) upon hand
delivery or delivery by facsimile, with accurate confirmation generated by the transmitting facsimile machine, at the
address or number designated below (if delivered on a business day during normal business hours where such notice is
to be received) or delivery via electronic mail, or the first business day following such delivery (if delivered other than on a
business day during normal business hours where such notice is to be received) or (b) on the second business day
following the date of mailing by express courier service, fully prepaid, addressed to such address, or upon actual receipt of
such mailing, whichever shall first occur. The addresses for such communications shall be:  

 
If to the Company, to:
 

American Battery Metals Corporation
930 Tahoe Blvd., Suite 802-16
Incline Village, NV 89451
Attn: Douglas D Cole, CEO
 

If to the Buyer:
 

EFRAT INVESTMENTS, LLC 
54 Lenox Ave.
Clifton, NJ 07012
Attn: Pinny Rotter, Manager

 
Each party shall provide notice to the other party of any change in address.
 

Successors and Assigns . This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit
of the parties and their successors and assigns. Neither the Company nor the Buyer shall assign this Agreement or any
rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the other. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Buyer may
assign its rights hereunder to any “qualified person”, any “permitted assigns”, or “prospective transferee” that acquires or
purchases Note Securities in a private transaction from the Buyer or to any of its “affiliates,” as that term is defined under
the 1934 Act, with the prior written consent of the Company, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, and with
Buyer’s Opinion of Counsel. A qualified person is an “accredited investor” transferee, assignee, or purchaser of the Note
who succeeds to the Holder’s right, title and interest to all or a portion of the Note accompanied with an Opinion of Counsel
as provided for in Section 2(f). 

 
Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is intended for the benefit of the parties hereto

and their respective permitted successors and assigns, and is not for the benefit of, nor may any provision hereof be
enforced by, any other person. 
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Survival. The representations and warranties of the Company and the agreements and
covenants set forth in this Agreement shall survive the closing hereunder notwithstanding any due diligence investigation
conducted by or on behalf of the Buyer. The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Buyer and all their
officers, directors, employees and agents for loss or damage arising as a result of or related to any breach or alleged
breach by the Company of any of its representations, warranties and covenants set forth in this Agreement or any of its
covenants and obligations under this Agreement, including advancement of expenses as they are incurred. 

 
Further Assurances. Each party shall do and perform, or cause to be done and

performed, all such further acts and things, and shall execute and deliver all such other agreements, certificates,
instruments and documents, as the other party may reasonably request in order to carry out the intent and accomplish the
purposes of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby. 

 
No Strict Construction. The language used in this Agreement will be deemed to be the

language chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rules of strict construction will be applied against
any party. 

 
Remedies. The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder

will cause irreparable harm to the Buyer by vitiating the intent and purpose of the transaction contemplated hereby.
Accordingly, the Company acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its obligations under this Agreement will
be inadequate and agrees, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Company of the provisions of this
Agreement, that the Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies at law or in equity, and in addition to
the penalties assessable herein, to an injunction or injunctions restraining, preventing or curing any breach of this
Agreement and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions hereof, without the necessity of showing economic loss
and without any bond or other security being required.  

 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Buyer and the Company have caused this Agreement to be duly
executed as of the date first above written.
 
American Battery Metals Corporation
 
By: /s/ Douglas D. Cole

Douglas D Cole 
CEO 

 
 
EFRAT INVESTMENTS, LLC.
 
By: /s/ Pinny Rotter
Name: Pinny Rotter
Title: Manager

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGGREGATE SUBSCRIPTION AMOUNT:
 

$125,000.00 
 

Aggregate Purchase Price:
 
Note: $125,000.00 less $12,500.00 in original issue discount, less $6,250.00 in legal fees.
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EXHIBIT A
144 NOTE - $125,000.00
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Exhibit 10.12
 

 
THIS NOTE AND THE COMMON STOCK ISSUABLE UPON CONVERSION OF
THIS NOTE HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGISTERED WITH THE
UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR THE
SECURITIES COMMISSION OF ANY STATE PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION
FROM REGISTRATION PROVIDED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933,
AS AMENDED, AND THE RULES AND REGULATIONS PROMULGATED
THEREUNDER (THE "1933 ACT”)
 
 

           US $125,000.00
 
 

AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
10% CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE NOTE

DUE APRIL 23, 2021
 
 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, American Battery Metals Corporation (the “Company”) promises to pay to the order of
EFRAT INVESTMENTS, LLC and its authorized successors and Permitted Assigns, defined below, ("Holder"), the
aggregate principal face amount of One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars exactly (U.S. $125,000.00) on April 23, 2021
("Maturity Date") and to pay interest on the principal amount outstanding hereunder at the rate of 10% per annum
commencing on April 23, 2020 (“Issuance Date”). This Note shall contain a $12,500 original issue discount such that the
purchase price shall be $112,500. The interest will be paid to the Holder in whose name this Note is registered on the
records of the Company regarding registration and transfers of this Note. The principal of, and interest on, this Note are
payable at 54 Lenox Ave., Clifton, NJ 07012, initially, and if changed, last appearing on the records of the Company as
designated in writing by the Holder hereof from time to time. The Company will pay each interest payment and the
outstanding principal due upon this Note before or on the Maturity Date, less any amounts required by law to be deducted
or withheld, to the Holder of this Note by check or wire transfer addressed to such Holder at the last address appearing on
the records of the Company. The forwarding of such check or wire transfer shall constitute a payment of outstanding
principal hereunder and shall satisfy and discharge the liability for principal on this Note to the extent of the sum
represented by such check or wire transfer. Interest shall be payable in Common Stock (as defined below) pursuant to
paragraph 4(b) herein. Permitted Assigns means any Holder assignment, transfer or sale of all or a portion of this Note
accompanied by an Opinion of Counsel as provided for in Section 2(f) of the Securities Purchase Agreement. 
 

This Note is subject to the following additional provisions: 
 

This Note is exchangeable for an equal aggregate principal amount of Notes of different
authorized denominations, as requested by the Holder surrendering the same. No service charge will be made for such
registration or transfer or exchange, except that Holder shall pay any tax or other governmental charges payable in
connection therewith. To the extent that Holder subsequently transfers, assigns, sells, or exchanges any of the multiple
lesser denomination notes, Holder acknowledges that it will provide the Company with Opinions of Counsel as provided
for in Section 2(f) of the Securities Purchase Agreement. 
 

The Company shall be entitled to withhold from all payments any amounts required to be withheld
under applicable laws. 
 

This Note may be transferred or exchanged only in compliance with the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended ("Act"), applicable state securities laws and Sections 2(f) and 5(f) of the Securities Purchase Agreement. Any
attempted transfer to a non-qualifying party shall be treated by the Company as void. Prior to due presentment for transfer
of this Note, the Company and any agent of the Company may treat the person in whose name this Note is duly
registered on the Company's records as the owner hereof for all other purposes, whether or not this Note be overdue, and
neither the Company nor any such agent shall be affected or bound by notice to the contrary. Any Holder of this Note
electing to exercise the right of conversion set forth in Section 4(a) hereof, in addition to the requirements set forth in
Section 4(a), and any prequalified prospective transferee of this Note, also is required to give the Company written
confirmation that this Note is being converted ("Notice of Conversion") in the form annexed hereto as Exhibit A. The date
of receipt (including receipt by telecopy) of such Notice of Conversion shall be the Conversion Date. All notices of
conversion will be accompanied by an Opinion of Counsel. 
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The Holder of this Note is entitled, at its option, at any time, to convert all or any amount
of the principal face amount of this Note then outstanding into shares of the Company's common stock (the "Common
Stock") at a price (" Conversion Price") for each share of Common Stock equal to 60% of the lowest closing bid price of
the Common Stock as reported on the National Quotations Bureau OTC Market exchange which the Company’s shares
are traded or any exchange upon which the Common Stock may be traded in the future ("Exchange"), for the fifteen prior
trading days including the day upon which a Notice of Conversion is received by the Company (provided such Notice of
Conversion is delivered together with an Opinion of Counsel, by fax or other electronic method of communication to the
Company after 4 P.M. Eastern Standard or Daylight Savings Time if the Holder wishes to include the same day closing
price). If the shares have not been delivered within 2 business days, the Notice of Conversion may be rescinded. Such
conversion shall be effectuated by the Company delivering the shares of Common Stock to the Holder within 2 business
days of receipt by the Company of the Notice of Conversion. Accrued, but unpaid interest shall be subject to conversion.
No fractional shares or scrip representing fractions of shares will be issued on conversion, but the number of shares
issuable shall be rounded to the nearest whole share. To the extent the Conversion Price of the Company’s Common
Stock closes below the par value per share, the Company will take all steps necessary to solicit the consent of the
stockholders to reduce the par value to the lowest value possible under law. The Company agrees to honor all
conversions submitted pending this increase. In the event the Company experiences a DTC “Chill” on its shares, the
conversion price shall be decreased to 50% instead of 60% while that “Chill” is in effect. In no event shall the Holder be
allowed to effect a conversion if such conversion, along with all other shares of Company Common Stock beneficially
owned by the Holder and its affiliates would exceed 4.99% of the outstanding shares of the Common Stock of the
Company (which may be increased up to 9.9% upon 60 days’ prior written notice by the Holder). The conversion discount,
look back period and other terms will be adjusted on a ratchet basis if the Company offers a more favorable conversion
discount, interest rate, (whether through a straight discount or in combination with an original issue discount), look back
period or other more favorable term to another party for any financings while this Note is in effect. 
 

Interest on any unpaid principal balance of this Note shall be paid at the rate of 10% per annum.
Interest shall be paid by the Company in Common Stock ("Interest Shares"). Holder may, at any time commencing six
months after the date of funding to the Company by the Holder, send in a Notice of Conversion to the Company for
Interest Shares based on the formula provided in Section 4(a) above. The dollar amount converted into Interest Shares
shall be all or a portion of the accrued interest calculated on the unpaid principal balance of this Note to the date of such
notice.  
 

The Notes may be prepaid with the following penalties:  
 

PREPAY DATE PREPAY AMOUNT
≤ 61 days 120% of principal plus accrued interest
61- 120 days 130% of principal plus accrued interest
121-180 days 140% of principal plus accrued interest

 
This Note may not be prepaid after the 180 th day. Such redemption must be closed and funded within 3 days of giving
notice of redemption or the right to redeem shall be null and void. Any partial prepayments will be made in accordance
with the formula set forth in the chart above with respect to principal, premium and interest.
 

Upon (i) a transfer of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company to any person in a
single transaction or series of related transactions, (ii) a reclassification, capital reorganization (excluding an increase in
authorized capital) or other change or exchange of outstanding shares of the Common Stock, other than a forward or
reverse stock split or stock dividend, or (iii) any consolidation or merger of the Company with or into another person or
entity in which the Company is not the surviving entity (other than a merger which is effected solely to change the
jurisdiction of incorporation of the Company and results in a reclassification, conversion or exchange of outstanding shares
of Common Stock solely into shares of Common Stock) (each of items (i), (ii) and (iii) being referred to as a "Sale Event"),
then, in each case, the Company shall, upon request of the Holder, redeem this Note in cash for 150% of the principal
amount, plus accrued but unpaid interest through the date of redemption, or at the election of the Holder, such Holder may
convert the unpaid principal amount of this Note (together with the amount of accrued but unpaid interest) into shares of
Common Stock immediately prior to such Sale Event at the Conversion Price. 
 

In case of any Sale Event (not to include a sale of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets)
in connection with which this Note is not redeemed or converted, the Company shall cause effective provision to be made
so that the Holder of this Note shall have the right thereafter, by converting this Note, to purchase or convert this Note into
the kind and number of shares of stock or other securities or property (including cash) receivable upon such
reclassification, capital reorganization or other change, consolidation or merger by a holder of the number of shares of
Common Stock that could have been purchased upon exercise of the Note and at the same Conversion Price, as defined
in this Note, immediately prior to such Sale Event. The foregoing provisions shall similarly apply to successive Sale
Events. If the consideration received by the holders of Common Stock is other than cash, the value shall be as
determined by the Board of Directors of the Company or successor person or entity acting in good faith. 
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No provision of this Note shall alter or impair the obligation of the Company, which is absolute and
unconditional, to pay the principal of, and interest on, this Note at the time, place, and rate, and in the form, herein
prescribed. 
 

The Company hereby expressly waives demand and presentment for payment, notice of non-
payment, protest, notice of protest, notice of dishonor, notice of acceleration or intent to accelerate, and diligence in taking
any action to collect amounts called for hereunder and shall be directly and primarily liable for the payment of all sums
owing and to be owing hereto. 
 

The Company agrees to pay all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees and
expenses, which may be incurred by the Holder in collecting any amount due under this Note. 
 

If one or more of the following described "Events of Default" shall occur: 
 

The Company shall default in the payment of principal or interest on this Note or any other note
issued to the Holder by the Company; or 
 

Any of the representations or warranties made by the Company herein or in any certificate or
financial or other written statements heretofore or hereafter furnished by or on behalf of the Company in connection with
the execution and delivery of this Note, or the Securities Purchase Agreement under which this note was issued shall be
false or misleading in any respect; or 
 

The Company shall fail to perform or observe, in any respect, any covenant, term, provision,
condition, agreement or obligation of the Company under this Note or any other note issued to the Holder; or 
 

The Company shall (1) become insolvent (which does not include a “going concern opinion); (2)
admit in writing its inability to pay its debts generally as they mature; (3) make an assignment for the benefit of creditors or
commence proceedings for its dissolution; (4) apply for or consent to the appointment of a trustee, liquidator or receiver for
its or for a substantial part of its property or business; (5) file a petition for bankruptcy relief, consent to the filing of such
petition or have filed against it an involuntary petition for bankruptcy relief, all under federal or state laws as applicable; or 
 

A trustee, liquidator or receiver shall be appointed for the Company or for a substantial part of its
property or business without its consent and shall not be discharged within sixty (60) days after such appointment; or 
 

Any governmental agency or any court of competent jurisdiction at the instance of any
governmental agency shall assume custody or control of the whole or any substantial portion of the properties or assets of
the Company; or 
 

One or more money judgments, writs or warrants of attachment, or similar process, in excess of
one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) in the aggregate, shall be entered or filed against the Company or any of its
properties or other assets and shall remain unpaid, unvacated, unbonded or unstayed for a period of fifteen (15) days or in
any event later than five (5) days prior to the date of any proposed sale thereunder; or 
 

Defaulted on or breached any term of any other note of similar debt instrument into which the
Company has entered and failed to cure such default within the appropriate grace period; or 
 

The Company shall have its Common Stock delisted from an exchange (including the OTC
Markets exchange) or, if the Common Stock trades on an exchange, then trading in the Common Stock shall be
suspended for more than 10 consecutive days or ceases to file its 1934 act reports with the SEC;  
 

If a majority of the members of the Board of Directors of the Company on the date hereof are no
longer serving as members of the Board; 
 

The Company shall not deliver to the Holder the Common Stock pursuant to paragraph 4 herein
without restrictive legend within 2 business days of its receipt of a Notice of Conversion which includes an Opinion of
Counsel expressing an opinion which supports the removal of a restrictive legend; or 
 

The Company shall not replenish the reserve set forth in Section 12, within 3 business days of the
request of the Holder. 
 

The Company shall be delinquent in its periodic report filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission; or 
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The Company shall cause to lose the “bid” price for its stock in a market (including the OTC
marketplace or other exchange). 
 
Then, or at any time thereafter, unless cured within 5 days, and in each and every such case, unless such Event of
Default shall have been waived in writing by the Holder (which waiver shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any
subsequent default) at the option of the Holder and in the Holder's sole discretion, the Holder may consider this Note
immediately due and payable, without presentment, demand, protest or (further) notice of any kind (other than notice of
acceleration), all of which are hereby expressly waived, anything herein or in any note or other instruments contained to
the contrary notwithstanding, and the Holder may immediately, and without expiration of any period of grace, enforce any
and all of the Holder's rights and remedies provided herein or any other rights or remedies afforded by law. Upon an
Event of Default, interest shall accrue at a default interest rate of 24% per annum or, if such rate is usurious or not
permitted by current law, then at the highest rate of interest permitted by law. In the event of a breach of Section 8(k) the
penalty shall be $250 per day the shares are not issued beginning on the 4th day after the conversion notice was
delivered to the Company. This penalty shall increase to $500 per day beginning on the 10th day. The penalty for a breach
of Section 8(n) shall be an increase of the outstanding principal amounts by 20%. If this Note is not paid at maturity, the
outstanding principal due under this Note shall increase by 10%. Further, if a breach of Section 8(m) occurs or is
continuing after the 6-month anniversary of the Note, then the Holder shall be entitled to use the lowest closing bid price
during the delinquency period as a base price for the conversion. For example, if the lowest closing bid price during the
delinquency period is $0.01 per share and the conversion discount is 50% the Holder may elect to convert future
conversions at $0.005 per share
 
If the Holder shall commence an action or proceeding to enforce any provisions of this Note, including, without limitation,
engaging an attorney, then if the Holder prevails in such action, the Holder shall be reimbursed by the Company for its
attorneys’ fees and other costs and expenses incurred in the investigation, preparation and prosecution of such action or
proceeding.

 
Make-Whole for Failure to Deliver Loss. At the Holder’s election, if the Company fails for any

reason to deliver to the Holder the conversion shares by the by the 3rd business day following the delivery of a Notice of
Conversion to the Company and if the Holder incurs a Failure to Deliver Loss, then at any time the Holder may provide
the Company written notice indicating the amounts payable to the Holder in respect of the Failure to Deliver Loss and the
Company must make the Holder whole as follows: 
Failure to Deliver Loss = [(Highest VWAP for the 30 trading days on or after the day of exercise) x (Number of conversion
shares)]
 
The Company must pay the Failure to Deliver Loss by cash payment, and any such cash payment must be made by the
third business day from the time of the Holder’s written notice to the Company.
 

In case any provision of this Note is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be excessive in
scope or otherwise invalid or unenforceable, such provision shall be adjusted rather than voided, if possible, so that it is
enforceable to the maximum extent possible, and the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Note
will not in any way be affected or impaired thereby. 
 

Neither this Note, nor any term hereof may be amended, waived, discharged or terminated other
than by a written instrument signed by the Company and the Holder. 
 

The Company represents that it is not a “shell” issuer and that if it previously has been a “shell”
issuer that at least 12 months have passed since the Company has reported Form 10 type information indicating it is no
longer a “shell” issuer.  
 

The Company shall issue irrevocable transfer agent instructions reserving 18,315,000 shares of
its Common Stock for conversions under this Note (the “Share Reserve”). Upon full conversion of this Note, any shares
remaining in the Share Reserve shall be cancelled. The Company shall pay all transfer agent costs as well as brokerage
review and deposit fees associated with issuing and delivering the share certificates to Holder. If such amounts are to be
paid by the Holder, it may deduct such amounts from the principal amount being converted. The company should at all
times reserve a minimum of four times the amount of shares required if the note would be fully converted. The Holder may
reasonably request increases from time to time to reserve such amounts. The Company will instruct its transfer agent to
provide the outstanding share information to the Holder in connection with its conversions. 
 

The Company will give the Holder direct notice of any corporate actions, including but not limited
to name changes, stock splits, recapitalizations etc. This notice shall be given to the Holder as soon as possible under law.
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If it shall be found that any interest or other amount deemed interest due hereunder violates the
applicable law governing usury, the applicable provision shall automatically be revised to equal the maximum rate of
interest or other amount deemed interest permitted under applicable law. The Company covenants (to the extent that it
may lawfully do so) that it will not seek to claim or take advantage of any law that would prohibit or forgive the Company
from paying all or a portion of the principal or interest on this Note. 
 

This Note shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of New York
applicable to contracts made and wholly to be performed within the State of New York and shall be binding upon the
successors and assigns of each party hereto. The Holder and the Company hereby mutually waive trial by jury and
consent to exclusive jurisdiction and venue in the courts of the State of New York or in the Federal courts sitting in the
county or city of New York. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, and the facsimile transmission of an
executed counterpart to this Agreement shall be effective as an original. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Note to be duly executed by an officer thereunto
duly authorized. 
 
 
Dated:   

 
 

AMERICAN BATTERY METALS CORPORATION
 

By: /s/ Douglas D. Cole
Title: CEO
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EXHIBIT A
 

 
NOTICE OF CONVERSION

 
(To be Executed by the Registered Holder in order to Convert the Note)

 
The undersigned hereby irrevocably elects to convert $___________ of the above Note into _________

Shares of Common Stock of American Battery Metals Corporation (“Shares”) according to the conditions set forth in such
Note, as of the date written below. 
 

If Shares are to be issued in the name of a person other than the undersigned, the undersigned will pay
all transfer and other taxes and charges payable with respect thereto. 

 
Date of Conversion: ______________________________________________________________
 
Applicable Conversion Price: _______________________________________________________
 
Signature: ______________________________________________________________________

[Print Name of Holder and Title of Signer] 
 
Address: _______________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
SSN or EIN: ____________________________________________________________________
 
Shares are to be registered in the following name: ______________________________________
 
Name: _________________________________________________________________________
 
Address: _______________________________________________________________________
 
Tel: ___________________________________________________________________________
 
Fax: ___________________________________________________________________________
 
SSN or EIN: ____________________________________________________________________
 
Shares are to be sent or delivered to the following account:
 
Account Name: __________________________________________________________________
 
Address: _______________________________________________________________________
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EXHIBIT 31.1

 
The certification required by Rule 13a-14a (17 CFR 240.13a-14(a)) or Rule 15d-14(a) (17CFR 240. 15d-14(a))

 
I, Douglas D. Cole, certify that:
 

I have reviewed this Form 10-K of American Battery Metals Corporation (the "Registrant"); 
 

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;  

 
Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of,
and for, the periods presented in this report;  

 
The Registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act 13a-15(e) and 15d – 15(e)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the Registrant and have:  

 
Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;  

 
Designed such internal control over financing reporting, or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;  

 
Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented

in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the
end to the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and     

 
Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant's internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the Registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
Registrant's internal control over financial reporting.  

 
The Registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the Registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the Registrant's board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

 
All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control

over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Registrant's ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and  

 
Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a

significant role in the Registrant's internal control over financial reporting.  
 

Date: September 28, 2020 By: /s/ Douglas D Cole  
  Douglas D Cole  

  
Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer
Chairman
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EXHIBIT 32.1

 
CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 
In connection with the annual report (the "Report") on the Form 10-K of American Battery Metals Corporation (the
"Company") for the transition period ended June 30, 2020, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the
date hereof, I, Douglas D Cole, Chief Executive Officer, Principal Financial Officer and Director, certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of my
knowledge and belief:
 
1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended; and
 
2. The information contained in this Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.
 

    
Date: September 28, 2020 By: /s/ Douglas D Cole  
  Douglas D Cole  

  
Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer
Chairman
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